%

oy
PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

Oversight and Governance
Chief Executive’s Department
Plymouth City Council

Ballard House

Plymouth PLI 3B)

Please ask for Hannah Chandler-Whiting
T 01752 668000

E democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk
www.plymouth.gov.uk

Published 10 February 2025

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Tuesday 18 February 2025
2.00 pm
Council House, Plymouth

Members:
Councillor Allen, Chair

Councillor Finn, Vice Chair
Councillors Cuddihee, P.Nicholson, Raynsford and Stevens.
Independent Member Annette Benny.

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf.

You can watch any of our webcast meetings on YouTube. For further information on attending
Council meetings and how to engage in the democratic process please follow this link - Get
Involved

Tracey Lee
Chief Executive


https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PLW0qNdfVlat35d9TRrIZF8fstPQ3ucVRl
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/councillorscommitteesandmeetings/getinvolved
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/councillorscommitteesandmeetings/getinvolved
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/councillorscommitteesandmeetings

Audit and Governance Committee

Agenda

Apologies

To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Committee Members.

Declarations of Interest

Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this

Agenda.

Minutes

(Pages | - 22)

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 12 November 2024, || December 2024

and 14 January 2025.

Chair's Urgent Business

To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought

forward for urgent consideration.

Capitalisation Direction Update:

External Audit - Audit Findings Report 2023/24:
Approval of Statement of Accounts 2023/24:

Update on External Audit Recommendations:

Updated Treasury Management Strategy 2025/26:

Updated Capital Financing Strategy 2025/26:
Adult Social Care Debt Management:

Civic Protocol:

Tracking Decisions:

Work Programme:

(Verbal Report)
(Pages 23 - 66)
(Pages 67 - 256)
(Verbal Report)
(Pages 257 - 292)
(Pages 293 - 302)
(Pages 303 - 324)
(To Follow)
(Pages 325 - 330)

(Pages 331 - 334)



37.

38.

39.

40.

Page 1 Agenda Item 3

Audit and Governance Committee
Tuesday 12 November 2024

PRESENT:

Councillor Allen, in the Chair.

Councillor Finn, Vice Chair.

Councillors Noble (substitute for Councillor Cuddihee), P.Nicholson, Raynsford and Independent
Member Annette Benny.

Apologies for absence: Councillors Cuddihee and Stevens.

Also in attendance: Liz Bryant (Head of Legal Services), Hannah Chandler-Whiting (Democratic
Advisor), Wendy Eldridge (Lead Accountancy Manager), Carolyn Haynes (Interim Head of
Finance), Ross Jago (Head of Governance, Performance and Risk), David Northey (Service
Director for Finance), Oliver Woodhams (Head of Finance) and Louise Clapton (Devon Audit
Partnership), Ken Johnson (Devon Audit Partnership) and Jackson Murray (Grant Thornton).
The meeting started at 2.02 pm and finished at 4.32 pm.

Note: At a future meeting, the committee will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, so they may
be subject to change. Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm whether these minutes have
been amended.

Declarations of Interest

A general dispensation was in place for Committee Members in relation to the following item:
Council’s Electoral Cycle Consultation.

Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on 10 September 2024 were agreed as an accurate record.
Chair's Urgent Business

There were no items of Chair’s urgent business.

Plymouth City Council Audit Plan 2023/24

Jackson Murray (Grant Thornton) introduced the report and highlighted:

a) Ethical standards meant that lead auditors rotated every five years and Jackson Murray
would be taking over from Paul Dossett from 2023/24 accounts onwards;

b) The backstop date was |3 December 2024 for all accounts up to and including 2022/23;

Audit and Governance Committee Tuesday 12 November 2024



Page 2

c) The 2023/24 audit had been underway since September 2024 and was making good
progress;

d) The backstop for 2023/24 would be February 2025.

Supported by Carolyn Haynes (Acting Head of Finance), in response to questions, the following
was reported:

e) Valuation of council land and buildings was a common risk due to the high value;

f) The Council was required to estimate what amount would be needed to pay out to all
future pensioners should the pension liabilities crystallise and the auditors needed to
ensure the assumptions were reasonable;

g) Committee Members would be provided with current asset valuation information;

h) The Council did not have any assets with negative value;

i) There was no update on the capitalisation directive, and if there was an update, it would be
shared with Committee Members.

41. Auditor's Annual Report (Interim Version) for the year ended 31 March 2024
Jackson Murray (Grant Thornton) introduced the report and highlighted:
a) The final version was expected to be issued in three months’ time;
b) Value for money findings must be reported by November each year;

c) Two significant weaknesses had been identified in the same report for the 2022/23 financial
year;

i.  Financial sustainability and Grant Thornton had recommended that the Council
should update its Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) which remained open but
an updated MTFS had been presented to Cabinet on | | November 2024;

i. Need to improve economy efficiency and effectiveness in Children’s Services
following an Ofsted improvement notice;

d) There was evidence that the Council was discussing savings transformation regularly but it
needed to be more clear on how different programs were being pulled together and
ensure that the transformation that was required to maintain financial sustainability could
be evidenced;

e) Improvement recommendations related to sensitivity analysis required within the MTFS
and a need to report the split between recurrent and non-recurrent savings as well as the
need for a review of the Corporate Risk Register and reporting high level improvements
made following fraud investigations each year;

Audit and Governance Committee Tuesday 12 November 2024



Page 3

f) Procurement readiness action plan needed to be reported to the Committee ensuring the
Council was ready for the implementation of new procurement policy in 2025.

In response to questions, the following was reported:

g) A link to the MTFS report that had gone to Cabinet would be shared with Committee
Members;

h) The MTFS would be reviewed by Grant Thornton;

i) The publication of the MTFS had been delayed by the General Election in July 2024;

j) Grant Thornton would not provide a detailed expectation for budget setting, it would not
be appropriate in relation to national budget, though this is provided more generally by
LGA and other forums and organisations which could be shared;

k) Procurement Readiness Action Plan would be added to the work programme.

42. Counter Fraud Half Year Report

Ken Johnson (Counter Fraud Services Manager, Devon Audit Partnership) introduced the report
and highlighted:

a) Following a recommendation from Grant Thornton, more detail would be provided in
counter fraud reports moving forward;

b) A new offense of ‘failure to prevent fraud’ had been created, but the team were still waiting
for guidance on this from Government and the risk would need to be considered and an
updated Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy would be brought to Committee for approval;

c) Savings were as expected for the time of year.

The Committee expressed their thanks to Ken for his continued good work.
43. Internal Audit Half Year Report 2024/25

Louise Clapton (Audit Manager, Devon Audit Partnership) introduced the report and highlighted:

a) The Head of Internal Audit mid-year assurance opinion was reasonable assurance on 30
September 2024:

i.  100% of audit assurance opinions were of reasonable assurance and 100% of grants
were certified without amendment;

ii.  There were two limited assurance audit opinions at draft when the report was
published and whilst this would affect percentages, it would not affect the overall

opinion;

b) Progress against delivery the internal audit plan was at 67%;

Audit and Governance Committee Tuesday 12 November 2024



Page 4

c) There were two additions to the plan agreed previously: Adult social care client
contribution income and the LGA Improvement and Assurance Framework at the request
of senior management;

d) The scope of the budget management audit would be extended to include valuation against
CIPFA’s financial management code;

e) Homelessness had been deferred in order to complete work on the adult social care client
contribution income;

f) Performance management was replaced with work around the Council’s family of
companies governance.

The Committee agreed to:
I. Note the mid-year assurance opinion statement;
2. Note the findings.
44. Internal Audit Management Action Tracker Q2 2024/25
Louise Clapton (Audit Manager, Devon Audit Partnership) introduced the report and highlighted:

a) This tool was used to track actions of limited assurance to monitor and ensure
management actions were taken appropriately and promptly;

b) This report was unchanged from QI;

c) Of the 123 management actions agreed 41% have been implemented and of the outstanding
actions 48% were overdue, but 88% of those actions were partially implemented;

d) Good engagement from across the Council in recommendations but some actions took
longer than expected.

In response to questions, the following was explained:

e) Work looking into adult social care debt management was ongoing and would be reported
on in more detail at a future meeting;

f) Using external legal support for adult social care debt management was not being
considered as an option.

The Committee agreed to:
I. Note the implementation of internal audit recommendations.
45. Treasury Management Mid-Year Report 2024/25

Wendy Eldridge (Lead Accountancy Manager) introduced the report and highlighted:

Audit and Governance Committee Tuesday 12 November 2024



Page 5

a) There had been very little movement since the last report provided to the Committee;
b) There had been higher investments made in money market funds;

c) The first £5 million LOBO (Lender option borrower option) call in had been made in
August 2024 and there was one remaining LOBO call-in for 2024/25;

d) LOBO'’s had been very popular but now the strategy was to pull out when advisable
because of high interest rates;

e) The borrowing strategy was a challenge but lower interest rates had begun to be secured;
f) New borrowing continued to be a challenge during a period of interest volatility;

g) Some borrows would only lend to authorities who had their latest accounts signed off, a
position Plymouth City Council was not in;

h) Savings in this area resulted in a forecast underspend for this area;

i) There had been compliance against prudential indicators except for non-compliance to
prudential indicator for interest rate exposure through upper limit on fixed interest rate
exposure being exceeded.

In response to questions it was reported:

j)  The average interest rates were between 1.37-2.54%;

k) A short-term approach was being taken towards interest rates at the time because a
reduction was predicted for the future and this was under constant review;

[) There would always be cash-rich authorities who were keen to lend, but some had moved
from lending to borrowing authorities because of varying circumstances, so the market of
lending authorities was smaller.

The Committee agreed to:

I. Note the Mid-year Treasury Management Report;

2. Note non-compliance to prudential indicator for interest rate exposure through upper
limit on fixed interest rate exposure being exceeded.

46. Treasury Management Strategy 2025/26
Wendy Eldridge (Lead Accountancy Manager) introduced this report and highlighted:

a) The Strategy included documents for the 2025/26 were only just made available and so the
interest rate and economic forecast was subject to change;

b) The approach for the Investment Strategy was: security, liquidity and yield;

Audit and Governance Committee Tuesday 12 November 2024



Page 6

c) The Buying Strategy was a balance between securing the lowest cost of interest and
ensuring the cost will cover the period of funds required;

d) Prudential indicators were required under the Treasury Management Code of Practice, and
set out the operational boundaries of borrowing;

e) The report focussed on the Property Regeneration Fun and the return from investments
into economic development property;

f) The report would be updated to include the economic interest rate forecast released by
Arlingclose in November 2024.

In response to questions, the following was explained:
g) The International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 16 accounting rules had changed
which was reflected in the report in changes in Private Finance Initiative (PFl) liabilities and
leases;

h) All borrowing costs were included in the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS);

i) The Capital Investments had been analysed to ensure there would be growth within the
Council in future years;

j)  Grant funding would be used to alleviate some borrowing;
k) The report included a Liability Benchmark Chart.
The Committee agreed to:

I. Recommend the Treasury Management Strategy 2025/26, that incorporated the authorised
limits, operational boundaries and prudential indicators, to City Council for approval.

47. Capital Financing Strategy 2025/26

Wendy Eldridge (Lead Accountancy Manager) introduced this report and highlighted:

a) In 2024/25 additional governance would be added for projects going through the Capital
Programme Officer Group (CPOG);

b) The Five Year Programme totalled nearly £373 million and highlighted that just under £92
million would be financed through Corporate Borrowing;

c) The borrowing requirement would be accommodated within the MTFS;
d) £124 million of the Programme would be financed through service borrowing.
In response to questions, it was explained:

e) The five year programme was subject to change and this was reflected in the report.

Audit and Governance Committee Tuesday 12 November 2024



48.

49.

50.

51.

Page 7

The Committee agreed:
I. To recommend the Capital Financing Strategy to Council for approval.
Risk Management Monitoring Report

Ross Jago (Head of Governance, Performance and Risk) introduced the report and highlighted the
following points:

a) There were 18 risks in total on the Strategic Risk Register;
b) Three risks had been removed from the Strategic Risk Register in the last quarter,
including lack of adult social care workforce, IT supply chain complaints, and Senior

Leadership capacity;

c) The top three risks on the Strategic Risk Register included: cyber-attacks, finance and
Integrated Commissioning.

The Committee agreed to note the report.
Performance and Accountability Framework

Ross Jago (Head of Governance, Performance and Risk) introduced the report and highlighted the
following points:

a) The Data Quality Strategy had been agreed by the Corporate Management Team and gone

through the internal governance processes and would be brought before the Committee in
the future;

b) Work was being done with the new Chief Operating Officer to implement Al across data
pipelines to ensure they were robust and consistent. This would inform the Data to

Intelligence Strategy.

Committee Self-Assessment

Ross Jago (Head of Governance, Performance and Risk) introduced the item and highlighted the
following:

a) Members, substitutes, and former Members of the Committee had received a
questionnaire to complete, and answers would be provided to Council in 2025.

Council's Electoral Cycle Consultation
Liz Bryant (Head of Legal) introduced the report and highlighted the following points:

a) The report had been before the Committee previously, but was brought back as the
consultation period had ended;

Audit and Governance Committee Tuesday 12 November 2024



Page 8

b) The consultation was carried out over an eight week period between 24 July 2024 and 22
September 2024, asking the public to choose between whole council elections or to keep
the current system;

c) 7,055 responses were received for the consultation, and there were four stakeholder
responses from the University of Plymouth, The Police and Crime Commissioner,
Plymouth Community Homes and Plymouth Marjon University;

d) The responses were as follows: 4,063 wanted to change to whole council elections, 2,443
wanted no change, and 545 had no preference.

Caroline Marr (Senior Policy Advisor) added:
e) Face to face groups had been run with the Youth Parliament;

f) Councillor sessions had been run for the public to ask questions and find out more about
the electoral cycle;

g) The consultation was promoted through the Council’s Communications Team and
Elections Team;

h) Democracy and stability were the key themes that emerged from the consultation analysis.
In response to questions, it was explained:

i) Validation was done to ensure against duplicates in the consultation, however as this was
an open survey there was no way to ward against the public providing their opinion more
than once and providing different answers.

The Committee agreed to the following recommendations:

I. To receive the electoral cycle consultation summary report at Appendix A and

recommend that the City Council determined at its meeting on 25 November 2024

whether to make a change to its electoral cycle arrangements;

2. To note the amendments to the Council Size Submission at Appendix B arising from a
change in forecasting date to 2031;

3. To authorise the Monitoring Officer and Chief Executive to make any further minor
forecasting amendments necessary and to finalise the addendum required setting out the
electoral cycle decision prior to submitting the response to the LGBCE.

52. Tracking Decisions
The Committee agreed to note its Tracking Decisions document.

53. Work Programme

The Committee agreed to add adult social care debt management to the work programme.

Audit and Governance Committee Tuesday 12 November 2024



Page 9

The Committee agreed to note its work programme.

Audit and Governance Committee Tuesday 12 November 2024



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



54.

55.

56.

Page 11

Audit and Governance Committee

Wednesday | | December 2024

PRESENT:

Councillor Finn, Vice Chair in the Chair.

Councillors Cuddihee, Freeman (substitute for Councillor Allen), Krizanac (substitute for

Councillor Stevens) and Raynsford.

Apologies for absence: Councillors Allen, P.Nicholson, Stevens and Independent Member Annette
Benny.

Also in attendance: Councillor Lowry, Liz Bryant (Head of Legal Services), Carolyn Haynes (Acting
Head of Finance), Ross Jago (Head of Governance, Performance and Risk), Oliver Woodhams
(Head of Finance) and Paul Dossett (Grant Thornton (via Microsoft Teams)) and David Johnson
(Grant Thornton (via Microsoft Teams)).

The meeting started at 10.05 am and finished at 11.08 am.

Note: At a future meeting, the committee will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, so they may
be subject to change. Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm whether these minutes have
been amended.

Declarations of Interest

No declarations of interest were made.

Chair's Urgent Business

There were no items of Chair’s urgent business.

Auditors Annual Report

Carolyn Haynes (Acting Head of Finance) gave context on the meeting and highlighted:

a) Apologised for the lateness of the reports;

b) The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) guidance circulated to
Committee Members had not been issued until 9 December 2024;

c) The audit opinion had not been received until late on 3 December 2024 and the
consequential reports then had to be written and assimilated;

d) As of 30 April 2024, 369 sets of local authority accounts out of a total of 625 for the
financial years 2020/21 and 2022/23 were still waiting to be audited;

Audit and Governance Committee Wednesday 11 December 2024



g)

h)

)

k)

Page 12

Local authorities across England and Wales had experienced a significant backlog in
completion of audits for several years which had been reported as a crisis;

In February 2024 the Ministry for Homes, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG)
issued a joint statement with CIPFA and the Finance Reporting Council (FRC) on proposals
to address the backlog as a three stage process;

New statutory backstop dates for all finance years up to and including 2027/28 needed to
be established;

Long-term work was required to address the systemic challenges that had led to this audit
backlog;

|3 December 2024 had been set as the backstop date for all outstanding audits up to and
including 2022/23;

Plymouth City Council had two financial year statements affected by the backstop for
2021/22 and 2022/23;

The accounts for 2019/20 and 2020/21 would be signed off by |3 December 2024 with an
unmodified opinion and were not affected by the backstop position;

Draft accounts were published on the Council’s website and had been presented to the
Audit and Governance Committee previously;

m) Auditors were contracted audit to professional standards and in accordance with the code

n)

P)

of practice;

A Disclaimed Opinion from Grant Thornton was included within the report and was
worded as follows: ‘Grant Thornton had not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on the financial statements due to an
outstanding legal issue which had now been resolved and capacity issues within Grant
Thornton over the last four years, it had not been possible for Grant Thornton to
complete their work on the audit for 2021/22 and 2022/23 and therefore they had issued a
disclaimed opinion’;

The Disclaimed Opinion implications included:

i) The Council had, in recent years, received an unmodified or unqualified opinion and the
most recent accounts for 2019/20 and 2020/21 received an unmodified opinion. As this
was a national issue affecting many local authorities, the Government may have to
intervene to provide more assurance for those authorities receiving a disclaimed opinion
under the statutory back stop arrangement;

ii) The Council would be working hard to ensure that they provided the necessary
evidence in future audits to restore public confidence in accounts and to work towards
receiving an unmodified opinion as soon as possible;

The Public Sector Audit Appointments Panel set Audit Fees at a scale fee for 2021/22 of
£111,393 and for 2022/23 of £122,255. The Audit Fees for 2023/24 were £375,258 and for

Audit and Governance Committee Wednesday 11 December 2024



Page 13

2024/25 were £409,064.

Councillor Lowry (Cabinet Member for Finance) added:

q)

Audits were now undertaken by private firms such as Grant Thornton; this service used to
be provided by the Audit Commission;

The report was up to three years out of date and addressed issues which were no longer
relevant;

Due to there no longer being an Audit Commission, and every Council had to use private
firms, there was a lack of capability and capacity;

A detailed action plan was needed from the auditors outlining what they were going to
audit, and when they were going to do it, to prevent the delay happening again.

Paul Dossett (Grant Thornton) added:

u)
v)

w)

Grant Thornton had signed over 80% of audits from 2022/23 and earlier;

Plymouth City Council had complied with the regulations in terms of producing accounts,
however there had been an ongoing legal issue which had led to the backstopping of two
audits;

This report had been brought before the Committee previously as an ‘interim’ report, but
now was able to be finalised.

In response to questions, supported by Oliver Woodhams (Head of Finance) and David Johnson
(Grant Thornton) it was explained:

x)

Y)

2)

The legal issue was resolved when Plymouth City Council was able to redraw the accounts
from 2019/20;

Outside of work around value for money, no audit procedures had been carried out on the
reports from two years ago;

Due to the Government implementing the backstop, Grant Thornton had been unable to
provide audit assurance on the 2021/22 and 2022/23 accounts;

aa) Imposing a backstop did not solve the fundamental problem of the lack of auditors;

bb) It was suggested that the Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee would meet with

council officers and Grant Thornton auditors on a regular basis to ensure documents were
not brought before Committee so late again;

cc) There needed to be a period of recovery in which audits would be carried out as normal,

including the in-year transactions and closing balances, but there would also be work on
opening balances which would comments in 2024/25 and 2025/26;

Audit and Governance Committee Wednesday 11 December 2024



Page 14

dd) An Audit opinion for 2022/23 would be received by the Council on 30 December 2024,
and an Audit Opinion for 2022/23 would be received by the Council by March 2024 for
2023/24;

ee) A ‘normal’ Disclaimed Opinion was when auditors could not place reliance on the
numbers, however this Disclaimed Opinion was by Statute, meaning the Government
imposed the Disclaimer, preventing auditors from finishing audits and reaching conclusions;

ff) Closing balances and in-year transaction audits would still be carried out in 2024/25, it was
the auditing of opening balances that there was not clarity on from the Government;

gg) Auditing standards determines what auditors had to focus on, although the Government
might be considering another model for local government auditing in the future;

hh) Grant Thornton would adhere to report deadlines to ensure Councillors had enough time
to read the report before the meeting in February 2025 to approve the statement of
accounts for 2023/24;

ii) The backstop process was unique to reset the sector and move audits forward and all
auditors would be working on one set of accounts from 2024/25;

ji) Audit work would be carried out on future years and levels of assurance would increase
the more years that pass from the backstop arrangements, but the process of recovery had
begun;

kk) The backstop arrangement would allow Carolyn Haynes and her team to focus on the
audit for 2023/24.

During the discussion, concerns about the timing of reports were raised:
Il)  Councillors expressed their frustration and concern of receiving reports late the evening
before the meeting which did not allow them to carry out their role properly as members of

the Committee;

mm) Councillors wanted to ensure that this issue did not occur again ahead of the
meeting in February 2025 to approve the 2023/24 Statement of Accounts;

nn) Grant Thornton had been holding regular meetings with Carolyn Haynes and her team
with regards to the 2023/24 audit and recognised following comments made with regards
to the lateness of the reports for this meeting that appropriate resource was allocated;

00) Grant Thornton explained that they did not have any concerns at the time of the meeting
about not meeting deadlines for the February 2025 meeting and the team were committed

to getting the audit progressed and completed and would comply with reporting deadlines;

pp) Work on timeline and deadlines would be done with Grant Thornton before Christmas to
ensure the timely publication of reports for the Committee meeting in February.

The Committee agreed to:

Audit and Governance Committee Wednesday 11 December 2024



57.

58.

Page 15

I. Note the report;

2. Recommend the creation of an Audit Plan and that the Chair of the Audit and Governance
Committee should meet with Council officers and Grant Thornton auditors on a regular basis to
ensure documents were not brought before Committee late again.

Audit Findings Reports 2021/22 and 2022/23

David Johnson (Grant Thornton) introduced the report and highlighted the following points:

a) Previous reports had given a detailed outline of the work that had been done to reach the
conclusion for the factors set out in the previous item;

b) This report provided short form audit findings.
The Committee agreed to note the report.
Approval of Statement of Accounts 2021/22 and 2022/23

Carolyn Haynes (Acting Head of Finance) introduced the report and highlighted the following
points:

a) The changes to the accounts reflected changes which had been put through in relation to
previous audit findings for 2019/20 and 2021 accounts;

b) Changes had also been made to reflect the change in accounting treatment of the pension
transaction in 2019/20, to move it from being a Capital Transaction to a Revenue

Transaction;

c) There was a negative working fund balance, however this would be resolved when the
Capitalisation Directive was received;

d) Associated Minimum Revenue Provision and Associate Reserve Movements had been
removed in relation to the pension transaction;

e) Changes had been made for the accounting treatment of the interest rate swap which was
previously treated as a hedge transaction;

f) Amendments had been made to the notes on Heritage Assets to include items below
£100,000 and the special books collections;

g) Corrections had been made to Property Plant and Equipment, arising from making annual
depreciations charges on material assets values as at the 31 March.

The Chair reiterated:

h) The Committee’s frustration at the lateness of the reports;

Audit and Governance Committee Wednesday 11 December 2024



Page 16

i) That Committee members had not had appropriate time to consider the reports;

j) He was putting the recommendations forward with reservations, but was reassured by

officers.

The Committee agreed:

To approve the Statement of Accounts for 2021/22 attached as Appendix A and the
Statement of Accounts for 2022/23 attached as Appendix B. This was a Statutory
Requirement, the Account and Audit Regulation 2015 required the accounts to be:
i) Considered by Committee;

ii) Approved by Committee resolution;

iii) Signed and dated by the person presiding at the Committee;

2. To delegate authority to the Section 151 Officer in consultation with the Chair of Audit
and Governance Committee to sign the letters of representation to Grant Thornton LLP
for the Council and to sign the accounts;

3. To note the amendments to the 2021/22 and 2022/23 accounts and that they would not be
subject to an external audit but would instead be subject to the provision of the backstop
legislation and were anticipated to be finalised before |3 December 2024;

4. To consider the contents of the Audit Opinions for the Council (Appendices C and D);
and

5. The Letters of Representation attached as Appendix E & F were authorised and submitted
to the Auditor.

59. Tracking Decisions

The Committee agreed to note its tracking decisions document.

60. Work Programme

The Committee agreed to note its work programme.

Audit and Governance Committee Wednesday 11 December 2024



61.

62.

63.

Page 17

Audit and Governance Committee

Tuesday 14 January 2025

PRESENT:

Councillor Allen, in the Chair.

Councillor Finn, Vice Chair.

Councillors Cuddihee, Freeman (substitute for Councillor Stevens) Raynsford and Independent
Member Annette Benny.

Apologies for absence: Councillor Stevens.

Also in attendance: Liz Bryant (Head of Legal Services), Hannah Chandler-Whiting (Democratic
Advisor), Holly Golden (Head of Procurement), Carolyn Haynes (Lead Accountancy Manager),
David Northey (Service Director for Finance), Louise Clapton (Devon Audit Partnership) and
David Johnson (Grant Thornton).

The meeting started at 2.02 pm and finished at 3.08 pm.

Note: At a future meeting, the committee will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, so they may
be subject to change. Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm whether these minutes have

been amended.

Declarations of Interest

Name Item Number Reasons Interest

Annette Benny 9 Non-Executive Other registerable
Board Member for | interest.
Livewell

Minutes

The Committee expressed that the following with regards to the minutes:

a) The 12 November 2024 minutes contained some minor errors;

b) The Il December 2024 minutes required additional detail on the Committee Members
discussion around the lateness of the reports for that meeting.

It was therefore agreed that the minutes would be revised and brought to the next meeting of the
Committee for approval.

Chair's Urgent Business

There were no items of Chair’s urgent business.

Audit and Governance Committee Tuesday 14 January 2025



64.

65.

Page 18

Capitalisation Direction Update

David Northey (Service Director for Finance) provided an update and highlighted the following
points:

a) No progress had yet been made with regards to the capitalisation directive;

b) He was still in regular contact with Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government (MHCLG) colleagues and was due to speak to them that week;

c) The conclusion was expected towards the end of January 2025/early February 2025.
In response to questions it was further explained:

d) MHCLG did not treat cases individually and Plymouth City Council was | of 19 Councils
who applied for exceptional financial support, but he was pushing against that as Plymouth’s
situation was more unique;

e) The budget for 2025/26 could be set without an outcome, but this was not preferred.

External Auditor - Audit Progress Report and Sector Updates
David Johnson (Grant Thornton) introduced the report and highlighted:

a) There were lessons to be learnt from the December 2024 meeting of the Audit and
Governance Committee and the very late provision of reports to Committee Members
and Grant Thornton were working towards providing reports in a timely manner for the
February 2025 meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee to sign off the reports;

b) The 2023/24 accounts backstop date was 28 February 2025;

c) The field work on the 2023/24 accounts was due to be completed within the following two
weeks;

d) Grant Thornton were on site in Plymouth w/c 13 January 2025 to discuss outstanding
issues with officers;

e) The audit opinion would be disclaimed due to lack of assurance over opening balances and
Grant Thornton expected the 2024/25 audit opinion to be subject to a form of
qualification as well, with an aim to move to unqualified opinions in future years following a
rebuilding of assurance.

In response to questions, with support from Carolyn Haynes (Lead Accountancy Manager) and
David Northey (Service Director for Finance), it was further explained:

f)  New guidance on low value leases would only be relevant for 2024/25 accounts onwards

but it would be a responsibility of Council management to deem which leases were low
value, especially as this might vary between different local authorities;

Audit and Governance Committee Tuesday 14 January 2025



Page 19

i.  Grant Thornton would provide a response outside of the meeting to Committee
Members on how assets that might have had a low value when new but were, at
present time, valuable, would be dealt with;

ii. Identification of low values leases was ongoing and there was a meeting scheduled
for 17 January 2025 with Arlingclose, the Council’s treasury management and
financial advisors, to discuss the impact of IFRSI6 (Independent Financial Reporting
Standard) on the Council;

iii.  The volume of leases meant it was a sizable task for a small team, but the officers
would, of course, do their best and a report would be provided to the Audit and
Governance Committee once work was complete;

g) Grant Thornton would respond outside of the meeting on elaboration on the following
paragraph from a report presented to the Audit and Governance Committee in December
2024, and if this was going to be further clarified in the report for February 2025, as the
colleagues who had worked on that report were not present for the meeting;

i.  “The MTFS, in February 2022, shows a cumulative deficit over the next four years to
2026/27 of £118 million, however this gap has widened significantly to £256 million, in
September 2022, as the MTFS fifth years has been recalculated to include the 2027/28
financial year. The financial risks facing the Council are significant and given the low level
of reserves, current indications are that the Council’s financial position is critical.”

ii.  David Northey (Service Director for Finance) reported that the MTFS (Medium
Term Financial Strategy) had been through Cabinet and City Council in November
2024;

iii.  There had been an £18 million budget gap for 2025/26, but this had been updated
to a balanced budget as of |3 January 2025 and would have a direct impact on
future years;

iv.  There was work to do but the gap would not be in the region of £118-256 million;

v.  His opinion on the robustness of the reserves would form part of the reports due
to be presented to the Committee in February 2025;

vi. ~ The MTFS was recalculated to include 2027/28 as it was a rolling 5 year plan;
h) The team would provide answers to the suggested questions by Grant Thornton (on Page
25 of the agenda pack) on IFRSI16 in a report to a future meeting.
66. Update on External Audit Recommendations
David Northey (Service Director for Finance) provided the following verbal update:

a) There were two outstanding recommendations that were rolling forward;

Audit and Governance Committee Tuesday 14 January 2025



67.

68.

Page 20

i.  The first related to sustainability which was an issue for the whole public sector,
not just Plymouth;

ii.  The second related to being more open and transparent about our reserves and
how robust they were;

b) More recommendations would be released soon as the team moved towards the next
set of accounts.

Treasury Management Board Update
David Northey (Service Director for Finance) provided a verbal update:

a) Due to member availability and other factors, the December 2024 meeting was postponed
and therefore there was an update. A written report would be provided at the next
Committee meeting.

Adult Social Care Debt Management 2024/25
Louise Clapton (Devon Audit Partnership) introduced the report and highlighted:

a) The scope and objective of the audit report was to provide the Council with an audit

opinion on the systems, processes and procedures in place to recover adult social care
debt;

b) The audit opinion was of limited assurance because adult social care debt was not
effectively or promptly recovered;

c) The report was issues in draft in October 2024 which gave management time to consider
the content of the report and to provide their response and agree a management action
plan and the final report was issue on 29 November 2024, where | | recommendations
were made in total;

d) On 19 December 2024 an adult social care debt management meeting took place where
the report and management action was discussed and six of the recommendations had
been implemented, which the remaining five having action ongoing;

e) Monthly meetings were taking place to discuss adult social care debt management and the
Audit and Governance Committee would be updated on this through the regular
reporting.

David Northey (Service Director of Finance) explained:

f) He would be able to provide a more detailed report for discussion at the next meeting of

the Audit and Governance Committee as a lot of work was being undertaken to improve

this area.

The following was discussed during questions asked:

Audit and Governance Committee Tuesday 14 January 2025



69.

70.

g)

h)

)

k)

Page 21

The budget for 2025/26 included an increase of 6 FTE (Full Time Employment) roles into
the debt recovery team to invest to save;

The Devon ICB (Integrated Care Board) debt reported had been resolved since the report
was written;

Colleagues from Adult Social Care would be in attendance at the next meeting;

More detail could be provided at the next meeting on the processes around care
assessments and the Council safeguarding against debt;

It had been reported to Councillors that some people were leaving hospital without a care
assessment in place, which would impact funding for care needs.

Procurement Act Readiness Action Plan

Holly Golden (Head of Procurement) introduced the report and highlighted the following:

2)

b)

<)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

The report was presented to the Committee so they had visibility of the Council being
ready for the implementation of the upcoming new Procurement Act;

The new act had been delayed by the 2024 General Election, and would come into place
on 24 February 2025;

Contract Standing Orders would not change as a result of the new act;
Key principles remained the same;

The Procurement Act 2023 was not retrospective and would only apply to new
procurement activity;

Some changes built on good practice the Council had already implemented;~
There would be increased flexibility;

There would be an increase in mandatory notices.

In response to questions it was further reported:

i)

Light touch contracts definition was remaining the same relating to health and social care
areas due to the nature of the procurement.

The Committee agreed to not the progress made on the delivery of the Council’s Procurement
Act Readiness Action Plan.

(Councillor P. Nicholson joined the meeting during this item)

Committee Self-Assessment

Audit and Governance Committee Tuesday 14 January 2025



71.

72.

Page 22

Hannah Chandler-Whiting (Democratic Advisor) provided a verbal update:

a) The link to the self-assessment would be recirculated to Committee members following
the meeting;

b) Reminded members of the importance of completing the self-assessment as soon as
possible so that the results could be included in the Audit Annual Report due in March
2025.

Following a short discussion:

c) It was agreed that the terms of reference for the Committee would be shared along with
the link to the self-assessment.

Tracking Decisions
The Committee agreed to note its tracking decisions document.
Work Programme
The following was discussed during this item:
a) Desire from Committee members to schedule the item ‘Pre-election Period Guidance’
before the end of the 2024/25 municipal year, so that the same Councillors that requested
the item be added to the work programme, could discuss it;

b) The possibility of scheduling an additional meeting in April 2025 would be looked into.

The Committee agreed to note its work programme.

Audit and Governance Committee Tuesday 14 January 2025



This version of the report is a draft. Its contents and
subject matter remain under review and its contents may
change and be expanded as part of the finalisation of

° GrantThornton the report

The Audit Findings (ISA260) Report
for Plymouth City Council

Year ended 31 March 2024




Public

Grant Thornton

Plymouth City Council

Grant Thornton UK LLP

Ballard House 2 Glass Wharf
26 West Hoe Road Bristol
Plymouth BS2 OEL

PL13 BJ

[T +44] 0117 305 7600
18 February 2025

www.grantthornton.co.uk

Dear Chair of Audit and Governance Committee

Audit Findings for Plymouth City Council for the 31 March 2024

This Audit Findings presents the observations arising from the audit that are significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the financial reporting process
and confirmation of auditor independence, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK] 260. Its contents have been discussed with management.

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK], which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion on the
financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial statements does not relieve managementJ
or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements. o

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed for the purpose of expressin
our opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However, where, as part of our testing, we identif
control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all defalcations or other irregularities, or to include all possible improvemen
in internal control that a more extensive special examination might identify. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without
our prior written consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as
this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

We encourage you to read our transparency report which sets out how the firm complies with the requirements of the Audit Firm Governance Code and the steps we have taken to drive
audit quality by reference to the Audit Quality Framework. The report includes information on the firm’s processes and practices for quality control, for ensuring independence and
objectivity, for partner remuneration, our governance, our international network arrangements and our core values, amongst other things. This report is available at transparency-report-
2023.pdf [grantthornton.co.uk).

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the kind assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.

Jackson Murray

Director
For Grant Thornton UK LLP

Chartered Accountants
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is @ member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk
© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.


https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/annual-reports/transparency-report-2023.pdf
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/annual-reports/transparency-report-2023.pdf

Your key Grant Thornton
team members are:

Jackson Murray
Key Audit Partner

E jackson.murray@uk.gt.com

David Johnson
Audit Manager

E david.a.johnson@uk.gt.com

Aman Gandhi
Assistant Manager

E aman.gandhi@uk.gt.com

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Contents

Section
1. Headlines

Financial statements

2.
3.  Value for money arrangements
L.

Independence and ethics

Appendices

A.  Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance

Action plan - Audit of Financial Statements

B.
C. Audit Adjustments
D. Fees and non-audit services

Page

28
30

34
35
39
43

Public

The contents of this report relate only to the
matters which have come to our attention, which
we believe need to be reported to you as part of
our audit planning process. Itis not
comprehensive record of all the relevant matters,
which may be subject to change, and in particular
we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting
all of the risks which may affect the Council or all
weaknesses in your internal controls. This report
has been prepared solely for your benefit and
should not be quoted in whole or in part without
our prior written consent. We do not accept any
responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third
party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis
of the content of this report, as this report was not
prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability
partnership registered in England and Wales:
No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square,
London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available
from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is
authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct
Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm
of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and
the member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL
and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one
another’s acts or omissions.

G¢ obed


mailto:jackson.murray@uk.gt.com
mailto:david.a.johnson@uk.gt.com
mailto:aman.gandhi@uk.gt.com

1. Headlines

This table
summarises the key
findings and other
matters arising
from the statutory
audit of Plymouth
City Council (‘the
Council’) and the
preparation of the
Council's financial
statements for the
year ended 31
March 2024 for the
attention of those
charged with
governance.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Public

Financial Statements

Under International
Standards of Audit (UK] (ISAs)
and the National Audit Office

(NAQ] Code of Audit Practice

(‘the Code'), we are required

to report whether, in our

opinion:

* the Council's financial
statements give a true and
fair view of the financial
position of the Council
and its income and
expenditure for the year;
and

* have been properly
prepared in accordance
with the CIPFA/LASAAC
code of practice on local
authority accounting and
prepared in accordance
with the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014.

We are also required to
report whether other
information published
together with the audited
financial statements
(including the Annuall
Governance Statement (AGS)
and Narrative Report), is
materially consistent with the
financial statements and with
our knowledge obtained
during the audit, or otherwise
whether this information
appears to be materially
misstated.

QOur audit work was completed through a mixture of on-site and remote working during October 2024 to February 2025. Our
findings are summarised on pages 7 to 29. We have identified 2 adjustments to the financial statements and management
have also made a number of adjustments following the close of the prior year audits. This has resulted in a £19.7m adjustment
to the Council’s Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These have no impact on the level of the Council’s
useable reserves.

Audit adjustments are detailed at Appendix C. We have also raised recommendations for management as a result of our audit
work. These are set out at Appendix B. Our 2020/21 audit recommendations were reported to members in December 2024. As
there has been insufficient time for management to consider and implement any response to these recommendations we have
not followed these up as part of this audit. We will consider these as part of our 2024/25 audit.

Our work is substantially complete and there are no matters of which we are aware that would require further modification of
our audit opinion or material changes to the financial statements, subject to the following outstanding matters;

* confirmation of PFl transaction costs and explanation of changes to the model between years;

* completion of the accounts consistency checklist on the final draft accounts;

* review of the updated cash flow statement;

* conclusion of the “hot review” of the financial statements by our financial reporting colleagues; and

* satisfactory closure of our final outstanding queries, including any arising from the completion of final quality reviews of
our audit documentation.

Following completion of the above and the Audit and Governance Committee meeting, we anticipate being in a position to
issue our auditor’s report prior to the backstop date of 28 February 2025 and following;

* receipt and review of the signed management representation letter; and

* receipt and review of the final set of signed financial statements, including quality review to ensure all adjustments have
been appropriately processed.

Unfortunately, owing to the challenges of undertaking an audit where the previous audits were disclaimed due to the locall
authority backstop, this year we have been unable to regain full assurance and it has not been possible for us to undertake
sufficient work to support an unmodified audit opinion in advance of the proposed backstop date of 28 February 2025. This is
in line with the national expectations of the Financial Reporting Council and National Audit Office. The limitations imposed by
not having assurance on opening balances mean that we will be unable to form an opinion on the financial statements. Our
anticipated financial statements audit report opinion will be a disclaimed opinion in relation to opening balances.

Due to the proposed disclaimed audit opinion, we have been unable to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement
does not comply with the requirements of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdon 2023/24, or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit. We are not
required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses all risks and controls or that risks are satisfactorily
addressed by internal controls.

9¢ obed




Public

1. Headlines

Value for Money (VFM) arrangements

Under the National Audit Office (NAQ) Our work on the Council’s value for money (VFM) arrangements was reported to the Audit and Governance Committee in November 2024 through
Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'), we  our Auditor’s Annual Report (AAR] (interim version). In that report we noted that we have not been able to satisfy ourselves that the Council has
are required to consider whether the made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. A further explanation of the significant
Council has put in place proper weaknesses we identified in the Council’s arrangements is detailed on page 27 of this report.

arrangements to secure economy,

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of

resources. Auditors are required to report

in more detail on the Council's overall

arrangements, as well as key

recommendations on any significant

weaknesses in arrangements identified

during the audit. U
Auditors are required to report their g
commentary on the Council's D
arrangements under the following
specified criteria: m)
* Improving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness;
* Financial sustainability; and
*  Governance
Statutory duties
The Local Audit and Accountability Act We have not exercised any of our additional statutory powers or duties.
2014 (‘the Act’) also requires us to We have completed the majority of work under the Code. As the NAO have indicated that no certificates are to be issued until their whole of
* report to you if we have applied any  government accounts work has been completed we are unable to issue the certificate. This will be issued as soon as is possible upon completion
of the additional powers and duties of their work.
ascribed to us under the Act; and
* to certify the closure of the audit.
Significant matters Our work in 2023/2Y4 has been impacted by the closing of prior year audits. This has impacted the audit team and management’s capacity to
deal with queries raised and provide working papers, during this period, and we have continued to work together to ensure progress within the
audit. We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the assistance and collaboration provided by the finance team and
other staff during the audit
5

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Public

1. Headlines

National context - audit backlog

Government proposals around the backstop

On 30 July 2024, the Minister of State for Local Government and English Devolution, Jim McMahon, provided the following written statement to Parliament Written statements - Written
guestions, answers and statements - UK Parliament This confirmed the government’s intention to introduce a backstop date for English local authority audits up to 2022/23 of 13 December
202%4. As a consequence of this, the Council’s accounts for 2021/22 and 2022/23 were issued a disclaimer of opinion. The main reasons for the application of the backstop was that the
completion of the 2019/20 and 2020/21 audits were delayed due to legal issues related to a pension transaction that were subsequently resolved and a lack of capacity within the audit market
that required the government legislation. We were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence by the backstop date to conclude that the Council’s financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023, as a whole, were free from material misstatement. As a result of these disclaimer opinions, we do not have sufficient, appropriate audit evidence over
the opening balances for the 2023/24 audit year and as such, in accordance with national guidance, intend to issue a disclaimer opinion for 2023/2 in order to allow the Council to publish its
accounts by the 28 February 2025 deadline.

Our intention is that over time we will re-build assurance in respect of prior years across all backstopped audits, taking account of guidance from the National Audit Office and the Financial
Reporting Council. For 2023/24, we have focused at your audit on the following areas in advance of the backstop date.

risk assessment and evaluation of the control environment for 2023/2l including ISA 315 assessment;

audit of closing balances as at 31 March 2024;

audit of income and expenditure and movements within financial year 2023/24 and associated cut off testing;

testing of journals within 2023/24;

testing of Movement of Reserves statements and other primary statements (within the constraints that we will not have opening balance assurance);
financial statements disclosure; and

recognising the sensitivity of cash, including the opening cash position as at 1 April 2023.

g¢ obed

We will continue the process of recovery during 2024/25 and ongoing years.
New National Audit Office Code
As part of ongoing reforms to local audit, the National Audit Office has also laid a new Code before Parliament. One of the objectives is the new Code is to ensure more timely reporting of audit

work, including Value for Money. The Code requires that from 2025, auditors will issue their Annual Auditor’s Report by November each year. We have already put resource plans in place to
ensure we achieve this deadline across all audited bodies.

National context - level of borrowing

All councils continue to operate in an increasingly challenging financial context. With inflationary pressures placing increasing demands on council budgets, there are concerns as councils look
to alternative ways to generate income. We have seen an increasing number of councils look to ways of utilising investment property portfolios as sources of recurrent income. Whilst there have
been some successful ventures and some prudently funded by councils’ existing resources, we have also seen some councils take excessive risks by borrowing sums in excess of their revenue
budgets to finance these investment schemes. Additionally, we have also seen some authorities lending money to their subsidiary companies, which may not be in a position to repay those
loans.

The impact of these huge debts on councils, the risk of potential bad debt write offs and the implications of the poor governance behind some of these decisions are all issues which now have to
be considered by auditors across local authority audits. Plymouth is not immune to the challenges the current financial environment present, and continues to manage ongoing finances
through a number of mechanisms including investment properties. The Council has increased both short-term, by £12.3m, and long-term borrowing, by £86.8m, in the year as a means to ensure
the continued delivery of services and has avoided making inappropriate investments outside of the geographical area of Plymouth and the South West. The challenge will remain for the
coming years and we will continue to monitor the Council’s performance, both in the financial statements and through the assessment of VM arrangements. 6

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.


https://questions-statements.parliament.uk/written-statements/detail/2024-07-30/hcws46
https://questions-statements.parliament.uk/written-statements/detail/2024-07-30/hcws46

2. Financial Statements

Overview of the scope of our audit Audit approach

This Audit Findings Report presents the observations arising
from the audit that are significant to the responsibility of
those charged with governance to oversee the financial
reporting process, as required by International Standard on
Auditing (UK] 260 and the Code of Audit Practice (‘the
Code’). Its contents have been discussed with management
and the Audit & Governance Committee.

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK)
and the Code, which is directed towards forming and
expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have
been prepared by management with the oversight of those
charged with governance. The audit of the financial
statements does not relieve management or those charged
with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Our audit approach was based on a thorough
understanding of the Council's business and is risk based,
and in particular included:

an evaluation of the Council's internal controls
environment, including its IT systems and controls; and

substantive testing on significant transactions and
material account balances, including the procedures
outlined in this report in relation to the key audit risks.

Public

As highlighted in page 3 of this report, unfortunately it will
not be possible for us to undertake sufficient work to
conclude our work. We therefore plan to issue a disclaimer
of the audit opinion due to being unable to gain sufficient
assurance over opening balances.

The circumstances resulting in the application of the local
authority backstop to prior year audits are clearly extremely
unusual. The government has signalled its intent that where
backstops have been applied, local authorities and their
auditors work together to recover the position over
subsequent years. We will follow relevant guidance
including from the NAO and the FRC to work with you over
the coming years, as we seek to rebuild audit assurance.

Recognising the backstop date of 28 February 2025, we
anticipate issuing a disclaimed audit opinion following the
Audit & Governance Committee meeting on 18 Feb 2025,
subject to completion of issues identified on page 4.

Acknowledgements

We would like to take this opportunity to record our
appreciation for the assistance provided by the finance
team and other staff. During the course of the audit both
your finance team and our audit team faced challenges
again this year, such as remote accessing financial systems,
video calling, and verifying the completeness and accuracy
of information provided remotely produced by the entity.
The need to close the backstopped audits from prior years
has also contributed to the challenges and the disclaimed
opinion in 2022/23 has resulted in us having to carry out
additional audit procedures to gain sufficient audit
assurance in respect of our auditor’s opinion on the
financial statements.

Following the closure of the prior year audits in December
2024, audit and finance teams worked in-person in
Plymouth to expediate the closure of audit testing and
queries which worked well. Given the success, this is
something we are already discussing with management to
replicate in our future audits.

6¢ obed



Public

2. Financial Statements

Council Amount (£) Qualitative factors considered

Materiality for the financial statements 7,700,000 We considered materiality from the perspective of the users of the financial
statements. The Council prepares an expenditure-based budget for the
financial year and monitors spend against this, therefore gross expenditure

Our approach to materiality was deemed as the most appropriate benchmark. This benchmark was used

in the prior year. We deemed that 1.3% was an appropriate rate to apply to

The concept of materiality is the expenditure benchmark.

fundamental to the preparation of the
financial statements and the audit

. Performance materiality 5,000,000 Our performance materiality has been set as 65% of our overall materiality.
process and applies not only to the
monetary misstatements but also to - . .- . .
. Y . Trivial matters 385,000 Calculated as a percentage of headline materiality and in accordance with
disclosure requirements and adherence

to acceptable accounting practice and auditing standards

applicable law.

Materiality levels remain the same as
reported in our audit plan.

We set out in this table our
determination of materiality for
Plymouth City Council.

0€ abed

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Public

2. Financial Statements: Significant risks

Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK]) as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the
potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.

This section provides commentary on the significant audit risks communicated in the Audit Plan.

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Management override of controls

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed
risk that the risk of management over-ride of controls is
present in all entities.

We have:
* evaluated the design effectiveness of management controls over journals;

used our data analysis software, Inflo, to undertake a number of checks on the data, such as unbalanced transactions,
unbalanced user IDs and transactions with blank account descriptions. Where any differences were noted by Inflo, we followed
these up with management and obtained sufficient explanations and corroboration for these;

* tested unusual journals made during the year and after the draft accounts stage for appropriateness and corroboration;

* reviewed manual journals, within Inflo, to identify those deemed to be high risk to be selected for testing. We selected and
shared our selection with management for them to provide us with evidence to support the entries. We completed our testing
upon receipt of this supporting documentation;

* gained an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical judgements applied made by management and considered
their reasonableness, and

* evaluated the rationale for any changes in accounting policies, estimates or significant unusual transactions
Our testing of journals identified the following issue:

* There is no formal approval process for posting journals below £500k. Therefore, the finance team members, who have access
to post journals, are effectively self approving. This presents a risk that inappropriate journals could be posted and authorised
by one individual. We have noted that from January 2024 the Council implemented a control that users who are included within
the ‘standard journals’ user group require approval for any journal posted. However, this covers a specific group and there
remain a large number of users who are able to self authorise journals below £500k.

* Asin previous years, journals over £600k are required to be authorised in the system but, due to limitations with its features
related to this areaq, it is possible to manually override the process. Whilst a manual detective control, through a system
generated report, is in place for such journals, this does raise the potential for journals to be missed.

No other issues have been identified.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

T¢ obed



2. Financial Statements: Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Public

The revenue cycle includes fraudulent transactions

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk
that revenue may be misstated due to the improper
recognition of revenue. This presumption can be
rebutted if the auditor concludes that there is no risk
of material misstatement due to fraud relating to
revenue recognition.

We reported in our audit plan that having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue streams at
the Council, we determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition could be rebutted because:

there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition;
opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited; and

the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including Plymouth City Council, mean that all forms of fraud are
seen as unacceptable.

Having completed our audit work, we consider that the rebuttal of the risk remains appropriate.

Risk of fraud related to expenditure recognition
PAF Practice Note 10

In line with the Public Audit Forum Practice Note 10,
in the public sector, auditors must also consider the
risk that material misstatements due to fraudulent
financial reporting may arise from the manipulation
of expenditure recognition (for instance by deferring
expenditure to a later period).

We rebutted this risk in our audit plan. Having completed our work, we consider that the rebuttal of the risk remains appropriate
because.

expenditure is well controlled, and the Council has a strong control environment; and

the Council has clear and transparent reporting of its financial plans and financial position.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Z¢ obed



Public

2. Financial Statements: Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Closing Valuation of Land and Buildings

The Council revalues its land and buildings on a
rolling five-yearly basis. This valuation represents a
significant estimate by management in the financial
statements due to the size of the numbers involved
(£619.4m as at 31 March 2024) and the sensitivity of
this estimate to changes in key assumptions.
Additionally, management need to ensure the
carrying value in the Council’s financial statements
is not materially different from the current value or
the fair value (for surplus assets) at the financial

statements date, where a rolling programme is used.

We have:

evaluated management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, the instructions issued to valuation
experts and the scope of their work;

evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation experts;
written to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuation was carried out;

challenged the information and assumptions used by the valuer to assess completeness and consistency with our
understanding;

tested revaluations made during the year to see if they had been input correctly into the asset register;

considered valuation work undertaken by other councils in relation to jointly owned properties, such as the Torpoint Bridge
and Torpoint Ferry and the Energy from Waste plant. Both of these assets have been externally valued in 2023/24, to ensure
the councils’ share is appropriately disclosed; and

evaluated the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during the year and how management has
satisfied themselves that these are not materially different to current value at year end.

The Council has a large number of assets, both by value and volume, and we have identified a number of issues within our
testing:

our reconciliation of Techforge, the fixed asset register (FAR), identified two libraries where management had incorrectly
transposed the values. This had a net nil impact but required each asset to be adjusted by £874k.

testing of depreciation identified that the 2022/23 revaluation entries had been entered on the FAR with a valuation date of 1
April 2023 meaning accumulated depreciation was not reversed in the previous year. This therefore impacted the 2023/21
accounts disclosure. This has resulted in an adjusted misstatement of £10.6m to the opening balance and revaluation
reserve, £601k to depreciation and £269k to disposals. The opening balance adjustment has been completed before the
close of the 2022-23 accounts and is therefore a disclosure only issue.

when inputting the valuation of the Broadway public car park into the FAR management incorrectly put the land valuation
as building and vice versa. The revaluation increase recognised in the revaluation reserve is understated by £901k and the
revaluation increase recognised in the surplus or deficit on the provision of services is similarly overstated by £901k. This has
been corrected.

review of assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty, note 5, identified that
management had disclosed a material valuation uncertainty in relation to PPE. This is not disclosed in the valuer’s report
and therefore should not be included within the note. This was subsequently removed.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

e¢ abed



Public

2. Financial Statements: Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Closing Valuation of Land and Buildings (cont.)

Issues identified (cont.)

* as part of our testing of individual asset values we have considered the estimates and assumptions used by the valuer in
their calculations. Testing identified errors in calculations which resulted in a factual misstatement of £4,066k [01c which
£3,917k has been adjusted by management with the remaining £13%9k being trivial] and estimation differences of £2,991k
(which are unadjusted] for those assets that were sampled. Extrapolating the estimation differences over the full population
of revalued assets gives a total potential estimation uncertainty of £3,835k which is immaterial. The issues identified were as

follows:

incorrect floor areas used in calculations;

floor area documentation not being retained. We used alternative audit procedures to assess the overall
reasonableness of the areas used;

incorrect BCIS build rates being used to calculate the cost per square metre;
inconsistent application of external build costs;

incorrect application of professional fees;

use of school pupil numbers data from Q12023 instead of O12024;

double counting of some calculation adjustments; and

no consideration of retirement obligations.

We have noted a number of other issues in relation to the property, plant and equipment assets and have identified further non-
valuation errors around PPE on page 18. The errors identified are not material in isolation but there is a risk that on cumulative
basis there could be a material impact on the financial statements. We have raised a recommendation in appendix B.

As outlined previously, we have backstopped the 2021/22 and 2022/23 audit and therefore will issue a disclaimer of opinion. We
cannot place any assurance in the opening balances brought forward or those assets not valued in the year. We will continue
to review asset revaluations over the coming years in order to regain assurance over the balances in the financial statements.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

¢ abed



Public

2. Financial Statements: Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Commentary

Valuation of Investment Property We have:

The Council revalue its investment property on an + evaluated management’s processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, the instructions issued to valuation
annual basis as required by the CIPFA Code. This experts and the scope of their work;

valuation represents a significant estimate by

. . . * evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation experts;
management in the financial statements due to the

size of the numbers involved (£223m at 31/03/2024) ° written to the valuers to confirm the basis on which the valuations were carried out;

and the sensitivity of this estimate to changesinkey  «  reviewed the fixed asset register and valuation reports to identify a sample of investment properties which have been

assumptions. revalued in year for further testing. In doing this we considered those assets whose values at 31 March 2024 are above

Management have engaged the services of an internal performance materiality, those assets where there has been a valuation movement or other change outside of our U

valuer to estimate the fair value as at 31 March 2024, expectation and a sample of assets where the movement is in line with expectation; and g

We therefore identified valuation of investment ¢ for each item within our sample we have requested detailed calculation sheets for the 2024 revaluation exercise to support D

property as a significant risk of material misstatement. and evidence the assumptions used to calculate the updated valuations. w
63

Testing identified the following issues:

* various errors were identified within the calculation sheets of our selected assets, including incorrect income and incorrect
lease break dates used in calculations which have resulted in an extrapolated error of £402k. This is is the net of a £998k
overstatement and a £5696k understatement; and

* testing identified that there is an inconsistent application of stamp duty, agent fees and legal fees for investment property
assets. Management had not applied these adjustments in all cases and had they done so the asset value would have
increased by £1,160k. It is management’s judgement as to whether these costs should be included and once it has been
agreed what approach should be taken to ensure this is applied consistently.

The total extrapolated variance identified, as o result of the above issues, was a £758k overstatement which is not material.

As outlined previously, we have backstopped the 2021/22 and 2022/23 audit and therefore will issue a disclaimer of opinion. We
cannot place any assurance in the opening balances brought forward or movements in the year. We will continue to review
asset revaluations over the coming years in order to regain assurance over the balances in the financial statements.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Public

2. Financial Statements: Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Valuation of pension fund net liability

The Council's pension fund net liability, as reflected in its balance sheet as
the net defined benefit liability, represents a significant estimate in the
financial statements.

The pension fund net liability is considered a significant estimate due to the
size of the numbers involved (£64.3m in the Council’s balance sheet) and
the sensitivity of the estimate to changes in key assumptions.

The methods applied in the calculation of the IAS 19 estimates are routine
and commonly applied by all actuarial firms in line with the requirements
set out in the Code of practice for local government accounting (the
applicable financial reporting framework). We have therefore concluded
that there is not a significant risk of material misstatement in the IAS 19
estimate due to the methods and models used in their calculation.

The source data used by the actuaries to produce the IAS 19 estimates is
provided by administering authorities and employers. We do not consider
this to be a significant risk as this is easily verifiable.

We have:

* updated our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by management to ensure that the Council’s
pension fund net liability is not materially misstated and evaluated the design of the associated controls. No issues
were identified from completion of this;

* evaluated the instructions issued by management to their management expert (an actuary) for this estimate and the
scope of the octuorg’s work;

+ assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the Council’s pension fund
valuation;

* assessed the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the Council to the actuary to estimate the
liability;

* tested the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in the notes to the core financial
statements with the actuarial report from the actuary;

* undertaken procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made by reviewing the report of
the consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and performing any additional procedures suggested within the report;
and

* obtained assurances from the auditor of Devon Pension Fund as to the controls surrounding the validity and
accuracy of membership data, contributions data and benefits data sent to the actuary by the pension fund and
the fund assets valuation in the pension fund financial statements.

o¢ abed

Within the year it was identified that nationally, IFRIC 14 calculations in relation to asset ceilings had not been
appropriately considered by actuaries through a combination of error and them not being requested to by councils
and pension funds. In 2023/24 we noted that management has disclosed the impact of the asset ceiling which we have
considered as part of our IFRIC 14 review. We discussed the issue with management who requested an updated
calculation through their actuary for prior years, as the prior year audits were still open. This was received and we have
reviewed it and consider that there is no further impact on the Council’s liability position in prior years. We also
consider the 2023/24 adjustment to be materially appropriate.

We rely on assurances provided by the pension fund auditor over asset and liability balances included in the actuarial
report and have reviewed their response for 2023/2L. This identified two issues in level 2 and level 3 investments at the
pension fund level.

Level 2 investments have been overstated by £5.1m and level 3 investments have been understated by £21m in the
pension fund’s accounts. The Council’s share of these assets is 16.563% and therefore the impact on the Council’s
financial statements are an overstatement of level 2 investments of £843,030 and an understatement of level 3
investments of £3,471,300. The net position is an understatement £2,628,270 which is not material and is considered to
be an unadjusted misstatement.

As outlined previously, we have backstopped the 2021/22 and 2022/23 audit and therefore will issue a disclaimer of
opinion. We cannot place any assurance in the opening balances brought forward or movements from this in the year.
We will continue to review pension revaluations over the coming years in order to regain assurance over the balances in
the financial statements.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Public

2. Financial Statements: key judgements
and estimates

This section provides commentary on key estimates and judgements in line with the enhanced requirements for auditors.

Significant

judgement or

estimate Summary of management’s approach Audit Comments Assessment
Land and Other land and buildings comprises of We have assessed:

Building specialised assets such as schools and * the competence and experience of the Council’s in-house valuers;

valuations - libraries which are required to be valued at

£619.4m depreciated replacement cost (DRC) * the completeness and accuracy of the underlying information used to determine the estimate;

reflecting the cost of a modern equivalent
asset necessary to deliver the same service
provision. The reminder of other land and
buildings are not specialised in nature and
are required to be valued at existing use in
value (EUV] at year end. Surplus assets are
valued at the highest and best value.

The Council values its assets on a five-year
rolling programme and £456m of assets
were revalued in 2023/214.

The Council engages an internal valuer to
undertake the annual valuation. For jointly
owned assets, SW Norse, an external
expert, has been instructed by those
councils responsible for management of the
assets, to complete the 2023/24 valuation
of these investment properties.

The total year end valuation of land and
buildings was £619.4m, a net increase of
£5m from the prior year (E614.4m

* the adequacy of the disclosure of the estimate in the financial statements; and
* the consistency of the estimate against market data.

We have evaluated the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued at the year
end and how management has satisfied themselves that these are not materially different to current
value at year end.

/€ obed

We have identified a number of issues from our testing of Land and Buildings including:
* variances between the valuer’s report and the Council’s records;

» failure to provide formal documentation to valuers;

* variances between areas used for valuations and area per floor plans;

* limited or no support for assumptions used to provide valuations; and

* errors in calculations.

Our misstatements are split between those that are factual and need adjusting which are
approximately £4m and those that are estimation variance. Where we have identified estimation
uncertainties we have undertaken extrapolations in order to provide assurance that balances are not
materially misstated. The extrapolated value of the estimation misstatements are £4.9m and
therefore we are satisfied that PPE balances are not materially misstated, following adjustment for
the factual variances referenced above.

We have used our auditor’s expert to obtain further assurance of the methodology used by the
valuer. This did not identify any issues that would directly impact disclosed values but did identify
some issues in regards to process, including use of comparables, general reference to guidance,
record keeping, market commentary and reliance on estates for information. We will include a
recommendation in appendix B.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Assessment

® [Red] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

® [Green] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious



2. Financial Statements: key judgements

and estimates

Significant judgement or

Public

estimate Summary of management’s approach Audit Comments Assessment
Investment Property The Council revalue its investment property on an annual basis We have reviewed the detail of your assessment of the estimate [ ]
Valuation - £223.7m to ensure that the carrying value is not materially different from considering: Grey

the fair value at the financial statements date

The Council’s commercial investment portfolio consists of a
mixture of assets comprising both industrial and commercial
usage.

The Council engages an internal valuer to undertake the annual
valuation.

The total year end valuation of investment properties was
£223.7m, a net decrease of £14.7m from 2022/23 (£238.4m).

* our assessment of the Council’s internal valuers

* the completeness and accuracy of the underlying information used
to determine the estimate;

* the reasonableness of the overall decrease in the estimate of
£14.7m. Work undertaken has identified that this is due to market
conditions and no specific factor impacting either a specific class
or individual asset. We also consider the change in valuer has
impacted the valuations but no issues have been identified within
their methodology; and

* the adequacy of the disclosure of the estimate in the financial
statements.

Testing of the valuer’s assumptions requires that sufficient evidence be
provided to support any underlying assumptions or indices used to
calculate a revaluation. Testing identified a number of issues including:

e errors within the valuers calculation sheet; and

* inconsistent application of additional asset costs, including stamp
duty.

We have used our auditors expert to obtain further assurance of the
methodology used by the valuer. This has identified a number of
findings outlined on the previous page.

8¢ abed

Assessment

@ [Red] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

® [Green] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Public

2. Financial Statements: new issues and

risks

This section provides commentary on new issues and risks which were identified during the course of the audit that were not previously communicated in the Audit Plan and a summary of any
significant deficiencies identified during the year.

Issue

Commentary

Auditor view

Property, Plant and
Equipment (PPE)

We have identified the
valuation of land and buildings
as a significant risk and have
undertaken appropriate audit
work to provide assurance over
these balances which is
reported on pages 12 & 13.

During the course of our work
on PPE we identified a number
of other issues, outside of the
significant risk, that we wish to
bring to the attention of
management and TCWG.

The Council has a large number of assets, both value and volume, and we have identified a number of issues
within our testing.

testing of Revenue Expenditure Funding Capital Under Statute (REFCUS) identified that where expenditure

in year exceeded the value of additions it has been charged against other assets. This has been caused by

misstatements in prior years.

testing of REFCUS also identified that adjustments have been made to additions to account for prior year
expenditure which was capitalised as assets under construction (AUC) in the year it was incurred and has
subsequently been classified as REFCUS. This, along with the issue identified above, has resulted in
additions being understated by £2.4m and REFCUS being overstated by the same amount.

Testing of depreciation identified the following:

infrastructure asset brought forward accumulated depreciation on disposals has been incorrectly
charged to depreciation and not disposals.

the FAR calculates depreciation by dividing brought forward net book value by remaining useful economic
life. Recalculation identified an overstatement of £3,264k which is due to errors in the application of
depreciation in prior year backstopped audits. The charge in 2023/2Y4 is correct, based on brought
forward values and as we have disclaimed prior year audits we are satisfied that no further adjustments
are required.

one infrastructure asset had been incorrectly classified as land rather than a depreciable asset. This has
resulted in accumulated depreciation not being charged and an understatement of £18k. This is trivial but
is considered a control issue and a related recommendation is raised in appendix B.

We further noted:

upon review of Academy School disposals we identified that £3,069k had been incorrectly classified as
Other Operating Expenditure and should be Financing & Investment Income & Expenditure in the CIES.

Testing of heritage assets identified the following:

following the closure of the 2019/20 and 2020/21 audits a number of adjustments were made to heritage
assets. This included the addition of an items over £100k column and a special books collection disclosure
of £3.5m. The disclosures were made in the 2020/21 financial statements but, given the timing of the issue,
was not updated in the FAR until 2023/24. The adjustments have been made in both the 2021/22 and
2022/23 draft statements. These were originally disclosed in the 2023/24 draft statements as revaluations
and have subsequently been corrected.

Whilst none of the issues identified are
material in isolation there is a risk that
these could, on a cumulative basis, have
a material impact on the financial
statements. Further, the quantum of
issues identified indicate that the control
environment around PPE is not
sufficiently robust to detect and correct
errors within the financial disclosures.
Management should review the processes
currently operated at the Council to
ensure that these are fit for purpose and
allow errors to be identified and
corrected.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

6€ abed



Public

2. Financial Statements: key judgements
and estimates

Significant
judgement or Summary of management’s
estimate approach Audit Comments Assessment
Net pension The Council’s net pension liability as ~ We identified the controls put in place by management to ensure that the pension fund liability is not o
liability - 31 March 2024 is £64.4m (PY materially misstated. We also assessed whether these controls were implemented as expected and whether Green
£64.4m £27.5m) comprising the Local they are sufficient to mitigate the risk of material misstatement. No issues were identified from our review of the
Government and unfunded defined controls in place.
benefit pension scheme obligations. We also evaluated the competence, expertise and objectivity of the actuary who carried out your pension fund
The Council uses Barnett valuations and gained an understanding of the basis on which the valuations were carried out. This included
Waddingham to provide actuarial undertaking procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made:
valuations of the Council’s assets
schemes. Assumption Actuary Value PwC range Assessment
A full actuarial valuation is required Discount rate 4.90% 4.80%- 4+.95%
every three years and the latest full
actuarial valuation was completed Pension increase rate 3.25% 3.10% - 3.45%
in 2022. A roll forward approach is
used in the intervening periods, Salary growth 3.90% CPI (2.90%) + 1
which utilises key assumptions such Life expectancy - Mal S
as a life expectancy, discount rates, pecrancy —Mdles currenty oo /216 20.6-231/19.2-218
: aged 45/65
salary growth and investment
returne. Life expectancy - Females 2u1/227 241-25.7/22.6 - 243
Given the significant value of the net currently aged 45/65
pensions fund liability small
changes in assumptions can result in . . . o . .
significant valuation movements. We ho.ve confirmed thg consistency .of the pension fund assets, liabilities and disclosures in the notes to the
. financial statements with the actuarial reports.
There has been an increase of
£36.9m in the net actuarial deficit We have gained assurance over the reasonableness of the Council’s share of the LGPS pension assets.
during 2023/21. We have received and reviewed the IAS19 assurance from the pension fund auditor over member numbers and
did not identify any further issues other than those reported on page 14.
Assessment
® [Red] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic
[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious
® [Green] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious
18

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

0t obed



Public

2. Financial Statements: key judgements
and estimates

Significant judgement or estimate

Summary of management’s approach

Audit Comments

Assessment

Minimum Revenue Provision -
£19.182m

The Council is responsible on an annual basis for
determining the amount charged for the repayment of
debt known as its Minimum revenue Provision (MRP). The
basis for the charge is set out in regulations and
statutory guidance

The year end MRP charge was £19,182k, a net decrease
of £3,494k from 2022/23.

In 2020/21 the council entered into a £72m pension
prepayment transaction for which they borrowed in
order to fund, and charged this against MRP. During
prior year audits it was agreed that this was not a
capital transaction and should be recognised as
revenue which has required the Council to reverse the
charge. In 2023/24 this reversal is £3,49k4k.

Although the work is ongoing and we are awaiting updated
financial statements, from the work completed to date, we
consider the approach taken by management to be appropriate
and in line with guidance.

Following consultation MHCLG have clarified and updated the
regulations and the statutory guidance for minimum revenue
provision. Although these take full effect from April 2025 , the
consultation highlighted that the intention was not to change
policy, but to clearly set out in legislation the practices that
authorities should already be following.

This guidance clarifies that capital receipts may not be used in
place of a prudent MRP and that MRP should be applied to all
unfinanced capital expenditure and that certain assets should not
be omitted from the calculation unless exempted by statute.

TBC

Assessment

@ [Red] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

® [Green] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Tt obed



Public

2. Financial Statements: Information

Technology

This section provides an overview of results from our assessment of Information Technology (IT) environment and controls which included identifying risks from the use of IT related to business

process controls relevant to the financial audit. This includes an overall IT General Control (ITGC] rating per IT system and details of the ratings assigned to individual control areas. For

further detail of the IT audit scope and findings please see separate ‘IT Audit Findings’ report.

ITGC control area rating

Technology
acquisition, Related
Overall development significant Additional procedures carried out to
IT Level of assessment ITGC Security and Technology risks/other address risks arising from our
application performed rating management maintenance infrastructure risks findings
Generic accounts are not monitored
.. ITGC assessment (design Management but do not have pr|V||e.g.eo| ocoess..We
Civica . . . have undertaken specific user testing
. . and implementation . override of e - o
Financials effectiveness only) controls within journals and not identified any
Y issues. We have identified a control
recommendation.
Seven user accounts have been granted
. ITGC assessment (design ‘Admin’ roles. We have asked
Capita One : . /
(Academy) and implementation N/A management for a report to show no
effectiveness only) inappropriate changes have been
made. This has yet to be provided
ITGC assessment (design
Core HR and implementation . N/A N/A
effectiveness only)
Generic accounts are not monitored
.. ITGC assessment (design Management but do not have perlle.g.ed occess,IWe
Activity . . . have undertaken specific user testing
. and implementation . override of e . oo
Directory effectiveness only) trol within journals and not identified any
Y controis issues. We have identified a control
recommendation.
Assessment

@ Significant deficiencies identified in IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements
Non-significant deficiencies identified in IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements/signh‘icont deficiencies identified but with sufficient mitigation of relevant risk
IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements judged to be effective at the level of testing in scope
® Notin scope for testing

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

20

2t obed



OFFICIAL

2. Financial Statements - Internal Control

The recommendations arising from our IT audit work in 2023/2Y% are set out below.

Assessment

Issue and risk

Recommendations

Lack of segregation of duties between developers and
implementers in Capita One

Our IT Audit identified that, seven (7] user accounts had been
granted the role ‘Admin’ access which enables them to both
develop and implement changes in production. It is pertinent to
note that these seven (7) accounts were used by five (5) users as
one of the users had access to three (3) accounts.

Risks

The combination of access to develop and implement changes
in the production environment creates a risk that inappropriate
or unauthorised changes are made to data and/ or programs.

Management should segregate a user’s ability to develop and implement changes. Privileged access
to the production environment should be revoked from users that are involved in development.

Where management is unable to fully segregate access for operational reasons, a risk assessment
should be undertaken, documented and formally accepted.

Alternative options to mitigate the risk could include performing a review of change implementation
activity logs. These should be regularly reviewed for appropriateness by an independent individual
with evidence retained.

Management response

Upon investigation, the various modules of Capita require different admin logins hence why one
members of staff has more than one

Management have raised this with the manufacturer, but in the meantime are happy to accept this risk

There are a number of variances between the valuer’s report,
the fixed asset register and the financial statements
disclosures. None of the variances are material either
collectively or individually.

Management should ensure that sources of documentation used to inform the financial statements have
been fully reconciled and any variances considered

Management response

Work is already underway within the land and property team to collect and collate comprehensive
inspection and measurement information for assets which will be retained on a standard format
template and saved within individual asset files. This is being initially rolled out for PPE assets falling due
for revaluation in the YE2025 programme, however due to the large quantity of assets - it may be that
further technical resource is required to undertake this work more rapidly.

The Council apply depreciation on a straight line basis over the
remaining life of the asset on the brought forward year end
balance. To confirm that this was accurate we calculated
depreciation on the gross book value over the life of the asset.
This identified a £3.4m variance which was discussed with
management. This identified that errors in prior years had
impacted the brought forward value and led to a higher
depreciation charge in year although depreciation will be
charged appropriately over the life of the assets

Management should ensure that depreciation is charged appropriately in year and that a robust review
of charges is undertaken as part of the year end financial statements process.

Management response

We will introduce more control checks prior to posting year end journals. We will also have more control
over making changes in Technology Forge as we will only be managing one financial year on the system
rather than five. Up until this financial year we have had to manage with a manual reconciliation
between the fixed asset register and the accounts as we had to close previous years due to the system
limitations.

Assessment

® Significant deficiency — risk of significant misstatement
Deficiency — risk of inconsequential misstatement

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

21

¢ obed



OFFICIAL

2. Financial Statements - Internal Control

Controls for which assurance could not be provided

Our IT audit has identified the following issue as part of their review. We do not require management response and have reported this to bring it to management’s attention

Assessment  Issue and risk Reason/Justification
There are Generic accounts set up with the application. These We were unable to test the generic database accounts control as the council was
generic accounts can be used by multiple users. We were unable to  unable to provide sufficient supporting evidence.
provide assurance due to lack of evidence provided. We noted that there were no controls in place to actively monitor the usage of

.. . .. . . . . generic database accounts within Civica Financials.
Administrative privileges (including generic super user access rights)

to the network, applications and their associated databases are
restricted to those users requiring this level of access (in line with
their roles and responsibilities). Privileged duties do not conflict with
other roles.

17 ebed

Assessment
@® Significant deficiency — risk of significant misstatement
Deficiency — risk of inconsequential misstatement
© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 22



OFFICIAL

2. Financial Statements:
other communication requirements

We set out below
details of other
matters which we, as
auditors, are required
by auditing
standards and the
Code to
communicate to
those charged with
governance.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Issue

Commentary

Matters in relation
to fraud

We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Audit and Governance Committee, and we have not been made
aware of any incidents in the period. No other issues have been identified during the course of our audit.

Matters in relation
to related parties

We are not aware of any related parties or related party transactions which have not been disclosed.

Matters in relation
to laws and
regulations

You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations and
we have not identified any incidences from our audit work.

Written
representations

A letter of representation has been requested from the Council, which is included in the Committee papers.

23

G abed



OFFICIAL

2. Financial Statements:
other communication requirements

Issue Commentary

Confirmation We requested from management permission to send confirmation requests for bank and investment balances. This
requests from permission was granted and the requests were sent. We have received all the responses. We requested from

third parties management permission to send confirmation requests to the Pension Fund Auditor. This permission was granted

and the requests were sent. This confirmation has also been provided.

Accounting We have evaluated the appropriateness of the Council's accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial

practices statement disclosures. Our review found no material omissions in the financial statements

Audit evidence All information and explanations requested from management was provided. We would like to take this Y

and explanations/ opportunity to record our appreciation for the assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during the g

significant audit. o)

difficulties D
(o))

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 24



Public

2. Financial Statements:
other communication requirements

Issue Commentary

Going concern In performing our work on going concern, we have had reference to Statement of Recommended Practice - Practice Note 10:
Audit of financial statements of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020). The Financial Reporting Council
recognises that for particular sectors, it may be necessary to clarify how auditing standards are applied to an entity in a
manner that is relevant and provides useful information to the users of financial statements in that sector. Practice Note 10
As auditors, we ars required to “obtain provides that clarification for audits of public sector bodies.

Our responsibility

sufficient appropriate audit evidence Practice Note 10 sets out the following key principles for the consideration of going concern for public sector entities:

about the appropriateness of . . .o R s
pprop : * the use of the going concern basis of accounting is not a matter of significant focus of the auditor’s time and resources

management's use of the going . . . . . . . . .
concern assumotion in tha because the applicable financial reporting frameworks envisage that the going concern basis for accounting will apply

- P : where the entity’s services will continue to be delivered by the public sector. In such cases, a material uncertainty related
preparation and presentation of the ; ; . . . . . X .
: . to going concern is unlikely to exist, and so a straightforward and standardised approach for the consideration of going
financial statements and to conclude - . . o

. . concern will often be appropriate for public sector entities

whetherthere is a material
uncertainty about the entity's ability * for many public sector entities, the financial sustainability of the reporting entity and the services it provides is more likely
to continue as a going concern” [\SA to be of significant public interest than the application of the going concern basis of accounting. Our consideration of the
(UK) 570). Council's financial sustainability is addressed by our value for money work, which is covered elsewhere in this report.

Practice Note 10 states that if the financial reporting framework provides for the adoption of the going concern basis of
accounting on the basis of the anticipated continuation of the provision of a service in the future, the auditor applies the
continued provision of service approach set out in Practice Note 10. The financial reporting framework adopted by the
Council meets this criteria, and so we have applied the continued provision of service approach. In doing so, we have
considered and evaluated:

* the nature of the Council and the environment in which it operates;

* the Council's financial reporting framework;

* the Council's system of internal control for identifying events or conditions relevant to going concern; and
* management’s going concern assessment.

However, as we have been unable to conclude our audit in advance of the backstop date, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to enable us to conclude that:

* a material uncertainty related to going concern has not been identified; and

* management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

25

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

) abed



2. Financial Statements:

other responsibilities under the Code

Issue

Commentary

Other information

We are required to give an opinion on whether the other information published together with the audited financial
statements, including the Annual Governance Statement and Narrative report, is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Due to the proposed disclaimed audit opinion, we have been unable to consider whether the Annual Governance
Statement does not comply with the requirements of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdon 2023/2Y4, or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are
aware from our audit. We are not required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses all risks
and controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal controls.

Matters on which

We are required to report on a number of matters by exception in a number of areas:

we repf)r‘t by « if the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with disclosure requirements set out in CIPFA/SOLACE
exception guidance or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit;

 if we have applied any of our statutory powers or duties; and/or

+ where we are not satisfied in respect of arrangements to secure value for money and have reported [a]

significant weakness/es.

With the exception of the VFM significant weaknesses reported on page 30, we have nothing to report on these

matters.
Specified We are required to carry out specified procedures (on behalf of the NAO] on the Whole of Government Accounts
procedures for (WGA] consolidation pack under WGA group audit instructions. Note that detailed work is not required as the
Whole of Council does not exceed the threshold, however the NAO have requested that nationally all audit certificates for
Government 2023/24 are held until their work has been completed.
Accounts

Certification of the
closure of the audit

We intend to delay the certification of the closure of the 2023/24 audit of Plymouth City Council in the audit report,
due to the NAO requirement to delay issue until WGA work has been completed as noted above.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Public

26



Public

3. Value for Money arrangements (VFM)

Approach to Value for Money work for
2023/24

The National Audit Office issued its guidance for auditors
in April 2020. The Code require auditors to consider
whether the body has put in place proper arrangements
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use
of resources.

When reporting on these arrangements, the Code requires
auditors to structure their commentary on arrangements
under the three specified reporting criteria.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

&%

Improving economy, efficiency Financial Sustainability Governance
and effectiveness

Arrangements for ensuring the Arrangements for ensuring that the
Arrangements for improving the body can continue to deliver body makes appropriate decisions
way the body delivers its services. services. This includes planning in the right way. This includes
This includes arrangements for resources to ensure adequate arrangements for budget setting
understanding costs and delivering finances and maintain sustainable and management, risk
efficiencies and improving levels of spending over the medium management, and ensuring the
outcomes for service users. term (3-5 years) body makes decisions based on

appropriate information

Potential types of recommendations

A range of different recommendations could be made following the completion of work on the body’s arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, which are as follows:

Statutory recommendation
Written recommendations to the body under Section 24 (Schedule 7) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014. A recommendation under schedule 7 requires the body to discuss and respond publicly to the report.

Key recommendation

The Code of Audit Practice requires that where auditors identify significant weaknesses in arrangements to
secure value for money they should make recommendations setting out the actions that should be taken by the
body. We have defined these recommendations as ‘key recommendations’.

Improvement recommendation
These recommendations, if implemented should improve the arrangements in place at the body, but are not

made as a result of identifying significant weaknesses in the body’s arrangements

27

61 obed



Public

3. VFM: our procedures and conclusions

We have completed our VFM work and our detailed commentary was reported in the separate Auditor’s Annual Report (AAR) (interim version) presented to the Audit & Governance Committee
in November 2024. The report presented in November 2024 was an interim version as it cannot be issued as final until the opinion on the financial statements is issued. Given the report covers
arrangements to 31 March 2024, we do not expect any changes to be made to this report and that it will be issued as final alongside our audit opinion in February 2025.

As part of our work, we considered whether there were any significant weakness in the Council's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The
significant weaknesses we identified are detailed in the table below, along with the procedures we performed and our conclusions. Our auditor’s report will make reference to these significant

weaknesses in arrangements, as required by the Code.

Procedures

VFM theme undertaken

Conclusion

Recommendation

Financial sustainability -
Ensures that it identifies all
the significant financial
pressures that are relevant to
its short and medium-term
plans and builds these into
them

We have considered
management’s response
to our 2022/23 key
recommendation

As we reported in our 2022/23 Auditor’s Annual Report, the
Council has an organisational approach to financial
planning. However, we reported a significant weakness in the
Council’s arrangements for financial sustainability as there
was a medium-term financial gap of circa £69 million in the
Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2023/24
to 2027/28 published September 2023. Since we reported on
2022/23, increased costs and activity will likely have
widened this gap.

Given the increased level of financial stress the Council is facing
members need to ensure that there is a robust response to
financial matters with a more detailed revision of the Council’s
Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS), early in 2024/25, to
address how it will mitigate the risks against the financial stress
indicators. Progress in delivering transformation plans should be
tracked by Cabinet each month and periodically reviewed by the
relevant Scrutiny Committee for the service.

We have reviewed
management’s
arrangements to address
budget and funding gaps
to ensure that these have
been fully considered and
are appropriate and
attainable, following up
the issues reported in
2022/23

Financial sustainability -
Plans to bridge its funding
gaps and identifies
achievable savings

Whilst there were some savings resulting from the
transformation of services in Adults and Children’s Services
in the year under review, these demand led services
overspent significantly in 2023/24 and continue to do so to
date in 2024/25. As at November 2024 the Council was
forecasting a net revenue overspend for 2024/25 of £6.697
million, assuming all identified mitigations delivered the
benefits that they were envisaged to. As at February 2025
the latest published position is a £1.842m overspend.

The Council should implement its plans for its council wide
transformation programme at sufficient scale and pace to
demonstrate that it is able to address the significant structural
budget deficit. This should include:

* cohesive reporting to Cabinet on the planned resourcing,
timescales, milestones, savings and outcomes from its council
wide transformation programme, bringing together work
planned and delivered by directorates;

0S abed

* detailing the planned annual savings and how these reconcile
to the forecast savings required in the revised Medium Term
Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2025/26 to 2029/30.

We have considered
management’s response
to issues previously
identified an the ongoing
management of the
Secretary of State
intervention, following up
the issues reported in
2022/23

Improving economy,
effectiveness and efficiency -
Evaluates the services it
provides to assess
performance and identify
areas for improvement

We concluded there was a significant weakness in
arrangements to deliver good quality Children's Services
within the 2023/24 financial year, as the Council was in
Secretary of State (SoS) Intervention for 11 months of the
financial year. This follows a significant weakness being
identified in our 2022/23 Auditor’s Annual Report. The
Council can evidence improvement in services during
2023/24, with arrangements put in place promptly to
address issues raised in the Improvement Notice. It has also
approved an updated children’s strategy within the 2024/25
financial year.

The Council should:

* ensure appropriate arrangements are in place with partners to
address the actions raised in the Joint Area SEND inspection
and resultant Improvement Notice; and

+ fully cost the improvements identified through the “Achieving
Excellence “Strategy, approved in July 2024, and incorporate
these into the Council’s updated financial plans, with relevant
timeframes identified.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

28



L. Independence considerations

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant
matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm or
covered persons (including its partners, senior managers and managers).

In this context, we disclose the following to you:

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of
the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered
person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the
financial statements.

Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor
Guidance Note Ot issued in May 2020 which sets out supplementary guidance on ethical
requirements for auditors of local public bodies.

Details of fees charged are detailed in Appendix E.

Transparency

Grant Thornton publishes an annual Transparency Report, which sets out details of the
action we have taken over the past year to improve audit quality as well as the results of
internal and external quality inspections. For more details see Grant Thornton International
Transparency report 2023.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Public

29

TG obed


https://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-international-ltd-transparency-report-may-2023.pdf
https://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-international-ltd-transparency-report-may-2023.pdf

Public

L. Independence considerations

As part of our assessment of our independence we note the following matters:

Matter Conclusion

Relationships with Grant Thornton We are not aware of any relationships between Grant Thornton and the Council that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
integrity, independence and objectivity.

Relationships and Investments held by individuals We have not identified any potential issues in respect of personal relationships with the Council.
Employment of Grant Thornton staff We are not aware of any former Grant Thornton partners or staff being employed, or holding discussions in respect of o
employment, as a director or in a senior management role covering financial, accounting or control related areas. Q
«Q
Business relationships We have not identified any business relationships between Grant Thornton and the Council. @
R
Contingent fees in relation to non-audit services No contingent fee arrangements are in place for non-audit services provided.
Gifts and hospitality We have not identified any gifts or hospitality provided to, or received from, a member of the Council’s board, senior
management or staff.
We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention and consider that an objective
reasonable and informed third party would take the same view. The firm and each covered person have complied with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and confirm that we
are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements
30

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Public

L. Independence considerations

Audit and non-audit services

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. The following non-audit services were identified which were
charged from the beginning of the financial year to February 2025 as well as the threats to our independence and safeguards that have been applied to mitigate these threats.

Service

Fees £

Threats identified

Safeguards

Audit related

Certification of
Housing Benefit Subsidy
Return

48,400
(2022/23)

48,400
(2023/24)

Self-Interest (because
this is a recurring fee)

Self review (because GT
provides audit services)

Management threat

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee for this
work is £48,400 in each year in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £392,808 and in particular relative to Grant
Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These factors all
mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

To mitigate against the self review threat , the timing of certification work is done after the audit has completed,
materiality of the amounts involved to our opinion and unlikelihood of material errors arising and the Council has
informed management who will decide whether to amend returns for our findings and agree the accuracy of our
reports on grants.

Certification of
Teachers Pension Return

20,000
(2022/23)

20,000
(2023/24)

Self-Interest (because
this is a recurring fee)

Self review (because GT
provides audit services)

Management threat

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee for this
work is £20,000 in each year in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £392,808 and in particular relative to
Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These factors
all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

To mitigate against the self review threat , the timing of certification work is done after the audit has completed,
materiality of the amounts involved to our opinion and unlikelihood of material errors arising and the Council has
informed management who will decide whether to amend returns for our findings and agree the accuracy of our
reports on grants.

These services are consistent with the Council’s policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. All services have been approved by the Audit & Governance Committee. None of the
services provided are subject to contingent fees.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

31

€G abed



Appendices

Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance

Action plan - Audit of Financial Statements

Audit Adjustments

O O W B

Fees and non-audit services

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Public

32

G abed



Appendices

Public

A.Communication of audit matters to those

charged with governance

Our communication plan

Audit
Plan

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those charged
with governance

Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit, form, timing
and expected general content of communications including
significant risks

Confirmation of independence and objectivity

A statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence. Relationships and other matters which
might be thought to bear on independence. Details of non-audit work
performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and network firms, together with
fees charged. Details of safeguards applied to threats to
independence

Significant findings from the audit

Significant matters and issue arising during the audit and written
representations that have been sought

Significant difficulties encountered during the audit

Significant deficiencies in internal control identified during the audit

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or
which results in material misstatement of the financial statements

Non-compliance with laws and regulations

Unadjusted misstatements and material disclosure omissions

Expected modifications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

ISA (UK) 260, as well as other ISAs (UK), prescribe matters which we are required
to communicate with those charged with governance, and which we set out in
the table here.

This document, the Audit Findings, outlines those key issues, findings and other
matters arising from the audit, which we consider should be communicated in
writing rather than orally, together with an explanation as to how these have
been resolved.

Respective responsibilities

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit in accordance with
ISAs (UK), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion on
the financial statements that have been prepared by management with
the oversight of those charged with governance.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or
those charged with governance of their responsibilities.

Distribution of this Audit Findings report

Whilst we seek to ensure our audit findings are distributed to those individuals
charged with governance, we are also required to distribute our findings to those
members of senior management with significant operational and strategic
responsibilities. We are grateful for your specific consideration and onward
distribution of our report to all those charged with governance.

33

GG abed



Public

B. Action Plan - Audit of Financial Statements

We have identified 11 recommendations for the Council as a result of issues identified during the course of our audit. We have agreed our recommendations with

management and we will report on progress on these recommendations during the course of the 2024/25 audit. The matters reported here are limited to those deficiencies
that we have identified during the course of our audit and that we have concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported to you in accordance with auditing

standards.

Issue and risk

Assessment

Recommendations

Journals testing has identified a number of segregation issues including:

* There is in-built system deficiency as the ledger is not able to segregate
the posting and authorising function for journals over the council's
authorisation limit of £5600k. Specific testing in relation to this has been
undertaken and no issues identified, and the Council use a manual
detective control however this can lead to error; and

* the ability for posters to authorise their own journals.

There is a risk that inappropriate journals will be posted leading to
fraudulent transactions or misreporting within the financial statements.

Management should review the journal process to ensure that sufficient segregation of duty
controls are in place and that monitoring processes are sufficiently robust to identify and
address any issues identified.

Management response

The Council has a robust set of reconciliation and monitoring processes in year to support
the posting of journals. All journals above £600k are required to be authorised and if they
are self approved management have implemented a system generated alerter to notify
staff when they have self approved the journal or failed to attach sufficient notes and
documents to the journal

For a number of land and building and investment property assets
management were unable to provide floor plans to support the
measurements used within the calculations. There is a risk that management
and valuers will use inaccurate information which could result in a material
misstatement within the statement of accounts

Management should ensure that all supporting information is maintained and is consistent
with disclosures made in the statement of accounts

Management response

Work is already underway within the land and property team to collect and collate
comprehensive inspection and measurement information for assets which will be retained
on a standard format template and saved within individual asset files. This is being initially
rolled out for PPE assets falling due for revaluation in the YE2025 programme, however due
to the large quantity of assets - it may be that further technical resource is required to
undertake this work more rapidly.

Our work identified adjustments to REFCUS whereby management have
corrected prior period errors in the current period, relating to REFCUS spend
incorrectly classified as PPE additions in prior years. This has resulted in an
unadjusted misstatement reported on the ‘Misstatements' tab. This issue was
also raised in prior year audits.

For larger capital projects management should perform a close review in order to identify
whether any work will be performed on land or assets the council do not own and account
for it as REFCUS in that year accordingly.

Where management perform large adjustments for items, they should maintain clear
working papers, and an audit trail which can be easily accessed, so that they can clearly
explain the context, double entry, and evidence the totals involved and the methodology
used in arriving at the adjustments

Management response

Accountants will ensure they engage with Project Officers, delivering these projects at an
early opportunity. We will also incorporate this into the Training provided to Projects
Officers at year end.

Controls
® High - Significant effect on financial statements
® Medium - Limited Effect on financial statements

Low - Best practice
© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

34

9g abed



Public

B. Action Plan - Audit of Financial Statements

Assessment

Controls

Issue and risk

Recommendations

We have identified a number of issues with depreciation including:

* brought forward accumulated depreciation on disposals for infrastructure assets
incorrectly charged to depreciation and not disposal;

* Depreciation is calculated on the closing net book value brought forward. We
identified errors in previous years meant the brought forward figure was incorrect
which has led to an overcharge of £3,264k in 2023-24 although the closing
position is correct.

* one infrastructure asset that had been incorrectly classified as land rather than a
depreciable asset. This resulted in accumulated depreciation not being charged
and an understatement of £18k; and

«  2022/23 revaluations having been entered on the FAR with a valuation date of O1-
04-2023 meaning accumulated depreciation was not reversed and therefore

Management should ensure that all depreciation calculations and processes are
accurate and that all treatment and disclosures are in line with the requirements
of the Code and the accounting standards.

Management response

We will introduce more control checks prior to posting year end journals. We will
also have more control over making changes in Technology Forge as we will only
be managing one financial year on the system rather than five. Up until this
financial year we have had to manage with a manual reconciliation between the
fixed asset register and the accounts as we had to close previous years due to
the system limitations.

Low - Best practice

impacted the 2023/24 accounts disclosure. This has resulted in an adjusted U
misstatement of £10.6m to the revaluation reserve, £601k to depreciation and QD
£26%k to disposals. L(%
Testing of assumptions used for land and building valuations identified the following: Management should review the process for valuing assets and ensure that all ol
« incorrect BCIS rates applied; o.locurr!entotlon is retained to fully support the valuations disclosed in the ~
) ) o . financial statements.
* inconsistent application of external build costs;
) o ) Management response
* incorrect application of professional fees; . . . -
) ] In order to address concerns with adhoc errors occurring on Valuation Reports, it is
* use of school pupil number data from Q12023 instead of O12024; and proposed for YE2025 going forward that a more robust system of internal auditing
* double counting of adjustments. is required to screen for errors. This unfortunately was not possible for YE2024 due
None of these errors are material in isolation but there is a risk that the cumulative t.o the late issue Of. full |nstru.ct|ons to the Valuer, leading to a significantly reduced
. s . . timeframe for issuing valuations.
effect will have a material impact on the financial statements.
The existing Valuation templates and instructions will be reviewed to ensure that
there is a consistent approach to adjustments and that all valuation inputs are
adequately evidenced.
@ High - Significant effect on financial statements
® Medium - Limited Effect on financial statements
35

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Public

B. Action Plan - Audit of Financial Statements

Issue and risk

Assessment

Recommendations

Testing of the valuation of assets also identified the following issues:

* management incorrectly classified land and buildings for one asset
leading to incorrect treatment of valuation movements; and

* the disposal of an Academy school had been incorrectly classified within
the CIES.

None of these issues are individually material but there is a risk that
cumulatively there could be a material misstatement in the financial
statements

Management should review the process for valuing assets and the necessary accounting
disclosures to ensure that robust review is in place to ensure the accuracy and
appropriateness of all disclosures.

Management response

We have corrected the treatment of the disposal of Academy schools

The CIPFA Code and accounting standards require retirement obligations to
be considered as part of the valuation process and reported, even where
there is a nil impact. Management have not included this within their
considerations.

Management should ensure that valuations are carried out in line with the required
guidance and standards to ensure that valuations are accurately recorded.

Management response

The valuer will ensure that the report makes reference to retirement obligations, even if it is Q-?
to confirm a nil impact.
P Q
@D
Low Through general testing of transactions we have identified a number of Management should ensure that a robust review process exists to ensure that the financial (&;
errors including incorrect classification, improper recognition of accruals statements are accurate and appropriate and that the number of errors and misstatements
and adjustments from prior years. We recognise that there have been is kept to a minimum.
?holl§nges pr.eosented from prior year audits and there is a risk that errors Management response
impair the ability of the reader of the accounts to assess the Council’s
performance within the year. We will ensure through our year end training that staff are aware of the impact of errors
and that they build in control checks to avoid this happening.
Controls
@ High - Significant effect on financial statements
® Medium - Limited Effect on financial statements
Low - Best practice
36

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Public

B. Action Plan - Audit of Financial Statements

Assessment  Issue and risk Recommendations
Low The council have made the decision not to revalue 0.4% Management should ensure all assets are revalued within the five-year cycle.
of their assets within 5 years. Thls is ogﬁnnst the CIPFA Management response
Code [paragraph 4.1.2.38) which specifies that assets ) ) )
should not be revalued at intervals greater than 5 years. This was a one-year decision as we transitioned back from a 3-year rolling programme to a 5-year rolling
Whilst the value of those assets not revalued is not programme. Due to resource constraints , we decided that the decision not to revalue 0.4% of our assets was
material it is a requirement of the Code that all assets be a fair compromise. Under the current rolling programme all assets are revalued within a 5-year period.
revalued within this timeframe.
Low We have engaged an auditor expert to assess Management should ensure that instructions and the valuers report include sufficient information to allow
management’s processes for valuations which has proper understanding of the process undertaken.
identified the following: Management response
* the valuer should tabulate and retain all comparable The comparable data is currently retained within folder organised by sector type. This includes data from
data used; internal sources and from third parties. Existing tables of data will be undated as further information becomes
* instructions to the valuer should reference all relevant available, and resource will be deployed to ensure that this is kept up to date. Due to the specific nature of
guidance; some assets, there is a shortage of available data within the locality. It is proposed that the Valuation template
+  the Council should keep a clear record of their is amended to include a more robust explanation for adjustments that have necessarily needed to be made.
inspection programme; . . . . . .
o A market commentary is included in all Valuation Reports, and where possible external comparable information
©a table of ‘?” categorisation changes should be is sourced. Due to the size of the market in Plymouth and nature of some of the assets, it is not always possible
included within the report; to secure this information.
* information should be sourced, where possible, from
third parties and the market and not solely from the In order to address concerns with adhoc errors occurring on Valuation Reports, it is proposed for YE2025 going
Estates and Asset managers; and forward that a more robust system of internal auditing is required to screen for errors. This unfortunately was
« o market commentary should be included within the n.ot possible fo.r YE?OEH due.to the late issue of full instructions to the Valuer, leading to a significantly reduced
timeframe for issuing valuations.
report.
As stated in the comments above, work is already underway to collate more comprehensive and robust records
of measurement, inspection and condition for each asset.
Low Related party disclosure - Note 30 Management should ensure all related party disclosures are included within the financial statement

In our group assessment work, we have ensured that
balances with Plymouth City Council considered in
management’s assessment agree to related party
disclosure as per note 30. We noted that management
has considered a loan of £1.956m being given to
Plymouth Science Park which was not disclosed in related
party disclosure note 30.

disclosures.
Management response

We will widen the remit of checks undertaken at year end and when gathering data for this disclosure.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

37

6G obed



C. Audit Adjustments

We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management.

Impact of adjusted misstatements

Public

All adjusted misstatements are set out in detail below along with the impact on the key statements and the reported net expenditure for the year ending 31 March 2024.

Comprehensive Income and

Balance Sheet

Impact on total net

Impact on general fund

Detail Expenditure Statement £000 £000 expenditure £000 £000
Changes identified by management from issues 20,655 139 (20,655) (139)
considered in prior year audits and adjusted
following the conclusion of the prior year audits.
Depreciation charge in 2023-24 has been updated 502 (502)
as a result of adjustments to 2022-23 revaluation of
non current assets leading to misstated net book
value opening balances.
Testing of disposals of Academy Schools have been  Other operating expenditure (3,059) 3,059 0 U
incorrectly presented in the CIES D
Taxation and non-specific grant (3,059) «Q
income 3,059 ®
(@))
Testing of fees and charges identified that REFCUS Cost of service 13,914 (13,914 0 o
revenue had been charged to cost of services rather . .
than surplus or deficit on provision of services, Taxation and nor.l—specn‘lo grant 13,914
through taxation and non-specific grant income as income (13,914]
per the Code.
Factual errors identified in the calculation of PPE Surplus/Deficit on Provision of PPE 3,917 (340) (3,917)
revaluations within the year Services 340
Revaluation reserve (4,257) 4,257
Incorrect classification of transactions between Collection Fund Short term (2.717)
short-term creditors and short-term debtors debtors 2,717 0717
Collection Fund Short term
creditors (2,717)
Overall impact £17,240 £201 £(17,240) £(201)

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

38



C. Audit Adjustments

We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management.

Misclassification and disclosure changes

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements.

Public

Disclosure/issue/Omission Auditor recommendations Adjusted?
Related party disclosure - Note 30 Management should ensure all relevant amounts are included within v
Plymouth City Council have provided a loan of £1.956m to Plymouth Science Park. This | ted party disclosures

has not been included within the related parties note as required by the Code.

The Capitalisation direction disclosure within the narrative report does not reflect that The narrative report should reflect the current position as closely as v
prior year audits have been completed. This requires adjustment following the conclusion possible allowing for timing considerations

of prior year audits.

Critical Judgements disclosure - Note 3 - Following review of disclosures included within =~ iticql judgements should include only those disclosures that have a v
critical judgements it has been confirmed that the following balances should not be material impact on the financial statements

included - Financial Assets, Asset Classification, Highways Infrastructure Assets and

Government Grants.

Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty - Major sources of estimation uncertainty should only be those disclosures v
Note 5 - Review identified that the disclosure contains references to material that have a material impact on the financial statements

uncertainties and a separate material uncertainties consideration. There have been no

such uncertainties identified in the year and therefore this disclosure should not be

included.

Expenditure & Funding Analysis - Note 7 Management should ensure that all disclosures within the statement of v
The Council have not completed the Expenditure & Funding Analysis in line with the Code | ..ounts comply with the requirements of the Code

and therefore have updated the disclosure.

Revaluations - Note 15.3 v

Revaluations in the year include Torpoint Bridge and Ferry which have not been included
within the revaluations note. As this is an asset of the Council it is considered this should

be included and management have agreed to add a separate disclosure

Assets owned by the Council, including those that are shared with other
authorities, should be included within the relevant disclosures within the
financial statements

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

39

T9 abed



C. Audit Adjustments

We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management.

Misclassification and disclosure changes

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements.

Public

Disclosure/issue/Omission Auditor recommendations Adjusted?
Bought forward Accumulated Depreciation of Infrastructure Disposals has been Management should review all disclosures and information used to inform v
incorrectly charged to Depreciation in Note 15.1 and not disposals as per the Code. This 11056 to ensure that all values are accurate and reflective of the

required a correction of £935k. transactions in year.

Libraries - When inputting the valuations of two libraries into Techforge, the capital Transactions entered into systems that are used to inform accounting v
accountant made a transposition error and incorrectly assigned the valuation of disclosures should be reviewed to ensure accuracy and appropriateness

Crownhill Library to Plympton Library and vice versa. This has a net nil impact on the

CIES, Balance Sheet and Revaluation Reserves, and a gross impact of £874k on the

individual assets.

Heritage Assets - The following adjustments were made to the draft accounts following the 1.¢ fingncial statements should be subject to a more robust review to v
conelusion of the 19/20 and 20/21 audits. ensure that all relevant disclosures have been included

ltems Over £100k column added and comparator figures (£17,301k) added.

Reclassifications row added which nets to nil and moves assets out of 'ltems over £100k'

and into relevant categories.

Special Books comparator figures updated to £3,500 from nil. This collection was added

in 20/21 but was put through the 23/24 FAR and therefore was in the draft accounts as

revaluations.

Testing of depreciation identified that the 2022/23 revaluation entries had been entered Management should ensure that valuation dates are aporopriately and v
on the FAR with a valuation date of 1 April 2023 meaning accumulated depreciation was cccurgtel entered to ensure that adiustments are ke ffo apminin?um ofter

not reversed in the previous year. This therefore impacted the 2023/2% accounts draft accgunts have been published J P

disclosure. This has resulted in an adjusted misstatement of £10.6m to the opening P

balance and revaluation reserve and a further £36%9k to disposals. The opening balance

adjustment has been completed before the close of the 2022-23 accounts and is therefore

a disclosure only issue.

A small number of amendments were made to the accounts to enhance clarity for the Our review and audit of the draft accounts identified a small number of v

reader.

presentational changes to enhance the clarity of the accounts for the
reader.

We have shared the areas for presentational amendments and these will
be reflected in the revised accounts.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

40

29 abed



C. Audit Adjustments (continued)

Impact of unadjusted misstatements

Public

The table below provides details of adjustments identified during the 2023/2% audit which have not been made within the final set of financial statements. The Audit & Governance Committee
is required to approve management's proposed treatment of all items recorded within the table below.

Detail

Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

£000

Balance Sheet
£000

Impact on total net
expenditure £000

Impact on general fund
£000

Reason for
not adjusting

Investment properties - We have identified a number of
errors within our testing of Investment Properties and the
adjustment is the net position of those issues identified

(4+02)

402

(4+02)

402

Not material

Management have been inconsistent with the inclusion of

additional costs for the valuation of Investment properties.

The adjustment represents the variance from applying the
same methodology to all assets

1,160

(1,160)

1,160

(1160)

Not material

PPE - Management had used REFCUS to cover costs of
capital transactions. This should have been charged in
2022/23 and has been charged in 2023/24.

(2,403)

(2,403)

Not material

Net pension liability - Testing undertaken by the pension
fund auditor identified errors in the valuation of
investments. The adjustment is Plymouth’s share of the
assets which is 16.563%

(2,637)

2,637

(2,637)

2,637

Not material

Testing of transactions to confirm completeness of
disclosure balances identified non accrued errors. These
have been extrapolated.

Expenditure 2,011

Creditors (2,011)

2,01

(2,01

Not material

Overall impact

£(2,271)

£(132)

£(2,271)

£(132)

Impact of prior year unadjusted misstatements

We have backstopped the 2022/23 Statement of accounts and therefore there are no prior year unadjusted misstatements to bring forward.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Ll

€9 abed



D. Fees and non-audit services

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services.

Public

Audit fees Proposed fee Final fee
Scale fee 375,258 375,258
Use of experts 5,000 *5,000
Other additional - ISA 315 12,550 15,690
Total audit fees (excluding VAT) £392,808 £395,948

*subject to receipt of final invoice from supplier

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

42

9 abed



D. Fees and non-audit services

Public

Non-audit fees for other services Proposed fee Final fee
Audit Related Services

Housing Benefit Certification (2022-23) 48,440 48,440
Housing Benefit Certification (2023-24) 48,440 48,440
Teacher’s Pension return (2022-23) 22,000 22,000
Teacher’s Pension return (2023-24) 25,000 25,000
Total non-audit fees (excluding VAT) £143,880 £143,880

Total audit and non-audit fee

(Audit Fee) £395,948

(Non Audit Fee) £143,880

The fees reconcile to the financial statements.

None of the above services were provided on a contingent fee basis.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

43

G9 abed



GrantThornton

grantthornton.co.uk

99 abed

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

"Grant Thornton” refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is @ member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



OFFICIAL

Page 67 Agenda Item 7

Audit and Governance Committee

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

Date of meeting:

Title of Report:

Lead Member:

Lead Strategic Director:

Author:
Contact Email:
Your Reference:
Key Decision:

Confidentiality:

Purpose of Report

I8 February 2025

Approval of Statement of Accounts 2023/24
Councillor Mark Lowry (Cabinet Member for Finance)
David Northey (Service Director for Finance)

Carolyn Haynes

carolyn.haynes@plymouth.gov.uk

SoA 23/24/Audit Feb 2025

No

Part | - Official

Audit and Governance Committee formally approved the draft Statement of Accounts for 2023/24 on

the 23 July 2024.

The Statement of Accounts for 2023/24 are reaching the completion of their external audit and need
to be published on or before the 28 February 2025 which is the statutory ‘backstop’ deadline.

The revised Statement of Accounts for 2023/24 is attached as Appendix A.



OFFICIAL
Page 68 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Recommendations and Reasons
I. To approve the Statement of Accounts for 2023/24 attached as Appendix A.
a. Reason: Statutory Requirement, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the
accounts to be:
i. Considered by committee;
ii. Approved by committee resolution;
iii. Signed and dated by the person presiding at the committee.

2. To delegate authority to the Section |51 Officer in consultation with the Chair of Audit and
Governance Committee to sign the Accounts and Letters of Representation on behalf of the
Council once the audit opinions are provided, and to approve any final amendments to the
Statement of Accounts arising from the closing stages of audit work.

3. To note the amendments to the 2023/24 accounts which are anticipated to be finalised before 28
February 2025.

4. To approve the Letters of Representation attached as Appendix B prior to their submission to the
Auditor.

5. To approve the 2023/4 Annual Governance Statement (Appendix C), which will be signed by the
Leader and the Chief Executive, confirming the governance arrangements that were in place during
the year and which will be published alongside the Statement of Accounts.

6. To consider the draft Audit Opinion Report for 2023/24

Alternative options considered and rejected
I. None — It is a statutory requirement to produce and approve the Statement of Accounts.

Relevance to the Corporate Plan and/or the Plymouth Plan
The Council’s expenditure forms the basis for the delivery of the Corporate Plan.

Implications for the Medium-Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:

The changes actioned in the 2023/24 accounts will flow into the opening balance sheet position for the
2024/25 Statement of Accounts and, as such, will have implications for the Medium-Term Financial Plan.
The level of Working Balance and reserves will affect the level of funding available in future years and
variations in service expenditure will also need to be reviewed to assess any impacts.

Financial Risks

The Statement of Accounts includes a high-level summary of the Council’s financial risks.

Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications:
N/A



OFFICIAL
Page 69 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Other Implications: e.g. Health and Safety, Risk Management, Child Poverty:

* When considering these proposals members have a responsibility to ensure they give due regard to the Council’s duty to promote
equality of opportunity, eliminate unlawful discrimination and promote good relations between people who share protected
characteristics under the Equalities Act and those who do not.

The main risk associated with the late completion and publication of the statement of accounts for a
local authority, particularly those where a disclaimed (no assurance) opinion is the risk of reputational
damage. Due to the well-documented national issues with Local Audit there are a significant number of
Councils across the country who will also receive a disclaimed opinion. Like Plymouth, the majority of
these Councils have had their audit process cut short by the backstop arrangements, through no fault
of their own. The accounts attached as Appendix A have been produced in a professional manner and
will be signed off as representing a ‘true and fair’ view by the S151 Officer. Government have asked
auditors to be clear about the reasons for disclaimed opinions in their reporting, and have committed
to ensure that assurance of financial statements will be rebuilt over future reporting cycles.

Appendices

*Add rows as required to box below

Ref. Title of Appendix Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)
If somel/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate
why it is not for publication by virtue of Part | of Schedule |2A
of the Local Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.

| 2 3 4 5 6 7

Audited Statement of Accounts 2023/24

Letter of Representation 2023/24

A

B

C Annual Governance Statement 2023-24
D  Draft Audit Opinion Report 2023/24

Background papers:

*Add rows as required to box below

Please list all unpublished, background papers relevant to the decision in the table below. Background papers are unpublished works,
relied on to a material extent in preparing the report, which disclose facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the
work is based.

Title of any background paper(s) Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)

If somelall of the information is confidential, you must indicate why it
is not for publication by virtue of Part |of Schedule |2A of the Local
Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.

I 2 3 4 5 6 7

Auditor’s Annual Report for the year ended
31 March 2024



OFFICIAL
Page 70 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Sign off:
Fin OW. | Leg LS/00 | Mon | N/A | HR N/A | Asset | N/A | Strat | N/A
24.25. 0010 | Off s Proc
035 75/1/
AC/I
0/2/2
5

Originating Senior Leadership Team member: David Northey

Please confirm the Strategic Director(s) has agreed the report? Yes

Date agreed:

Cabinet Member approval: Approved by ClIr Lowry verbally

Date approved:




OFFICIAL

2.1

2.2

23

24

2.5

Page 71 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL
Final Statement of Accounts 2023/24
Introduction

The Statement of Accounts for 2023/24 (see Appendix A) has been prepared in a format to
comply with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom (The Code) and reflect the 2023/24 revenue and capital outturn position which was
reported to Full Council on the 16 September 2024.

The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2024 came into force on 30 September
2024 and provided for statutory ‘backstop’ arrangements to help clear the backlog of audits and
rebuild assurance.

The final published accounts for 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23 were published prior
to or by the backstop date of the 13 December 2024.

Over recent years the Council, like many local authorities, has experienced significant delays
with the audit of its accounts. As reported to the committee on the | | December 2024, the
local audit backstop arrangements have been established to set dates by which an authority
must publish a final version of its statement of accounts for a particular year, irrespective of the
progress that has been made by the auditor. The backstop date for the 2023/24 financial year is
28 February 2025.

Final Publication of the 2023/24 Accounts

The draft Statement of Accounts 2023/24 were approved by the Service Director for Finance
and published by the statutory deadline of 31 May 2024. Following publication and in
accordance with the regulations, the accounts and supporting documentation were made
available for public inspection from 3 June to 12 July 2024 and the relevant statutory public
notice was published on the Council’s website. There were no objections raised during the
inspection period.

The accounts were presented to this committee on the 23 July 2024 and Grant Thornton
commenced their audit in October 2024, in line with the audit plan presented to the committee
on 12 November 2024.

The Statement of Accounts for 2023/24 are now in the final stage of being audited and amended
and the Final Statement of Accounts for 2023/24 (attached as Appendix A) are being presented
to the Committee for approval prior to publication on the Council's website. The amended
accounts are currently being reviewed by Grant Thornton to ensure that all of the expected
adjustments have been accounted for correctly prior to publication.

As at the date this report was written, the audit of the accounts has not been finalised, the
Committee is asked to endorse that delegated approval be given to the Chair of Audit and
Governance and the Section 151 Officer to sign the Final Statement of Accounts after the Audit
and Governance Committee session on |8 February 2025 (if this is not resolved before the
session itself). If the audit is complete by 18 February 2025, then the accounts will be able to be
signed at the Audit and Governance Committee session.

As has been discussed in previous meetings of the Audit and Governance Committee, receiving
a modified or disclaimed audit opinion for 2022/23 has had an impact on the audit opinion for



OFFICIAL

3.1

32

3.3

34

3.5

Page 72 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL
2023/24. This is because the auditor is not able to rely on audited opening balances in the
accounts for 2023/24. The Council is expecting to receive a modified or disclaimed audit
opinion for the 2023/24 accounts. However, the audit work that has just been completed by the
auditors has started the process of rebuilding assurance over the Council’s accounting
statements.

Audit Completion Reports

The external auditor’s value for money commentary for 2023/24 was presented to this
committee on the 12 November 2024 through the Interim Auditor’s Annual Report for the
year ended 3| March 2024. Two significant weaknesses were identified:

(i) Financial sustainability

(i) The need to improve economy, efficiency and effectiveness in Children’s Services following
an Ofsted improvement notice.

The Council has taken steps to address the weaknesses identified in 2023/24 through a range of
management actions in the current financial year.

(i) The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2024/25 -2028/29 was approved by Full Council
on the 16 September 2024 and the latest Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) will be going
to Full Council on the 24 February as part of the budget setting process. This sets out a
significantly reduced cumulative budget gap forecast over the next five years.

(i) The Council is developing a change programme alongside a refreshed MTFS, with the
objective of setting out clear plans to balance the budget over the medium term. An initial,
high level change programme was included within the MTFP report to Cabinet on 10
February 2025; this will be further developed alongside the MTFS and reported to the March
2025 Cabinet meeting.

(iii) The Council established a Children’s Improvement Board, chaired by the Director of
Children’s Services from Dorset Council. This has met every six weeks; rapid progress on
the delivery of the six key priorities within the agreed Improvement Plan led to the lifting of
the improvement notice in January 2024. The service published ‘Achieving Excellence — A
Strategy for Children’s Services 2024-27’ at the Children, Young People and Families Scrutiny
Panel meeting on the 18 July 2024 and continues to work to improve the services provided
to the city for Children, Young People and Families.

The Audit Findings Report is being presented to Audit and Governance Committee by Grant
Thornton elsewhere on this agenda for review. Officers wish to draw the Committee’s
attention to the Audit Adjustments contained within Appendix C of the Audit Findings Report.
This highlights the key changes to the accounts between the draft and audited versions.

Upon consideration of the Audit Findings Report, members are asked to delegate authority to
the Section |51 Officer in consultation with the Chair of Audit and Governance Committee to
sign the letters of representation attached as Appendix B to Grant Thornton LLP for the
Council and to sign the accounts.

The draft Audit Opinion Report for 2023/24 is attached as Appendix D. As a result of the
limitations imposed by the backstop date, Grant Thornton have been unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence over the Council’s opening balances reported in the financial
statements for the year ended 3| March 2024. They have therefore issued a disclaimer of



OFFICIAL

5.1

6.1

6.2

Page /3 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL
opinion on the financial statements for 2023/24. This enables the Council to comply with the
requirement of the backstop regulations to publish the accounts by the 28 February 2025.

Annual Governance Statement 2023/24

The approved Annual Governance Statement (AGS) is required to be published alongside the
Council’s financial statements. The AGS for 2023/24 was submitted for review by this
committee on the 23 July 2024 and is attached as Appendix C. A review of the AGS has
determined that no further changes are required.

Changes from draft publication of the 2023/24 draft Accounts

The draft accounts for 2023/24 have been adjusted to reflect issues raised in the Grant
Thornton Audit Findings Report of the accounts for 2023/24. They also reflect historic
adjustments in relation to previous year’s published accounts. The main changes are listed
below:

e Changes to reflect the accounting treatment of the pension transaction from 2019/20
and associated movements through reserves;

e Removal of associated Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) in relation to the pension
transaction and associated reserve movements;

e Changes to the accounting treatment of the Interest Rate Swap (previously accounted
for as a hedge transaction);

e Amendments to the notes on Heritage Assets to add items below £100k and the special
books collection;

e Corrections to Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) entries arising from making
adjustments to prior year depreciation charges on “material” assets;

e Corrections to the reporting of Academy schools disposals, which were incorrectly
presented in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES);

e Revenue Expended From Capital Under Statute (REFCUS) incorrectly classified as fees
and charges has been reclassified as Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income;

e Revaluation errors in Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) have been corrected;

e Incorrect classification of Short Term Debtors has been corrected (some entries should
have been reported as Short Term Creditors).

Letter of Representation & Audit Completion

Appendix B is the letter of representation from the Council to the external auditor which sets
out certain facts the external auditor has relied upon to complete their reports. These require
approval by the Audit and Governance Committee, and delegated approval for the Section 151
Officer and Chair to sign this letter and the updated final version of the accounts to be
published (when the audit is concluded) is being sought at this Committee today.

The accounts can be published on the Council’s website once Grant Thornton have completed
their audit work and issued their audit opinion. This will mark the end of the accounting
process for the 2023/24 financial year.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 75

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS et

=

PLYMOUTH




Page 76

OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

This page is intentionally left blank

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2



OFFICIAL Page 77

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

CONTENTS

Narrative Report from the Service Director for Finance and Section 151 Officer.........cccoeeevevcvevcnencunence. 4
Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of ACCOUNLS........cccveueirerireeirecenecireceeeeeeesesseseseaeene 26
Comeprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the Year Ended 31 March 2024......................... 27
Movement in Reserves Statement for the Year Ended 31 March 2024..........c.ocoovenenencnencnencrnencrnecnnenes 28
BalANCe SHEEL ... 29
Cash FIOW SEATEMENT ...ttt bbbt s bttt bt bbb snas 30
Notes to the FINancial STateMENTS ..ottt st sssssassesssssssesssns 31
Collection Fund for the Year Ended 31 March 2024 ...........cccoinienicicricrieiieseeessessssesessesssens 112

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 3



OFFICIAL Page 78 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

NARRATIVE REPORT FROM THE SERVICE DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE AND
SECTION 151 OFFICER

INTRODUCTION

Welcome to the Narrative Statement for the Statement of Accounts for Plymouth City
Council 2023/24.

The accounts provide a true and fair view of the financial performance of the Council in the delivery of
services to the residents of Plymouth. They summarise the overall financial position of the Council for
the year ended 3| March 2024. The accounts and accompanying documents are subject to an external
independent audit by Grant Thornton LLP and will remain as draft accounts until they have been agreed
and signed off by them.

In previous years, this would have seen the final, audited accounts being
presented to the Audit and Governance Committee at the end of
September 2024. However, there were national issues with audit work
programmes and the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations
2024 came into force on the 30 September 2024 which provided for
statutory ‘backstop’ arrangements to help clear the backlog of audits
and rebuild assurance. The ‘backstop’ date for the 2023/24 Statement of
Accounts is the 28 February 2025 and it is our intention to work with
our external auditors Grant Thornton to achieve this deadline.

The preparation of the Statement of Accounts provides the opportunity to look back at the past
financial year and to report on the current financial and non-financial position of the Council.

We are a large and diverse organisation, and the accounts are therefore complex, and where necessary,
we have made estimates and judgements in preparing these accounts, complying with the CIPFA Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom.

The 2023/24 financial year again saw some significant financial pressures on the Council, which the
Council has responded to by protecting its existing General Fund (Working Balance) reserve, by
releasing available reserves whilst undertaking in year cost control and income maximisation measures.

Plymouth City Council, along with most local authorities across the country, continues to face significant
challenges in providing essential services to meet the needs of residents within the level of resources it
has at its disposal. This has been added to by the continuing challenging operating environment and
increasing and more complex local service demand.

As reported throughout 2023/24 the Council faced the perfect storm of continuing major increases in
service demand post the pandemic combined with unavoidable and rapid increases in operating costs
across almost every aspect of the authority. This had a huge impact on the Council’s approved financial
plans for 2023/24 and the general economic climate created serious cost of living challenges for some of
our residents.

The most challenging area of concern and level of overspending in 2023/24 has been the cost of externally
purchased Children in Care placements. This has been a pressure faced by the Council for several years,
but it got significantly worse in 2023/24 and will continue into 2024/25. It is a challenge that is replicated
across most upper tier local authorities throughout the country. Residential Care placements are in short
supply, and this has pushed up prices significantly for all local authorities. This is of most concern where a
child has complex needs and or challenging behaviour. Home to School transport has been under
significant pressure due to high inflation, increased number of high cost routes and high needs children
being placed outside the city. Adult Social Care has seen continued pressure for emergency
accommodation within Community Connections to meet the homelessness demand and the budget for
Care Packages has also been under pressure.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 4



OFFICIAL Page 79 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Revenue Outturn

The Council has balanced its budget reporting a breakeven position. The overall net spend matches the
net budget of £218.440m.

Within this overall balanced position the following headline financial issues are reported:

=  Anil variance on a gross expenditure budget of £560m. This is a significant achievement
during a year with continuing cost and demand pressures on services, particularly within
Children’s Services.

=  The 2023/24 budget included ambitious savings targets totalling £23.435m, which were
not all achieved in full.

=  The drawdown of £1.953m of usable reserves throughout the year and the use of
£9.307m of Corporate resourcing adjustments.

*  Drawdown from the Working Balance of £8.7m has not been required.
Capital Expenditure

As well as delivering vital day to day services for residents, businesses and visitors, the Council
continues to be at the heart of investment in the local area, improving assets to deliver services more
efficiently and effectively and creating the right conditions to attract additional private sector investment.
Capital spending can generally be defined as that which generates assets that have a life of more than
one year. This includes the acquisition or construction of new assets and expenditure that improves,
and not merely maintains, the value of existing assets. In 2023/24 the Council invested £91.36Im into
capital schemes to continue to improve Plymouth as a place to live and a destination to visit.

Capitalisation Direction

The Council is working with DLUHC (Department for Levelling-Up, Homes and Communities) plus the

external auditors — Grant Thornton, to resolve an outstanding technical issue relating to the Statement
of Accounts for 2019/20.

The Statement of Accounts for 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021-22, 2022-23 were all published before or by the
‘backstop’ deadline of the 13 December 2024 and these accounts will be published by the 28 February
2025. The impact of the capitalisation direction will be reflected in the accounting year in which the
direction is applied.

And finally...

Continued vigorous cost management and focused delivery of planned revenue savings will again be key
in the new financial year 2024/25. Each Directorate must ensure that it at least manages within its
allocated budget and delivers the agreed savings. All effort must be made to finish below budget, through
further cost savings and increased income generation.

The Council will submit the draft Statement of Accounts 2023/24 to the Audit and Governance
Committee 23 July 2024.

In this document, the Council demonstrates that it has a secure and sustainable financial standing. The
Council has fulfilled its stewardship function for all the public money entrusted to it in a cost effective
and appropriate manner.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 5



OFFICIAL Page 80 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

David Northey FCCA
Service Director for Finance and Section 151 Officer
XXXX

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 6



OFFICIAL

Page 81

Plymouth

Britain's Ocean City

One of Europe’s most vibrant waterfront
cities where an outstanding quality of life
is enjoyed by everyone

WHAT WE WANT TO ACHIEVE...

HEALTHY
CITY

People live in happy, healthy,
safe and aspiring
communities

GROWING
CITY

A city which has used its
strengths to deliver quality
and sustainable growth

INTERNATIONAL
CITY

Plymouth is internationally
renowned as Britain’s Ocean
City and is the UK’s premier

marine city, famous for its
waterfront, and being home

to the UK’s first National
Marine Park

HOW WILL WE KNOW WE'RE SUCCESSFUL?

People have the best start
to life and improved health,
increased life expectancy,
and a better quality of life

More people taking care of
themselves

More residents are
contributing to and being
involved in their
community

People are well housed, live
in good quality, well looked
after neighbourhoods where
they feel safe and happy

Good quality, sustainable
health and wellbeing services
for people who need them,
when they need them

The population has grown
close to the city's ambition
of 300,000

Plymouth continues to be
recognised as a leading
Green City

Plymouth has a vibrant,
productive, inclusive and
innovative business sector
with a workforce that is paid
a living wage

People have the skills to be
school ready and work
ready

Plymouth continues to
strengthen conditions for
increased growth, including
ensuring effective
infrastructure delivery

WHAT PRINCIPLES WILL GUIDE US?

Plymouth continues to
improve its diverse cultural
and sporting experience

Plymouth is internationally
renowned as a leading UK
tourist destination

Plymouth is recognised
internationally for expertise
in marine science and
hi-tech manufacturing

Plymouth's reputation for
world class universities
and research institutions
continues to grow

Plymouth’s reputation is
strengthened as a
welcoming, multicultural

People feel like they
belong in the community
where they live

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

THE
PLYMOUTH
PLAN
2014 - 2034

REGIONAL
CITY

Plymouth will be fulfilling its
role as a regional city and a
major economic driver for
the Heart of
the South West

Plymouth recognised as a
key regional economic
driver

High quality strategic
services and facilities that
serve the people of
Plymouth and the sub region

Plymouth’s strategic
defence role is protected
and strengthened

CONNECTIONS

People mix, interact, learn from
each other and work together

OPPORTUNITY

People have more equal
opportunities and the ability to
be part of the city's future

People have confidence
that they can influence
decisions that affect
them

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 7



Page 82

OFFICIAL

\wAo)
F : DERRIFORD VV‘W
AND
eg NORTHERN v
CORRIDOR W

GROWTH AREA

CITY CENITRE AND
vy WATERFRONT

L |

l GROWTHARE -‘ EAS'Il"ERN CORRIDOR

] @ﬁr BN
,g Y ”V

f
7

O
/

800m

to nearest
primary school

20,400 €¥
Q population I 00'

of nearly and SW Devon)
days best support

300 000 at the start of
0. I 5 child’s life
i—W hectares per 1,000
é(_/ people of allotments/ h

0.79 4550

live within new |obs {Plymouth

400m

of a bus stop

.

400m

walking distance
to nearest local
play space

e

19}

reduce carbon
emissions to

NET ZERO

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

/

]

hectare of
nature reserve per
1,000 people

=]

800m

to nearest

‘ convenience
m . store
to nearest ' ‘
accessible & ’

natural space o
50%

recycling rate

growing space
2%
less than (] hectare per 1,000 new affordable

of our waste to people of playing homes
landfill pitch

m 22 1
19,000 {243,000

new homes sqm of employment

S ﬁ

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

25Mbps

minimum broadband
speed for all




OFFICIAL Page 83

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

OUR PLAN i
BUILD A BETTER PLYMOUTH  LAGENL

CITY COUNCIL

CITY VISION: Britain’s Ocean City

One of Europe’s most vibrant waterfront cities, where Plvmouth
an outstanding quality of life is enjoyed by everyone Britain's Ocean City

OUR MISSION: Making Plymouth a fairer, greener city, where everyone does their bit
WE BELIEVE IN:

DEMOCRACY FAIRNESS CO-OPERATION
Because we listen Because we want Because we achieve
and hear what i to address inequalicy more together than
people want and inequity in we would alone
i our city

WEWILL:

Make Plymouth a great place to grow up and grow old
Minimise the impact of the cost of living crisis

Keeping children, adults and
communities safe

OUR PRIORITIES: DOINGTHIS BY:
Working with the Police to tackle crime
ﬁ and anti-social behaviour
& Fewer pothales, cleaner, greenar
S streets and transport
i Build more homes - for social rent and Focusing on prevention
@ affordable ownership and early intervention
Green investment, jobs, skills and Spending money
better education wigely
Woarking with the MHS to provide better Empowering and
access to health, care and dentistry engaging our staff

Being a strong voice
for Plymouth

www.plymouth.gov.uklourplan

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 9



OFFICIAL Page 84

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

AIMS, OBJECTIVES AND ACHIEVEMENTS

The Statement of Accounts should be read in conjunction with the Council’s Corporate Plan. The
Council adopted a revised Corporate Plan in June 2023. The plan reflects the administration’s ambition
for the city and the Council, takes account of the progress that the Council has made in recent years
and address the new challenges that we face. The Council retained and re-endorsed the City Vision: to
be one of Europe’s most vibrant waterfront cities where an outstanding quality of life is enjoyed by
everyone, and revised the Council’s mission to better reflect how the Council contributes to the City
Vision, with emphasis on fairness, environmental sustainability and co-operation. The Council’s adopted
values were also revised to fully reflect our expectations of ourselves and each other, and provide a
basis on which the Council can be held to account by its citizens.

There are six priority areas for delivery through the Corporate Plan, and the plan highlights the
importance of retaining a focus in all of the Council’s activities on Plymouth being a great place to grow
up and grow old, and on minimising the impact of the cost of living crisis. The Council’s Corporate Plan
priorities are:

*  Working with the Police to tackle crime and anti-social behaviour

=  Fewer potholes, cleaner, greener streets, and transport

*  Build more homes — for social rent and affordable ownership

=  Green investment, jobs, skills, and better education

*  Working with the NHS to provide better access to health, care and dentistry
=  Keeping children, adults, and communities safe

The Council’s business planning and performance management frameworks are the mechanism that
drives delivery of the above priorities, and resource allocation is geared to ensure that delivery plans
against the priorities are sustainable, alongside the Council’s wider range of statutory and discretionary
services.

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL DEMOCRACY AND GOVERNANCE

Democracy and governance plays a huge part for the Council in ensuring good governance and strong
decision making across the Council. The Council is a complex and large organisation. Policies are
directed by the political leadership (Leader and Cabinet) and implemented and delivered by the
Corporate Management Team (CMT) with the support of their Directorate Management Teams (DMT).

The Council is made up of 57 Councillors for 20 wards. The political make-up of the Council during
2023/24 was:

=  Labour Party — 32 Councillors

=  Conservative Party — 18 Councillors
=  Green Party — 2 Councillors

* Independent Alliance — 3 Councillors
* Independent — 2 Councillors

Following the election in May 2023, the Council is controlled by the Labour Party. The Council has
adopted the ‘Strong’ Leader and Cabinet model as its political management structure. The Leader of the
Council (ClIr Tudor Evans OBE) has responsibility for the appointment of Members of the Cabinet (also
known as the Executive), the allocation of Portfolios and the delegation of executive functions. The
Cabinet is the main decision-making body of the Council. It is responsible for policies, plans and
strategies, which must be implemented within the budgetary and policy framework adopted by Full
Council. The Council elects the Leader each year at the Annual General Meeting (usually held in May).

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 10



OFFICIAL Page 85 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Councillors are supported by CMT, which is headed by the Council’s Chief Executive, Tracey Lee. CMT
are responsible for the overall management of the Council, for setting and monitoring overall direction
and ensuring high performance in the delivery of council services. Including the Chief Executive, CMT is
made up of eight members.

The Council also has a number of committees which include Planning, Licensing, Audit and Governance,
various Overview and Scrutiny Committees and a number of others to support the democratic process.

The Council operates by way of the Council Constitution. The Constitution is a legal document and
includes items such as Council procedure rules, financial regulations, the scheme of delegation and
responsibility for functions. The Council is also required to produce an Annual Governance Statement
(AGS) each year to meet the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and the
principles set out in the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society
of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) Framework: ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government’.

Plymouth - Britain’s Ocean City

Plymouth City Council is a unitary local authority responsible for over 300 local services including
transport, social care and education. With a resident population of 264,700 (2021) and a further
100,000 residents in the travel to work area, Plymouth is the largest city on the South coast and the

I 5th biggest city in the country. Plymouth is also the most significant urban area on the south west
peninsula with an economic output of £5.44 billion (2021), supporting | 15,000 jobs and is the key urban
hub of the Heart of the South West Enterprise Partnership making it a key location for growth. The city
has the highest concentration of manufacturing and engineering employment in the whole of the South
of England. 20% of the UK's blue—tech marine companies are based here and 14.6% of Plymouth’s jobs
are in the manufacturing industry, far exceeding the national average of 8.8% (2019).

Plymouth is ‘Britain’s Ocean City’ and its connections to the sea go back to the sailing of the Mayflower
in 1620 and now includes Western Europe’s largest naval base, a thriving commercial and ferry port, a
significant fishing industry and one of the most significant global concentrations of marine research and
production.

Regional Influence

The functions of the Heart of the South West Partnership Local Enterprise Partnership (HotSWV LEP)
are in the process of transferring to the principal local authorities in Devon and Somerset as part of new
Government policy and this will be effective from the | April 2024. This means that Plymouth City
Council, Devon County Council, Somerset Council and Torbay Council will now individually be
responsible for economic strategy, Government programmes such as the Growth Hub and Careers Hub
and ensuring local business has a voice in decisions affecting the future of the economy through
Economic Growth Boards in their areas. The four councils will continue to work together to ensure
sensible collaboration on sector support and strategic partnerships.

Future Vision

The Council's vision for Plymouth is to become one of Europe's most vibrant waterfront cities, where
an outstanding quality of life is enjoyed by everyone. Through the visionary Plymouth Plan which sets
out far reaching growth plans to 2034, promoting a shared direction of travel for the long term future of
the city bringing together, for the first time in Plymouth (and perhaps in the UK), a number of strategic
planning processes into one place. Since its introduction, the Plymouth Plan has been at the heart of
policy and plan-making in the city. It sets the direction for the city's economy; it plans for the city's
transport and housing needs; it looks at how the city can improve the lives of children and young people
and address the issues which lead to child poverty. It sets out the Council’s mission to ‘Make Plymouth a
fairer city, where everyone does their bit’.

The Plymouth Plan includes plans to increase its resident population to 300,000, build an additional
19,000 homes (of which 4,550 are affordable), reduce carbon emissions by 50%, improved broadband

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS I



OFFICIAL Page 86

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

for all premises and to create 20,400 jobs. The Council worked closely with local strategic partners
West Devon and South Hams Councils to create “The Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local
Plan’ to support local thriving towns and villages. The three councils joined up to create this plan (now
adopted) which looks at every aspect of how we want our cities, towns and villages to look and feel
over the next 20 years. The existing policies in the Plymouth Plan will now be combined with the
Plymouth-specific policies in the new Joint Local Plan to create one document.

National Marine Park (NMP)

Partners across the city created the UK'’s first ever National Marine Park in 2019 and the ‘Park in the
Sea’ was awarded £9.5 million in 2021 from the National Lottery Heritage Fund Horizon Awards to fully
develop the idea.

The ‘Park in the Sea’ aims to:

=  Support the ongoing enhancement of our world class natural environment and heritage
landscape;

=  Get the entire city and surrounding communities involved with the Sound;
* Increase access to our heritage so everyone can enjoy the benefits;

*  Provide new employment opportunities and career pathways in sustainable future ocean
jobs;

=  Position Plymouth as a UK top day-visitor destination;

=  Champion health and wellbeing with a new generation of engaged volunteers,
communities and champions;

=  Support the positive transition to net zero carbon by 2030.

In July 2021 the City Council NMP project team outlined its ambition to create five ‘gateways’ to the
park, each with a particular focus that will inspire more people to explore, connect and enjoy the sea.
They include:

* Tinside — for health and wellbeing activities;
=  National Marine Aquarium — a hub for nature and the environment;
= Mountbatten — active recreation;

*  Mount Edgcumbe — learning about the Sound’s epic history including over 600 wrecks
that lie beneath the waves; and

=  Smart Sound — digital harnessing the power of the latest digital technology.

The Council will be consulting with partners over the next two years with a full engagement programme
to be developed to ensure everyone has their say in what they would like to see as part of the National
Marine Park.

An £11.6m National Lottery Heritage Fund grant was awarded in February 2024 to help with the
delivery of the UK’s first National Marine Park.

Plymouth and South Devon Freeport

The Plymouth and South Devon Freeport was designated by statutory instrument in October 2022 and
the government announced full business case approval in December 2022. The Freeport is a dynamic
public/private partnership with Plymouth City Council, South Hams District Council and Devon County
Council working alongside Princess Yachts, Carlton Power, the Sherford Consortium and a wide range
of stakeholders including the Universities of Plymouth and Exeter, Plymouth port operators, skills
providers and the Heart of the South West LEP to ensure its success.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 12



OFFICIAL Page 87

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

The Freeport represents a unique opportunity to level up, address historical challenges and leverage
exciting new opportunities to transform the economy of Plymouth and South Devon through:

*  Physical regeneration — by delivering infrastructure to unlock key employment sites and
innovation assets, supporting business clustering and clean growth opportunities.

=  Economic regeneration — by delivering inward investment, supply chain opportunities and
productivity gains within our identified growth sectors.

=  Social regeneration — by delivering a pipeline of jobs across the spectrum of employment
from entry level to higher skilled/high value with upskilling opportunities.

The Freeport intends to:
*  Create a national hub for trading and investment
*  Promote regeneration and job creation.
=  Create a hotbed for innovation.

The Freeport will continue to build on the extensive partnership work initiated during the last two years
and support interested businesses with contracting, designing and planning their place within the
Freeport.

During 2023-24 the Freeport formally accepted £19.946m of funding from DLUHC. The grant will
unlock essential capital works to key assets, which will benefit the city’s residents as well as establish
Plymouth as a Net Zero port city with a superb waterfront.

Devon Business Rates Pool

The Devon Business Rates Pool (DBRP) has been operating since April 2013 and each year the pool has
delivered a pool gain to its members. The table shown below demonstrates the benefit to pool
members for each financial year from 2013 to the end of March 2024. As can be seen from the table
below, Plymouth has benefitted from an additional £15.325m since | April 2013 and the Devon
economy has benefitted overall by £75.025m since the pool’s inception in 2013.

The DBRP working group has worked together to produce the forecasts, share best practice and
develop the detailed workings which are complex. The group has also been supported by LG Futures
who developed the initial workings and have provided support to the Pool since its inception.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 13



OFFICIAL Page 88

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Devon Business Rate Pooling Gains 2013 to 2024

::::::?;:“e 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023124 Total
50% 50% 50% 50% 50%
Scheme
£ £ £ £ £ £

£
Devon 19,320,671 2,228,157 2,145,986 2,511,070 2,290,137 2,650,472 31,146,493
East Devon 2,249,581 315,779 303,873 355,874 324,563 390,976 3,940,646
Exeter 2,246,580 682,088 656,335 768,694 701,061 773,790 5,828,548
Mid Devon 500,959 166,760 160,490 187,934 171,399 207,161 1,394,703
North Devon 1,253,133 319,050 307,028 359,561 327,925 370,861 2,937,558
South Hams 611,590 308,947 297,284 348,174 317,541 368,516 2,252,052
Teignbridge 1,067,015 316,768 304,841 356,989 325,580 387,651 2,758,844
Torridge 630,817 139,918 134,669 157,684 143,811 175,409 1,382,308
West Devon 499,813 128,901 124,053 145,268 132,487 156,429 1,186,951
Plymouth 5,218,386 1,904,143 1,837,986 2,145,916 1,957,110 2,261,935 15,325,476
Torbay 1,976,232 922,674 888,429 1,039,828 948,340 1,096,376 6,871,879

The Council’s Approach to Climate Change

In early 2019, Councillors voted unanimously to declare a Climate Emergency, making a pledge to make
Plymouth carbon neutral by 2030. The pledge exceeds the climate objectives of the UK and Plymouth
have developed a Net Zero Action Plan (NZAP) to work towards the reduction in carbon emissions to
ensure the Council is a net zero organisation by 2030.

The NZAP covers two main areas:

= Action commitments to reduce emissions from the facilities we own and the services we
deliver.

=  Action commitments about how the Council uses its powers to help the city as a whole
move towards net zero.

The NZAP has been guided by the Carbon Management Hierarchy (CMH). This aims to give focus first
to actions that avoid emissions in the first place, followed by those that reduce emissions.

The key priorities for net zero are:
=  Cut our emissions from travel
=  Cut our emissions from construction and buildings
=  Deliver a step-change in low carbon energy generation
=  Consume responsibly and reduce our waste
=  Engage the whole city in the net zero mission
=  As a last resort, offset the emissions we can’t stop
The Way We Work
The Workforce Modernisation Programme’s vision is:

‘To be a modern workforce where our people are empowered to be progressive, responsible and
offer great services to customers.’

The Future Council Programme has fundamentally changed initially in response to the COVID-19
pandemic. The Council’s ability to change at pace has enabled the programme to be re-prioritised into

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 14



OFFICIAL Page 89 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

three key projects to be more flexible and responsive. The revised programme will work in a more agile
way and covers three work streams; Accommodation, Business Support Review and Digital.

It is expected that the programme will modernise our workforce over the next three years and deliver
outcomes that realise four key benefits:

=  Reducing expenditure;

* Increasing employee performance and improved staff health and well-being;
* Increasing organisational compliance;

*  Improving customer satisfaction.

The future shape of Plymouth City Council will reflect an intelligent organisation making effective use of
the data available, working closely with their communities, developing models for alternative service
delivery vehicles, supported by streamlined services and placing the customer at the heart of the
Council’s culture.

Services have been modernised and we have created a number of profitable arms-length companies or
Alternative Service Delivery Vehicles (ASDV) to support the Council and partners in the city such as
DELT Shared Services Ltd, CATER* Limited, FullyCATER®*® Limited, ARCA (Plymouth) Limited,
@PlymouthCare Limited and Plymouth Active Leisure Ltd.

We have also introduced new technology to provide staff with more efficient ways of working and we
are delivering a modern library service that is more focused on the needs of Plymouth residents.

We are now moving into the next stage of our journey, which will enable us to respond to drivers for
change including delivering the ambitions for growth set out in the Plymouth and South West Devon
Joint Local Plan.

Our priorities include:
=  continuing to improve our performance;
= meeting the changing expectations from residents;

= joining up our services with partners to improve efficiency and make things easier for
customers;

=  supporting the transformation of NHS services through its Strategic Transformation Plan
(STP);

= working with schools to change our education services;
= working with our partners across the South West to pursue our shared interests.
The Council’s Performance

The Plymouth City Corporate Plan 2023-28 sets out the Councils vision of Plymouth being ‘One of
Europe’s most vibrant waterfront cities, where an outstanding quality of life is enjoyed by everyone’.
This was approved by Full Council in June 2023. The Corporate Plan priorities are delivered through
specific programmes and projects which are coordinated and resourced through cross-cutting strategic
plans, capital investments and directorate business plans. The key performance indicators (KPlIs) and
their associated targets are monitored quarterly to inform us on how we are doing in delivering what
we have set out to achieve in the Corporate Plan. We have continued to transform how we deliver
services to ensure they are more efficient and better focused on customer needs. This includes working
in new ways, joining services up with our partners and maximising the opportunities from digital
technology.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 15



OFFICIAL Page 90 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Strategy and Resource Allocation — The Council’s Budget and Medium-Term Financial
Plan 2023/24 to 2027/28

The Council’s gross revenue budget for 2023/24 was £560.189m, which after adjusting for income
equates to a net budget requirement of £218.440m. This was approved by Full Council on the 27
February 2023. The budget was developed following input and reviews with Directors and other officers
and Members, including Cabinet. The budget was formulated having regard to a number of factors
including funding availability; risks and uncertainties; inflation; priorities; demography and service
pressures. The savings plans included in the budget take into account Council priorities and are assessed
against an agreed set of impact criteria and equality assessments. Budget monitoring and scrutiny
arrangements were in place throughout the year, which included arrangements for the identification of
early remedial action supported by a clear action plan, reporting and regular monitoring.

A summary of the overall budget position is shown below, which includes the Medium-Term Financial
Plan for the next five years (2023/24 to 2027/28). The Medium-Term Financial Plan is integral to the
Budget Preparation process and is regularly reported to Members as part of the budget updates through
the year:

Medium Term Financial 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28
Strategy Budget Budget Budget Forecast Forecast
£m £m £m £m £m

Core Resources

Revenue Service Grant (11.562) (12.188) (12.257) (12.259) (12.340)
Council Tax (130.625) (138.979) (144.138) (149.480) (154.525)
Business Rates (75.253) (77.728) (77.406) (77.409) (77.516)
Reserves (1.000) 0 0 0 0

Net Expenditure

Expenditure Brought Forward 218.440 218.440 240.109 248.119 258.130
Add Right-Sizing Costs /

Adjustments 0.000 10.835 6.467 6.230 6.724
Add Demand-Led Pressures 0.000 10.834 1.543 3.781 4.035

Key Financial Planning Considerations:
=  Continuing one-year Revenue Support Grant settlement, with annual inflation uplift.

=  The cap on council tax increases, reflecting central Government’s direction of the
confirmed 2.99% for 2024/25, will revert to 1.99%.

*  The forecast, reflecting central Government’s direction, assumes there will be a further
2% Adult Social Care precept in 2024/25 with 1% modelled for future years. The final
decision on core Council Tax and ASC Precept changes will require Full Council approval
as part of the annual budgets.

*  Uncertainty to future funding due to the delay in 100% Business Rates Retention.
Assumption is the current system remains, with assumed annual inflation uplift.

= Reductions in other Government grant funding without matching reductions and
responsibility for related services provision.

=  Uncertainty about any future Fair Funding Review.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 16



OFFICIAL Page 91 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL
= A continuing range of increasing costs in order to meet the demands on the Council and
maintain key services, particularly in Adult Social Care, Children’s Social Care and
Homelessness.

* Increased costs of meeting new initiatives.

=  General inflation relating to external spend and contracts have not been accounted for on
the understanding that smarter procurement practices will continue to contain
significantly increased spending.

2023/24 Revenue Outturn

The Council has balanced its budget, reporting a breakeven position for 2023/24. The overall net spend
matches the net budget of £218.440m. Within this overall balanced position the Council has overcome
£20m of additional in-year costs and pressures. The setting aside of resources, as approved by Full
Council on the 27 February 2023, has assisted in balancing the 2023/24 Revenue Budget.

Across the Council, management actions to reduce the potential of a business as usual overspend being
incurred included a review of all discretionary spend and delayed expenditure wherever possible.

Directorates, with the exception of Executive Office, Customer and Corporate Services and People,
came in on or under budget for their business-as-usual activity.

The net revenue budget of £218.440m was allocated to council services as follows:

2023124 ” Year-End
Directorate Net Budget Provisional Over/ Status
5 Outturn (Under)
Expenditure
Spend
£m £m £m
Executive Office 6.403 6.739 0.336 m
Customer and Corporate Services 51.070 53.682 2612 m
People Directorate 159.839 174.640 14.801 m
Office for the Director of Public Health 2.829 2.802 (0.027) m
Place Directorate 29.617 28.875 (0.742) m
Corporate Items (31.318) (48.298) (16.980) m

The People Directorate

Children’s Services reported an adverse outturn position of £11.629m against the £63.493m budget.
Within the Directorate, Children, Young People and Families (CYPF) recorded a £8.893m overspend,
and the Education, Participation and Skills (EPS) department had an overspend of £2.737m. Within
CYPF, pressures were experienced due to continued high numbers of packages in Residential,
Supported Living & Bespoke settings, with an increased number of placements costing between £12k —
£25k per week plus Supported Living placements in situ averaging 15 more than the previous financial
year. Children in Care and associated costs accounted for all the pressure reported. Due to increased
volumes of placements the Service were unable to achieve savings targets that were associated with
reductions in numbers of Looked After Children. Within EPS, SEND Home to School transport saw
additional costs of £1.827m, reflecting inflationary pressures on transport costs and an increasing
number of high cost routes, as high needs students are placed outside of the city.

Adult Social Care reported an overall overspend of £3.172m, of which £2.298m is within Community
Connections and relates to continued pressures for emergency nightly paid accommodation to meet the
increasing homelessness demand. Within Adult Social Care, the budget for Care Packages had a
pressure of £6.430m, this was offset by additional short term grant funding received, vacancy savings and
released funding from reserves and provisions. The final outturn figure was £0.874m.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

7



OFFICIAL Page 92 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

As homelessness has increased, the use of temporary accommodation has increased also. At the same
time the move-on options to affordable housing have reduced as the private rented sector has become
unaffordable and social housing availability has reduced and fails to meet demand. This has resulted in
existing temporary accommodation becoming silted up and more utilisation of bed and breakfast and
expensive nightly paid alternatives (holiday lets).

Office of the Director of Public Health (ODPH) reported an underspend of £0.027m. Their
budget is ringfenced and not included in the outturn position for the Council.

Place Directorate achieved an underspend of £0.742m. Management actions to compensate for
budget pressures have included non-essential spend limitation and savings through the re-negotiation of
commercial contracts.

Executive Office ended the year with an overspend of £0.336m due to additional election costs and
unachieved efficiencies.

The Customer and Corporate Services Directorate reported an overall overspend of £2.612m.
This reflects a mix of variations across the departments, including Facilities Management (FM) with an
overall pressure of £1.542m. This includes pressures of £1.264m on Repairs and Maintenance budgets,
and £0.695m additional costs associated with holding Windsor House and Midland House for an
extended period ahead of their planned disposal.

Corporate Items came in £16.980m under budget, despite covering additional costs for the following.

=  An additional pressure of £1.190m due to the pay award announced in November 2023,
which was an average increase of over 5% compared to the budgeted 4% estimate.

=  There were also additional costs of £0.105m relating to Operation Foster (Keyham Bomb
Incident) which were required to be met Corporately. These fell short of the Bellwin
scheme threshold for Government financial support, which in 2023/24 for Plymouth was
£0.437m

=  The Council also incurred a HSE Fine of £0.200m, for failures associated with exposure
to hard arm vibration whilst carrying out grass cutting and arboriculture work.

The favourable position was achieved through £8.1 1 6m savings made within Corporate and contingency
budgets. Additionally, £7.159m additional resource adjustments from Non-Domestic Rates and the
Devon Business Rates pooling gain, and £2.148m from Council Tax. £0.890m was released to corporate
budgets and £1.063m to Directorate budgets from usable reserves not required (total £1.953m).

Working Balance

The Working Balance as at 31 March 2024 after the adjustments for the transaction of £73.375m is a
negative balance of £60.138m (prior to this adjustment the Council’s Working Balance was £8.743m). It
is expected that the Working balance will return to this level once the Capitalisation Direction is
awarded by Government.

Other Financial Performance

In addition to the financial outturn reports within this report there were a range of other significant
performance achievements which have contributed to the year-end position. In year collection targets
are set for our Council Tax, Business Rates, Commercial Rents, and Sundry Debt Income including our
Trade Waste Income. The 2023/24 revenue budget was based on the achievement of the required
targets.

We continue to increase our collection rates in core income streams and explore alternative ways of
making further improvements. For example, we created a new team within existing resources to focus
on recovering debt due to the Council with a specific focus on reducing housing benefit overpayments.

Some key indicators are:

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 18



Page 93

OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

= 96.50% of Council Tax collected in year for 2023/24 towards the total collection target of
96.50% (96.66% in 2022/23). This equates to £153.018m (£145.755m in 2022/23). This
was slightly below the percentage collected in 2022-23.

= 98.80% of NDR collected in year for 2023/24 towards the total collection target of
99.00% (99.01% in 2022/23). This equates to £82.367m (£84.964m in 2022/23).

=  Average borrowing rate of 3.23% was achieved below target of 4.% in 2023/24 (2.73% in
2022/23). An additional net £97m borrowing was taken between December 2023 and
March 2024 to support cashflow needs through Public Loans Work Board (PWLB) at an
average rate of 5.26%, this exceeded the 4% new borrowing target and was taken mainly
for periods ranging from 12 to 18 months with the expectation that rates will come down
by the time debt matures as indicated by Arlingclose, the Councils Treasury Management
advisors.

=  Average investment return of 5.33% was achieved against target of 2.0% in 2023/24
(3.93% in 2022/23).

Capital

During the year 2023/24 the Council spent £91.36m on capital projects within the city. This is shown
by Directorate in the following table. This is within the approved five-year (2023-28) Capital Budget of
£363.957m reported to Full Council on 27 February 2023.

Approved Latest

. Capital Forecast Approvals Variation 2023/24
Directorate P Post Re-Profiling & Capital
Budget December December Virement Spend
2023/24 2023 SCEmBE IFEments pe
Em Em Em Em Em Em
Place
Directorate 173.823 87.578 1.385 (24.091) (0.426) 64.446
People
Directorate 8.390 12.304 0.988 (1.028) (1.124) 11.140
Customer and
Corporate
Services 7.672 4718 1.028 (0.568) (0.064) 5.114
Office for the
Director of
Public Health 10.682 11.580 0.033 (1.009) 0.057 10.661

Throughout the year, the capital programme has continued to experience the ongoing challenges
through high inflation and increased borrowing costs. This has resulted with targeted review and the
reprofiling of projects being financed by corporate and service borrowing. Forecasts were updated
following a further successful change request submitted to Department of Transport for Transforming
Cities Funding Tranche 2 being granted allowing an extension of spending plans into 2024/25.

Capital Funding 2023-28

The latest capital programme is summarised as follows, this does not reflect the impact of the re-
profiling of the budget for 2023/24 which is shown above:

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 19



OFFICIAL Page 94
Directorate 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 Total
Actual Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
Em Em Em Em Em Em

Place
Directorate 64.444 155.370 84.459 42.075 11.629 357.977

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

People
Directorate I'1.140 27.078 9.960 0.220 0.000 48.398

Customer and

Corporate
Services 5.116 5.287 1.545 0.710 0.280 12.938

Office for the
Director or
Public Health 10.661 6.167 0.105 0.000 0.000 16.933

Capital Financing 2023/24

The following table shows the final financing of the 2023/24 capital programme:

£m %
Capital receipts 3.924 4
Grants (Government, HLF, LEP, Environment Agency) 41.268 45
Contributions, S106 & CIL (neighbourhood elements) 0.855 |
Borrowing:
Corporately funded 25.158 28
Service burrowing (revenue budget funded) 20.156 22

Cash Flow Management

The Council has a comprehensive cash flow management system to ensure that:
=  surplus cash is invested wisely;
* it can always meet its liabilities as they fall due.

Cash and short-term investment holdings at 31 March 2024 were £26.998m and are held to meet the
Council’s capital financing and cash flow requirements while obtaining a return on these investments.
The Council also uses short-term borrowing from other local authorities to meet some of the funding
of the Council’s ambitious capital programme. As at 3|1 March 2024 the Council held £170.954m short-
term borrowing and £493.106m long term borrowing which is within the Council’s approved limits.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 20



Page 95

OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Balance Sheet Position

The Council’s Balance Sheet position is as follows:

Balance as at | Balance as at

Position 31 March 31 March
2023 2024
£000 £000

Non-current assets - principally land, buildings and equipment used to deliver council

services 1,393,271 1,438,840

Net current assets - current assets less current liabilities (297,778) (254,755)

Long-term liabilities and provisions (including pensions) see points | and 2 (632,224) (708,215)

Represented by:

Usable reserves (see point 3) 72,170 74,525

Unusable reserves 391,099 401,345

I.  The Council’s largest balance sheet liability is the £493.106m of long-term borrowing
which supports the capital programme. Until last year the Pension liability was the largest

balance sheet item, but due to improvements in the triennial valuation the liability has
now increased to £64.372m (£27.465m in 2022/23).

2. The Council has a number of liabilities at the year-end for which it has made provision.
The most significant of which are:

=  The provision for Chelson Meadow which is a closed landfill site. The
provision of £6.523m has been calculated on the future maintenance costs
over the next 45 years and is reviewed each year;

= In addition, the Council has set aside a provision for business rate appeals of
£4.747m due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the uncertainty over business
rates (£6.013m at 3| March 2023).

3. Usable reserves are currently split between those earmarked for capital investment and

those allocated to revenue support and service development. Usable reserves also include
£3.154m held on behalf of schools.

4. The Council holds a number of unusable reserves, the majority of which are required to
be held for statutory reasons and some which are needed to comply with proper
accounting practice. A further breakdown of unusable reserves can be found in the Notes
to the Financial Statements section of the Statement of Accounts.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND IDENTIFYING RISKS

The Finance Service provides a high quality financial management service for the Council. In addition to
the statutory reporting function for the Statement of Accounts, a key task is financial planning over a
three year medium term timescale. Alongside budget preparation, the ability to look strategically beyond
the current budget period is crucial to supporting the Council’s long-term financial sustainability and
resilience. Given the current level of uncertainty, the unknown impact of Brexit and the ongoing
widespread pressures on revenue budgets, it is essential that the Finance Teams are planning effectively
for the future.

The Council approves a number of key documents before the start of each financial year:

= afive-year Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP);

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 21



OFFICIAL Page 96 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

* a Treasury Management Strategy which includes our investment and borrowing strategies
and includes the Council’s ‘Prudential indicators’;

=  Annual Revenue Budget.

These documents are continually updated and reviewed on a quarterly basis. The MTFP is wide ranging
and includes estimates of future income and expenditure. It allows the Finance team to balance the
financial implications of the Council’s Corporate Plan, service objectives and policies with the
constraints in resources. This year’s budget (2023/24) and the modelling for future years budgets were
prepared prior to the Ukrainian war taking place and they will be revisited in 2024/25 to determine
what action needs to be taken to balance the budget.

The Department for Levelling Up, Homes and Communities (DLUHC) and CIPFA have published
revised guidance and an updated Prudential Code to cover local authorities who invest in properties to
obtain an income. The Council’s Property Regeneration Fund has been set up to invest in property in
areas requiring regeneration.

Risk Management

The Council has a Strategic Risk and Opportunity Register and there are clear and consistent processes
for identifying, assessing, managing, controlling, reviewing and reporting risks. These are subject to
regular review and update. Some of the strategic risks which have been rated as high risk are shown as
follows:

Link to
Corporate Mitigation
Plan
Financial
System of monthly financial reporting to DMT's, CMT,
and Cabinet and Quarterly to Full Council, with
i . . monthly consideration of directorate level financial
The Council’s Risk to services not . . . "
. . s issues at each Scrutiny Committee. In addition the
expenditure exceeds delivering within . . . o
Council has introduced a system of detailed monitoring
the resources reduced budgets and . . N
. . . of they delivery of savings targets so that a view is
available to meet that  Spending Money to delivery of the . . . .
. ey : published monthly in Cabinet reports. The Council also
expenditure within Wisely Plymouth Plan from .
. holds an annual review of fees and charges and has
the medium term reduced revenue and . . A
. . . . annual and ongoing programmes of work to identify and
M ik e funding of the Capital understand potential savings opportunities. The
(2022/23-2025/26). Programme P &3 opp :

governance system of the Council - as unpacked in the
Annual Governance Statement comprise a rigorous
system of financial control.

Lack of adult social

care workforce and Working with the
growing fragility of - NHS to provide Council failure to Health & ASC Winter Plan which will bring in additional
Adult Social Care better access to meet statutory duty . . 2 &

. elements of contingency planning, uplift in fee rate to
Market leading to health, care and to the adult . .
A (LH . . . . help support the market. Risk to be monitored through
inability of Authority  dentistry. Keeping population of . . .

. contract monitoring and market intelligence.

to meet statutory children, adults and  Plymouth
duties and meet communities safe.
eligible need.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 22



OFFICIAL

Link to
Corporate

Page 97

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Mitigation

Operational/Service Delivery

A Cyber-attack renders all of the
Council's IT inaccessible for an
extended period of time
therefore impacting on the
Councils ability to deliver
services.

IT supply chain constraints
results in increased costs and
extended lead times for
equipment.

There is a significant demand for
homelessness services, leading to
pressure on service delivery and

statutory

targets with additional significant
budget implications.

LOOKING FORWARD

Plan

Focusing on
prevention and
early
intervention

Spending
Money Wisely

Keeping
children, adults
and
communities
safe

Impact on

Council's ability to

provide services
and to operate

High risk of
further waves of
infection, timing
uncertain

Council failure to
meet statutory
duty to the adult
population of
Plymouth

Cyber Security Briefings now part of CMT quarterly
reports.

DELT Cyber Security plan now developed for CMT
sign off.

The council has undertaken significant action to
mitigate against cyberattacks, however the threat
remains constant as such the probability of attack
remains high.

PCC to pre plan as far ahead as possible on any

purchases of technical goods or services, notifying
Delt during the planning phase of such work. Delt
have been provided with Capital Plan for 2022/23

Homelessness Recovery Plan has been developed.
Housing Task Force providing strategic leadership
and is driving the recovery plan this includes
representation from across the council to ensure
that the organisation has the appropriate focus
on this priority area - this is led by the Relevant
Cabinet Member and the Chief Executive.

The Homelessness Recovery Board is managing /
delivering operational elements of the recovery
plan, and reports onto the Taskforce.

The Budget report presented to Full Council on 8 March 2024 set out the national context for large
reductions in local government funding and the Local Government Finance Settlement. The 2024/25
Budget Report contains a commitment that the 24/25 budget will feed into the revised 5-year Medium
Term Financial Plan (MTFP) that will be presented to Full Council in September 2024, reflecting the
Council's financial response to ongoing inflation and demand pressures.

The impact of pressures within Social Care in both adults’ and children’s services continues to have a
significant impact upon the Council’s resources. We are also seeing an increase in the demand or cost
pressures in both homelessness and bed and breakfast accommodation or in delivering our statutory
responsibility to provide home to school transport for our most vulnerable children. Nationally and
locally the costs of providing health and wellbeing services are rising as demand increases. Plymouth has
an ageing population with more complex needs and higher levels of young children requiring our

services.

To balance the budget there will be a continuing need for transformation, efficiencies and other financial
initiatives for the foreseeable future.

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2023/24

The Statement of Accounts sets out the Council’s income and expenditure for the year and its financial
position as at 3| March 2024. The format and content of the statements is prescribed by the Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA), Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2023/24. This is based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
adapted for use in a public sector context. Accounting policies are applied in accordance with these
standards. The Statement of Accounts comprises:

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

23



OFFICIAL

Page 98

Statement of Responsibilities
for the Statement of Accounts

This sets out the respective responsibilities of the Council and
the Chief Finance Officer (Service Director for Finance).

Auditor’s Report

This gives the auditor’s opinion of the financial statements and of
the Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of resources.

Core Financial Statements:

Comeprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement (CIES)

This shows the net cost of providing services for the year,
including that for Plymouth’s maintained schools. The top half of
the statement provides an analysis by service area, on the same
basis that these services are managed by the Council. The bottom
half of the statement deals with in accordance with generally
accepted accounting practices. The Expenditure Funding Analysis
(note 7) compares the CIES with levels of income and
expenditure which are taken into account when setting the
annual budget and council tax since certain amounts are
disregarded by statute.

Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet shows a ‘snapshot’ of the Council’s financial
position at year end. The top half of the Balance Sheet sets out
the Council’s assets and liabilities, including provision for known
liabilities from past events that can be reliably estimated. The
lower half of the Balance Sheet shows the Council’s reserves.
Usable reserves reflect actual cash amounts and unusable
reserves result from accounting adjustments required by statute
or accounting standards and cannot be spent.

Movement in Reserves
Statement (MIRS)

This shows the movements in reserves during the year, analysed
into the different funds held by the Council and classified as either
‘usable’ reserves which can be used to fund future expenditure or
‘unusable’ reserves which are maintained to meet specific
statutory responsibilities and adjustments (e.g. valuation reserves
showing the change in book value of assets and liabilities).

Cash Flow Statement

This financial statement shows how changes in balance sheet
accounts and income affect cash and cash equivalents. It breaks
the analysis down to operating activities, investing activities
(including capital spend and disposals) and financing activities
(such as repayment of borrowing and other long-term activities).

Supplementary Statements

and Notes:

Collection Fund

This account demonstrates how income raised from local
taxpayers has been redistributed to the Council and other
precepting authorities for the provision of services.

Statement of Accounting
Policies

Sets out the accounting policies that have been followed in
preparing the accounts and how the Code requirements have
been met in practice.

Disclosure Notes

These provide more detail about individual transactions and
balances.

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

24



OFFICIAL Page 99

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

The Code also sets out the statutory requirement, under the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations
2015, for every local authority to conduct a review, at least once a year, of the effectiveness of its
system of internal control and to include a statement reporting on the review with the Statement of
Accounts. This review takes the form of the Annual Governance Statement (AGS).

The AGS will be reported to and approved by the Audit Committee on the 23 July 2024. This can then
be found on the Council’s website.

CONCLUSION

The formal audit of the Draft Statement of Accounts will commence as soon as is practicably possible
and in line with our statutory duty the accounts will be made available for scrutiny by interested
members of the public from 3 June to | August 2024.

Following any adjustments, as a result of the audit and/or post balance sheet events, we will present the
final Statement of Accounts to the Audit Committee and following formal sign off, we will endeavour to
publish them on our web pages soon after.

Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015:
a) Any person interested may inspect and make copies of the accounts to be audited.

b) A local government elector for the area may question the auditor about the accounts and
object to any items of unlawful expenditure, loss due to wilful default, failure to bring a
sum of income into account, or any other matter of public interest. Persons wishing to
question the auditor should do so by prior arrangements by contacting 020 7728 3180.

c) If any elector intends to object they must give the auditor prior written notice of any
objection and its grounds and send a copy of the notice to the City Council.

The Council’s Service Director for Finance (Section |51 Officer) is required to sign the final accounts by
a statutory deadline of 31 May 2024 or to issue a public notice stating why this has not been possible.

Further information is available:
=  on the Council’s website; or

= from Carolyn Haynes, Head of Finance, Ballard House West Hoe Road, Plymouth PLI
3BJ, email corporateaccountancy@plymouth.gov.uk.

David Northey

Service Director for Finance and Section 151 Officer
Ballard House

West Hoe Road

Plymouth

PLI 3B]

Dated: XXXX

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 25


mailto:corporateaccountancy@plymouth.gov.uk?subject=Statement%20of%20Accounts%20Public%20Enquiry

OFFICIAL Page 100 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
The Council is required to:

* make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that
one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this
Council, that officer is the Service Director for Finance;

* manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and
safeguard its assets;

= approve the Statement of Accounts.
The Service Director for Finance (Section 151 Officer) Responsibilities

The Service Director for Finance is responsible for the preparation of the Council's Statement of
Accounts, which is in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code).

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Service Director for Finance has:
=  selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
* made judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;
= complied with the Local Authority Code.
The Service Director for Finance has also:
=  kept proper accounting records which were up to date;
=  taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

In signing these accounts, the Service Director for Finance confirms that these statements give a ‘true
and fair’ view of the financial position of the Council as at 3| March 2024 and of its expenditure and
income for the year ended 31 March 2024.

David Northey

Service Director for Finance and Section 151 Officer
Ballard House

Woest Hoe Road

Plymouth

PLI 3BJ

Dated: XXXX

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 26



OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the
amount to be funded from taxation. Councils raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with statutory regulations; this may be different from the
accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the Movement in Reserves Statement.

2022/23 2022/23 2022/23 2023/24 2023/24 2023/24
Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net
Expenditure penditure penditure penditure
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

7,061 (508) 6,553  Executive Office 7,080 (599) 6,481

9,113 (41,334) (32,221) Corporate Items 7,161 (44,934) (37,773)

106,702 (66,524) 40,178 Customer and Corporate Services 108,088 (64,634) 43,454

326,543 (148,506) 178,037 People Directorate 354,470 (170,881) 183,589

21,885 (22,360) (475) Public Health 31,093 (25,775) 5318

115,452 (50,652) 64,800 Place Directorate 86,717 (54,978) 31,739
lus)IDeficit on Continuing Operations -

11,857 (2,593) 9,264 Other Operating Expenditure 19,064 (1,367) 17,697

56,121 (39,785) 16,336 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 13 57,829 (33,266) 24,563

0 (241,867) (241,867) Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (295,379) (295,379)
-M--M

(26,756)  (Surplus)/deficit on Revaluation of Non-Current Assets 22. (35,505)

Re-measurement of the Net Defined Benefit Liability
(356,018) (Assets) 224 43,272
(2,703) Other recognised (gains)/losses (56)

| (85477 | Other Comprehensive Income and Expendiewre | | | | 7711
|| Gus7y] Toul Comprenensiveincomeand Expendiere ||| | (260

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 27

TOT obed



OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

The Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement from the start of the year to the end on the different reserves held by the Council, analysed
into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other ‘unusable reserves’. The Statement shows how
the movements in year of the Council’s reserves are broken down between gains and losses incurred in accordance with generally accepted accounting
practices and the statutory adjustments required to return to the amounts chargeable to council tax for the year. The Net Increase/(Decrease) line shows
the statutory General Fund Balance movements in the year following those adjustments.

General Earmarked Total Capital Capital Total Total

Movement in Reserves Statement Fund General (SChCie Receipts Grants Usable Unusable Council

Reserves

Fund .
Balance Fund Balance Reserve Unapplied | Reserves Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 31 March 2022 - 60,138 95,808 35,670 16,982 m 67,781 m 118,397

Movement in Reserves 2022/23

Total comprehensive income and expenditure (40,605) 0 (40,605) 0 0 (40,605) 385,477 344,872
Adjustments between accounting basis and funding under

regulations 21,211 21,211 23,558 44,994 (44,994)

Net Increase/(Decrease) Before Transfer to

Earmarked Reserves 4,389 340,483 344,872

Transfer (to)/from reserves 19,394 (19,394)

Net Increasel(Decrease) in 2022123 T 1 ol wome| auw| m| ms| saw| | s

Balance at 31 March 2023 | o 38,687 391,099 | 463,269

Movement in Reserves 2023/24

Total comprehensive income and expenditure 20,311 0 20,311 0 0 20,311 7,711) 12,600

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding under

regulations (16,256) (16,256) (2,868) 1,168 (17,956) 17,956
Net Increase/(Decrease) Before Transfer to
Earmarked Reserves 2,868

Transfer (to)/from reserves (4,055) 4,055

Net Increasel(Decrease) in 2023124 T ol ams| ams| awn| iue|  sas| eas] e
Balance ac 31 March 2024 | oisn ] sodss | 20331 ia3s9lsess | rasas | sonss ] arssno

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 28

20T 95\9d



OFFICIAL

Page 103

BALANCE SHEET

The Balance Sheet shows the value of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Council as at the
Balance Sheet date. The net assets of the Council are matched by the reserves held. Usable reserves are
those reserves that the Council may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent
level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve
may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). Unusable reserves are those that the
Council is not able to use to provide services, including reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses

(for example the Revaluation Reserve), and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Movement in Reserve Statement line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under

regulations’.

£000
1,018,586
46,459
238,435
80,179
9,612

597
65,734
30,182

330

(120,727)
(124,103)
(7.593)
(9.793)
(132,405)

(10,178)
(9,684)
(444,223)
(27,465)
(108,550)
(32,124)

72,170
391,099

Property, Plant and Equipment
Heritage Assets

Investment Properties
Long-Term Investments

Long-Term Debtors

Inventories
Short-Term Debtors
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Assets Held for Sale

Short-Term Borrowing
Short-Term Creditors
Short-Term Provisions
Grants Received in Advance - Revenue

Grants Received in Advance - Capital

Long-Term Creditors
Long-Term Provisions
Long-Term Borrowing
Long-Term Liabilities Pensions
Other Long-Term Liabilities

Grants Received in Advance - Capital

Usable Reserves

Unusable Reserves

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

15

16

17
18.1
19.2

19.1
234

18.1
20.1
21
29.2
293

20.2
21
18.1
343 & 349
20.3
29.3

22

| 3iMachzo || Note | 3iMarch20a

£000
1,072,298
51,236
223,724
81,333
10,249

970
109,380
26,998
2,803

(170,954)
(115,396)
(6,626)
(9.830)
(92,100)

(9,376)
(9,388)
(493,106)
(64,372)
(103,561)
(28,412)

74,525
401,345

29



Page 104

OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the
reporting period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents
by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows
arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Council
are funded by way of taxation and grant income, or from the recipients of services provided by the
Council. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources
which are intended to contribute to the Council’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from
financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (that is
borrowing) to the Council.

o ] ] Note | 20m3n4

£000 £000

(40,605) Net Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of Service 23.1 20,311
Adjustment to the Net Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of Service for non-

111,350 cash movements 23.1 (24,619)
Adjustments for items included in the Net Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision

(39,301) of Service that are investing and financing activities 23.1 (81,401)

(55,269) Investing activities 232 (31,812)

13,780 Financing activities 23.3 114,337

40,227 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 234 30,182

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 30



OFFICIAL Page 105 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| ACCOUNTING POLICIES ..ttt sttt ettt ettt ettt sttt 32
2 Material Items of Income and EXPeNditure ...t ssesesseaeene 50
3 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting POlICIES ........c.cccuuvcuriveurinerrircrricreiereiceicreecseeeseeeseeeaeeaes 50
4 Accounting Standards that have been Issued but Not Yet Adopted ..........ccocveveurencurencrrencrnencenencnnence 50
5 Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty ......... 51
6 Events After the Balance Sheet Reporting Period.............ccnecinccenecenecinecneesseeesesessesenseneene 52
7 Expenditure and FUNAING ANAIYSIS .......cccouiiiiiiiecccc e sesesesees 53
8 Note to the Expenditure and FUNAing ANalySis.........cccoereeireiinccinccinecirceireeeeeseessesessesessesessesesseseene 54
9 Expenditure and Income Analysed by NatUure..........ccccurcririncinireceecceere e sesseesesees 56
10  Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis Under Regulations...........ccccccoceeveueuencec. 57
1 Other Operating EXPENAItUIE.........c.ccuicuicuriciriciecireereereeteeeseteseeese st s s ssesesaesesassessssesasssacssacs 59
2 Movement in Earmarked RESEIVES .........ciicinicrriciecricteecitcseestesstese e aesssssessesesassesasssacs 59
I3  Financing and Investment Income and EXPenditure ............ccecueveunecunencunincrnencrsencsseeseeseseeeseeseseesesenne 61
4  Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and EXpenditure............ccceecureecunencueencrnencrnencnnesereesenseseneenes 6l
I5  Property, Plant and EQUIPMENT ......ccouiiiiiccccciccttccit et s e s esssssensassaes 61
L6 HEIITAZE ASSELS.....eeeeiieeeteee ettt ettt sttt sttt ettt e e ettt b bttt ettt ne 65
[7  INVESEMENE PrOPEITIES.......ccviieceiicceciteceeecit et se st s st s s naasaes 66
I8  FINANCial INSTrUMENLS......ciiieiiiciicticici ittt bbb bbb bas s s sassesassssassenans 68
L9 DIEDLOIS ... b bbb bbb 77
20 CreditOrsS. ittt bbb bbbt 78
21 PrOVISIONS ..ttt 79
22 UNUSAIE RESEIVES ...ttt bbbttt s s snas 79
23 NOLES t0 CaSh FIOW ...ttt s s st sss s ssssesssnns 83
24 Pooled Budgets — Integrated FUNd ...ttt esesesessenenes 84
25 MemDbErs’ AlIOWANCES ..ottt s s st sssssassssnas 85
26 Officers’ REMUNEIAtION ...ttt se s sas s s sssessssessssessssnns 86
27 EXEErNal AUit COSES ...ttt sse s st sss st ss s sssesessnns 90
28  Dedicated SChOOIS Grant........ it ssssessssessssessssnns 90
29 Grant INCOME ...ttt bbb bbb bbbt 92
30 RelAted Parties ...ttt 96
31  Capital Expenditure and Capital FINANCING .....ccccceurereeurireceereeceireceereeeetreeeie e seasesesenees 100
32 LASES st bbbttt 100
33  Private Finance Initiatives (PFI) and Similar Contracts ..........cccocoevvceeenenercenesccenereeeseeeeesesesenens 01
34 PNSIONS...oiiiceicicc ettt 103
35 Contingent Assets and Liabilities.......ccooceueirerceeirineeer ettt sees 11

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 31



OFFICIAL Page 106 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

I Accounting Policies
1.l General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2023/24 financial year and its
position at the year ended 3| March 2024. The Council is required to prepare an annual Statement of
Accounts by the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 (as amended), which require the
accounts to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices.

These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2023/24 (The Code), supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historic cost, modified by
the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments.

These Accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis and it has been assumed that the
functions of the Council will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Code
requires that local authorities prepare their accounts on a going concern basis as they can only be
discontinued under statutory prescription and there is no notice from Government to that effect.

1.2 Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or
received. In particular:

= Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the provision of
goods, is recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the service
recipient in accordance with the performance obligations in the contract.

=  Supplies and services are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed or received.
Where there is a gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they
are carried as inventories on the balance sheet.

=  Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when the payments
are made.

* Interest payable on borrowings and receivable on investments is accounted for
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the
relevant financial instrument, rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by contract.

*  Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet.
Where it is doubtful that debts will be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and
a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.

1.3 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on
notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that mature in 90 days
or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with
insignificant risk of change in value.

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council's cash management.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 32



Page 107

OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

1.4 Exceptional Items

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed separately, either
on the face of the CIES or in the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an
understanding of the Council’s financial performance.

1.5 Benefit Payments

Benefit payments are accounted for as they are incurred with no accrual being made for payments in
advance or arrears at the year-end. This policy is consistently applied each year and therefore does not
have a material effect on the year's accounts.

1.6 Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies, Estimates and Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material
error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future
years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices, where the
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions or other events
and conditions on the Council’s financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is
applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative
amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

1.7 Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record the
cost of holding non-current assets during the year:

= depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service;

=  revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off;

= amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service.

The Council is not required to raise Council Tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment
losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue, called
the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement
equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in accordance with
statutory guidance. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore
replaced by the MRP contribution in the General Fund balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with
the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the
two.

1.8 Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates

Billing authorities act as agents, collecting Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) on behalf of the
major preceptors (including government for NDR) and, as principals, collecting Council Tax and NDR
for themselves. Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate fund (i.e. the Collection
Fund) for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of Council Tax and NDR. Under the
legislative framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major preceptors and central

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 33



OFFICIAL Page 108 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL
government share proportionately the risks and rewards that the amount of Council Tax and NDR
collected could be less or more than predicted.

Accounting for Council Tax and NDR

The Council Tax and NDR income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
(CIES) is the Council’s share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations determine the
amount of Council Tax and NDR that must be included in the Council’s General Fund. Therefore, the
difference between the income included in the CIES and the amount required by regulation to be
credited to the General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a
reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves Statement (MiRS).

The Balance Sheet includes the Council’s share of the end of year balances in respect of Council Tax
and NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts, overpayments and prepayments
and appeals.

Where debtor balances for the above are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a
past event that payments due under the statutory arrangements will not be made (fixed or determinable
payments), the asset is written down and a charge made to the Collection Fund. The impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the revised future cash flows.

1.9 Employee Benefits
Benefits Payable during Employment

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They
include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave, paid sick leave, flexi and time off in lieu
(TOIL) as well as bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are
recognised as an expense for services in the year in which employees render service to the Council.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits (e.g. redundancy payments) are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the
Council to terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date, or an officer’s
decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are charged on an accruals
basis to the appropriate service, or where applicable the Corporate Service line in the CIES at the
earlier of when the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the Council
recognises the cost of restructuring.

Post-Employment Benefits (Pensions)
Employees of the Council are members of two separate pension schemes:

=  The Teachers' Pension Scheme, administered by Capita Teachers’ Pensions on behalf of
the Department for Education (DfE);

=  The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by Devon County Council.

Both schemes provide defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions) earned whilst
employees worked for the Council.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The arrangements for the teachers’ scheme mean that liabilities for these benefits cannot ordinarily be
identified specifically to the Council. The scheme is therefore accounted for as if it was a defined
contribution scheme and no liability for future payments of benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheet.
The Children’s and Educational Services line in the CIES is charged with the employer’s contributions
payable to Teachers’ Pensions in the year.

However, the Council is able to supplement teachers’ statutory retirement benefits with locally
determined decisions (discretionary payments). The future liability for such decisions is a true cost to

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 34



OFFICIAL Page 109 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL
the Council and is assessed annually by the Actuary and included within the total pension liability on the
Balance Sheet.

The Local Government Pension Scheme

All Council employees (with the exception of teachers) are eligible to join the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS). The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme.

The liabilities of the Devon Pension Scheme attributable to the Council are included in the Balance
Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, i.e. an assessment of the future payments
that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions
about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc. and projections of future earnings for current
employees.

Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 4.9%.

The assets of the Devon Pension Fund attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet at
their fair value:

=  quoted securities — current bid price;
* unquoted securities — professional estimate;
= unitised securities — current bid price
=  property — market value.
The change in the net pension liability is analysed into the following components:

=  Current service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this
year — allocated in the CIES to the services for which the employees worked.

=  Past service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or
curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years — debited to
the Surplus or Deficit on the provision of Services in the CIES as part of corporate items.

* Net interest on the net defined liability/(asset) i.e. net interest expense for the Council —
the change during the period on the net defined liability/(asset) that arises from the
passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in
the CIES Statement — this is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit
liability/(asset) during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payments.

=  Re-measurement of the return on plan assets — excluding amounts included in the net
interest on the net defined liability/(asset)- charged to the pension reserve as Other
Comeprehensive Income and Expenditure.

= Actuarial gains and losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events
have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the
actuaries have updated their assumptions — charged to Pensions Reserve as Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

=  Contributions paid to the Devon County Pension Fund — cash paid as employer’s
contributions to the Pension Fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an
expense.

=  Effect of the asset ceiling — the limitation on the Council’s ability to realise pension assets
through reductions in future employer’s contributions as result of minimum funding
requirements.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged
with the amount payable by the Council to the Pension Fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 35



OFFICIAL Page 110 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the MIRS this means that there
are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove notional debits and credits for
retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the Pension Fund and pensioners
and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year end. The negative balance that arises on the
Pension Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to
account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by
employees.

Discretionary Benefits

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the
event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of
staff, including teachers as outlined above, are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and
accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.

1.10 Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events that occur between the end of the reporting
period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be
identified:

= those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period
— the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events; and

= those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the
Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of
events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the
events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of
Accounts.

1.1l Financial Instruments
Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of a financial instrument. They are initially measured at fair value and are carried
at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in
the comprehensive income and expenditure statement (CIES) for interest payable are based on the
carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of
the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised.

Non-derivative financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the balance
sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest charged to the CIES is
the amount payable for the year according to the loan agreement.

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the CIES, regulations allow the impact on the
general fund balance to be spread over future years. The Council has a policy of spreading the gain or
loss over the term that was remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or discount
receivable when it was repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the CIES to the net charge
required against the General Fund balance is managed by a transfer to or from the financial instrument
adjustment account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Financial Assets

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 36



OFFICIAL Page 111 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL
Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that reflects the
business model for holding the financial assets and their cash flow characteristics. There are three main
classes of financial assets measured at:

* amortised cost;
= fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and;

The Council’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows. Non-derivative
financial assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose contractual payments
are not solely payment of principal and interest (i.e. where the cash flows do not take the form of a
basic debt instrument).

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council
becomes a party to the contracted provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair
value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES for interest receivable are based on the carrying
amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the
financial assets held by the Council, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the
outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the CIES is the amount
receivable for the year in the loan agreement.

Any gains or losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to the Financing
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.

Expected Credit Loss Model

The Council recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised cost, either
on a |2-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also applies to lease receivables and
contract assets. Only lifetime losses are recognised for trade receivables (debtors) held by the Council.

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not take
place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial part in
assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was initially recognised,
losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased significantly or remains low, losses
are assessed on the basis of 12-month expected losses.

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the balance sheet when the Council
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and
carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they arise in the surplus or deficit on
the provision of services.

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Assets

Fair value of an asset is the price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurements of the Council’s
financial assets are based on the following techniques:

= instruments with quoted market prices — the market price;
=  other instruments with fixed and determinable payments — discounted cash flow analysis.

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following three
levels:

= Level | inputs — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the
Council can access at the measurement date.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 37



OFFICIAL Page 112 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL
= Level 2 inputs — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are
observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly.

= Level 3 inputs — unobservable inputs for the asset.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to the financing
and investment income and expenditure line in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement.

Financial Derivatives

Financial derivatives are measured at FVPL and therefore all gains and losses are taken to the Financing
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.

.12 Revenue Recognition

With the adoption of accounting standard IFRS 15, revenue is defined as income arising as a result of the
Council’s normal operating activities and where income arises from contracts with service recipients it
is recognised when or as the Council has satisfied a performance obligation by transferring a promised
good or service to the service recipient.

Revenue is measured as the amount of the transaction price which is allocated to that performance
obligation. Where the Council is acting as an agent of another organisation the amounts collected for
that organisation are excluded from revenue.

The analysis carried out to date indicates that there will be no material impact on the revenue
recognised in relation to the significant contracts entered into by the Council. A review will take place
each year to identify whether any disclosure is necessary.

1.13 Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments, or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions
and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable assurance that:

=  the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments; and
= the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the CIES until the conditions attached to
the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future
economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution
are required to be consumed by the recipient as stated, or future economic benefits or service potential
must be returned to the transferor (grant provider).

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in
the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to
the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific
Grant Income (non-ringfenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the CIES.

Where capital grants are credited to the CIES, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the
MiRS. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital
Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account.
Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account
once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

.14 Joint Operations

Joint operations are arrangements where the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement. The activities
undertaken by the Council in conjunction with other joint operators involve the use of the assets and

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 38



OFFICIAL Page 113 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

resources of those joint operators. In relation to its interest in a joint operation, the Council as a joint
operator recognises:

= its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

= its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;

= its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation;
= its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation;

= its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

.15 Interests in Companies and Other Entities

An assessment of the Council’s interests has been carried out during the year in accordance with the
Code of Practice to determine the group relationships that exist. Inclusion in the group is dependent
upon the extent of the Council’s control over an entity. The Council controls an entity when it is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity. The Council does have a number of interests in
companies and other entities, none of which would be material on consolidation due to the elimination
of group transactions. Thus the production of group accounts is not required for these interests.

.16 Investment Properties

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The
definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production
of goods.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, defined as the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually
according to market conditions at year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES. The same treatment is applied to gains and
losses on disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the financing and investment
income line and result in a gain for the General Fund balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains
and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund balance.
The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the general fund balance in the MIRS and posted to
the capital adjustment account and the capital receipts reserve.

.17 Heritage Assets

The Box is responsible for over 800,000 artefacts and a proportion of the collections have been held on
display in the museum, council buildings and other historic sites. These collections span a wide range of
fine and decorative art, archaeology, world cultures, social and natural history and local and maritime
history. These are held in support of the primary objective of the Council to ensure that these objects
are preserved in trust for future generations because of their cultural, environmental or historical
associations.

The Council classifies its Heritage Assets into five main categories — historic buildings and monuments,
fine art and world cultures collections, gold, silver and jewellery, special books and natural history,
decorative art and other miscellany collections which are being formally recognised on the balance Sheet
on the basis of their insurance valuation.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 39



OFFICIAL Page 114 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Heritage Assets are recognised and measured (including the treatment of revaluation gains and losses) in
accordance with the Council’s accounting policies on Property, Plant and Equipment. However, some of
the measurement rules are relaxed in relation to Heritage Assets, detailed as follows.

Where a historic building is being used significantly for the provision of services (for example Mount
Edgcumbe House or The Box) this will be recognised as Other Land and Buildings rather than as a
Heritage Asset.

The Council’s collections are accounted for as follows:

Historic Buildings and Monuments
Historic buildings and monuments classified as Heritage Assets include Smeaton’s Tower.

The list is relatively static and acquisitions and donations are rare. Where they do occur
acquisitions would be initially recognised at cost and donations would be recognised at
insurance value which is based on market values.

As these are deemed to have an indefinite life, the Council does not consider it
appropriate to charge depreciation.

Fine Art and World Cultures Collection

The Council has a large and important fine art collection comprising paintings,
watercolours, drawings, prints, miniatures and sculptures. Highlights include the
outstanding Cottonian Collection and works by local artists such as Sir Joshua Reynolds,
and this represents the largest fine arts collection in the south west. The world cultures
collection consists of objects collected from foreign countries spanning the globe.

Acquisitions are made by purchase or donation. Acquisitions are initially recognised at
cost and donations are recognised at insurance values, usually based on valuations
provided by external valuers and with reference to appropriate commercial markets using
the most relevant information from sales at auction.

As these items are deemed to have an indefinite life, the Council does not consider it
appropriate to charge depreciation.

Gold, Silver and Jewellery Collection

The collection of gold, silver and jewellery includes local pieces dating from the |8th to
20th century and is representative of the thriving local community. Key pieces in the
collection include the Eddystone Lighthouse Salt and the Drake Cup.

Acquisitions are made by purchase or donation. Acquisitions are initially recognised at
cost and donations are recognised at insurance values, usually based on valuations
provided by external valuers and with reference to appropriate commercial markets using
the most relevant information from sales at auction.

Special Books Collection

The Libraries Service maintains a collection of special books including The Ptolemy Atlas,
Naval Collection and Moxon Collection.

Acquisitions are made by purchase or donation. Acquisitions are initially recognised at
cost and donations are recognised at insurance values, usually based on valuations
provided by external valuers and with reference to appropriate commercial markets using
the most relevant information from sales at auction.

Natural History, Decorative Art and other Miscellany Collections

This collection is made up of a wide range of Archaeological, social & maritime, imagery
and natural history collections.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 40



Page 115

OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Acquisitions are made by purchase or donation. Acquisitions are initially recognised at
cost and donations are recognised at insurance values, usually based on valuations
provided by external valuers and with reference to appropriate commercial markets using
the most relevant information from sales at auction.

The Council’s policy for the acquisition, preservation and management of museum assets can be found
on The Box website.

The carrying amount of Heritage Assets are reviewed on a regular basis to assess whether there has
been any evidence of impairment caused by physical deterioration or breakage, or where doubts arise as
to its authenticity. Any impairment is recognised and measured in accordance with the Council’s general
policies on impairments — see note 1.20 in this summary of significant accounting policies. If there is any
occasion where a Heritage Asset is disposed of, the proceeds of such items are accounted for in
accordance with the Council’s general provisions for the disposal of property, plant and equipment.
Disposal proceeds are disclosed separately in the Notes to the Financial Statements (see note |5.4) and
are accounted for in accordance with statutory accounting requirements relating to capital expenditure
and capital receipts — see note .20 in this summary of significant accounting policies.

1.18 Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the value of an asset will be recovered principally through a sale rather
than through its continuing use, and the asset is being actively marketed, it is reclassified as an Asset
Held for Sale. The asset is revalued and held at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell.
Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

Assets that are no longer used for operational purposes but are not actively being marketed are
revalued and reclassified as surplus but still retained within Property, Plant and Equipment and
transferred to Assets Held for Sale only when a decision is made to actively market the asset.

1.19 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered separately
for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return for
payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of specific assets.

The Council as the Lessee (Leased in Assets)
Finance Leases

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of
the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation
to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the authority are added to the carrying amount of the asset.
Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are
charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. Lease payments are apportioned
between:

= a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment — applied
to write down the lease liability, and

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 4]



OFFICIAL Page 116

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL
= afinance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies
applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is
shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the
authority at the end of the lease period).

The authority is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment
losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds
towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements.

Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue contribution
in the General Fund balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the capital adjustment account in
the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

Operating Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the CIES as an expense of the services benefitting
from use of the leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the
life of the lease; even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent-free period at
the commencement of the lease).

Schools may make their own arrangements for operating leases using income from their schools budget
share. These are included within total lease payments.

The Council as the Lessor (Assets Leased Out)
Operating Leases

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the
asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the (Surplus)/Deficit on Continuing
Operations in the CIES. Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease.

IFRS 16 Leases

CIPFA/LASAAC have deferred implementation of IFRS16 for Local Government to | April 2024. IFRS
|6 will impact the way in which the council reports operating leases. Under IFRS 16 the Council will be
required to recognise a right of use asset and a lease liability on the Balance Sheet (subject to certain
exemptions); currently the Council includes these costs as operating lease payments in the CIES.

Under IFRS 16 a lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an
asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time. A contract can be (or contain) a lease only if the
underlying asset is ‘identified’. Having the right to control the use of an identified asset means having the
right to direct, and obtain all of the economic benefits from, the use of that asset. These rights must be
in place for a period of time and/or a specified amount of use.

Types of assets that may be suitable for leasing include the following:
=  Transport (vehicles and cars);
=  Equipment;
*  Property;
= Land;
=  Technology (including computers, telephony and other communications equipment);
*  Plant,
*  Furniture, Fixtures and Fittings,

=  Leisure Equipment; and

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 42



OFFICIAL Page 117

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

=  Managed Service Contracts (embedded leases)
Under IFRS16 there are two types of leases; non-residual based, and residual based.

Non-residual based: there is no assumed residual value, repayments cover all the principal with interest,
there are no return conditions and there is an entitlement to any sales proceeds.

Residual based: there is an assumed residual value, repayments are the principle with interest (exclude
the residual value amount), there are return conditions and there is no entitlement to sales proceeds.

Recognition Exemptions

There are two specific exemptions for lessees from applying the detailed accounting requirements to
transactions that would meet the definition of a lease:

Short-term leases

Leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less at the commencement date. Any lease that contains
a purchase option is automatically excluded from the definition. Contracts that might meet the criteria
as short-term include property tenancies with notice periods of less than 12 months, hire agreements
for vehicles, plant and equipment.

Leases where the underlying asset is of low value.

The Code allows authorities to elect not to apply the lease accounting provisions to leases where the
underlying asset is of low value, even if the impact of doing so would be material. Leases that have an annual
value of less than £10k are deemed to be low value.

1.20 Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during
more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised
on an accrual basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential
associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The Council operates a policy of assets capitalisation (including donated assets) with a minimum asset
value of £10,000 for land and property and £5,000 for vehicle, plant and equipment. However, there is
no minimum level applied for capital spend incurred by individual schools financed from capital grants.

Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:
= the purchase price;

= any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management;

= the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the
site on which it is located.

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction.
Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement basis:

= infrastructure and community assets — depreciated historical cost;

= assets under construction — historical cost;

= surplus assets — fair value;

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 43



OFFICIAL Page 118

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

* the Tamar Toll Bridge - depreciated replacement cost;
= all other assets — current value in their existing use.

Where there is no market based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an asset,
depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair value.

Assets that Local Authorities intend to hold in perpetuity and have no determinable useful life and may
have restrictions in their disposal are classified as community assets, and in this instance are generally
valued at a nominal £1.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current or fair value are revalued regularly and are reviewed at
the year-end to ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end to determine whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the
asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets revalued as part of the 5 year
rolling programme by the systematic allocation of their remaining depreciable amounts over their useful
lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life such as freehold land and
certain Community Assets, and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction).
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the useful life of the asset as determined by the
valuer. Depreciation is charged to the CIES based on values as at the start of the year. No depreciation
is applied in year of acquisition or construction. The depreciation periods currently used are:

Operational Buildings:

Car parks 5 to 50 years
Schools 5 to 50 years
Other buildings 5 to 60 years
Tamar Bridge 120 years
Infrastructure 20 to 40 years
Vehicles and Plant 5 to 25 years

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components whose cost is significant in
relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.

Componentisation
The Council’s componentisation policy is as follows:
= Materiality Level

Assets with a building value of £2.5m or above are considered for componentisation on
an individual asset basis. Consideration is also given to groups of similar assets that
individually are below the materiality level for componentisation but may collectively be
material.

* Significance

Components with a value of 20% or above of the overall asset value are significant
components.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 44



OFFICIAL Page 119 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

In terms of schools, components are defined as separate school blocks or buildings and
componentisation applied where the values meet the 20% criteria.

= Different Asset Life

The difference in life between the host asset and the component must be over 5 years for
componentisation to be recorded.

Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an asset held for sale. The
asset is revalued at year-end before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair
value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is
posted to the other operating expenditure line in the CIES. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to
the amount of any previously recognised losses in the surplus or deficit on the provision of services.
Depreciation is not charged on assets held for sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale, they are reclassified back to
non-current assets and revalued at year-end. Any subsequent move in value up or down will be treated
in the same way as any other asset revaluation.

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as assets held for sale.

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet
(wWhether property, plant and equipment or assets held for sale) is written off to the other operating
expenditure line in the CIES as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are
credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the
gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any
revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the revaluation reserve are transferred to the capital
adjustment account.

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts and are
required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve. Capital receipts can then only be used for:

"  new capital investment;

= set aside to reduce the Council’s underlying need to borrow (the Capital Financing
Requirement).

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current assets is
fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the
Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Highways Infrastructure Assets

Highways infrastructure assets include carriageways, footways and cycle tracks, structures (e.g. bridges),
street lighting, street furniture (e.g. illuminated traffic signals, bollards), traffic management systems and
land which together form a single integrated network.

= Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition or replacement of components of the network is
capitalised on an accrual basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably.

=  Measurement

Highways infrastructure assets are generally measured at depreciated historical cost.
Plymouth City Council was incorporated as a unitary authority on the | April 1998 and
the highways infrastructure assets was transferred from Devon County Council and

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 45



OFFICIAL Page 120 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

recognised in the Balance Sheet at nil value. This means that the current highways
infrastructure asset value only represents capital expenditure that has incurred since that
time. Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by the carrying
amount of the asset being written down to the recoverable amount.

= Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on the parts of the highways infrastructure assets that are
subject to deterioration or depletion and by the systematic allocation of their depreciable
amounts over their useful lives. Depreciation is charged on a straight-line basis. Annual
depreciation is the depreciation amount allocated each year.

* Disposals and Derecognition

When a component of the highways infrastructure asset is disposed of or
decommissioned, the carrying amount of the component in the Balance Sheet is written
off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if
any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying
value of the asset at the time of disposal). The written-off amounts of disposals are not a
charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current assets is fully provided for under
separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are transferred to the capital
adjustment account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement.

.21 Private Finance Initiative (PFl) and Similar Contracts

PFl and similar contracts are agreements to receive services, where the responsibility for making
available the Property, Plant and Equipment needed to provide the services passes to the PFl contractor.
As the Council is deemed to control the services that are provided under its PFl schemes, and as
ownership of the Property, Plant and Equipment will pass to the Council at the end of the contracts for
no additional charge, the Council carries the assets used under the contracts on its Balance Sheet as
part of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The Council’s original recognition of PFl assets are based on the cost of construction or purchase cost
of the property and is balanced by the recognition of a liability for amounts due to the scheme operator
to pay for the capital investment.

Non-current assets recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and depreciated in the same way as
Property, Plant and Equipment owned by the Council.

The amounts payable to the PFl operators each year are analysed into five elements:
= fair value of the services received during the year;
= finance costs — an interest charge on the outstanding Balance Sheet liability;

=  contingent rent — increases in the amount to be paid for the property arising during the
contract;

=  payment towards finance liability — applied to write down the Balance Sheet liability
towards the PFl operator;

= lifecycle costs — costs to maintain assets used to operationally acceptable standard.
Schools PFI Credits

The Council receives a grant towards the cost of the PFl scheme. The grant is allocated to meet the
finance costs in the first instance. The amount required to meet the finance lease liability, interest and

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 46



Page 121

OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

contingent rent charge is allocated to the Taxation and Non-Specific grant income in the CIES. The
remaining grant is treated as a specific grant and included within the Children’s and Education service
line.

Government grants received for PFl schemes, in excess of current levels of net expenditure, are carried
forward as an earmarked reserve to fund future contract expenditure.

South West Devon Energy from Waste (EfW) PFI

For the Energy from Waste Scheme there is the additional element of deferred credit from the write
down of the long-term liability for the expected third party income received during the year.

1.22 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council an obligation that probably
requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits, usually a cash payment, or service potential, and
a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made, but where the timing of the transfer is
uncertain.

Provisions are charged to the appropriate service in the year that the Council becomes aware of its
obligation. It can only be used for the purpose for which it was established.

Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year. Where it becomes less than
probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than
anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from
another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if
it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the authority settles the obligation.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible obligation
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a
provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in note 35.2.
Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible asset whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Council.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts, note
35.1, where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

1.23 Reserves

The Council maintains a number of reserves which may be required for statutory purposes or set up
voluntarily to earmark resources for future spending plans or to cover contingencies. Reserves are
created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the MiRS.

When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in

that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the CIES. The reserve is
then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the MiRS so that there is no net charge against
Council Tax for the expenditure.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 47



Page 122

OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial
instruments, local taxation, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for
the authority — these reserves are explained in the relevant policies.

.24 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS)

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that does
not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service
in the CIES in the year. Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from
existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the MiRS from the General Fund Balance to the
Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged so that there is no impact on the
level of Council Tax.

1.25 Accounting for Schools

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom confirms that the balance
of control for Local Authority maintained schools lies with the Local Authority. The Code also stipulates
that those schools’ assets, liabilities, reserves and cash flows are recognised in the Local Authority
financial statements. Therefore, schools’ transactions, cash flows and balances are recognised in each of
the financial statements of the Council as if they were the transactions, cash flows and balances of the
Council. The Council has the following types of maintained schools under its control:

*  community; and
=  voluntary controlled.

School non-current assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet where the Council directly owns the
assets or where the school or the school governing body own the assets but the Council is deemed to
exercise control.

When a maintained school converts to an Academy, Voluntary Aided or Foundation Trust/Foundation;
the school’s non-current assets held on the Council’s Balance Sheet are treated as a disposal. The
carrying value of the asset is written off to Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure in the
CIES. Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the
Capital Adjustment Account.

The written off asset value is not a charge against the General Fund, as the cost of non-current asset
disposals resulting from schools transferring to Academy status is fully provided for under separate
arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from
the General Fund Balance in the MiRS.

The income and expenditure is included within the People directorate in the CIES. The reserves are
included in the Education Reserve balance, which forms part of the Council’s Useable reserves.

1.26 Value Added Tax

Value Added Tax payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from His
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.

1.27 Fair Value Measurement of Non-Financial Assets

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investment properties
and some of its financial instruments such as equity shareholdings at fair value at each reporting date.
Fair value is the price that would be receivable to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 48



Page 123

OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

a) in the principal market for the asset or liability; or

b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.
The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Council takes into account a market
participants ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Council uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the Council’s financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, as follows:

Level | — Quoted Prices (Unadjusted)

There is no active market for assets that the council can access at the measurement date, therefore,
there will not be any non-financial assets valued in this way.

Level 2 - Significant Observable Inputs

The Current Value (Fair Value) for the surplus and investment property portfolio has been based on the
market approach using comparable evidence from recent property transactions in the Plymouth area
and by analysing other relevant information. Market Conditions are such that similar properties are
actively purchased and sold with the level of observable inputs significant. This has led to the properties
being categorised at Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

In relation to the housing sites, each of the housing sites have been marketed on the open market by
Plymouth City Council, with offers received subject to various conditions (including but not limited to
planning or category of those specifications). These offers have been adjusted accordingly to reflect the
individual conditions.

Level 3 - Significant Unobservable Inputs

Assets categorised at Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy have been assessed where there is a significant
level of unobservable inputs. Where there is no reasonably available market evidence available in the
Plymouth area to determine the Current Value (Fair Value) the Valuer will use considered assumptions
such as the potential yields, rental growth and occupancy levels.

Highest and Best Use

In estimating the fair value of the Council’s surplus and investment properties, the highest and best use
of the properties is their current use.

Valuation Techniques

There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for surplus and investment
properties.

1.28 Rounding Convention

Unless otherwise stated the convention used in these Financial Statements is to round amounts to the
nearest thousand pounds. All totals are the rounded additions of unrounded figures, and therefore may,
from time-to-time, not be the strict sums of the figures presented in the text or tables.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 49



Page 124

OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

2 Material Items of Income and Expenditure

This note identifies material items of income and expenditure that are not disclosed on the face of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The Council has no material items which need to
be disclosed.

The Council took the decision to make an early payment of £72m towards the Devon LGPS pension
deficit. This was made to generate ongoing revenue savings over 21 years. In the draft accounts this
transaction was treated as capital. However, following extensive third party legal and accounting advice
and discussion with our auditors, we have now accounted for the transaction as a revenue transaction.
The revenue treatment of this transaction means that the Council’s income for 2019/20, 2020/21,
2021/22, 2022/23 and 2023/24 was insufficient to meet its expenditure. Due to this change in accounting
treatment it has been necessary for the Council to request a retrospective Capitalisation Direction from
Government.

3 Ciritical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

In applying the accounting policies set out in note |, the Council has had to make certain judgements
about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. The critical judgement
made in the Statement of Accounts is:

Tamar Bridge Valuation — Departure from the Code of Practice

The Tamar Bridge is a toll bridge that is jointly owned by Cornwall Council and Plymouth City Council.
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting requires infrastructure assets to be accounted for
using depreciated historic cost, however both Councils use depreciated replacement cost (DRC) to
value the asset. This is because the Tamar Bridge is an income generating asset and the income
generated is used to maintain its upkeep. It is therefore treated as a separate class of asset and the
reader of the Council’s accounts might reasonably expect there to be a relationship between the
income raised in tolls and the cost of maintaining and ultimately replacing the bridge. The current DRC
value of the bridge is £83.084m, if the bridge was valued at its depreciated historic cost in line with
other infrastructure assets the value would be £27.337m, so would therefore be misleading to use
historic cost as a basis for valuation.

The Council has concluded that, taking account of the above, the financial statements present a true and
fair view of the Council’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows and has complied with
the Code in all other respects.

Pension Asset Ceiling

In calculating the net pensions asset, the Council has made a judgement that the statutory framework
for setting employer’s contributions under the Local Government Pension Scheme constitutes a
minimum funding requirement. As a result, the Council’s ability to realise the full economic benefits of
the net pensions asset calculated under the Accounting Code’s provisions for post-employment benefits
through reductions in future employer’s contributions is limited. An asset ceiling therefore applies.

The fact that the Council has a right under the current funding strategy for the Scheme to recover a
smaller surplus of £89.873m means that the asset ceiling has reduced what would otherwise be the net
pensions asset of £65.662m to a liability of £64.262m.

The practical effect of this is to move the basis of measurement for the net pensions asset/liability closer
to the assumptions made in the triennial valuation of the Scheme under which the employer’s
contributions were set by the Scheme’s actuaries. It does not indicate that the Council has paid excess
amounts into the Scheme that it will never be able to recover.

4 Accounting Standards that have been Issued but Not Yet Adopted

Where a new standard has been published but has not yet been adopted by the Code, the Council is
required to disclose information relating to the impact of these accounting changes. This requirement

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 50



Page 125

OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

applies to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) that have not been applied in the 2023/24
Code and that came into effect on or before | January 2024.

For the 2024/25 financial year, the Council must implement IFRS 16 Leases, applying the provisions as
they have been adopted in the 2024/25 Accounting Code.

The main impact of IFRS 16 will relate to property that the Council holds under operating leases, for
which assets and liabilities are not recognised and rents are generally charged as revenue expenditure
when they are payable. Under IFRS 16, the accounting treatment for all leases (except those with a term
of less than 12 months and those involving low value items) will be to recognise a right-of-use asset in
the Balance Sheet, measuring the value of the Council’s right to use the property over the remaining
term of the lease. The Balance Sheet will also include a liability for the rents payable before the lease
expires.

When rents are paid, they will be applied partly to write down the liability and partly charged as interest
on the outstanding liability. The cost of the right-of-use asset will be reflected in depreciation charges in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. However, statutory arrangements are in place
that will allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be unchanged — i.e. that the overall charge for
each year will be the rents payable in that year.

Based on the minimum lease payments outstanding at 3|1 March 2024 disclosed in note 32, it is
estimated that the transition will result in the recognition of new assets and liabilities in the Balance
Sheet.

Apart from IFRS16 there are no changes in accounting requirements for 2024/25 that are anticipated to
have a material impact on the Council’s financial performance or financial position.

5 Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

In preparing the Statement of Accounts, there are areas where estimates have been made. Estimates are
made taking into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. These include
the amount of arrears that will not be collected (based on past experience of collection for the different
types of debt); useful lives and valuations of properties which are estimated by qualified valuers (for
further details see note 1.20); and the liability for future pension payments, which carries the most
significant risk of material adjustment.

Consequences
Item Uncertainties (if actual results differ
from assumptions)

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions The impact of a change in the
depends on a number of complex judgements actuarial assumptions will be to
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which increase or decrease the net
salaries are projected to increase, changes in pension liability shown in the
retirement ages, mortality rates and expected balance sheet and the cost

Pensions returns on pension fund assets. shown in the CIES.

Liability Barnett Waddingham are the consultant actuaries The changes do not have an

for the pension scheme providing expert advice
about the assumptions to be applied. Those

assumptions are detailed in note 34 to the accounts.

The carrying value of this long-term liability at the
end of the reporting period was £64.372m.

impact on the Council’s General
Fund position as the Council is
not required to fund such non-
cash charges from council tax
receipts.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

51




Page 126

OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

6 Events After the Balance Sheet Reporting Period

The Council’s Section 151 Officer authorised the Statement of Accounts on 31 May 2024. Events taking
place after this date are not reflected in the financial statements. Where events taking place before this
date provided information about conditions existing at 31 March 2024, the figures in the financial
statements and notes have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact of this
information.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 52



OFFICIAL

7 Expenditure and Funding Analysis

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources (government grants, rents, council tax and
business rates) by Local Authorities in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the Council’s directorates. Income and

2022/23
Directorate
Total
Reported for
Outturn

£000
5732
(46,013)
48,769
163,232
(545)
26,575

2022/23
Adjustment
to Arrive at

the Net
Expenditure
Chargeable

to the

General

Fund

Balances

£000
0
5,376
(10,961)
0
2
(52)

2022/23
Net
Expenditure
Chargeable
to the
General
Fund
Balances

£000
5732
(40,637)
37,808
163,232
(543)
26,523

2022/23
Adjustments
Between the
Funding and
Accounting

Basis

£000
821
8,416
2,370
14,805
68
38,277

2022/23
Net
Expenditure
to the CIES

£000
6,553
(32221
40,178
178,037
(475)
64,800

Executive Office

Corporate Items

Customer and Corporate Services

People Directorate

Public Health

Place Directorate

expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the CIES.

2023/24
Directorate
Total
Reported for
Outturn

£000
6,739
(48,298)
53,682
174,640
2,802
28,875

2023/24
Adjustment
to Arrive at

the Net
Expenditure
Chargeable

to the

General

Fund

Balances

£000
0
11,801
(13,974)
(1
0
(593)

2023/24
Net
Expenditure
Chargeable
to the
General
Fund
Balances

£000
6,739
(36,497)
39,708
174,639
2,802
28,282

2023/24
Adjustments
Between the
Funding and
Accounting

Basis

£000
(258)
(1,276)
3,746
8,950
2516
3,457

2023/24
Net
Expenditure
to the CIES

£000
6,481
(37.773)
43,454
183,589
5318
31,739

/2T oabed

| rsol el omns]  earss| 256872 | NeeCostorserice 2540 | _@renl asen] iniss | anse

(172,721) (43,546) (216,267)  Other Income and Expenditure (219,728) (33,391) (253,119)
(Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of
40,605 | Service

Opening General Fund and Earmarked

(35,670) Balance at 31 March (16,276)
(Surplus)/Deficit on General Fund and
19,394 Earmarked Balance in Year (4,055)

Closing General Fund Balance at 31
16,276 March

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 53



OFFICIAL Page 128 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

8 Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

Adjustments between funding and accounting basis:

Net Change

Adjustments from General Fund to Adjustments for the Other Total
Arrive at the CIES Amounts LIS L Pensions Differences Adjustments
Purposes Adjustments

2023/24 £000 £000 £000 £000
Executive Office 36 (290) 4) (258)
Corporate Items 599 944 (2,819) (1,276)
Customer and Corporate Services 7,005 (1,071) (2,188) 3,746
People Directorate 7,167 (2,981) 4,764 8,950
Public Health 4,144 (268) (1,360) 2,516
Place Directorate 14,142 (2,030) (8,655) 3,457

Net Cost of Service | monl el (026 17,135

Other Income and Expenditure from the

Expenditure and Funding Analysis 49,101 (1,520) (80,972) (33,391)
Difference Between General Fund
Surplus or Deficit and CIES Surplus
or Deficit on the Provision of Service 82,194 7,216
. Net Change

Adjustments from General Fund to Adjustm.ents for the Other Total
Arrive at the CIES Amounts for Capital Pensions Differences Adjustments

Purposes Adjustments
2022/23 £000 £000 £000 £000
Executive Office 29 265 527 821
Corporate Items 346 28 8,042 8,416
Customer and Corporate Services 4,308 1,298 (3,236) 2,370
People Directorate 8,729 3,372 2,704 14,805
Public Health 269 274 (475) 68
Place Directorate 42,030 2,533 (6,286) 38,277

Net Cost of Service 55,711 7,770 1,276 64,757

Other Income and Expenditure from the
Expenditure and Funding Analysis 37,669 2,432 (83,647) (43,546)

Difference Between General Fund

Surplus or Deficit and CIES Surplus
or Deficit on the Provision of Service 82,371

Adjustment for Capital Purposes

Adjustments for Capital Purposes — this column adds in depreciation, impairment and revaluation
gains/losses in the services line and for:

* Other Operating Expenditure — adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income
on disposal of assets and the amounts written off for those assets.

* Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure — the statutory charges for
capital financing i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue contributions are

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 54



OFFICIAL Page 129 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

deducted from other income and expenditure as these are not chargeable under generally
accepted accounting practices.

= Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure — capital grants are
adjusted for income not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices.
Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivable in the year to those receivable
without conditions, or for which conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The
Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income and Expenditure line is credited with capital
grants receivable in the year without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied in
the year.

Net Charge for the Pension Adjustments

Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS19 Employee Benefits
pension related expenditure and income:

= Services — this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by
the Council as allowed by statute and the replacement with current service costs and past
service costs

* Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure — the net interest on the
defined benéefit liability is charged to the CIES.

Other Differences

Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the CIES and amounts payable/receivable to be
recognised under statue:

* Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure — the other differences
column recognises adjustments to the General Fund for the timing differences for
premiums and discounts.

* Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure — the charge
represents the difference between what is chargeable under statutory regulations for
Council Tax and NDR that was projected to be received at the start of the year and the
income recognised under generally accepted accounting practices in the Code. This is a
timing difference as any difference will be brought forward in future surpluses or deficits
on the Collection Fund.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 55



OFFICIAL Page 130

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

9 Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature

The Council’s expenditure and income is analysed as follows:

Expenditure/Income 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000

Expenditure:

Employee benefits expenses 142,074 128,320
Other service expenses 419,574 475,503
Depreciation, amortisation, impairment 74,155 44,181
Interest payments 18,931 23,498
Income:

Fees, charges and other service income (134,751) (137,772)
Interest and investment income (16,236) (6,204)
Income from council tax, non-domestic rates, district rate income (183,403) (192,523)

Government grants and contributions (279,739) (355,314)

Total Income 691,813

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Service 40,605 m

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 56



OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

10 Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis Under Regulations

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure recognised by the Council in the year in accordance
with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Council to meet future capital and
revenue expenditure.

2022/23 2023/24

Capital Capital Movemen G Capital Capital Movemen
Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis Under Regulations General apita apital t chera apita apital t
Receipt Grants . | Receipt Grants .
Fund U li in Fund U li in
Balance S nappiie Unusable un S nappiie Unusable
Reserve d Balance | Reserve d
Reserves Reserves
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account:
Reversal of Items Debited or Credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (39,697) 0 0 39,697  (44,754) 0 0 44,754
Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment (13,965) 0 0 13,965 18,802 0 0 (18,802)
Movements in the market value of Investment Properties (15,198) 0 0 15,198  (12,946) 0 0 12,946
Amortisation of intangible assets 2) 0 0 2 0 0 0 0
Capital grants and contributions 36,708 0 (36,708) 0 80,212 0 (80,212) 0
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (12,479) 0 0 12,479  (23,193) 0 0 23,193
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (11,179) 3) 0 11,182  (20,320) (1,196) 0 21,516
Deferred credit Energy from Waste 2,324 0 0 (2,324) 2,324 0 0 (2,324)
Insertion of Items not Debited or Credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement:
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment 17,995 542 0 (18,537) 18,425 757 0 (19,182)
Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund 704 0 0 (704) 273 0 0 (273)
Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve:
Other Capital Receipts credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 2,590 (2,593) 0 3 196 (196) 0 0
(32,199
Total C/FWD ) (2,054) (36,708) 70,961 19,019 (635) (80,212) 61,828

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 57

TET abed



OFFICIAL

Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis Under Regulations

Total BIFWD

Long term debtor repayments in year

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure
Adjustments Involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account:

Use of the Capital Grants unapplied Account to finance new capital expenditure
Adjustments Involving the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account:

Amount by which finance costs charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
are different from finance costs chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements

Adjustments Involving the Pooled Investments Fund Adjustment Account

Amount by which Financial Instruments charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement are different from amounts chargeable in the year in accordance of statutory
requirements

Adjustments Involving the Pensions Reserve:

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement

Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in the year
Adjustments Involving the Collection Fund Adjustment Account:

Amount by which council tax income credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement is different from council tax income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory
requirements

Adjustment involving the Dedicated Schools Grant Adjustment Account:

Transfer of deficit on the Dedicated Schools Grant to the Dedicated Schools Grant Adjustment
Account

Adjustment Involving the Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjustment Account

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement on an accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance
with statutory requirements

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

General
Fund
Balance

£000
(32,199)
0
0

617

(5,725)

(25,970)
15,838

26,487

(259)

Capital
Receipts
Reserve

£000

(2,054)
(814)
2,643

Capital
Grants
Unapplied
£000
(36,708)
0
0
13,150
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Movement

in
Unusable
Reserves

£000
70,961
814
(2,643)

(13,150)

(617)

5,725

25,970
(15,838)

(26,487)

259

General
Fund
Balance

£000
19,019
0
0

620

(652)

(11,751)
18,968

(5,606)

(4.253)

(89)

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Capital
Receipts
Reserve

£000
(635)
(2,845)
6,348

Capital
Grants
Unapplied
£000
(80,212)
0
0
79,044
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

2022/23 2023/24

Movement

in
Unusable
Reserves

£000
61,828
2,845
(6,348)

(79,044)

(620)

652

11,751
(18,968)

5,606

4,253

89

58

ZsT abed



OFFICIAL Page 133 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

General Fund Balances

The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of an Council are required to be paid
and out of which all liabilities of the Council are to be met, except to the extent that statutory rules
might provide otherwise. These rules can also specify the financial year in which liabilities and payments
should impact on the General Fund Balance, which is not necessarily in accordance with proper
accounting practice. The General Fund Balance therefore summarises the resources that the Council is
statutorily empowered to spend on its services or on capital investment (or the deficit of resources that
the council is required to recover) at the end of the financial year.

Capital Receipts Reserve

The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets, which are
restricted by statute from being used other than to fund new capital expenditure or to be set aside to
finance historical capital expenditure. The balance on the reserve shows the resources that have yet to
be applied for these purposes at the year-end.

Capital Grants Unapplied

The Capital Grants Unapplied Account (Reserve) holds the grants and contributions received towards
capital projects for which the council has met the conditions that would otherwise require repayment of
the monies but which have yet to be applied to meet expenditure. The balance is restricted by grant
terms as to the capital expenditure against which it can be applied and/or the financial year in which this
can take place.

Il Other Operating Expenditure

This contains corporate items of income and expenditure that cannot reasonably be allocated or
apportioned to services.

Other Operating Expenditure 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000
Levies 119 121
Gains/losses on the disposal of non-current assets 10,388 18,186
Pension administration costs 556 571
Other income * (1,799) (1,181)

* Other income generally relates to capital receipts in year for which no asset can be identified on the Balance Sheet, such as repaid
discounts from former Council House sales and income received under the stock transfer agreement relating to VAT shelter receipts.

12 Movement in Earmarked Reserves

This note sets out the amounts set aside in earmarked reserves to provide financing for future
expenditure plans and policy initiatives.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 59



OFFICIAL

Page 134

Transfers to

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Transfers from

2023724 31 March 2023 | Reserves Reserves | 3 o2
£000 £000 £000
Education Reserves (3,667) (3,149) 3,662 (3,154)
Other Ringfenced (3,627) (801) 0 (4,428)
Other Reserves (6,061) (1,628) 1,801 (5,888)
PCC Earmarked Reserves:
Integrated Finance Reserve (18,205) (172) 2,004 (16,373)
Collection Fund Reserve (792) (414) 69 (1,137)
Other PCC Earmarked Reserves (44,062) (6,520) 1,093 (49,489)

2022/23

Balance as at

Transfers to

Transfers from

Balance as at

31 March 2022 Rz‘(*)szez’/‘;‘;s Rz‘(*)szez’/‘;‘;s 31 March 2023
£000 £000 £000

Education Reserves (3,121) (3,914) 3,368 (3,667)

Other Ringfenced 4,117) (2,116) 2,606 (3,627)

Other Reserves (6,486) (1,598) 2,023 (6,061)
PCC Earmarked Reserves:

Integrated Finance Reserve (22,199) (1,375) 5,369 (18,205)

Collection Fund Reserve (21,558) 0 20,766 (792)

Other PCC Earmarked Reserves (38,327) (25,465) 19,730 (44,062)

The main earmarked reserves and their purpose are as follows:
Education/Schools Reserves

Education Carry Forwards — A number of reserves are held on behalf of several educational
establishments which operate under devolved budgets, whereby any surpluses or deficits are carried
forward to the following financial year.

School Budget Share — Represents unspent balances at the year-end against schools’ delegated
budgets. The 31 March 2024 balance relating to the School budget share was £3.149m (31 March 2023:
£3.662m).

PFl Reserve — The Council receives PFl credits towards the schools PFl contract at Wood View
Campus in equal instalments over the course of the contract. Credits received in excess of costs are
carried forward in a reserve to meet future expenditure, thus smoothing expenditure and income over
the term of the contract.

Collection Fund Reserve — The Collection Fund Reserve holds balances to ‘smooth’ the impact and
movement of grant funding for Business Rates and Council Tax across multiple financial years.

Interest Rate Swap Reserve — The Interest Rate Swap Reserve holds gains from fair value
movements in interest rate swaps. These gains will reverse over time as the swaps near maturity and
are therefore not used to finance revenue expenditure.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 60



OFFICIAL Page 135 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

I3 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

This contains corporate items of income and expenditure arising from the Council’s involvement in
financial instruments and similar transactions involving interest or the unwinding of discounts. This
heading also includes the income and expenditure relating to investment properties, further details of
which can be found in note 17.1.

Analysis of Income/Expenditure 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000

Interest payable and similar charges 18,972 23,477
Fair value for Financial Instruments (9,306) (921)
Pensions interest cost and expected return on pension assets 1,810 (2,029)
Interest receivable and similar income (4,053) (5,118)
Gains/losses on disposal of Maintained Schools 0 3,059
(Surplus)/deficit on trading undertakings not included in Net Cost of Service 452 332
Income and expenditure in relation to investment properties and changes in their fair

value including (gains)/losses on disposal 8,461 5,763

14 Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure

Analysis of Income 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000
Council tax income (125,587) (131,562)
Non domestic rates (57,816) (60,961)
Non-ringfenced government grants (29,778) (36,588)
Capital grants and contributions (28,686) (66,268)

I5 Property, Plant and Equipment
15.1 Movement in Year

In accordance with the Temporary Relief offered by the Update to the Code on infrastructure assets
this note does not include disclosure of gross cost and accumulated depreciation for infrastructure
assets because historical reporting practices and resultant information deficits mean that this would not
faithfully represent the asset position to the users of the financial statements. The Council continues to
maintain that information and does not consider that the non-disclosure will be detrimentally impact on
the readers of the Council’s accounts and their understanding of the Council’s financial position. The
Council’s reported position of its assets in the Balance Sheet remains unchanged.

Property, Plant and Equipment Assets 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000
Infrastructure Assets 242,352 243,051
Other Property, Plant and Equipment Assets 776,234 829,247

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 61



OFFICIAL Page 136 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

202223 2023124

£000 £000
Opening Net Book Value 172,563 242,352
Additions 32,649 12,486
Reclassifications 50,886 6,360
Depreciation (13,746) (17,831)
Disposals and Decommissioning 0 (316)

The movement in Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) in 2023/24 is summarised in the following table:

2023/24

Other Land
& Buildings
Furniture
& Fittings
Toll Bridge
Community
Assets
Assets Under
Construction
Total Property,
Equipment
& Equipment

iy
S
&
o
o
2
=
=
0
>

PFI Assets Included
in Property, Plant

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost of Valuation
At | April 2023 638,462 83,915 62,058 3,605 10,044 50,391 848,475 128,935
Additions 10,015 6,276 17 0 27 42,308 58,643 0
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in
the Revaluation Reserve 9,758 0 0 0 531 0 10,289 (3,000)
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in
the surplus/deficit on the Provision of Services (3,598) 0 21,009 0 (60) 0 17,351 0
Derecognition - disposals (17,696) (18,375) 0 0 (84) 0 (36,155) 0
Other movements in cost or valuation (1,593) 973 0 0 103 (9,982) (10,499) 0
Accumulated Depreciation and
Impairment
At | April 2023 (12,592) (57,722) (585) (1,302) (40) 0 (72,241) (499)
Depreciation charge (20,694) (5,522) (741) 0 (29) 0 (26,986) (5,988)
Depreciation written out to the Revaluation
Reserve 20,313 0 0 0 69 0 20,382 5,956
Depreciation written out to the surplus/deficit
on the Provision of Services 262 0 1,326 0 0 0 1,588 0
Derecognition - disposals 677 17,723 0 0 0 0 18,400 0
Net Book Value
At 31 March 2024 623,314 27,268 83,084 2,303 10,561 82,717 829,247 125,403
At 31 March 2023 625,870 26,193 61,473 2,303 10,004 50,391 776,234 128,436

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 62



Page 137

OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

2022/23

Other Land
& Buildings
Furniture
& Fittings
Toll Bridge
Community
Assets
Equipment

>
T
[}
Q
(<]
14
o
"
el
(-]
=

Vehicles, Plant,
Assets Under
Construction

PFI Assets Included
in Property, Plant
& Equipment

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost of Valuation
At | April 2022 632,026 81,810 62,585 3,605 3,820 82,913 866,759 125,616
Prior year adjustment (10,464) 0 0 0 0 0 (10,464) 0
Additions 8,872 3,665 15 0 6 30,395 42,953 |
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in
the Revaluation Reserve 10,462 0 0 0 (356) 0 10,106 3,318
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in
the surplus/deficit on the Provision of Services (12,119) 0 (542) 0 (1,352) 0 (14,013) 0
Derecognition - disposals (429) (1,700) 0 0 (131) 0 (2,260) 0
Other movements in cost or valuation 10,114 140 0 0 8,057 (62,917) (44,606) 0
Accumulated Depreciation and
Impairment
At | April 2022 (20,139) (54,577) 0 (1,302) (40) 0 (76,058) (466)
Prior year adjustment 10,464 0 0 0 0 0 10,464 0
Depreciation charge (20,076) (5,324) (585) 0 (40) 0 (26,025) (5,586)
Depreciation written out to the Revaluation
Reserve 16,614 0 0 0 40 0 16,654 5,553
Depreciation written out to the surplus/deficit
on the Provision of Services 219 0 0 0 0 0 219 0
Derecognition - disposals 97 1,646 0 0 0 0 1,743 0
Other movements in depreciation and
impairment 229 533 0 0 0 0 762 0
Net Book Value
At 31 March 2023 625,870 26,193 61,473 2,303 10,004 50,391 776,234 128,436
At 31 March 2022 611,887 27,233 62,585 2,303 3,780 82,913 790,701 125,150

15.2 Commitments Under Capital Contracts

The capital commitments outstanding on capital and other works contracts entered into as at 3| March
2024 amounted to £35.878m (31 March 2023: £50.283m). The Council is committed to complete these
contracts under its latest approved Medium Term Capital Programme. Significant contractual
commitments outstanding as at 31 March 2024 were as follows:

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 63



OFFICIAL Page 138

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Project __________________Jconeractr | _Amounc__

£000
Derriford District Park ADC Kimerley Ltd 8,700
The Park Crematorium Kier Construction Ltd 3,030
City Centre Public Realm Morgan Sindall Group Plc 2,685
Street Scene & Waste Vehicles Dennis Eagle UK 1,151
Plymouth & South Devon Freeport Various 6,207
Woolwell to the George Balfour Beatty Plc/Aecom Ltd 1,129
Bournmouth Churches Housing Association Ltd
Accessible Temporary Homes (BCHA) 2,550
Single People Accommodation PATH (Plymouth Access to Housing Ltd) 700
Heat Sourcing in Corporate Properties SunGift Solar Ltd/Vital Energi Utilities 537
Other Contractual Commitments under £500k Various 9,189

15.3 Revaluations

The Council revalues a significant proportion of its Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) on an annual
basis and then carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all the remaining property required to
be measured at fair value is revalued at least every five years. All valuations are carried out internally
under the supervision of A Pope, RICS Registered Valuer, except for the Energy from Waste Plant
which is revalued by an external valuer appointed by Devon County Council and the Tamar Bridge and
Torpoint Ferry properties which are revalued by an external valuer appointed by Cornwall Council.

Vehicles,

Revaluations Other Land Plant, Surplus

& Buildings Furniture & Assets

Equipment
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Carried at historical
cost 0 0 27,268 0 27,268
Valued at Current
Value as at:
31 March 2024 449,826 83,084 0 10,561 543,471
31 March 2023 23,065 0 0 0 23,065
31 March 2022 143,570 0 0 0 143,570
31 March 2021 3,549 0 0 0 3,549
31 March 2020 3,304 0 0 0 3,304

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 64



OFFICIAL Page 139 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

15.4 Gain/Loss on Disposal of Non-Current Assets

Assets Written Off Balance Sheet 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000
Land and property sales (24) 18,186
Academy and trust schools 10,412 3,059
Investment properties 0 80

s | 21325 ]

15.5 Fair Value Hierarchy for Surplus Assets

Quoted Prices Other

. . .. Significant
Recurring Fair value Measurement in Active Significant

Unobservable Fair Value

Using Markets for Observable as at

Inputs

(Level 3) 31 March 2023

Identical Assets

2023/24 £000 £000 £000 £000
Development & surplus land 10,561

e L ]

Quoted Prices Other Significant

Recurring Fair Value Measurements in Active Significant Unobservable Fair Value
Using Markets for Observable as at

Identical Assets Inputs Inputs 31 March 2022
(Level 3)
Level 2

2022/23 £000 £000 £000 £000
Development & surplus land 10,004 10,004

T R oo o 10,004

Please refer to Note [.27 for the policy on Fair Value Measurement of Non-Financial Assets.

16 Heritage Assets
The Council holds the following types of heritage assets:
Historic Buildings and Monuments

Historic buildings and monuments classified as heritage assets on the balance sheet include Smeaton’s
Tower and various statues and monuments, which have been recognised at insurance valuations.

The Council has a number of other Heritage Assets that are used significantly for the provision of
services and therefore are required to be recognised within Property, Plant and Equipment. These
include Mount Edgcumbe House and The Box.

Gold, Silver, Jewellery, Fine Art and World Cultures, Decorative Art and Other Miscellany

The Council’s gold, silver, jewellery, fine art and world cultures collections are reported in the balance
sheet at insurance valuation, which is based on market values.

The Council’s policy for the acquisition, preservation and management of museum assets can be found
on The Box website.

All heritage assets are recognised at insurance valuations, which are reviewed annually and the value of
assets are adjusted accordingly.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 65



OFFICIAL Page 140 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

In 2023/24 we have added two new classes of heritage asset categories due to the recognition of
previously unreported assets as a result of a review of the collection that was undertaken following the
remodelling of The Box.

The following table summarises the movement in the balances relating to heritage assets during the year:

Natural
c History, -
. Fine Art & Gold, Decorative Special Total
Heritage Assets Buildings World Silver and Books

Art & Assets

Cultures Jewellery Other Collection
Miscellan
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or Valuation

As at | April 2022 3,817 17,109 4,732 17,301 3,500 46,459

As at 31 March
2023 3,817 17,109 4,732 17,301 46,459

Cost or Valuation

As at | April 2023 3,817 17,109 4,732 17,301 0 3,500 46,459
Revaluations 0 4,777 0 0 0 0 4,777
Reclassification 9,474 0 (17,301) 7,827

As at 31 March
2024 3,817 4,732 7,827

17 Investment Properties

17.1 Income, Expenditure and Changes in Fair Value of Investment Properties

Investment properties are properties held solely to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. In
the main, the Council’s investment properties consist of offices, various ground rents (including retail,
offices and industrial), industrial estates (including out of town), development sites, leisure (including
restaurants, cafes and hotels) and retail (both in and out of town).

The following items of income and expenditure have been accounted for in the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the CIES:

Amounts Recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000
Rental income from Investment Property 16,797 18,280
(10,061) (11,017)

o136l 7263

There are no restrictions on the Council’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment property
or on the Council’s right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal.

Direct operating expenses arising from Investment Property

Net Gain/(Loss

The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the year:

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 66



OFFICIAL Page 141 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Analysis of Movement in Investment Properties 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000
Balance at | April 271,065 238,435
Additions (5) 0
Disposals 0 (80)
Net gains/(losses) from fair value adjustments (15,198) (12,946)

Transfers:

(To)/from Property, Plant and Equipment (17,427) (1,685)

Balance at 31 March 223,724

17.2 Fair Value Hierarchy for Investment Properties

Details of the Council’s investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31
March 2024 are as follows:

Quoted Prices

in Active . Ot'her Significant
Recurring Fair Value Measurements Markets for o Unobservable Fair Value as at
Using Identical oﬁie”tab'e Inputs 31 March 2024
puts (Level 3)
(Level 2)
2023/24 £000 £000 £000 £000
Industrial sites 0 62,124 0 62,124
Miscellaneous ground rents 0 5,731 3,935 9,666
Miscellaneous lets 0 21,365 31 21,396
Retail ground rents 0 23,110 0 23,110
Offices 0 6,790 0 6,790
Out of town retail 0 66,412 0 66,412
Out of town businesses 0 33,358 0 33,358
Development and Surplus Land 0 714 ) 830
Lodges 0 38

0 38
o | ol i 1082 123,724

There were no transfers between Levels | and 2 during the year.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 67



OFFICIAL Page 142

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Quoted Prices

in Active . Ot‘her Significant

Recurring Fair Value Measurements Markets for Sl Unobservable Fair Value as at
Using Identical oﬁie’:;b'e Inputs 31 March 2023

Assets P (Level 3)

Level | (Level 2)
2022/23 £000 £000 £000 £000
Industrial sites 0 66,211 0 66,211
Miscellaneous ground rents 0 6,462 3,904 10,366
Miscellaneous lets 0 22,965 35 23,000
Retail ground rents 0 24916 0 24916
Offices 0 6,950 0 6,950
Out of town retail 0 69,522 0 69,522
Out of town businesses 0 36,557 0 36,557
Development and surplus land 0 812 50 862
Lodges 0 51 0 51

There were no transfers between Levels | and 2 during the year.

Please refer to Note 1.27 for the policy on Fair Value Measurement of Non-Financial Assets.

17.3 Reconciliation of Fair Value Measurements (Using Significant Unobservable Inputs)
Categorised within Level 3 of the Fair Funding Hierarchy

Investment Properties Categorised within Level 3 mm

£000 £000
Opening Balance 3,992 3,989
Total gains/(losses) for the period included in the surplus or deficit on the provision of
services resulting from changes in fair value 3) 93

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the investment properties are recognised in
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services — Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line.

Valuation Process for Investment Properties

The fair value of the authority’s investment property is measured annually at each reporting date. All
valuations are carried out internally, in accordance with methodologies and bases for estimation set out
in the professional standards of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors. The authority’s valuation
experts work closely with finance officers regarding all valuation matters.

18 Financial Instruments
18.1 Financial Instruments - Classifications

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity. Non-exchange transactions, such as those relating to taxes and
government grants, do not give rise to financial instruments.

Financial Assets

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 68



OFFICIAL Page 143 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

A financial asset is a right to future economic benefits controlled by the Council that is represented by
cash, equity instruments or a contractual right to receive cash or other financial assets or a right to
exchange financial assets and liabilities with another entity that is potentially favourable to the Council.

The financial assets held by the Council during the year are accounted for under the following three
classifications:

*  Amortised cost (where cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest and the
Council’s business model is to collect those cash flow) comprising:

= cash in hand;
=  bank current and deposit accounts;

= fixed term deposits and reverse repurchase agreements with banks and
building societies;

= |oans to other local authorities;
= loans to smaller companies and housing associations;

= certificates of deposit and covered bonds issued by banks and building
societies;

= treasury bills and gilts issued by the UK Government;
= loans made for service purposes;

= |eases receivables;

= trade receivables for goods and services provided.

=  Fair value through other comprehensive income (where cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest and the Council’s business model is to both collect those cash flows
and sell the instrument; and equity investments that the Council has elected into this
category).

=  Fair value through profit and loss (all other financial assets) comprising:
= interest rate swaps;

= pooled funds, equity and property funds managed and held as strategic
investments;

=  equity investments held for service purposes;

= money market funds managed by fund managers;

= loans where the cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest;
=  structured deposits with banks and building societies.

Financial assets held at amortised cost are shown net of a loss allowance reflecting the statistical
likelihood that the borrower or debtor will be unable to meet their contractual commitments to the
Council.

The financial assets disclosed in the Balance Sheet are made up of the following categories of Financial
Instruments:

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 69



Page 144 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

OFFICIAL

L mmmmmm

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss:
Money Market Fund (MMF) | 0 0 27,620 22,500 27,620 22,500
Pooled funds | 53,034 52,382 0 0 53,034 52,382
Interest rate swap | 27,072 28,878 0 0 27,072 28,878
Amortised Cost:
Investments | 73 73 0 0 73 73
Cash and Cash equivalents (less MMF) | 0 0 2,562 4,498 2,562 4,498
Debtors
Financial Instruments | 9,612 10,249 18,227 54,099 27,839 64,348
Non-Financial Instruments [ 0 0 47,507 55,281 47,507 55,281

The fair value of long-term debtors is assumed to be approximate to the carrying amount.

The fair value of short-term financial assets including receivables is assumed to approximate to the carrying amount.

Short-term debtors are split between financial instruments and non-financial instruments depending on whether they are statutory or
non-statutory.

Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is an obligation to transfer economic benefits controlled by the Council and can be
represented by a contractual obligation to deliver cash or financial assets or an obligation to exchange
financial assets and liabilities with another entity that is potentially unfavourable to the Council.

The majority of the Council’s financial liabilities held during the year are measured at amortised cost and
comprised of:

* long-term loans from the Public Works Loan Board;
= short-term loans from other local authorities;

=  overdraft;

= lease payables;

=  Private Finance Initiative;

* trade payables for goods and services received.

The financial liabilities disclosed in the Balance Sheet are made up of the following categories of Financial
Instruments:

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 70



OFFICIAL Page 145

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Loans at Amortised Cost:
PWLB 2 (355,532) (410,532) (43,324) (76,299) (398,856) (486,831)
Market Loans 2 (82,497) (82,422) (1,352) (1,157) (83,849) (83,579)
Other borrowing 2 (6,194) (152) (76,051) (93,498) (82,245) (93,650)
Liabilities at Amortised Cost:
Other liabilities 2 (108,550) (103,561) (5,808) (6,252) (114,358) (109,813)
Creditors
Financial Instruments 3 0 0 (62,147) (61,208) (62,147) (61,208)
Non-Financial Instruments 3 (10,178) (9,376) (56,148) (47,936) (66,326) (57,312)

Short-term creditors are split between financial instruments and non-financial instruments depending on whether they are statutory or
non-statutory.

LOBOs (Local Authority Lender’s Option Borrower’s Option loans) of £10m have been included in
Market Loans but have a call date in the next 12 months. A call date means that the lender has the
option to change the interest rate for the remaining period of the loan. The Council then has the option
to accept the new rate or redeem.

Financial Liabilities Comparison to Fair Values

Financial Liabilities Bsarl‘z;r;e \::aali:e Bsa::;ie \::aali:e
31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2024

£000 £000 £000 £000
Loans at Amortised Cost:
PWLB 398,856 253,837 486,83 | 345,869
LOBO loans 65,644 76,944 65,380 74,854
Other market loans 18,205 16,812 18,199 16,974
Other long-term loans 6,194 6,194 152 152
Short-term borrowing 76,051 76,051 93,498 93,498
Other Liabilities 114,358 95,794 109,813 93,508

18.2 Equity Instruments Designated to Fair Value through Profit or Loss

The Council has investments made through the CCLA and other pooled funds. Under IFRS 9 the Code
now requires that pooled funds are measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss. However, to mitigate
the impact of the change there is a statutory override for a period of five years meaning that there is no
impact on the Council’s General Fund.

18.3 Gains and Losses on Financial Instruments

The income, expense, gains and losses recognised in the CIES in relation to financial instruments are
made as follows:

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 71



OFFICIAL Page 146 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Surplus or Deficit on
Gains & Losses on Financial Instruments the Provision of Service

2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000

Net Gains/Losses on:

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss 5,725 652
Interest rate swaps at fair value through profit and loss * (15,031) (1,573)
Interest Revenue

Investment income from financial assets measured through profit and loss (3,673) (4,475)
Interest receivable from financial assets measured at amortised costs (380) (643)
Interest expense 18,972 23,477

* SDPS is cash flows plus accrual; OCl is fair value minus accrual.

18.4 Financial Instruments - Fair Value

The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received when selling an asset, or the
price that would be paid when transferring a liability, to another market participant in an arms’ length
transaction. Where liabilities are held as an asset by another party, such as the council’s borrowing, the
fair value is estimated from the holder’s perspective.

Financial instruments, except those classified at amortised cost, are carried in the Balance Sheet at fair
value. For most assets, including bonds, treasury bills and shares in money market funds and other
pooled funds, the fair value is taken from the market price.

The fair values of other instruments have been taken at cost value, as the council believes that cost may
provide an appropriate estimate of fair value. Cost represents the best estimate of fair value:

a) no significant change in the performance of the investee compared with budget;

b) no significant change in the market for the investee’s products, economic environment in
which the entity operates;

¢) no change in expected performance in matters such as fraud, commercial disputes,
litigation, changes in management or strategy.

Financial instruments classified at amortised cost are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost.

*  The value of Lender’s Option Borrower’s Option (LOBO) loans have been increased by
the value of the embedded options. Lenders’ options to propose an increase to the
interest rate on the loan have been valued according to a proprietary model for
Bermudan cancellable swaps. Borrower’s contingent options to accept the increased rate
or repay the loan have been valued at zero, on the assumption that lenders will only
exercise their options when market rates have risen above the contractual loan rate;

*  Other loans borrowed by the Council have been valued at cost on the basis of that most
of the loans are short term loans and/or borrowed from other public sector
organisations;

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 72



OFFICIAL Page 147

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

=  Shares in limited company have been valued at cost of the investment;

=  The fair values of finance lease assets and liabilities and of PFl scheme liabilities have been
calculated by discounting the contractual cash flows (excluding service charge elements)
at the appropriate AA-rated corporate bond yield;

= Interest rate swaps have been valued using the market forward interest rate curve;
*  No early repayment or impairment is recognised for any financial instrument;

=  The fair value of short-term instruments, including trade payables and receivables, is
assumed to be approximately the carrying amount given the low interest rate
environment and the bad debt provisions already included in the statement of accounts.

Fair values are shown in note 18.1, split by their level in the fair value hierarchy:

= Level | fair value is only derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities, e.g. bond prices;

= Level 2 fair value is calculated from inputs other than quoted prices that are observable
for the asset or liability, e.g. interest rates or yields for similar instruments;

= Level 3 fair value is determined using unobservable inputs, e.g. non-market data such as
cash flow forecasts or estimated creditworthiness.

18.5 Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments

The Council complies with the CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management and the Prudential
Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, both revised in December 2021.

As part of the adoption of the Treasury Management Code, the Council approves a Treasury
Management Strategy before the commencement of each financial year. The strategy sets out the
parameters for the management of risks associated with Financial Instruments.

Full details of the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy can be found on the Council’s website.

The Treasury Management Strategy includes an Annual Investment Strategy in compliance with the
DLUHC Investment Guidance for Local Authorities. The guidance emphasises that priority is to be given
to security and liquidity, rather than yield. The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy, together with
its Treasury Management Practices, are based on seeking the highest rate of return consistent with the
proper levels of security and liquidity.

The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

=  Credit risk — the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the
Council.

=  Liquidity risk — the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to meet its
commitments to make payments.

=  Market risk — the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a result of
changes in such measures as interest rates and stock market movements.

Credit Risk

Credit Risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions as well as credit exposures to the
Council’s customers.

Credit Risk Estimation of
Asset Type .
Management Impairment Loss
Loans to other authorities | Guaranteed by statute. No allowance required.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 73



Page 148

OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL
Banks and financial Deposits are restricted in line with C
e o1y No historic or forecast losses.
institutions Council’s approved Treasury Strategy.
All loans subject to internal risk
appraisal, where appropriate C
Loans PP PProp No historic or forecast losses.

guarantees and/or security is obtained
in event of default.

Debtors are not subject to internal
credit ratings and have been grouped
for the purposes of calculating
expected losses.

Expected credit losses
(impairment) estimated based
on age and type of debt.

Other Debtors

The Council manages credit risk by ensuring that treasury investments are only placed with
organisations of high credit quality as set out in the Treasury Management Strategy. These include
commercial entities, the UK government, other local authorities, and organisations without credit
ratings upon which the Council has received independent investment advice. Recognising that credit
ratings are imperfect predictors of default, the Council has regard to other measures including credit
default swap, other contracts and equity prices when selecting commercial entities for investment.

A limit of £25m of the total portfolio is placed on the amount of money that can be invested with a
single counterparty (other than the UK government). For unsecured investments in building societies
there is a smaller limit of £10m applies. The Council also sets limits on investments in certain sectors.

The following table summarises the credit risk exposures of the Council’s treasury management
portfolio by credit rating and remaining time to maturity:

Credit Rating
Long-Term Long-Term

£000 £000 £000 £000
AAA 0 0 0 0
AA 0 27,620 0 22,500
A+ 0 1,125 0 1,295
A 0 0 0 0
A- 0 0 0 0
Unrated 0 0 0 0
Credit risk not applicable * 80,179 1,437 81,333 3,203

* Credit Risk is not applicable to shareholdings and pooled funds where the Council has no contractual right to receive any sum of
money.

The Council’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments with banks and building
societies cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or
repay the principal sum will be specific to each institution.

Customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their financial position, past
experience and other factors, with individual credit limits being set in accordance with parameters set
by the Council.

The Council does not generally allow credit for customers. After 28 days, recovery procedures are
undertaken to recover any outstanding debt. The past due amount can be analysed by age as follows:

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 74



OFFICIAL Page 149

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

£000 £000
Less than three months 9,958 40,159
Three months to one year 2,862 7,573
More than one year 6,002 7,262

The credit risk inherent in interest rate swaps is managed by the selection of highly credit worthy
counterparties and by the requirement for the counterparty to post cash collateral when the valuation
exceeds agreed thresholds. £28.600m cash collateral was held at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023:
£28.530).

Liquidity Risk

The Council has a comprehensive cash flow management system that seeks to ensure that cash is
available as needed. If unexpected movements happen, the Council has ready access to borrowings from
the money markets and the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB). As a result there is no significant risk
that the Council will be unable to raise finance to meets its commitments.

It is however exposed to the risk that it will need to refinance a significant proportion of its short-term
borrowing at a time of unfavourably high interest rates.

The maturity structure of financial liabilities is as follows (at nominal value):

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 75



Page 150 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Loans Outstanding |31 March 2023 | 31 March 2024 |

OFFICIAL

£000 £000
Public Works Loan Board (398,856) (486,831)
Market debt (83,849) (83,579)
Temporary borrowing (76,051) (87,595)
Other borrowing (6,194) (6,055)
Deferred liability (PFI) (92,916) (88,681)
Deferred liability (finance leases) (1,355) (1,294)
Other liabilities (20,087) (19,838)
Creditors (118,295) (109,144)
Long-term creditors (10,178) (9,376)
Less than | year (244,829) (286,350)
Between | and 2 years (10,873) (45,972)
Between 2 and 5 years (19,197) (83,368)
Between 5 and |0 years (112,004) (72,419)
Between 10 and 20 years (60,818) (49,914)
Between 20 and 30 years (13,987) (9,544)
Between 30 and 40 years (17,651) (16,419)
Between 40 and 50 years (290,203) (290,219)
Over 50 years (38,219) (38,188)

The Council has £64m (2022/23: £64m) of LOBO loans where the lender has the option to propose an
increase in the rate payable; the Council will then have the option to accept the new rate or repay the
loan without penalty. Due to current low interest rates, in the unlikely event that the lender exercises
its option, the Council is likely to repay these loans.

£170.954m of short-term borrowing in place at 31 March 2024 was taken under approved authority to
meet the Council’s capital financing and cash flow requirements to the end of the financial year. These
loans can be repaid from cash flow maturing deposits and short-term borrowing in 2024/25 if required,
thus reducing credit risk.

Market Risk: Interest Rate Risk

The Council is exposed to risks in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowings
and investments. Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the Council. For instance, a rise
in interest rates would have the following effects:

*  borrowings at variable rates — the interest expense will rise;

=  borrowings at fixed rates — the fair value of the liabilities will fall;
=  jnvestments at variable rates — the interest income will rise;

= jnvestments at fixed rates — the fair value of the assets will fall;

=  pay fixed receive variable interest rate swaps — the fair value of the assets will rise.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 76



OFFICIAL Page 151 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

The Council has £170.954m short-term (less than 12 months) loans so there is an interest rate risk if
the rates go up. The Council holds a £75m “pay fixed receive variable” interest rate swap to partly
offset this risk. If there is a 0.5% increase in the bank rate it will cost an additional £0.201m per year.

The Council has £64m (2022/23: £64m) of LOBO loans with fixed interest rates and with maturity dates
between 2031 and 2078 where the lender has the option to propose an increase in the rate payable; the
Council will then have the option to accept the new rate or repay the loan without penalty.

Investments measured at amortised cost and loans borrowed are not carried at fair value, so changes in
their fair value will have no impact on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
However, changes in interest payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments will be
posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services. Movements in the fair value of fixed rate
investments measured at fair value will be reflected in Other Comprehensive Income or the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services as appropriate. Movements in the fair value of the interest rates
swaps will be reflected in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services.

The Council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The Council seeks to minimise
this risk through expert advice on forecasts of interest rates received from our treasury management
consultants. This is used to formulate a strategy for the year for both investments and borrowing. This
strategy is periodically reviewed during the year to update for any modifications required in the light of
actual movements in interest rates. During periods of falling interest rates, and where economic
circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate loans will be repaid early to limit exposure to losses.
Interest rate risk is also managed using interest rate swaps, and the Council currently holds a £75m
interest rate swap maturing in 2040 with a strike rate of 0.56%. Changes in the fair value of the swap are
taken to an earmarked reserve.

Market Risk: Price Risk

The market price of the Council’s units in collective investment schemes are governed by prevailing
interest rates and economic conditions and the risk associated with these instruments is managed
alongside interest rate risk.

The Council’s investment in a pooled property fund is subject to the risk of falling commercial property
prices. The risk is limited by the Council’s maximum exposure to property investment fund of £20,788.
A 1% fall in commercial property prices would result in a £0,208m charge to the surplus or deficit on
the provision of services, which is then transferred to the pooled investment fund adjustment account.

The Council’s investments in pooled investment funds is subject to the risk of changing share prices. The
risk is limited by the Council’s maximum exposure to equity investments of £26.462m. A 1% fall in share
prices would result in a £0.218m charge to the surplus or deficit on the provision of services, which is
then transferred to the pooled investment fund adjustment account.

19 Debtors
19.1 Short-Term Debtors

£000 £000
Central government departments 10,223 8,924
NHS bodies 2,125 2,617
Other local authorities 4,221 5,36l
Other entities and individuals 49,165 92,478

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 77



OFFICIAL Page 152 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

19.2 Long-Term Debtors

£000 £000
Secured debt 1,086 [,131
Other loans/mortgages 8,526 8,566
Other long-term debts 0 552

Total Long-Term Debtors mm

19.3 Bad Debt Provision

Analysis of Bad Debt Provision Held Provisions B

£000 £000 £000 £000
General fund (4,012) (637) 1,492 (3,157)
Housing benefit overpayments provision (5,544) (364) 774 (5,134)

Collection fund (8,966) (1,844) (10,378)

432
Total Provisions for Bad Debt mm 2,698 18,669

20 Creditors
20.1 Short-Term Creditors

£000 £000
Central government departments (17,716) (6,181)
NHS bodies (1,614) (483)
Other local authorities (5,676) (2,185)
Other entities and individuals (99,097) (106,547)

Total Short-Term Creditors m

20.2 Long-Term Creditors
| Long Term Creditorsby Categoy | 31 March2023 | 31 March 2024 |
£000 £000
Other local authorities (10,022) 9,171)
Other entities and individuals (156) (205)

Total Long-Term Creditors 10,178 9,376

The amount included within Other Local Authorities relates to a liability to Devon County Council for
unfunded pension liabilities in reference to pre-Local Government Re-organisation (that is pre | April
1998).

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 78



OFFICIAL Page 153 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

20.3 Other Long-Term Liabilities

Analysis of Other Long-Term Liabilities mw

£000 £000
PFI finance leases (88,680) (84,233)
Other finance leases (1,295) (1,228)
Cornwall Council - Tamar Bridge and Torpoint Ferry Joint Committee (18,575) (18,100)

21 Provisions

The Council has a number of budget provisions set up to meet known liabilities. The balance on the
provisions at year-end together with movement in the year is outlined as follows:

0 0 Unused
Analysis of Provisions Provisions Amounts
Provisions Held Made in Used in Reversedhn
Year Year Year
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Insurance provision (4,292) (2,169) 1,720 0 (4,741)
Landfill site provision (6,971) 0 391 56 (6,524)
Business rates appeals
provision (6,013) (2,318) 3,584 0 (4,747)

The provisions include short-term provisions of £6.626m (2022/23: £1.603m) and long-term provisions
of £9.388m (2022/23: £12.93Im).

Details about the main provisions held are as follows:
Insurance Provisions

The Council insures only part of its risks externally through insurance companies, with other risks
covered by specific internal funding. The insurance provision receives contributions from charges made
to service revenue accounts for insurance, and payments are made from the fund in respect of insurable
liabilities, which are covered internally. At the year-end, the balance on the various funds equates to the
best estimate of liabilities from claims.

All of the Council’s buildings are insured against fire, whilst some are also covered against other perils.
Liability cover includes public liability and employer’s liability.

Landfill Site Provision

The Council has a provision of £6.524m as at 3| March 2024 to reflect the Council’s on-going liability
for the closed landfill site at Chelson Meadow. The provision has been calculated on the future
maintenance costs over the next 44 years and is reviewed each year to take into account the actual
maintenance costs spent in the year.

22 Unusable Reserves

The Council holds a number of unusable reserves in the Balance sheet. Some are required to be held for
statutory reasons and some are needed to comply with proper accountancy practice.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 79



OFFICIAL Page 154 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Analysis of Reserves | Note | 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2024 |

£000 £000

Unusable Reserves:

Revaluation Reserve 22.1 326,867 333,967
Capital Adjustment Account 22.2 122,567 171,753
Financial Instruments Adjustments Account 223 (24,814) (24,194)
Pensions Reserve 224 (37,487) (73,542)
Collection Fund Adjustment Account 22.5 7814 2,208
Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjustment Account (2,042) (2,131)
Deferred Capital Receipts 285 280
Pooled Investment Fund Adjustment Account (2,091) (2,743)
DSG Adjustment Account 28 0 (4,253)

22.1 Revaluation Reserve

The revaluation reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of its
Property, Plant and Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

* revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost;
= used in the provision of service and the gains are consumed through depreciation; or
= disposed of and the gains are realised.

The Revaluation Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since | April 2007, the date that
the reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance
on the Capital Adjustment Account.

The following table details the transactions posted to the account for the period:

Movement in Revaluation Reserve 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000

Balance at | April 313,175 326,867
Upward revaluation of assets 31,783 42,615
Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not charged to the

(surplus)/deficit on the Provision of Services (5,027) (7,110)
Release of Investment Property Balance 0 (323)
Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost depreciation (9,472) (9,728)
Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped (3,592) (18,354)

22.2 Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements
for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction
or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The account is debited with the cost of

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 80



OFFICIAL Page 155 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations. These
are then charged to the CIES (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair
value figures to a historical cost basis). The account is credited with the amounts set aside by the
Council as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement.

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains recognised on
donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the Council. It also contains revaluation gains
accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before | April 2007, the date that the Revaluation
Reserve was created to hold such gains.

The following table shows the transactions posted to the account during the year:

Movement in Capital Adjustment Account 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000
Balance at | April 162,781 122,567
Release of Investment Property balance in the Revaluation Reserve 0 323
Reversal of Items Relating to Capital Expenditure Debited or Credited to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (39,697) (44,754)
Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment (13,965) 18,802
Amortisation of intangible assets (2) 0
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (12,479) (23,193)
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss
on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (7,592) (21,510)
Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve 9,472 28,082
Capital Financing Applied in the Year:
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 2,643 6,348
Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement that have been applied to capital financing 13,150 79,044
Amounts Reserved for Future Capital Funding:
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged against the General
Fund (includes TBTF element) 18,537 19,182
Capital expenditure charged against General Fund 704 273
Movements in the market value of Investment Properties debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (15,198) (12,946)
Other Movement on the CAA in Year:
Landfill Site Provision 2,703 56
Write down of long-term debtors (814) (2,845)
Deferred credit - Energy from Waste 2,324 2,324

22.3 Financial Instruments Adjustment Account

The Financial Instrument Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for the accounting for income and expenditure relating to certain financial instruments
and for bearing losses or benefitting from gains per statutory provisions. The Council uses the account
to manage premiums paid and discounts received on the early redemption of loans. During the year
there was no early redemption of LOBO loans. Premiums are debited and discounts are credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when they are incurred but reversed out of the

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 8l



OFFICIAL Page 156 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

General Fund Balance to the account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Over time, the net
expense is posted back to the General Fund balance in accordance with statutory arrangements for
spreading the burden on Council Taxpayers. In the Council’s case this period is the unexpired term that
was outstanding on loans when they were redeemed.

Movement in Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000
Balance at | April (25,431) (24,814)
Proportion of premiums incurred in previous financial years to be charged against the
General Fund Balance in accordance with statutory 544 544
Amount by which finance costs charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement are different from finance costs chargeable in the year in
accordance with statutory requirements 73 76

22.4 Pension Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory
provisions. The Council accounts for post-employment benefits in the CIES as the benefits are earned
by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities to recognise and to reflect inflation,
changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. Statutory
arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Council makes employer’s contributions to
pension funds, or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible (i.e. enhanced
pensions). The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the
benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the Council has set aside to meet
them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the
benefits come to be paid.

202223 2023124

£000 £000
Balance at | April (383,373) (37,487)
Opening balance adjustment 0 (324)
Actuarial gains or losses on pensions assets and liabilities 356,018 (42,948)
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement (27,448) (12,602)
Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in the
year 15,838 18,968
(Increase)/decrease in Plymouth's share of next deficit in year of Devon County
Council Pension Fund 1,478 851

22.5 Collection Fund Adjustment Account

The collection fund adjustment account manages the differences arising from the recognition of council
tax and non-domestic rates income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls
due from council taxpayers and business rates payers compared with the statutory arrangements for
paying across amounts to the General Fund from the collection fund.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 82



OFFICIAL Page 157

Collection Fund Adjustment Account 2022/23 2023/24

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

£000 £000
Balance at | April 18,673 (7,814)
Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rates income credited to the
Comeprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is different from council tax and
non-domestic rates income calculated from the year in accordance with statutory
requirements (26,487) 5,606

23 Notes to Cash Flow
23.1 Cash Flow Statement — Operating Activities

The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following non-cash
movements:

Analysis of Operating Activities 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000
Net Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of Services (40,605) 20,311
Adjust Net Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of Services for Non-Cash
Movements:
Depreciation 53,663 44,754
Impairment and downward valuations (9,471) (18,802)
Adjustment for movements in fair value of investments classified as fair value through
profit and loss (9,337) (867)
Losses or gains on derecognition of loans and advances in year 3,122 0
Adjustments for effective interest rates (587) 0
(Increase)/decrease in interest creditors 607 (3,338)
(Increase)/decrease in creditors 47,488 (15,819)
(Increase)/decrease in interest and dividend debtors 0 (287)
(Increase)/decrease in debtors (6,546) (51,617)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (154) (373)
Pension liability 10,132 (7,216)
Contributions to/(from) Provisions (3,946) (1,263)
Movement on the Dedicated Schools Grant Adjustment Account 0 (4,253)
Carrying amount of short-term and long-term investments sold 11,181 21,516
Movement in Investment Property values 15,198 12,946
Adjust for Items Included in the Net Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services that are Investing or Financing Activities
Capital grants credited to surplus/(deficit) on the Provision of Services (36,708) (80,211)
Proceeds from the sale of Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property and
Intangible Assets (2,593) (1,190)

The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 83



OFFICIAL Page 158 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Analysis of Interest Paid and Received 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000
Interest received 3,466 4,677
Interest paid (16,727) (26,636)

23.2 Cash Flow Statement - Investing Activities

Analysis of Investing Activities 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property and Intangible Assets (76,019) (64,721)
Other payments for Investing Activities (28,531) (5,642)
Proceeds from the sale of Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Properties and
Intangible Assets 2,596 1,195
Other Receipts from Investing Activities 46,685 37,356

23.3 Cash Flow Statement - Financing Activities

Analysis of Financing Activities 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000
Cash receipts of short-term and long-term borrowing 157,987 305,209
Billing Authorities - Council Tax and NDR adjustments (6,237) 11,840
Repayment of short-term and long-term borrowing (147,485) (202,958)
Other receipts from financing activities 13,699 4,542
Payments for the reduction of a PFl liability (4,184) (4,296)

23.4 Cash Flow Statement — Cash and Cash Equivalents

Analysis of Cash and Cash Equivalents 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000
Cash and bank balances 724 1,890
Cash Investments - regarded as cash equivalents 28,745 23,795
Tamar Bridge and Torpoint Ferry 713 1,313

24 Pooled Budgets - Integrated Fund

The Council has a pooled budget arrangement with the NHS Devon Integrated Care Board (Devon
ICB), under Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006, to enable an integrated approach to commissioning a
range of health, public health and social care services to meet the needs of people living in the Plymouth
area. The pooled budget is currently hosted by NHS Devon ICB on behalf of the two partners to the
agreement, although the two partners keep their own accounts in their separate ledgers. All spend is
allocated a lead commissioner. The risk share allows for the Council and NHS Devon ICB to share the
risk and reward of over and under-spends, up to the value of 0.5% of the agreed applicable value of the
Integrated Fund, is proportional to the value of the contribution of each party to the Integrated Fund
and also ensures that the risk to each partner is capped. In 2020/21, because of the global pandemic, and

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 84



OFFICIAL Page 159 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL
its effects on the costs of health and social care, it was agreed to amend the risk share for the year to
0% risk on both parties to the agreement and this was again agreed for 2021/22, 2022/23 and 2023/24.
This decision will be reviewed for 2024/25.

Pooled Budget - Integrated Fund 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000
Contribution to the Pooled Budget:
Plymouth City Council's contribution:
Pooled 207,690 215,968
Aligned 66,712 69,514

Total Plymouth City Council 274,402 285,482

NHS Devon ICB's contribution:

Pooled 176,838 164,583
Aligned 226,057 321,515

Total NHS Devon ICB 402,895 486,098

Total Combined Integrated Fund 677,297 771,580

Expenditure Met from the Pooled Budget:
Plymouth City Council 280,184 300,284
NHS Devon ICB 399,518 491,390

Total Expenditure on Integrated Fund 679,702 791,674

lus)/Deficit on the Integrated Fund During the Year 20,094

The figures above include amounts of the Plymouth Better Care Fund, of whom the lead commissioners
are:

Plymouth Better Care Fund 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000
NHS Devon ICB Lead Commissioner 13,541 14,791

Plymouth City Council Lead Commissioner 11,415 8,601

Total Plymouth Better Care Fund mm

25 Members’ Allowances

Allowances paid to Members of the Council in 2023/24 totalled £1.156m (2022/23: £1.054m). These
figures include Members’ allowances and expenses. Further information can be found on the Council’s
website.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 85



OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

26 Officers’ Remuneration
26.1 Senior Employees

Senior employees earning £50,000 or more per annum who have responsibility for the management of the Council or power to directly control the major
activities of the Council are required to be listed by way of job title within the accounts. Where an employee’s remuneration exceeds £150,000 there is an
additional requirement that they are identified by name. Plymouth defines relevant senior staff as members of the Corporate Management Team

(Directors) and Departmental Management Teams (Service Directors).

Salaries,

Senior Management Post Financial Pension Total

Fees and . . .
Year o Contributions Remuneration
Allowances

Salary over £150,000 £ £ £
Tracey Lee - Chief Executive (Head of Paid 2023/24 184,773 32,356 217,129 Includes election duty payments as the Returning Officer.
Service) 2022/23 177,711 27,879 205,590 Includes election duty payments as the Returning Officer.

Salary over £50,000 but less than
£150,000

Includes election duty payments as the Deputy Returning

2023/24 119,975 21,295 141,270 Officer.
Assistant Chief Executive
Includes election duty payments as the Deputy Returning

2022/23 119,460 19,005 138,465 Officer.
2023/24 43,179 8,204 51,383 A new post holder commenced on 27 December 2023.

A new post holder commenced on 31 July 2023 until 26
December 2023 via an Agency.

Director of Children's Services Previous post holder Left the authority on 01 September
2023/24 62,755 11,119 73,874 2023.
A new post holder commenced on |3 June 2022.
2022/23 149,368 24,258 173,626 Previous post holder left the authority on 30 June 2022.
2023/24 118,394 17,025 135,419
Director of Public Health
2022/23 114,390 16,449 130,839

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 86

09T abed



OFFICIAL

Senior Management Post

Director of Resources
(Previously Strategic Director
of Customer and Corporate
Services)

Strategic Director for People

Strategic Director for Place

Service Director for Children,
Young People and Families

Service Director for
Community Connections

Service Director for Digital
and Customer Services

Service Director for Economic
Development

Service Director for
Education, Participation and
Skills

Financial
Year

2023/24
2022/23

2023/24

2022/23
2023/24
2022/23

2023/24

2022/23
2023/24
2022/23
2023/24
2022/23
2023/24
2022/23

2023/24

2022/23

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

Salaries,
Fees and
Allowances*

47,264
132,810

141,698

143,853
137,394
135,396

31,976

100,227
82,095
80,809

0
0
107,257
104,636

13,256

63,858

Pension
Contributions

1,768
21,960

22,327

21,782
25,555
22,476

10,013
17,053
13,381

20,146
17,372

2519

10,600

Total
Remuneration

49,032
154,770

164,025

165,635
162,949
157,872

31,976

110,240
99,148
94,190

0
0
127,403
122,008

15,775

74,458

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Post vacant.
Post holder left the authority on 28 April 2023.
Includes election duty payments.

Includes election duty payments.

Post holder left the authority on 16 February 2024.
Includes election duty payments.

A new post holder commenced on 22 October 2022.
Previous post holder left the authority on 21 October 2022.

A new post holder commenced on 17 July 2023 via an Agency.

Previous post holder left the authority on 23 July 2023.

A new post holder commenced on 6 November 2022.
Previous post holder left the authority on 5 November 2022.

Includes election duty payments.
Includes election duty payments.
Post vacant.

Post vacant.

A new post holder commenced on 19 February 2024.
Post covered via an Agency until |8 January 2024.

A new post holder commenced on 9 January 2023 via an Agency.

Previous post holder left the authority on 30 November 2022.

87

T9T abed



OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Salaries,

Senior Management Post Financial Fees and Pension Total
Year Contributions Remuneration
Allowances*
£ £ £
2023/24 108,299 20,089 128,388 Includes election duty payments.
Service Director for Finance
(Section 151 Officer) A new post holder commenced on 4 October 2022.
2022/23 105,266 17,474 122,740  Previous post holder left the authority on 3 October 2022.
2023/24 43,249 8217 51,466 A new post holder commenced on |16 November 2023.
A new post holder commenced on 23 July 23 until 26 November 23
Service Director for HR and via an Agency.
Organisational Development Previous post holder left the authority on 26 June 2023.
2023/24 32,986 4,327 37,313 Includes election duty payments.
2022/23 101,002 16,766 117,768
2023/24 0 0 0 Post vacant.
Service Director for Integrated
Commissioning The post holder vacated this post on 21 October 2022.
2022/23 57,043 9,428 66,471 Includes election duty payments.
Service Director for Strategic 202324 111,369 20,727 132,096
PIanning and Infrastructure 2022/23 104,648 17,372 122,020
Sariies Dirasier o Sireesk 2023/24 104,787 19,444 124,231 Includes election duty payments.
Services 2022/23 99,562 16,494 116,056 Includes election duty payments.
2023/24 7,263 1,380 8,643 A new post holder commenced on 4 March 2024.
Head of Legal Services 2023/24 35,057 6,260 41,317 Post holder left the authority on 6 August 2023.
(Monitoring Officer)
2022/23 96,925 16,090 113,015

* Salaries, Fees and Allowances exclude immaterial expenses such as travel and subsistence
Election Fees
The allowances for 2023/24 cover one local election and two local by-elections.

The allowances for 2022/23 cover one local election and one local by-election.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 88

29T abed



OFFICIAL Page 163

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

26.2 Remuneration Above £50,000

The Council is required by statute to disclose the number of employees whose remuneration for the
year (excluding employer pension contributions) was £50,000 or more.

The following numbers do not include the senior management as disclosed in note 26.1.

Remuneration Bandings 2I23 2023/24
25 66 17 78

£50,000 - £54,999

£55,000 - £59,999 8 31 I 36
£60,000 - £64,999 9 20 2 18
£65,000 - £69,999 2 8 3 17
£70,000 - £74,999 0 8 4 10
£75,000 - £79,999 2 4 | 3
£80,000 - £84,999 I | 0 3
£85,000 - £89,999 4 0 2 3
£90,000 - £94,999 0 2 2 |
£95,000 - £99,999 I 0 2 |
£100,000 - £104,999 0 0 0 0
£105,000 - £109,999 0 0 0 0
£110,000 - £114,999 | | 0 0
£115,000 - £119,999 0 0 0 0
£120,000 - £124,999 0 0 | |

26.3 Employee Exit Packages

The numbers of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other
redundancies are set out in the following table:

Number of Number of Total Number of Total Cost of Exit
Banding RC:mpduIsory Other'A epa‘;'tures EXiZ: Pa:l;ageds by Packages in Each
edundancies gree ost Ban
£000 £000
£00,001 - £20,000 6 2 4 I 10 13 18 102
£20,001 - £40,000 0 | 0 | 0 2 0 58
£40,001 - £60,000 0 | 0 | 0 2 0 89
£60,001 - £80,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
£80,001 - £100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
£100,001 - £150,000 0 | 0 0 0 | 0 108

The Council terminated the contracts of a number of employees in 2023/24, including school based staff,
incurring liabilities of £0.383m (2022/23: £0.018m). This includes a sum of £0.126m to the pension fund
in respect of pensions strain payments (for example, of the payments in the £100,001 - £150,000 band,

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 89



Page 164

OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

67% relates to the strain payment). The Council’s expenditure on schools in primarily funded from the
Dedicated Schools Grant provided by the Department of Education.

27 External Audit Costs

The Council has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts:

Analysis of External Audit Costs 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000
Fees payable to Grant Thornton LLP with regard to external audit services carried
out by the appointed auditor for the year 191 393
Fees payable in respect of other services provided by Grant Thornton LLP during the
year 35 73

28 Dedicated Schools Grant

The Council’s expenditure on schools is funded primarily by grant monies provided by the Education
and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA), the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). The DSG is ringfenced and can
only be applied to meet expenditure properly included in the Schools Budget, as defined in the School
Finance and Early Years (England) Regulations 2023. The Schools Budget includes elements for a range
of educational services provided on an authority-wide basis and for the Individual Schools Budget (ISB),
which is divided into a budget share for each maintained school.

Details of the deployment of DSG receivable are as follows:

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 90



Page 165 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

2023/24

OFFICIAL

Analysis of Dedicated Schools Grant Individual
Central
Expenditure Schools Total
P Budget
Note £000 £000 £000
A Final DSG before academy and high needs recoupment 260,21 |

Academy and high needs figure recouped (179,636)

Total DSG After Academy and High Needs
Recoupment 80,575

D Brought forward from 2022/23 1,174
E Carry-forward to 2024/25 agreed in advance 0
F Agreed initial budgeted distribution in 2023/24 37,119 44,631 81,750
G In year adjustments

n Final Budgeted Distribution 37,119 m 81,770

| Less actual central expenditure 45,211 45,211
] Less actual ISB deployed to schools 40,811 40,811

Plus Local Authority contribution

n In-Year Carry-Forward to 2024/25 8,092 3,840 m

Plus: Carry-forward to 2024/25 agreed in advance

ﬂ Carry-Forward to 2024125 ___

DSG unusable reserve at the end of 2022/23

Addition to DSG unusable reserve at the end of 2023/24 (4,252)

n Total of DSG Unusable Reserve at the End of 2023/24 __m

I! Net DSG Position a¢ the End of 2023124 I R BPPTRY

Final DSG figure before any amount has been recouped from the authority as published
March 2024 excluding the adjustment to the 2022/23 DSG for early years made during
2023/24 based on January 2023 numbers or top-up funding.

B. Figure recouped from the authority in 2023/24 by the DfE for the conversion of
maintained schools into academies and for high needs payments made by ESFA.

C. Total DSG figure after academy and high needs recoupment for 2023/24, as published
March 2024.

D. Figure brought forward from 2022/23.

E. Any amount which the authority decided after consultation with the Schools Forum to
carry forward to 2024/25 rather than distribute in 2023/24.

F. Budgeted distribution of DSG, adjusted for carry-forward, as agreed with the Schools
Forum.

G. Changes to the initial distribution, for example the final early years block adjustment for
2022/23 made during 2023/24 on the basis of January 2023 numbers. Safety valve
payments count as DSG and should be included here if paid in 2023/24.

H. Budgeted distribution of DSG as at the end of the financial year.
I.  Actual amount of central expenditure items in 2023/24.

J. Amount of ISB actually distributed to schools.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 91



OFFICIAL Page 166

K.

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Any contribution from the Local Authority in 2023/24 that will have the effect of
substituting for DSG in funding the schools budget.

In-year position at end of 2023/24:

=  For central expenditure, difference between final budgeted distribution of
DSG and actual expenditure.

=  For ISB, difference between final budgeted distribution and amount actually
deployed to schools, plus any local authority contribution.

Plus/minus any carry-forward to 2024/25 already agreed.

Total carry-forward on central expenditure plus carry-forward on ISB plus/minus any
carry-forward to 2024/25 already agreed.

DSG unusable reserve at end of 2022/23.

Any addition to DSG unusable reserve in 2023/24 as a result of an in-year deficit in
2023/24.

Total of DSG unusable reserve at end of 2023/24.
Net DSG position at the end of 2023/24.

29 Grant Income

The Council credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income

and Expenditure Statement:

Credited to Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income and Expenditure

2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000
Section 31| grants (12,679) (18,078)
Capital grants and contributions (28,686) (66,268)
PFI credits (7,053) (6,948)
Revenue Support Grant (10,046) (11,562)

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 92



OFFICIAL Page 167

Grants Credited to Services 2022/23 2023/24

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

£000 £000
Benefits Admin Grant (923) 0
Dedicated Schools Grant and Other Education Grants (78,311) (83,575)
Housing Benefit Subsidy (55,296) (56,375)
Learning and Skills Council (2,742) (2,440)
Improved Better Care Fund (12,933) (12,933)
Transforming Social Care Grant (13,502) (21,707)
New Homes Bonus (1,707) (22)
Public Health Grant (15,940) (16,460)
Troubled Families Grant (1,089) (1,009)
Arts Council (769) (529)
Department of Health Grant (54) (242)
COVID-19 Emergency funding (16) 0
Household Support Grant (4,590) (4,590)
Market Sustainability Fair Costs of Care (867) (3,007)
New Burdens - Breathing Space (4,437) (2,359)
Other Revenue Grants (28,099) (47,210)

29.1 Current Liabilities

The Council has received a number of grants, contributions and donations that have yet to be
recognised as income as they have conditions attached to them that will require the monies or property
to be returned to the grantor. The grants are held on the Balance Sheet as a creditor in a Grants
Receipts in Advance Account and are split between Revenue and Capital Grant Receipts in Advance as
follows:

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 93



OFFICIAL Page 168

Revenue Grant Receipts in Advance - Current Liabilities 2022/23 2023/24

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

£000 £000
RegEnergy 387 434
Sub-National Transport Body 0 485
Domestic Abuse Bill preparation 640 765
Section 256 Revenue Grant (SARC) 573 608
D2 Grids 436 443
Family Hubs Start For Life 402 182
NIHR Plymouth Health Determinants Research 444 24|
Afghan Citizens Resettlement Scheme 416 597
Homes for Ukraine 1,342 1,222
Bus Service Improvement Plan 0 712
Nature Based Solutions 0 518
Syrian Resettlement Programme (SRP) 690 313
Changing Futures 499 324
Other 3,964 2,986

Capital Grant Receipts in Advance - Current Liabilities 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000
Department for Transport 40,898 46,324
Department for Environment Food & Rural Affairs 1,478 3,398
Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport 3,393 2,063
Football Foundation 921 0
Arts Council 4,175 0
Growth Deal (LEP) 36,180 6,080
Growth & Housing Fund 4,470 0
Get Building Fund (LEP) 7,074 4,087
Department for Levelling Up, Housing & Communities 22,754 23,685
European Regional Development Funding 4,006 0
Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy 4,467 2,452
Department for Education 0 435
Warm Homes Fund 1,060 1,060
Heatnet 0 1,000
NHS England 442 580
Other 1,087 936

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 94



OFFICIAL Page 169 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

29.2 Long-Term Liabilities

Capital Grant Receipts in Advance - Long-Term Liabilities 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000
Department for Transport 6,684 7,596
Heritage Lottery Fund 0 12
S106 13,486 11,310
Growth Deal 7,154 4,694
Department for Levelling Up, Homes & Communities 4,800 4,800

S CWPYY N TVTPY

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 95



OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

30 Related Parties

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties — bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the
Council or to be controlled or influenced by the Council. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Council might
have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the
Council.

The following table outlines transactions between the Council and its subsidiaries, associates, jointly controlled and other assisted organisations where the
influence is considered to be material, either to the Council or to the organisation.

2022/23 2023/24

Related Party

T AT eI Details of Arrangement Outstanding Outstanding
Receipts Payments Balances/ Receipts Payments Balances/
Commitments Commitments

Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Arrangements £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Subsidiaries

@PlymouthCare was incorporated on the 10 June 2021.
The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Council
and was created to help people remain as independent in
their own home, by providing support and care services
@ Plymouth Care for people. (13) 498 466 (19) 419 357

Arca is responsible for the administration and
management of The Box and St Luke's Church and is a
Arca (Plymouth) Ltd wholly owned by the Plymouth City Council. 2) 805 (1,076) (rn 832 0

CATERed is a co-operative trading company which is
jointly owned by 67 local schools and Plymouth City
Council. Plymouth City Council is the majority
CATERed Ltd shareholder with 51% of the shares. (205) 1,564 49 (200) 1,254 (131)

Plymouth Active Leisure Limited was incorporated on
the 17th November 202 1. The company is a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Council and took back
responsibility for operating the Council’s leisure centres
from Sports and Leisure Management LTD (SLM) on the
Plymouth Active Leisure | April 2022. (203) 711 245 (164) 402 21

PIP invests in the promotion, assistance and
establishment of business to improve the employment
Plymouth Investment and economy of Plymouth and its surrounding area.
Partnerships Ltd (PIP) Plymouth City Council has full ownership of PIP. (106) 0 0 (84) 0 0

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 96

0.T 9bed



OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

2022/23 2023/24

Related Party

e Details of Arrangement Outstanding Outstanding
Receipts Payments Balances/ Receipts Payments Balances/
Commitments Commitments

Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Arrangements - Continued £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Joint Arrangements

DELT provide ICT and systems to partners. DELT is
DELT Shared Services jointly and equally controlled and owned by Plymouth
Ltd City Council and Devon CCG. (199) 12,046 3,175 (198) 11,298 1,197

Plymouth Science Park is a science and technology park
for businesses and provide provision of support, advisory
and facilities management services. Plymouth Science
Plymouth Science Park Park is jointly and equally owned by Plymouth City
Ltd Council and Plymouth University. (50) 0 (1,956) (50) 0 (1,956)

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 97

T.T obed



Page 172

OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Central Government

Central Government has significant influence over the general operations of the Council — it is
responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Council operates, provides the
majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that
the Council has with other parties (e.g. Housing Benefits). Details of transactions with Government
Departments are set out in note 29.

Members
Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating policies.
The total of members allowances paid in 2023/24 is disclosed in note 25.

Under the Code of Conduct, incorporated in the Council’s constitution, Members are required to
record in the Register of Members’ Interests any financial and other personal interests, together with
any gift, hospitality, material benefit or advantage. The register is open to inspection by the public and is
available on an individual Member basis on the Council’s website. Members who declare an interest do
not take part in any discussion or decision relating to grants made or works or services commissioned.
Details of all interests declared are recorded in the meetings of relevant meetings.

Members of the Council are nominated to serve on numerous outside bodies some of which either
receive funding from the Council or issue levies and precepts to be paid by the Council. When sitting on
these bodies Members are expected to act independently and not to represent the views of the Council.

Senior Officers

Under the Employees’ Code of Conduct, officers are required to declare potential conflicts of interest
arising from employment arrangements together with gifts or hospitality and offers thereof and, under
Section |17 of the 1972 Local Government Act, contractual arrangements where there is a conflict of
interest whether it be by direct or indirect involvement. Most professional bodies also have codes of
professional conduct to which members of those bodies are expected to adhere. During the financial
year 2023/24 |7 officers were company directors or board members on behalf of the Council.

Other Public Bodies

The Council has a pooled budget arrangement with NHS Devon Integrated Care Board (NHS Devon
ICB) for the provision of care services. Further details of the arrangement, the transactions and balances
outstanding are detailed in note 24.

Other Interests in Companies

There are a number of companies which are also linked to the Council which fall under the definition of
an assisted organisation. This includes the provision of financial assistance to voluntary organisations.
However they are not considered material in financial terms. Examples include Access Plymouth Ltd,
Plymouth Citizens Advice Bureau and the Shekinah Mission (Plymouth) Limited. Independent Futures
and the Plymouth City Centre Company Limited are examples of larger organisations supported by the
Council.

= DELT Shared Services Limited

DELT was launched | October 2014 and is a publicly owned private limited company
(09098450). It was set up to deliver ICT services and systems to its partners; Plymouth
City Council and NHS Devon ICB.

DELT is jointly and equally controlled by its partners with both partners carrying equal
full voting rights. The collaborative arrangement is classed as a joint venture.

For more information about DELT and its financial performance, please visit the DELT
Services website.

= CATER®* Limited

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 98



OFFICIAL

Page 173

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

CATER® is a cooperative trading company (09355912) which is jointly owned by
Plymouth City Council and 67 local schools, providing all school meals in the city.
CATER® is 49 per cent owned by schools and 51 per cent by the Council and serves
almost 2.5 million meals to Plymouth school children every year.

Plymouth City Council is the majority shareholder of CATER® with 51 per cent of shares
and voting rights allocated one vote per share. The collaborative arrangement is classed
as a subsidiary of the Council.

For more information about CATER® and its financial performance, please visit the
CATER® website.

Arca (Plymouth) Limited

Arca (Plymouth) Ltd (12187662) is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Council which is
responsible for the administration and management of The Box and St Luke’s Church
which opened in September 2020.

@PlymouthCare Limited

@PlymouthCare (13449128) was incorporated on the 10 June 2021. The company is a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Council and was created to help people remain as
independent in their own home, by providing support and care services for people.

Plymouth Active Leisure Limited

Plymouth Active Leisure Limited (13749536) was incorporated on the 17 November
2021. The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Council and took back
responsibility for operating the Council’s leisure centres from Sports and Leisure
Management LTD (SLM) on the | April 2022.

Joint Committees

The Council is a member of a couple of joint committees where local authorities have joined together
to provide a service. These are listed as follows:

Devon Audit Partnership (DAP)

From April 2009 Plymouth City Council set up a Joint Committee with Devon County
Council and Torbay Council for the provision of a shared internal audit service. The
service is also able to provide audit services to other organisations. This is a shared

service arrangement and is constituted under section 20 of the Local Government Act
2000.

Devon County Council is the host Council for the Joint Committee with all staff now
employed by Devon County Council. Assets and Liabilities of the Joint Committee are
split on an agreed basis (number of FTE’s on inception of the Committee); Plymouth’s
share equates to 27 per cent and its contribution to the partnership for 2023/24 was
£0.324m (2022/23: £0.324m). The Council also pays DAP for Counter Fraud Services at a
cost of £0.228m for 2023/24 (£0.228m for 2022/23).

South West Devon Waste Disposal Partnership

Plymouth City Council, Torbay Council and Devon County Council have jointly
contracted a PFl project for an Energy from Waste Plant (based in Plymouth) to dispose
of residual waste collected by the three Councils. As part of the Joint Working
Agreement between the three Councils the South West Devon Waste Partnership Joint
Committee has been established to facilitate the procurement and subsequent operation
and management of the facilities (by the selected contractor). The Plant became
operational in April 2015.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 99



OFFICIAL Page 174 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL
Plymouth is the Lead Authority with the expenditure associated with this project is

incurred and then allocated on an estimated tonnage share basis to Torbay and Devon

County Councils. Plymouth’s share of the expenditure is reflected within the cost of

services on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

For more information about external bodies which Plymouth City Council have an interest in please visit
the Council’s website.

31 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below (including the
value of assets acquired under finance leases and PFl contracts), together with the resources that have
been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to
revenue as assets are used by the Council, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Council that has
yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second part of this note.

Capital Financing Requirements 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000
Opening Capital Financing Requirement | April 765,214 816,483
Capital Investment
Property, Plant and Equipment 75,602 71,129
Investment Properties (5) 0
Assets Held for Sale 112 25
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute 12,479 23,193
Other capital expenditure 130 735
Sources of Finance
Capital receipts (2,643) (6,348)
Other movements in Long-Term Debtors (2,402) 637
Grants and contributions applied in year (13,150) (79,044)
Revenue and other funds (704) (273)
Minimum Revenue Provision (18,537) (19,182)
Use of landfill provision 387 391
Explanation of Movement in Year
Increase in underlying need to borrow 45,192 46,589
Increase in underlying need to borrow resulting from other changes in capital financing
requirement 6,077 (55,326)

32 Leases

The Council is a lessor of a number of properties, including city centre shops, several retail and
industrial units. The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases are:

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 100



Page 175 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Operating Leases - Authority as a Lessor Mm

OFFICIAL

£000 £000
Not later than one year 17,527 17,774
Later than one year and not later than five years 58,318 58,188
Later than five years 213,743 257,034

33 Private Finance Initiatives (PFl) and Similar Contracts
33.1 Schools PFI

The Council makes an agreed payment each year, part of which is subject to an annual inflation increase,
and can be reduced if the contractor fails to meet availability and performance standards in any one year
but which is otherwise fixed. A total payment of £6.332m was made in 2023/24 (2022/23: £5.953m).
Payments remaining to be made under the PFl contract at 3|1 March 2024, excluding any estimation of
inflation and availability/performance deductions, are as follows:

Reimbursement

PFI Outstanding Liabilities Payment for of Capital Interest Total
Services 5
Expenditure

£000 £000 £000 £000
Total payments to operator in 2023/24 3,133 1,413 1,786 6,332
Payable in 2024/25 3,376 1,409 1,663 6,448
Payable within two to five years 14,654 6,660 5,352 26,666
Payable within six to ten years 17,552 10,968 2,696 31,216

Although the payments made to the contractor are described as unitary payments, they have been
calculated to compensate the contractor for the fair value of the services they provide, the capital
expenditure incurred, and interest payable, whilst the capital expenditure remains to be reimbursed.
The liability outstanding to pay the liability to the contractor for capital expenditure incurred is as
follows:

Movement in PFI Liability 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000
Balance outstanding | April 21,754 20,449
Payments during the year (1,305) (1,413)

The Council has secured PFl credits to the value of £53m, to which interest is added resulting in total
Government support of £105.87Im over the contract period, and this together with an annual
contributions from the Council and the schools which will be used to meet the running costs of the
contract, including the loan repayments.

The PFI credits will be paid to the Council at a rate of £3.983m per annum. Spend to be incurred during
the contract will vary from year to year as lifecycle works are undertaken. The Council transfers any
surplus resources for the PFl scheme to a PFl reserve to match commitments that will be incurred in
future years.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 101



OFFICIAL Page 176

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

33.2 South West Devon (SWD) Energy from Waste (EfW) Partnership

2015/16 was the first year of operation of the EfW public/private service concession arrangement
whereby the SWD local authority partnership granted the right to MVV Umwelt (MVVU), the operator,
to treat and render inert waste that otherwise would have been disposed of in landfill sites. The SWD
partnership comprising Plymouth City Council, Devon County Council and Torbay Council appointed
MVVU under a fixed price contract to finance, construct and design the 245,000 tonne capacity facility
and to maintain it to a minimum acceptable condition over a 50 year term.

Reimbursement

PFI Outstanding Liabilities Payment for of Capital Interest
Services penditure
£000 £000 £000 £000

Total payments to operator in 2023/24 4237 498 3,542 8,277
Payable in 2024/25 4,241 716 3,480 8,437
Payable within two to five years 20,113 2,837 13,225 36,175
Payable within six to ten years 26,767 9,112 13,654 49,533
Payable within eleven to fifteen years 31,228 17,187 7,141 55,556
Payable within sixteen to twenty years 5,277 2,612 179 8,068

The EfW facility is located on MOD land at Camel's Head, North Yard in Devonport Dockyard,
Plymouth. The SWD partnership specifies the activities offered by the facility, the opening hours and the
expected minimum standard of service to be provided by the operator. MVVU is required to receive all
the residual waste from the defined area of the local authority partnership for which the councils are
obliged to pay a fixed gate fee based on a guaranteed minimum tonnage of waste, with an additional
charge for any extra waste delivered by the councils over and above the contractual waste.

. L 2022/23 2022/23 2023/24 2023/24
Movement in PFI Liability Plymouth Deferred Plymouth Deferred
Share Income Share Income
£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance outstanding | April 33,462 41,826 32,964 39,502
Payments during the year (499) (2,324) (498) (2,324)

Under a separate 25 year agreement between the operator and the MOD, MVVU processes the waste
to provide environmentally sustainable heat and electricity to HM Naval Base Devonport. Power is sold
at a capped, index linked, guaranteed base price, with any surplus electricity being exported to the
National Grid based on a long-term Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) to a company within the MVV

group.
The SWD partnership receives 50% of the income earned by EVVU from any excess waste it processes
or any excess energy it supplies to third parties. EMVU 3rd party revenues are unrestricted and the

SWD partnership is obliged to compensate the operator for any loss of third party income should the
councils exceed their contractual maximum tonnage.

Income and expenditure, assets and liabilities are recorded in each of Plymouth City Council, Devon
County Council and Torbay Council's Statements of Accounts respectively in the ratio 48:35:17.
Plymouth City Council's share of the total construction costs of £195.324m is carried at depreciated
replacement cost in its balance sheet as detailed in note 15.1 (Property, Plant and Equipment) together
with a corresponding liability.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 102



Page 177

OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

34 Pensions

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers and other employees, the Council
offers retirement benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until the employees
retire, the Council has a commitment to make the payments that need to be disclosed at the time that
employees earn their future entitlement.

34.1 Pension Scheme Accounted for as Defined Contribution Schemes
Teachers’ Pension Scheme

Teachers employed by the Council are members of the Teachers’ Pension scheme administered by
Capita Teachers Pensions on behalf of the Department for Education. The scheme provides teachers
with specified benefits upon their retirement, and the Council contributes towards the cost by making
contributions based on a percentage of member’s pensionable salaries.

The scheme is technically a defined benefit scheme. However, the scheme is unfunded and the
Department for Education uses a notional fund as the basis for calculating the employers’ contribution
rate paid by local authorities. The Council is not able to identify its share of the underlying financial
position and performance of the Scheme with sufficient reliability for accounting purposes. For the
purposes of this Statement of Accounts, it is therefore accounted for on the same basis as a defined
contribution scheme.

In 2023/24, Plymouth City Council paid £4.624m to Teachers’ Pensions in respect of teachers’
retirement benefits (2022/23: £3.535m). There were no contributions remaining payable at the year-
end. In 2023/24 the minimum member contribution was 7.4 per cent of salary, the maximum was | 1.7
per cent.

The Council is responsible for the costs of any additional benefits awarded upon early retirement
outside of the terms of the teachers’ scheme. These costs are accounted for on a defined benefit basis
and detailed in note 34.2.

34.2 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)

Plymouth City Council and Tamar Bridge and Torpoint Ferry Joint Committee participate in the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). The LGPS is a defined benefit scheme with benefits earned up to
31 March 14 being linked to final salary. Benefits earned after 3|1 March 14 are based on Career Average
Revalued Earnings (CARE). The Plymouth City Council scheme is administered by Devon County
Council, however, the Joint Committee Scheme is administered by Cornwall Council and so separate
notes have been included to represent Plymouth City Council’s 50 per cent interest.

As a result of the High Court’s recent Lloyds ruling on the equalisation of Guaranteed Minimum Pension
(GMP), a number of pension schemes have made adjustments to accounting disclosures. On 23 March
2021, the Government published the outcome to its GMP indexation consultation, concluding that all
public service pension schemes, including LGPS, will be directed to provide full indexation to members
with a GMP reaching State Pension Age (SPA) beyond 5 April 2021. This is a permanent extension of
the existing ‘interim solution’ that has applied to members with a GMP reaching SPA on or after 6 April
2016. This outcome is consistent with the approach adopted by the actuary and there are no
adjustments to be made to the value placed on liabilities.

The McCloud/Sargeant cases relate to age discrimination within the Judicial and Fire Pension Schemes
respectively. Regulations in respect of the McCloud and Sargeant judgements came into force on |
October 2023. The estimated cost of the impact of the McCloud/Sargeant judgement was incorporated

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 103



Page 178

OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

into the pension notes as at 3| March 2022, any changes to these costs in 2023/24 are not expected to
be material.

PENSION INFORMATION FOR THE PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL (PCC) SCHEME
Transactions Relating to Post-Employment Benefits

The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the surplus/deficit on continuing services when
they are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However,
the charge that is required to be made against Council Tax is based on the cash payable in the year, and
the real cost of retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves
Statement.

The following transactions have been made in the CIES and the General Fund Balance via the MiRS
during the year:

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 104



OFFICIAL Page 179

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 2022/23 2023/24

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

£000 £000
Cost of Services
Service cost comprising:
current service cost 24,980 13,748
past service cost | 119
(gain)/loss from settlements (755) (261)
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
Net interest expense 1,670 (2,069)
Other Operating Expenditure
Administration expenses 556 571
Other Post-employment Benefits charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement
Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability comprising:
return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in the net interest expense) 47,049 (56,767)
actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in demographic assumptions 0 (12,778)
actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in financial assumptions (503,150) (19,142)
experience gain/(loss) on defined benefit obligation 105,092 2,453
changes in effect of asset ceiling 0 129,924
Movement in Reserves Statement
Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services for
post-employment benefit in accordance with the Code (26,452) (12,108)
Actual Amount Charged Against the General Fund Balance for Pensions in
the Year:
employers' contribution payable to the scheme 15,382 18,464
retirement benefits payable to pensioners 3,075 3,260
adjustment re: net increase/(decrease) per LGR pension liability 1,478 851

34.3 Assets and Liabilities in Relation to Post-Employment Benefits (PCC)
Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities (defined benefit obligation):

The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns available on
the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments are
based on gross redemption yields as at the Balance Sheet date. Expected returns on equity investments
reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in the respective markets.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 105



Page 180

OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Net Pensions

2023124 S;:seeTse O:Iei;:«:lt?:ns Asfgteéteti)lgng (Lia:il:t;);) or
£000 £000 £000 £000
Opening balance at | April 891,135 (918,063) 0 (26,928)
Current service cost 0 (13,748) 0 (13,748)
Employee contributions 6,701 (6,701) 0 0
Past service cost and gains/losses on settlements (1,796) 1,938 0 142
Interest Income and Expenses 45,655 (43,586) 0 2,069
Admin expenses (571) 0 0 (571)
Remeasurements:
actuarial gains/losses arising from changes in
demographic assumptions 0 12,778 0 12,778
actuarial gains/losses arising from changes in financial
assumptions 0 19,142 0 19,142
other actuarial gains and losses 56,767 (2,453) 0 54,314
change on the effect of the assets ceiling 0 0 (129,924) (129,924)
Council employers contribution 18,464 0 0 18,464
Retirement grants and pensions (41,258) 41,258 0 0

Net Pensions

2022123 S;«Is‘seeTse O:Iei;::i):ns AsE:_ft:e::te(i)I:ng (Liazislité);) or
£000 £000 £000 £000

Opening balance at | April 920,884 (1,287,751) 0 (366,867)
Current service cost 0 (24,980) 0 (24,980)
Employee contributions 6,409 (6,409) 0 0
Past service cost and gains/losses on settlements (2,006) 2,760 0 754
Interest Income and Expenses 34410 (36,080) 0 (1,670)
Admin expenses (556) 0 0 (556)
Remeasurements:

actuarial gains/losses arising from changes in financial
assumptions 0 503,150 0 503,150

other actuarial gains and losses (47,049) (105,092) 0 (152,141)
Council employers contribution 15,382 0 0 15,382
Retirement grants and pensions (36,339) 36,339 0 0

The effect of the asset ceiling has been determined by the Scheme’s actuaries on the basis of the
limitation on the Council’s ability to recover the full economic benefit of its assets through reductions in
future employer’s contributions because of the minimum funding requirement imposed on it by the
funding strategy for the Scheme in place at 3|1 March 2024. Under this strategy, the Council has an
obligation to fund a deficit of £64.262m.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 106



OFFICIAL Page 181 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

The Scheme actuaries have assessed the Council’s estimated future service costs less the estimated
minimum funding requirement contributions to establish the economic benefit that is available to the
Council. The net pensions asset has therefore been adjusted by this effect of the asset ceiling.

34.4 Scheme History (PCC)

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Council has in the long run to pay post-
employment (retirement) benefits. The total liability of £64.262m is shown as a negative balance and
therefore has an impact on the net worth of the Council as recorded in the Balance Sheet. However the
negative balance that arises measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to
account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits earned by employees.

The total contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme by the Council
in the year to 3| March 2025 is £18.773m.

34.5 Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities (PCC)

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate of
the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates,
gender, salary levels, investment returns, interest rates, etc. Both the Local Government Pension
Scheme and Discretionary Benefits liabilities have been assessed by Barnett Waddingham LLP, an
independent firm of actuaries, with the estimates for the City Council’s share of the Fund being based
on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2024.

Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities 2022/23 2023/24

Mortality assumptions:

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
men 21.8 21.5
women 229 22.7

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:

men 23.1 228
women 244 24.1
Rate of inflation (CPI) 2.95% 2.90%
Rate of increase in salaries 3.95% 3.90%
Rate of increase in pensions 2.95% 2.90%
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 4.80% 4.90%
ssumption Assumption
£000 £000 £000
Longevity (increase or decrease in | year) 875,541 909,435 944,797
Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 908,503 909,435 910,374
Rate of increase in pensions (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 896,692 909,435 922,490

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase or decrease by
0.1%) 923,173 909,435 896,030

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 107



OFFICIAL Page 182 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

34.6 Total Assets (PCC)

The Local Government Pension Scheme’s assets consist of the following categories, by proportion of
the total assets held:

Categories by Proportion of the Total Assets Held 2022/23 2023/24

% %
Equities 60 56
Gilts 0 0
Property 18 18
Cash | 2
Other investments 2] 24

o | ol

34.7 Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Council’s obligation in respect of its defined
benefit plan is as follows:

Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000
Present value of the defined benefit obligation 892,179 885,224
Fair value of plan assets (891,135) (975,097)
Neeimbiiy | iou| @973
Other movements in the liability 25,884 24,211
Impact of Asset Ceiling 0 129,924

Net Liability Arising from Defined Benefit Obligation 26,928 m

PENSION INFORMATION FOR TAMAR BRIDGE AND TORPOINT FERRY JOINT
COMMITTEE (TBTF)

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 108



OFFICIAL Page 183

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

34.8 Transactions in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and
Movement in Reserves Statement (TBTF)

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000
Cost of Services
Service cost 856 455
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
Net interest expense 140 40

Total Post-employment Benefit Charged to the Surplus/Deficit on the
Provision of Services

Other Post-employment Benefits charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement

Re-measurement of the net defined benéefit liability comprising:

return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in the net interest expense) 99 (247)
actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in demographic assumptions (122) 71)
actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in financial assumptions (5,920) (800)
experience gain/(loss) on defined benefit obligation 934 376
other actuarial gains/(losses) on assets 0

Total Premeasurements Recognised in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement 742

Total Post-employment Benefits Charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement

Movement in Reserves Statement

Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services for

post-employment benefit in accordance with the Code (996) (494)
Actual Amount Charged Against the General Fund Balance for Pensions in

the Year:

Employers' contribution payable to the scheme 456 504

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 109



Page 184

OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

34.9 Assets and Liabilities in Relation to Post-Employment Benefits (TBTF)

Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit
ioati 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000

Opening Balance at | April (16,184) (12,111)
Current service cost (856) (455)
Interest cost (445) (576)
Contributions from scheme participants (124) (143)
Re-measurement (gain) and losses:

actuarial gains/losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions 122 71

actuarial gains/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 5,920 800

experience loss/(gain) on defined benefit obligation (934) (376)
Benefits paid 390 589

Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme (Plan) Assets 2022/23 2023/24

£000 £000

Opening fair value of scheme assets 11,178 11,574
Adjustment to opening balance 0 (324)
Interest income 305 536
Re-measurement gain/(loss):

the return on plan assets, excluding the amount included in the net interest expense (99) 247
Contributions from employer 456 504
Contributions from employees into the scheme 124 143
Benefits paid (390) (589)

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Joint Committee has to pay in the long run to
pay post-employment (retirement) benefits. The total liability of £0.110m has an impact on the net
worth of the Council as recorded in the Balance Sheet. However the negative balance that arises
measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits
on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits earned by employees.

The total contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme via the Joint
Committee in the year to 31 March 2025 is £0.503m.

34.10 Scheme History (TBTF)

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate of
the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates,
gender, salary levels, investment returns, interest rates, etc. The Cornwall Council pension scheme
liabilities have been assessed by Hymans Robertson LLP, an independent firm of actuaries, with the
estimates for the City Council’s share of the Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme
as at 31 March 2024.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 110



Page 185

OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

34.11 Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities (TBTF)

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate of
the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates,
gender, salary levels, investment returns, interest rates, etc. Both the Local Government Pension
Scheme and Discretionary Benéefits liabilities have been assessed by Hymans Robertson LLP, an
independent firm of actuaries, with the estimates for the City Council’s share of the Fund being based
on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2024.

Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities 2022/23 2023/24

Mortality assumptions:

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
men 20.2 19.6
women 224 21.7

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:

men 22.6 21.5
women 26.2 253
Rate of increase in salaries 3.00% 2.75%
Rate of increase in pensions 3.00% 2.75%
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 4.75% 4.85%

35 Contingent Assets and Liabilities

35.1 Contingent Assets

The Council has the following contingent assets to report:
Plymouth Airport

Plymouth City Airport is let on 150 year lease from 2004. The Council's Lessee served notice of its
intention to close the airport in December 2010 because of continuing trading losses. On 23 August
201 | the Council’s Cabinet accepted the notice of non-viability from the Lessee following receipt of
three independent reviews of the airport business and options for its financial viability. The Airport
closed for business in December 201 |. The Council’s freehold and the Lessee’s leasehold interest are
due to be merged and the former Lessee will then be responsible for obtaining planning permission and
marketing the site. Any eventual net land disposals proceeds will be divided between the Council and
the former Lessee 75%/25% less certain deductions. However, the timing and amount of any such
receipts, if any, is uncertain; and is subject to a review of strategic policies that are applicable to the site.
In February 2024 the Council served Section 146 Notices on Plymouth City Airport Ltd (PCAL) as it
considers that PCAL is in breach of the lease terms.

35.2 Contingent Liabilities

The Council has no known material contingent liabilities to report.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS I



Page 186

OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

COLLECTION FUND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

The Collection Fund is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory obligation for billing authorities
to maintain a separate Collection Fund. The statement shows the transactions of the billing authority in
relation to the collection from taxpayers and the distribution to Local Authorities and the Government
of Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 112



Page 187

OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

L 2023/24
Business Council Business Coun

£000 £000 £000 Income £000 £000 £000
0 (151,981) (151,981)  Council tax receivable | 0 (160,460) (160,460)
(80,732) 0 (80,732)  Business rates receivable 2 (86,183) 0 (86,183)
(80,732)  (151,981)  (232,713) (86,183)  (160,460)  (246,643)
Expenditure

Apportionment of Previous Year's Surplus/

(Deficit)
(21,146) 0 (21,146)  Central Government 4,748 0 4,748
(20,723) (895) (21,618)  Plymouth City Council 4,653 1,473 6,126
Devon and Cornwall Police and Crime
0 (127) (127)  Commissioner 0 222 222
(423) (54) (477) Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Service 95 84 179
(42,292) (1,076) (43,368) 9,496 1,779 11,275

Precepts, Demands and Shares

38,443 0 38,443  Central Government 43,590 0 43,590

37,674 123,287 160,961  Plymouth City Council 42,719 131,300 174,019
Devon and Cornwall Police and Crime

0 18,204 18,204 Commissioner 0 19,588 19,588

769 6,777 7,546  Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Service 872 7,249 8,121

76,886 148,268 225,154 87,181 158,137 245,318

Charges to the Collection Fund

209 0 209 Renewable Energy Disregard 233 0 233

181 669 850  Write offs of uncollectable amounts 133 443 576

36 274 310 Increase/(Decrease) in Bad Debt Provision 213 1,565 1,778
(2,244) 0 (2,244)  Increase/(Decrease) in Provision for Appeals (2,584) 0 (2,584)
0 0 0 Interest paid on refunds to ratepayers 80 0 80

308 0 308 Cost of collection allowance 306 0 306
(1,510) 943 (567) (1,619) 2,008 389

Collection Fund Balance

39,265 (690) 38,575 Balance as at | April (8,383) (4,536) (12,919)
(47,648) (3,846) (51,494)  (Surplus)/Deficit for the year (as above) 8,875 1,464 10,339
(8,383) (4,536) (12,919) Balance as at 31 March 492 (3,072) (2,580)

Allocated to:
(4,191) 0 (4,191) Central Government 246 0 246
(4,108) (3,762) (7,870) Plymouth City Council 24| (2,551) (2,310)
Devon and Cornwall Police and Crime
0 (563) (563) Commissioner 0 (38l) (38l)
(84) 211) (295) Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Service 5 (140) (135)
(8,383) (4,536) (12,919) Total Allocated 492 (3,072) (2,580)

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 113



Page 188

OFFICIAL PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

NOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUND

I Council Tax Income

Council Tax income derives from charges raised according to the value of residential properties, which
have been classified into 8 valuation bands based on an estimated | April 1991 value for this specific
purpose. Individual charges are calculated by estimating the amount of income required to be taken
from the Collection Fund by Devon and Cornwall Police and Crime Commissioner, Devon and
Somerset Fire and Rescue Authority and the City Council for the forthcoming year and dividing this by
the Council Tax base. The tax base is the total number of properties in each band adjusted by a
proportion to convert the number to a Band D equivalent and adjusted for discounts and estimated
collection rates: 74,891 in 2023/24 (2022/23: 73,830).

The basic amount of Council Tax for a Band D property (2023/24: £2,111.56) is multiplied by the
proportion specified for the particular band to give an individual amount due. The calculation of the
Council Tax Base is shown in the following table:

Band Prc':lp(:ar?:ies Prc':lp(:ar?:ies Band D (E:scflilrcat'i:f): ABdi::teDd
I:).Before .After Equivalents Rates B e
Iscounts Discounts
A 45,035 30,027 20,008 97.5% 19,508
B 31,882 25,930 20,168 97.5% 19,664
C 22,578 20,100 17,867 97.5% 17,420
D 9,520 8,770 8,770 97.5% 8,551
E 4,950 4,681 5,721 97.5% 5,578
F 1,829 1,744 2,519 97.5% 2,456
G 560 531 885 97.5% 863
H 29 22 43 97.5% 42
116,383 91,805 75,981 74,082
Adjustment for MOD properties 809

The Council Tax Base was calculated at the time the 2023/24 budget was set, based on the estimated
number of properties and value of discounts applicable to each band at that time. The estimated income,
allowing for non-collection, was £158.137m (£2,111.56 x 74,891). In practice, however, the average
number of properties and values of discounts vary from the estimates, and the actual income increased
to £160.460m (2022/23: £151.981m).

2 Income from Business Ratepayers

The Council collects Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) for its area based on local rateable values provided by
the Valuation Office Agency (VOA) multiplied by a uniform business rate set nationally by Central
Government, this was frozen at 51.2p for 2023/24 at the same level as the rate for 2022/23, the rate for
properties in receipt of Small Business Rate Relief was kept at 49.9p.

The administration of NDR is governed by the Business Rates Retention Scheme which was introduced
in 2013/14. This aims to give councils a greater incentive to grow businesses but also increases the
financial risk due to volatility of the NDR tax base and non-collection of rates due. In the case of
Plymouth, the retained proportion of NDR income is 49 per cent. The remainder is distributed to
preceptors: | per cent to the Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Authority (DSFRA) and 50 per cent
to Central Government.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 114



OFFICIAL Page 189 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL
The business rates shares payable for 2023/24 were estimated before the start of the financial year as
£43.590m to Central Government, £0.872m to DSFRA and £42.719m to Plymouth City Council.

These sums have been paid during 2023/24 and charged to the Collection Fund in year and include the
previous year’s surplus.

When the scheme was introduced the Government set a baseline funding level (based on local demand
for services) for each authority and applied the system of tariffs and top-ups to ensure all authorities
receive their baseline amount. In 2023/24 Plymouth had a baseline amount of £60.518m and received a
top-up of £15.077m which was charged to the General Fund and included in note 14.

In addition to the top-up and tariffs, a safety net figure is calculated by Central Government. This
mechanism is designed to protect local authorities from large fluctuation in their business rates income.
The safety net threshold for Plymouth is £55.979m. As our adjusted retained income is above this level
no safety net payment was due to Plymouth for 2023/24.

Section 3| Grant funding for Business Rate reliefs awarded by Central Government in 2023/24 was
£17.992m based on the original estimates made in January 2023. Under the rates retention scheme local
authorities became liable for their share of the liability arising from the in-year and backdated impact of
successful business rate appeals. Based on the analyses of previous year trends and the list of
outstanding appeals provided by the VOA as at 31 March 2024 the Council included a provision of
£9.688m.

For 2023/24, the total non-domestic rateable value at the end of the year was £241.199m (2022/23:
£227.710m).

3 Precepts and Demands
3.1 Council Tax

The budgets of the City Council, Devon and Cornwall Police and Crime Commissioner, Devon and
Somerset Fire and Rescue Authority are partly financed from the Council Tax. The sums required from
Council Tax by the Council, Fire Authority and Police Commissioner are determined by each body as
part of the budget process and are called demands (Council) and precepts (Fire and Police). The income
from Council Tax payers is paid into the Collection Fund and payments are made from the Collection
Fund for the demands and precepts due to the Council, Fire Authority and Police Commissioner.

3.2 Non-Domestic Rates

As described previously in note 2, the administration of NDR is governed by the Business Rate
Retention Scheme.

NDR surpluses declared by the billing authority in relation to the Collection Fund are apportioned to
the relevant precepting bodies in the subsequent financial year in their respective proportions. Deficits
likewise are proportionately charged to the relevant precepting bodies in the following year.

2023/24 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 15



This page is intentionally left blank



OFFICIAL Page 191

%

iy
PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

David Northey

Grant Thornton UK LLP Director of Finance
2 Glass Wharf Plymouth City Council
Bristol Floor 1, Ballard House
BS2 OEL West Hoe Road
Plymouth
PLI 3BJ

www.plymouth.gov.uk

I8 February 2025

Dear Grant Thornton UK LLP

Plymouth City Council - Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial statements of
Plymouth City Council for the year ended 3| March 2024 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as
to whether the Council financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards, and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24 and applicable law.

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

Financial Statements

i.  We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the Council’s financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24 ("the Code"); in
particular the financial statements are fairly presented in accordance therewith.

ii.  Woe have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the Council and
these matters have been appropriately reflected and disclosed in the financial statements.

iii.  The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a
material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. There has been no
non-compliance with requirements of any regulatory authorities that could have a material
effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance.

iv.  We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

v.  Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured
at fair value, are reasonable. Such accounting estimates include land and buildings valuations,
investment property valuations and the valuation of the net pension fund liability. We are
satisfied that the material judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are
soundly based, in accordance with the Code and adequately disclosed in the financial
statements. We understand our responsibilities includes identifying and considering
alternative, methods, assumptions or source data that would be equally valid under the
financial reporting framework, and why these alternatives were rejected in favour of the



OFFICIAL

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Page 192

estimate used. We are satisfied that the methods, the data and the significant assumptions
used by us in making accounting estimates and their related disclosures are appropriate to
achieve recognition, measurement or disclosure that is reasonable in accordance with the
Code and adequately disclosed in the financial statements.

We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation of

pension scheme assets and liabilities for IAS19 Employee Benefits disclosures are consistent
with our knowledge. We confirm that all settlements and curtailments have been identified
and properly accounted for. We also confirm that all significant post-employment benefits

have been identified and properly accounted for.

Except as disclosed in the financial statements:

a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent
b. none of the assets of the Council has been assigned, pledged or mortgaged

c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-recurring
items requiring separate disclosure.

Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards
and the Code.

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which International
Financial Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment or disclosure have been
adjusted or disclosed.

We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and disclosures changes
schedules included in your Audit Findings Report. The Council’s financial statements have
been amended for these misstatements, misclassifications and disclosure changes and are free
of material misstatements, including omissions.

We have considered the unadjusted misstatements schedule included in your Audit Findings
Report. We have not adjusted the financial statements for these misstatements brought to
our attention as they are immaterial to the results of the Council and its financial position at
the year-end.

Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance
with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.

We have considered whether the Council are required to reflect a liability in respect of equal
pay claims within its financial statements. We confirm that we are satisfied that no liability
needs to be recognised on the grounds that

i. a Collective Agreement was reached in May 2000 with the recognised trade unions
as part of the single status agenda

ii.  the Council has adopted the equality proofed National Joint Council (NJC) for Local
Government’s Job Evaluation Scheme which ensures that work of equal value is
allocated to the same salary banding, progression within which is determined by
performance. The Scheme is regularly updated to comply with equal pay legislation

iii.  the Council’s Pay Policy Statement determines its approach to pay and the Human
resources Committee ensures the provisions set out in the statement are applied
consistently throughout the Council

iv.  role and working arrangements whereby individuals or groups may work less time
that their contractual hours do not exist in the Council and the group as services
where these practices might arise have been contracted out



OFFICIAL

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

XVii.

Page 193

We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification of
assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements.

We have updated our going concern assessment. We continue to believe that the Council’s
financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis and have not identified any
material uncertainties related to going concern on the grounds that:

a. the nature of the Council means that, notwithstanding any intention to cease its
operations in their current form, it will continue to be appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting because, in such an event, services it performs can be
expected to continue to be delivered by related public authorities and preparing the
financial statements on a going concern basis will still provide a faithful representation
of the items in the financial statements

b. the financial reporting framework permits the entity to prepare its financial statements
on the basis of the presumption set out under a) above; and

c. the Council’s system of internal control has not identified any events or conditions
relevant to going concern.

We believe that no further disclosures relating to the Council’s ability to continue as a going
concern need to be made in the financial statements

The Council has complied with all aspects of ring-fenced grants that could have a material
effect on the Council’s financial statements in the event of non-compliance.

Information Provided

XViii.

XiX.

XX.

All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the
financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

On 30 September 2024 parliament approved the Accounts and Audit (Amendment)
Regulations 2024. These Regulations set a publication date for financial statements in respect
of 2023/24 of 28 February 2025. The new National Audit Office Code which was approved on
|4 November 2024 also requires that where auditors are unable to conclude their work, they
should issue either a qualified audit opinion or a disclaimer of opinion by this date, known as
the ‘statutory backstop date’. It has not been possible to provide you with the all the required
information for you to complete your audit for year ending 3|1 March 2024 by the statutory
backstop date. This is due to disclaimed opinions being issued on the 2021/22 and 2022/23
financial statements which in turn impacts on the opening balance position for the 2023/24
financial year. This includes the following:

a. providing you with:

i.  access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of
the Council’s financial statements such as records, documentation and other
matters;

ii.  additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your
audit; and

iii. access to persons within the Council via remote arrangements from whom you
determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

b. communicating to you all deficiencies in internal control of which management is aware.

c. disclosing to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.



OFFICIAL Page 194

d. disclosing to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are
aware of and that affects the Council and involves:

i.  management;
ii. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
iii.  others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

e. disclosing to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud,
affecting the financial statements communicated by employees, former employees,
analysts, regulators or others.

f. disclosing to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance
with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial
statements.

g. disclosing to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should
be considered when preparing the financial statements.

Annual Governance Statement

xxi.  We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the Council's
risk assurance and governance framework and we confirm that we are not aware of any
significant risks that are not disclosed within the AGS.

Narrative Report

xxii. ~ The disclosures within the Narrative Report fairly reflect our understanding of the Council's
financial and operating performance over the period covered by the Council’s financial
statements.

Approval

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Council’s Audit & Governance
Committee at its meeting on |8 February 2025.

Yours faithfully



OFFICIAL Page 195

Signed on behalf of the Council



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 197

IVIDIH40 $20T AIn[ uoisuap

Ly FONVNYIAOD 3LVYOdY0D 40 340D - T xipuaddy
6T Aaaung wea | diysaapea Jojuag — | xipuaddy

.v_ ......................................................................................................................................................................................................... mNQL( \AL®>__®D _UE.N @UENCL®>OO \AQV_
0 ............................................................................................................................................................... V—LO))QE.N(_H_ QUCNCQ_Q>OO @UN(_OQLOU W.__UC—._OU %H_U F—U—.—OE%_Q
m ..................................................................................................................................................................... QUC@.._.OD ..—.O mw_.__l_ ww.._r_|_| wr_l_l - V_LO;GEN(_H_ @UCNLSWW( ®£|_|

s ueyg wum.hOn_._OU syl

€ UOIIBDIJ11497) PUE SDURBINSSY JO JUSWIDIEIS

N .................................................................................................................................................. V_n—ozrmﬂ\—\_mn—m wu:.ﬂ:(—w>ow QF_H .*O mmoa:-:m v:m %U___Q_Mcoamwm .*o waoum

S1UU0)

TSN ALID

HLNOWATd

ﬁw PT0T/€T0TC LNIJWILVLS FONVNYUIAOD TVNNN

V101440



Page 198

§§ Jo 7 93¢ ¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

"SJUNODY JO JUSWIEIS Y3 jo [eAoudde ayy jo ajep

ay1 01 dn pue 707 Yo4ely | £ Sulpua Jeak Yy Joy [1puno) A1) Yinowi|d 1€ 2de|d Ul u9aq SBY HJOMBWE.} DDUBUISAOS 3y “A|[EDILIOUODID PUB A[PAIDYR
‘Apuadiys wayy a8euew o) pue ‘pasiead aq Aoyl pjnoys 1oedwi aya pue pasijead 3ulaq $siJ SOY) JO POOYI|S>]I| SY3 9IBN|BAS O3 ‘S9ANI3[qO pue swie
‘sapijod s [15UnoD) a3 JO JUSWSASIYDE Y3 03 SHsId Y3 asnitolud pue Ayauspi 03 paudisap ssad0.4d Sulo8-uo ue UO paseq Si [0JIUOD [BUJIUI JO WISAS Y|

"SSOUDAIIDDYD JO DDUBINSSE IN|OSCE JOU PUE d|qeuosead apiroad AJuo auojeuayl ued pue saAnd3[qo pue swie ‘saidijod dA3IYdE 0] aJ4n|iey
JO [SIJ ||B 91BUIWI|S JOUUED 3] "|9AS| 9|qBUOSES. B O3 djslu 93eurwW O3 pausISap S| pue dJomawe.y Jeyl Jo 1aed Juediyiudis e si [0JIU0D [eula)ul JO WISAS Y|

‘Asuow 1o} anfeA pue sadiAlas djeludouadde jo AusAljap sy 01 pa| 9ABY S9AIID3[qO SSOYI UBYISYM ISPISUOD O) PUEB SDAIID3[qO
21893835 S JO JUSWDASIYDE dY) Jojluow 03 AJLIOYINE dY3 S9|RUS 3| "AJUNWWOD dY3 SPES| PUB YuM saSe3us ‘01 SJUNODIE 3 YdIYm ysnouys saniAnde
SJ1 PUE P3)|0J3U0d puE pa3daJIp sI A31J0YIne 3yl YdIym AqQ ‘SSNn[eA pue 24mjnd pue ‘sassadoud pue swaisAs oyl saslidwod dJomawe.y 9dUBUISA0S Y|

asodung

"JUSWJEIS 9DUBUISAOS [enuue ue duedaud o3
S3IpOQ JUBAS|3. ||B SaJInbau Ydiym ‘G| 7 SUONEBINSSY PNy PUB SIUNOIDY SI[BAA PUE puB|Sug “QUSWUISAOK) 8207 3yl jo (])9 uonenday jo syusawadinbau
93 SI99W 31 MOY OS[e PUB 3DUBUIDAOE) 33e40dI0D) JO 9pOD) Y3 Yim paljdwod sey [1DUnoD) Yl Moy sule|dxa Juawalel§ 9DUBUISAOL) [BNUUY SIY |

s Jo JuswaBeUBW BY3 U0} SIUSWSSURIIE SSPN|UI YdIYM SUOINDUNY S |IDUNOD) dY JO SSIDIDXD dANIYS a3 Sunell|de)
‘sJIB}e S JO 9DUBUIDA0S Y3 40} syuswadue.ie yadoud ade(d ul 3unind Joj sjqisuodsau si [1DunoD) A1) Yanowk|d ‘Aljiqisuodsau |[edaAo siya SuiSieydsip uj

"SSOUDANIRYS pue AdusdIYs ‘AWOUOID JO UoNBUIqWOD B 0) pJe3aJ SulARy ‘PasIDIDXD dJe
suonduny s) AeM a3 Ul JUSWSACIdW] SNONUIIUOD 94N3S 03 SIUSWSSUEBIE 9dBW 01 00T 22V IUSWUISAOL) |80 33 J9pun AInp & sey OS|e |IDuUnoD) ay|

‘A|oAD3ys pue Apuaidlyd ‘A|[ed1WoUOdd pasn pue uoj pajunodde Ajuado.ud pue papaendajes s
Asuow d11qnd 3eY3 pue ‘spaepuels Jodoud pue me| Sy YIIM SDUBPJOIIE Ul PSIDNPUOD S| Ssaulsnq s3Il 3Byl Sulunsud 4oy a|qisuodsad si [1DunoD) A1) YyanowA|d

adoog

NHOMINWVYULd IONVNUIAOD FHL 40 3SOdHNd ANV ALITIFISNOdS3Y 40 3d0OOS

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440



Page 199

§§ Jo ¢ 93¢ ¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

:pareq :pareq :pareq
9dUBULY 10} 103U 9AIN3XJ JBIYD [15unoD) A1) Yinowi|d jo JopeaT
AayaoN pireq 997 Aokl SUBAJ JOpN ] JO|[I2UNoy

"M3IA3J [BNUUR IX3U JNnO jo 1Jed se uonesado pue uoneiusawsjdwi Ji9y3 Jojjuow
[IM PUB SSDUSAIIDD JO MIIASJ JNO Ul PILJIIUSPI 349M JBY) SIUSWSAOIdWI 1O} Pa3U dY3 SSDUPPE ||IM sda3s 9say) Jey) palsiies ae dAA "SIuswWaue. e
92UBUJSAOSZ UNO 9DUBYUS JBY3uny 03 ‘spiemuo g| 93ed e paqlidsap S.Ja33eW dY) ssSUppE 03 sdais el 01 Jeak Sulwod ay3 a0 asodoud SpA

NOILVOIHdILYID ANV IDNVUNSSY 40 LNIWILVLS

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWAd
vIOI440



S J0 § 98y

Page 200

ue|danopin-ao8 yynowkjd -mmm

YanowK|d 4oy
92104 Buouis e Bureg

3jes san/uNWWod
puE s3jnpe ‘ua.pjiy> Buidasy @F

B

y=s ano Bui3edus AnSpUap pue 24D ‘Ya[eay O3 5530DE

pue Suiamodug 491399 aplacad 03 SHN 242 Yaim SUBLIOAA
Ajpsim uoneJNpa J213aq
Asuow Buipuadg PUE S||D[S ‘SGO[ USWISIAU| USIID)

uopURAIR1Ul Al4Ea pue
uonuaasid uo 3uisnaog

diysaaumo 3|qep.ioye
PUE 1UaJ [RI20S 10} - SBWIOY BJOW pjing

j4odsue.) pue 5393.05
Jaua3.8 Ysuead ‘sajoaod Jamaq

i K16 E

JNOIABYRq [BIDOS-1IUB puE
BWHIS 3pj3e) 01 331|Od Y3 Y31 BUBLIOAA

‘A€ SIHLONIOAQ ‘SILLIYNONINd ¥NO

sis12 ulAl] §o 3502 343 jo 3oeduur 3y IsiunuLy
pio mo.43 pue dn mou8 03 ase|d 38348 © yinowh|d e

TIMIMN

Ao ano

3UOJE PINOM 3M ui Aainbaui pue ! 193 .. uem 3|doad
uey3 4332801 auow Ajjenbaul ssauppe o1 | B¢ I ; JBYM JB3Y pue
SA3IYDE M 3sneddg JUBM M 35NBIRG - aue: 23 u1sI| 9M Bsnedag

NOILYH¥3IdO-0D SSANYIVY \ : 19ISNO: ADVHOOW3a

‘NI JATIT39 IM

g J12y S90p 2uokIans duaym K Jeusals ualiey e yanowA|d Subiell INOISSIIW ¥NO

fa1D P00 SWELE 2uokJaA3 Aq pakolua si ay1 jo Auenb Buipueisino ue
qInowA|d 249UM ‘SB13ID JUOULIDIBM JUBIQGIA 3sOW sadoun] Jo suQ

WDNNOD ALID

A31D uesdQ surellig :NOISIA ALID

LU HINOWATd ¥31139 v dling

NV1d 4NoO

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

"S991IWIWOD
Aunnudg pue Jauiqe) ‘Wea | juswadeue),

9jeJ0duoD) 01 pajuasaud pue siseq Ajua1aenb e uo
pajepdn s| 7I0day SoUBWIOKS] Ue]d 93eJ0dIioy ay |

‘sue|d AuaAljop

PU® SS2UISNQ 93€J0323.Ip ‘QUaWIsaAul [eyded Uelg
PNOWA|d Y3 YSnodyy padJnosaJ pue pajeuipiood
aJe Yd1ym s1d3foud pue sawwesdoud oydads ydnoayy
PaJaAIBP 2] ||Im saniuolid ueld ajedodio) mau ay |

“TZ0T 2>uls a5¢e[d ur ue[d a3 padejdad pue
‘€707 dun[ ut [pUnoD) Aq paroudde sem 3] * yanowA|d

J9139q ® p|ing, 0 UOISSIW J4NO INO SIS 970
-£70T ueld ea0daor) j1puno) A1) yainowAd|d oyl

NV1d 31V30Odd0D dH.L

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440



Page 201

GG 40 g @8ed

‘s9ss920.d JusWaSeUBW {SIJ PUE S|OJIUOD [BUJIDIUI JO SSDUDAIIIYD
3y Joluow 03 pue YSISISAO UlRIUIBW O SO S,29NWWOD)
9DUBUISAOL) PUE 1IPNY Y3 SI I| HAOMBWEI) DUBUISAOZ

[0J42UOD [eUIIUI BY) U SHSE) diyIdads DABY 9DUSJSP JO SaUI| 33U ||
9]0y S,99731WIWI0D) SOUBUIIAOD puUe JIpny

"S9[IAIIDE JIPNE [BUIDIUI SE [[OM SE

"92UdJ3P JO 3ul| pAIYd
10 puOodas sl A3 Jo 1ued SWOS .10 ‘DJOYM Y3 SSISSE 03 UONdUNY
9A1I3lqo pue Juapuadapui ue 3uipiroad AqQ 24n32N.3S [OJIUOD

PUE 92UBUISAOS [[BJ9AO Y3 Ul 9joJ Jueliodw] UB SABY INQ 2JNIDNAIS
[I2UNOD dY3 SPISINO JPIsaJ S.0IB|NSS.J PUE SJOIPNE [BUIIIXT
s103)e|n33y pue s103Ipny [eu.ajx3y

Hpny |eusaiu|

K194eS 3 Y1jeaH
3 uone|nday ‘soueljdwo)

JuaWaSeue) 3UBWLIOHA]

JuaWageue Ysiy

Juswaseuey uopjewloyu|

Suroday [epueuly

saunseaj
|043U0) [eUJBIU| | JuswWaSeuep

s|053u0)

Regulator
External Audit

20U343q 40 aur pIg

20U3Ja(Q J0 aur puz

2Judja(Q Jo aur] IsT

L

Juawadeuely Jo1uas

Apog Suuianog / 9911107 9IUBUIBAOD puR PNy

'saAnRdalqo

[euonesjuedio jo salio3aled
||e pue (uonewL.IOU] PaJE[.
3SlJ JO UOIBDIUNWWOD O3
‘asuodsa. pue JUSWISSISSE
Js ‘uonedyIIuSp!

SSIJ WOU) dJOMBWE.
JuswWadeurW sl

§]12UN0D) 3yl JO sIUBWB|S
[ sossedwodud 3] "9dudep
JO saul| puodas pue

1S41J DY JO SSDUIANIDYD
9yl Uo ddueINSSE

3PNl |[IM pUE SY|Sl

s)| s93BUBW pUE SISSISSE
uones|uedio ay3 A[9AIId9Y0
MOY JSAOD |[IM dDUBINSSE
siy] uswadeuew

Joluas s ,uonesiuedio ayy
01 ddue.nsse aplao.d om
s3] 03 yoeoudde paseq-y|sid
e y3noJya ‘||im uonduny
2pNe [euJa3ul Juspuadspul
Uy "9JUdap JO dul| pAIYd
9y SW.JO} JIpNE [euldu|
Ul jo dui paiy L

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

"3ul| 3S.1} dY) Woy
uapuadapul ApJnus

J0U 3JE INq A3AIIRIqO

Jo 22.39p swos

aARY AeW JBY) suonduny
JuswaseurwW Aj[ensn aJe
9say] ‘uonesjuesio ay3
umop pue dn uopew.oyul
paiejaJ dsid a1enbape
8unJuodau ul susumo

>S4 3Y3 sasisse pue
Juswaseuew [euopesado
Aq sednoe.d JuswsSeuew
dSId 9ANDRYS

Jo uonerusws|dwi

ay3 sa3el|IdR) pue
$JO3IUOW DIUDYDP JO dUl|
SIY| "9dUuBU.IDAOS [eUJIUI
Jo sauauodwod [eJaAds
AqQ paJaA0d saIAIDE

JO SISISUOD dDUBYP

JO dul| puodas ay |
suopjdung

3y3is4aAQ — U3k
JO 3uI puodag

‘sso48oud

uo 3upJodaJ pue sjoJ3uod
Supuswa|dwy ‘suonoe
JuswaAoadwi ssauisng pue
sysi ulfjnuapi Aq adue.nsse
uswadeurw saplroad
9DUBJBpP O dul| IS4l Y|
‘asuodsau

pU® UO[EIIIIUSPI dPINb

01 [e1dNJd s1 sl uo 3unJodau
s1poldad pue juswadeuew st
9AIDY "sadueyd sl uiSuswd
PUE JUSWUO.IIAUD SSauisnq
a3 03 sasueyd Joj payipowl
pue pajepdn ‘pamalAad
A]pAnnoeoud aq 03 spasu
9youd sl Y| 'SIUSWISSISSE
>SId D>jBW pUE SUoRIUYIP sl
918940 01 p3||pys A|9aenbape
9q p|noys juswadeuew

au ‘suonesado Aep-03

-Aep jo 1ied se paysijqelss sl
JUSWUOUIAUD [OJIUOD PUE sl
® 383 3ulINsud Joj 9|qisuodsau
9Je Juswdeurw dul
saJnses|y

|o43u0D) [euJdalU] pUE
sjo43uo)) JusawaSeuely

— 323udya Jo duIT IsJi4

-:SUOIIdUN} 3SAYI USIMIDG dIYSUOIIB[] SYI SMOYS MO[q WEJSeIp Y| "9IUBINSSE PUB IDUBUISAOS SAIIIIYS ASIYDE O [OJ4IUOD PUE sl ‘Supjew
UOISIDSP JO} SI1I[IqBIUNODIE pue saNI|iqisuodsad ‘S3|0d 34NIdNJIS PUB SJBIISUOWSP O3 suedw AJewlud Syl Se pasn S| [9POL SIUBINSSY U JO SAUIT 334y dY|

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

AON3433A 40 SANIT IFYHL FHL - IHOMIWVYLd IONVUHNSSY dHL

V101440



Page 202

GG 40 9 a8y

"91BJNDDE U SJUDWISILIS SDUBWLIONS] =

‘0) paJaype aJe sassadoud  «

‘yam palldwod aJe suonendad pue SMe|

‘)W 3. SPJEPUE]S [BDIYID u
WAEYNRETTE)

pu® A[JUaIDIYd POJDAI|DP JE SADIAJISS AJljenb ySiy
‘9o130eud

ul yam parjdwod usaq aAey sapijod s Laluoyiny 9yl «

-:3BY3 asuednsse GU_>O._n_ O] wie juswalelg
9JOUEBULIBAOK) |ENnUuUy/ 3yl pue apo)) ayl UlyiIm sjlezsg

"MOJ3q InO
19s s1 so|didpulad aya Jo yoes yum A|dwod o1 /€707 404 22¢d
Ul sJusWS3UE.LIE [BDO] S |I2UN0D) Y3 Jo AJewiwns [9A3)-y3ly v

‘(9 - D) s9|didulud uayzo |je ssoude A|dde g pue vy sajdiduid
9sa491ul d1iqnd ay3 ui Sunde Joj syuswadinbaa Sulydaeaano sy

‘sawin ||e
3® 3saJ93ul d1jqnd ay3 ur Sunde JIYM SSWODINO PapuUl JIdYL
9A9IYDE. 0] 593 P|NOYS [12UNOT) Y3 SJUBUIIAOS POOS SA3IYdE
0] "Jay3o Yoes 03 33e[aJ 40323s di|qnd dY3 Ul SDUBUIDAOS
poo3 Joy sajdidulid snoliea ayl moy saje.aisn||i wedSelp siy |

JUSWUISAOE) |ED0T Ul 3JUBUJSAOL) pOOD) MC_._w>__wD

ddomawe.y 9107 IDVI1OS/V4dID a3 Jo sajdipuiid sy yaim
JUISISUOD S| BDUBUISAOL) 3JeJ0dI07) JO 9pO) §,|IDUNOD) Y|

SELLICEI]NN
B} jO jUELasB|oE
Bl s2indo o
AdEEsssal SUDilaesain

oL BujLiungag a

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

T LTI SIENPIARRUE
sl pue diysapes) 5 jo
Al s Bupre)
paedes < fiwe
By Hudoiassg

wewaiausw [EiouEL)
Spjgnd Gusouys pue

yEnouljj eaueiicpad pue
sysu Guibeuepy .m

SAE] B0 BT B
Bupbadeal pue 'san
IEDIL)S Qp JLPRLLIGILLILLIT
Bunenpsuouap SjubEgu
s Blossireg ..q

NHOMINWYTUd IONVNIUIAOD F1VHOdHOD SAIONNOID ALID HLNOWAd

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440



§§ Jo £ 3%ed ¥T07/€C0C LINFWILVLS IDNVNYUIAOD TVNNNY

syure|dwod

"1$9.93Ul JO $I2IU0d ZeUBW PUE ISUUI J3SISD.] PRI PRAIEt)) SRR O

01 pue Ajjelidsoy pue s)i8 SJe|2ap 03 SUDYQO PUB SIaqUISL, Joj 938|d ul SJe SJUSWSBURILY u Ad1j0d SUIMO|GRPSIYAA =

“JBUWLIOJ PISIWAUOUE UB U] 9913IWIWOY) DUBUIIAOL) PUE PNy A3a1e.35 JUswageue),
ay1 01 pariodad 9q |[IM Y2IYM ‘SSWOIN0 PUE Pasied SUJIddUOD 3y Jo pJodad e Sululejurew Aumuoddo pue sty =
pue Adjjod sy Sulioniuow sapnjoutl siy ] “Ad1jod Suimolgapsiym a3 jo uonesado

suoneRYy
pue dcueUSIUIRW B3 Joj Aljiqisuodsau [[edaAo sey diysiaulied PNy UOAS(] JO PESH 9Y| =

J21O J9quia}, JOj 020104 m

"3J91 Passaddk 9q UBd 1Bj|00] S Joj|Iduno?) ay] ‘qol Jivys op

01 sJoj|1puno?) 3uiddinbs ‘sueid uno jo syuswsje [|e aJ4' SupjeW-UOISIOAP WOl 0 JySisul
Jawo31snd pue >deqpas) pue 3uljpuey 3JOM3sEd d|qel|aJ ‘syuswadue.le SulAjos wajqo.d
Aduade-njnw ‘suo||1PUNo0?) J0j SJUSWS3UERLIE JUSWS3E3UD PUB SDUBUISAOS POSBQ-PIBAA = sajoy 42O A1oimels

AjjeadsoH/sasaJaiu|
JOo U21s132Y

‘0007 3PV USWUISAOKL) [Bd0T 33 Aq pasnpo.aul Ad1jog Buimolg SISIYAA =

) SJUSWS3UBIE SAIIN9X3 Sy Y3nouy paiededss usaq sey suolisidap Jo Aunnads pue Subjew Aoj04 uondnaios

O UoISII9(] °|IPUNOD) 3Y3 JO SJUBUISAOS SY3 J0j 3|qIsuodsad A|SAIIDS[|0D SJ. SI9qWISL Po129|F = e

N o ‘ ‘ ‘ pue Auaquig ‘pnea4-nuy =
(<] 'Ss|o2030.

') Ue so q _ d 12Npuo)) JO SBPOD) =
S p poD 9say3 Japun sanljiqisuodsau 4193 JO SUBME 3B SO PUE SIaquId)

al JBY3 94Nnsud 03 92e[d Ul SJE SJUBWIZUBIIY "UOIINIIISUOD) S [IPUNOD) BYI UIYIIM S|OD0104d puUe Ue|d @e40duo) «

19NpUO?) JO SBPOD) YSNOoJY3 PIIEIIUNWIWOD PUB PaUlSP dJe AJIUNWWOD dY3 pue siaulJed

SJNIONJIS 9911IWWOD)  »
$31 ‘s1adIYO PUE SJaquIB|, JO Pa12adxa unolAeYaq |euosiad pue 1oNpuUOd JO SPJIBPUBIS BY| u

Uone3s[3(J JO SoWRYdS u
*Alunwwod sYy3 Joj s9IAISS pue sanliolid [12unod jo AJsAlRp 3yl

suidispun pue 22UeUISA0S POO3 JO AIDAI[DP SY3 03 Ad| SE PaSPIJMOLD|IE S| ME| JO J|NJ B
Sun>adsau pue sanjeA [ed1Yy3s 03 JusWIWWwod 3uouls Sunesisuowap ‘A1idaul YMm SulAeydg =

uoiInliIsuoy) s |dUN0c) =

"8 07 Ul panss! 9dUeUJISAOK) 3edodioD) Jo apoD) pajepdn |1punoD) Sunuoday [edueuly

9Y3 JO 1Y3I| Ul POMBIASI US3Q SBY PUB 9| (T Y-4OMSWE.I{ JUSWUISAOL) [BDOT Ul SDUBUISAOD)

poon) ulJsAI[RQ 928|0S/W4dID YIM SUl| Ul PIMSIASI US3] SBY JUSWSILIS SOUBUISAOD)
SIY ul paqudsap se (7 xipuadde) S5UBUISACK) 91810dI07) JO 9p07) [B207] §,[PUNCH 3Y] =

ME] Jo 3|NJ 33 3undadsau

PUE S3N[BA [BDIY3S O3 JUSWIIWWOD
Suouas 3upeaisuowap ‘A3lu3aul
yum 3uiaeyag — v d|dipulid

"92UBUISAOK) 93840d.107) JO 9pOD) SU aIm dueldwod Sunsud 01 SIUSWSZUBIIR SDUBUISAOS
PUE |0.J3UOD [BU.I]UI JO WISAS S11 Aq pauuldaspun aJe san[eA [Buonesiuedlo s |IDUNo) 3y =

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWAd
VIOI4d0 =



S o g @8y

211qnd ul AunJdg pue 9ARNd3XJ ay3 AQ MaIAaJ AJJen8ad s| aduew.oyad [eidueul Sulpnpdul
‘UOIIBUWLIOJUI 9DUBWLIOLI Jud.Jedsue.) pue usado asow 3upjew UoISIDaP JNO W O} dALIP JINO
JO 1Jed SB PaAIYdIE PUB SAI| ISEDGIM 3. J2UIGED) PUE [IDUNOD) ||N4 Sulpnjaul ‘s8unaaw 99131IWW0oD)

‘syurejdwod Auo3nielg sINPY pue s uJpjiyd) Jo}

se [|om se saulejdwod 91e10dJ0d 10} ssa20.d [BWIO) B S| 943Y | “AJSAI[DP 3DIAJISS 34NINJ MIIASI O
sJawolsnd Aq papiaoad uonew.ojul Jo SuLIOIUCW DANIDYS S1.|IDE) 01 sule|dwod pue >deqpas)
wouJj SuluJes| S3|qeUS YdIYM >OBgPa4 JawolsnD) SuipJodad Jo) WaIsAs € SeY |IDUNoD) ay |

“J21Y3[eaYy Sa|A3Isa)1]| JI19Y3 W O el ued Aa3y3 sdays ayl JSpISUOD O3 pue ‘dumny

9y3 Ul pue Mou y3jeay Ji1ay3 uo 3oedwi 3ySiw sadl0yd 3SOY3 MOY JSPISuod 03 ‘Sunfew aJe Aoy
s9210Yd 9}A159)1| Y3 ssasse 03 synpe djay 03 payduneg| udiedwed ,noy suQ, ‘A31d sy ul sanienbaul
Y3[eay ssauppe 03 swweidodd Jeak (| [ed0] JNO S| PUB §| Q7 Ul PAYdUNE| SEM YINOWA|d ALY

Page 204

‘uoppejuasaudad 40333s AIe3uUNnjoA pue AJlunwwod J33eaJdd sapnjdul 3eludoadde sausym pue
uoneyuasaidas malaad 01 snunuod diYsisulied s,UsJpiy) sulpJenssjes InowA|d ‘diysisuiaed
SJNPY SulpJensajes ‘UanowA|d JaJeS ‘paeog Suldq[9AA PUt YaesH ‘Suipnjoul sdiysiaulaey

‘uiuuejd pooyanoqysiau Supjeyuspun sdnous uoddns |Im syd 2Ys moy no

$39S OS|e JuUsWndOop 3y ‘suonedljdde 3uluue|d uo 3unNSUOd 1o sJuswndop 3uluueld 3ulieds.d
USYM S|I2UNOD) 3Y3 JO S\ 9Yd AQ PIMO||0} 9q ISNW JBYI JUSWSA|OAUI PUB UOIIEBINSUOD

J0} sjusWaJINbaJ WNWIUIW 3Y3 3N0 $39S (]DS) IUSWSA|OAU| AJIUNWWOD) JO JUBWIEBIS BY |

"SI9P|OYa>[BIS PUE SUaquId| ‘JBIS U9aMIaq sdiysuonelaa pood 1931soy pue Ajenb adiAias aroadwi
03 sdjay pue ssad0.d Supjew-uoisiPap ay3 siuoddns uoredUNWWOD) “AIDAI[SP 3DIAISS SANDYD
0) Ao se pap.edaJ pue san|eA JO YJOMIWE.) pPUe suonique 3e.JodJod s j1punod) syl Suiesw

Ul [BI3USSSD PAJAPISUOD S| JUBWZESUD Jap|oyadjels dAIsuayaidwod pue ssauuado Sulunsugy

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

¥T07/€C0C LINFWILVLS IDNVNYUIAOD TVNNNY

so3ed elpaw [e120S «
sdiysuaulied =
s1u0doy [enuuy =

ASAING A1) \pnowiA|d =

paysiiqnd
SEpUSSE pUe JSEDqoM
S3uUNSaW 99IWWOD) =

sjurejdwod JawoIsn) u

INOWA|d PAY]| =

juswadeSua

Jap|oya>jels aAIsuayaidwod pue
ssauuado 3ulinsug — g 9|dpuliy

V101440



S 40 6 98¢

~ N

-9oeds

us9.3 se pajdajoud aq p|NOYS JBYM PUE HIOM pUB SSWOY 0} SPISE 39S 3q P|NOYS pug|
aJaym s|doad Bupjse uonel nsuod Jofew e In0 palIIed SAA 'SWEH YINoS Syl pUB UOAS(]
ISOAA JO SO3E|[IA PUB SUMO] 33 Ul SUIAI| 3SOY) PUB SJUSPISAJ YInowi|d 40} Alluadsoud

PUE JIMOJ3 DILIOUODD 34NSUS O) MOY puUB 03 p|NOYs SPEO. dJ3YM ‘SSwoy p|ing 03 dJaYym
3uipn)pui ‘sanssi 81q Y3 18 $00] UE|d [B207 JUIO[ UOAS(] ISOAA YINOS pue yanowA|d ay |

"3|qeureisns
Ajleduruly pue Ajjediul)d si 3eys ABM © Ul UOAS(] ssoJde 3|doad Joj S9DIAISS dJBD pue ey
aroudwi 03 suejd snonique IN0o $19s Ue|d Wa3sAS diysasuied aJeD) [Bd0T YinowA|d ay |

Page 205

‘sdiysaauiaed Jspim Jo Ajiwe] yanowAd|d ays ysnouays ‘sjqissod
JaAasaym 3uraeys pue Sulkjiidwis ‘Suisipaepuels ‘AISAI[OP 9JIAISS 9AIIIBYS JOW pue
9|doad Joj sswono aelidoidde suow dojaasp 03 [opow 3uneaado s31 sasn [1DUNOD) 3Y |

-2oe|d
pue 9jdoad .oy A3a3e.435 d13sijoy & Suiwoy suejd A1oinjeis-uou pue A1oiniess |[e Jay3a3o)
s3uliq 3] “A312 3Y3 ul SuBjEW UOISIDAP 10} UOIJSUIP 2I83..43S Y saplrodd ueld YinowAd|d sy

*A312 9A1IBIOQER||OD pUE Jle)
‘9]qisuodsau O11eI20WSP B 9q 01 UOIIGUWE P3JBYS JNO SP.eMO] 1939301 SUD|IOM SUOAISAS
suesw Jey| °,9UoAIaAd Aq pakolus si oyl jo Alljenb Suipueisino ue susym ‘sanId JuoLLISIEM
JueIqIA Isow s, 2doun3 Jo SUO, 8q O3 UOISIA JNO UO Pasndoy si Ueld d1edodiod) UnQ

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

¥T07/€C0C LINFWILVLS IDNVNYUIAOD TVNNNY

X3a1eng [B|3ide)) pue
JUSWS3eUE]] AINSEST] u

Ued
[€207] JUI0[ UOADQ] ISOAA
yanos pue yanowA|d dY| =

Ue|d Wa3sAS diysiaulaed
9Je7) [e20| (PhoWA|J 9Y] =

SJUNOJDY/ JO JUSWISIEIS m

Jaodoy (pnowi|d =

Ue|d yanowA|d 9y =

Slljausq |ejusWwuoJdiAUS pUR |eIDOoS

‘2]JWIOU0D3 J|qeUlISNS JO SWI)
ul sswod3no 3uluya g — D d[diduluyg

V101440



RDacao 20A

Uy UV

S5 40 0] @3ed

"92130e4d poO3 paJapIsuod
sI siy] "wes ] juswageue], 91edodioD) Aq UOIIDE U0} PAISPISUOD SJE JBYI SSWSY)
‘sswiayy £ A{3Uspl 0] SIIPNE JO MIIASJ [BNUUE UB D BIISpUn sudulded Jipny [eulaiu|

"SJ2WOISNd JNo 03 puodsad pue uaisi
am Aem ays aroudwi 03 [1DUNOD) BY) SSOUDE pjuaWR|dwl USSQ SABY SPJBPUEIS DIAIDS

"ueld 1edodioD) Y3 Ul paulIno se
saniold s |12UN0D) 3Y3 JO SdUBWIONS YoB43 O) Pash dJe SJIOIBdIpUl ddUBW.IO)IDd ASY)

‘uonndnuJod pue pnedj jo
UON29I9p puk uonuaAaId JO WISAS SAIID3Y UB SABY O pue spuny dljqnd jo uonsayoud
ay1 aJnsud o3 uonedi|qo A10INIEIs S,|1DUNOD) 3Y3 S|Y|n} Wes | pne.q aedodiod) ay|

"SUOISID9p pue sadljod ‘sadlAIas 49139q S1owodd O) USPJO Ul SJIBW UOISIDDP JSYI0

PUE J3UIqeD) Syl O PUSLI) [BONLID, B SB SO pUB JUSPEST SYl PUE J9UIGED) JO SUOISIDDp
93 UO WIsAS 9DUBUJISAOS Y3 UIYIIM ddUB[eq pue 23yd jueldodw ue sapiroud Aunnaog
'$9913IWWOY) AUNNJDS PUEB MIIAISAQ 9Y3 YSno.y) paJaAldp si uonsuny Auinuaas ay |

*S10]|12UNO?) JO JaqWINu
® PUE |12UNOY) 3Y3 jo JapeaT ay3 jo dn spew ‘Apoq Supjew UOISIDAP UlBW JNO S| 3dUIqRD)

‘loJauod
[EIDUBUL. [BUJSIUI JO WDISAS DAIID9)49 UE SUIUIBIUIBW PUE SJUNOJDE PUB SPJOJ3J [BIDUBUY
Jadoud Buidead] Joj ‘sus13BW [BIDUBUY [[B UO USAIS S| 92]ApE 3elidoudde jeyy Sulinsua
Joj Ajjiqisuodsad sey ‘UOIININSUOD) S Ul PIUSWNDOP SEB ‘JAdIYO |G| UonIAS ay |

*A)|Iqeaunodoe pue uoness|ap JO 94NIdN.IS B pue dunpadoud SAneASIUIWPE
‘s19pJQ Suipueig 12B43U0D) ‘SUOIIBINSS. [BIDURUL ‘UCBWIOUI JUSWS3BURW
Jejn3a. jo >omawe.y & uodn paseq si [0J4IUOD [BIDUBUL [BUJSIUI JO WSISAS By |

‘ue|d 9eJ0dI0D) By pue ueld [ed07]
UI0[ UOAS(] ISOAA YINOS 2 YanowA|d aya 03 pJedau uiaey ‘|1ouno?) a3 Joy saptiold
3Y3 9dUBUY ||IM [I2UNOD) Y3 MOY INO 5135 (S| |A]) 48978135 [BIDUBUI{ WIS | -WNIP3}Y Y|

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

¥T07/€C0C LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYUIAOD TVNNNY

s110d37 21pny

aunpadoud sjurejdwos)
s3ueaw Jap|oH oljofII0d
SpJepUEBIS 9DIAIDS

$J03BdIpU|
9OUBWLIOLIRY A

§310d9Yy 9ouBW.IONIY
ue|d @eJodiod)

dJomawed A1[1qeIunoddy
PUE 92UBW.IO}IY

SEEMR IV )g)
AunnJdg pue MIIAIRAQ

[uIqe)
3ujuuelq ssauisng

A3338N3
[eIDUBUL{ WU ] WNIP3

SOWwIod3IN0o papualul syl

}JO JUBWAA3IYdE 9Y3 dsiwndo
03 AJeSS929U SUOIIUBAIIUI
a3 Sululwaalsqg — @ d|dpulid

V101440



laYa Y ]
ravjy|

oy
P

G5 Jo || adeg ¥207/€C0C LINFWILVLS IDNVNYUIAOD TVNNNY

ASAING 2DUd|ISDY
pue SUIRG|ISAA HBIS =
SUoISSNISIp

dduew.opad yers u

(s4a8eurw 3ulaidse Joj d|qe|ieAe pue suadeuew
3uauund |je Aq pai19jdwod aq 03 3ujuaea]-3 A1os|ndwiod) 95uadi SUlAlI] JUSWASeUB] o
swuweudoud diysaonuauddy .

a8eydoed 3uUluJeaTd 92U
SulAluq Juswiadeue)| =

pazinn Sulues]-3 . swwes3oud diysadpuauddy
soako|dwa pue sJaqWaJ| M3U J0j INO PaldJed Sujuled) UOIIdNPU|
SPJeMY JEIG, JJBIS [BNUUY o swwe.3o.d
swuwea3o.4d 3ululeJd | S[eIuswepund JUSWISeUB)] juawdo[@As(g JO||IPUN0D)
AaAJns tS.m _msccwq . SUILIET> m
{pnowAld jo
SUSZI313 3Y3 JO SpPa3u 33 SuISdW UO PAsSNI0) IDUOP|IOM Pa||js pue padeSus ‘pajeAirow SPJemy Je1s, JeiS [enuuy

e 9plroud ||IM am moy Joj ueld widl wnipaw [9A3] Y31y Jno si A3s3e01g 9jdosd UNQ =

ASAJNS Jels [enuuy u
"SADIAUDS |[& AqQ AJJBNS94 PIMIIADI SJB SWEDUIS SWOdUI MAU Joy saplunlioddy

‘pasn 3uiaq swsiueydaw 3uniodau AS9le.A3§ 9|dO3d =

paAoJdwi pue pa3eaJdd SMOJPIOM pue s3ssad0.d [eSIp ‘syuswaAoadwi 931sgam ysnoayy SuD|JOM LIBWS u
JJe1s pUB SJSWOISND 10} S3NIANDE [BI3Ip 9Acadwi 03 uINURUOD S| PUE 91BJ01J3.I(
$924N0S3Y dY3 UIYIIM wouy pajeado pue paumo A|nj Mou si SadIAIRS [BASI = / usisa |euonesiuesiQ =

‘sojedado N
31 YdIYM Ul IX3IUOD 3Y3 pUE |1DUNO) ay3 jo asodund ays 03 Juswuije s3I 34NSud pue
uonesiuedio ay3 adeys o1 padojaasp 3uiaq sI ssa20.4d sSBUDAIIDDYT [euonEsSIUBSIO UY u

31 UILPRIM S[ENPIAIPUL B3
pue diysaapes| sai jo Aljiqeded
ay3 Suipnpu ‘A3ideded s A3nud

a3 Suidopasg — 3 9|didulug

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWAd
VIOI4d0 =



G5 Jo 7| adeg ¥T07/€C0C LINFWILVLS IDNVNYUIAOD TVNNNY

13315139y |siy |euonesadQ =
19315189y Y|SIy 21897eNS u

A3a1eng
AunjuoddQ pue sy =

WEANFEEN NN

% MSH ®IA dnouo) Suluiamg 3uiaq|oAA 8 £394eS ‘YajeaH aya Aq paJoliuow aJe sasiwaud |1pDunod) Sp4e33.403S
~ 3uisn s|doad usyzo pue saakojdws jo Suiaqom pue A19jes ‘Yajeay Syl USIBdIYI JBY ISIY = 9JUBWLIOMR [BIuswiJeddq =
%J ‘saAnenIul A31und3s 4oy 3uoddns Juswadeurw S|qISIA pUB UODAIIP 340dau aduew.opad
unuu JB3| S| 943Y) 3JNSUS WNJ04 A11IND3S UOIIBWLIO)U| JO JUSWASBUR] Y3 PUB SIDSSE UOIEBWLIOMI uel 21e40diod u

jo dUBUISA0S ||e42A0 33 UIYIIM SWE3J]S >JOM 1d3JlIp n_SO._w J921JO pEaT uohewJdoju] =

‘yoeoudde Sujuoissiwwod aanesado-od juiol uno uoddns 01 §H| uoAsq SHN 3odeu sduewiopiad

yam padojaasp usaq sey dJomawel] Juswadeur)y sty Suluoissiwwo) pajeddajuj uio[y = uejd 91ed0dio)
"$921AI9S Aq A|Yyauow pasiunnids >ldomawel A1j1qeIUNoddy
‘s3uodau aouewIo)Iad [euonesado ulyaim papnjpul Suisq mou saiepdn dsid J1893.IIS YIIM pue 9OUBW.IOJIR] =

Jeal siyd U®>0Ln_rc_ usaq sey juswiadeuew wucmELOtwn_ YIIM uoljewojul 3sid Jo ucmECM__< n

'ssado.d WC_CCN_n_ ssauisnqg ayj jo 1Jed se paJ4apIsUOd aJe sawodlno Umccm_n_ O SISIY =

"99131WWOY) DUBUISAOL) puUE PNy 3Yy3 03 pajiodau pue
wes ] juswadeuel, ae40dioD) ayl Aq AJ493J4enb paiojjuow pue pamalAsd A|[BWIO) BB SHSIY =

“3uluaea-3 Yam Jsyreson
91ISGOM S |I2UNOD) BY3 UO Jye3s J0o) 3|qe|IeAR dJ. 9duepIngd pue Adijod pue 393835 Juswadeuel,|
3siy paroJddde uy ‘seaJe jo 93ued peo.Uq B SSOJDE dS|J JSIUNOD PUB JSPISUOD |IDUNOD) dY |

Juswadeuew [eueUl d1qnd

Suo.3s pue |oJ43uod [eUJIUI
IsngoJ y3noaya asuew.oyiad
pue sysiJ Suideue) — 4 d|diduliy

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWAd
VIOI4d0 =



(aVaVal

Page 209

GG Jo ¢ a3eqd

JaWo3sN?) pue 3dUBUI{ ‘@OUBWLIONIDY

3JeD) [BI120S NPy PUE e
9JeD) [BI20§ S US.JP|IYD pUe uoneonpy
9J4NIDNJISEUJU| PUB YIMOUD)

249M $70T/ET0T 10} SeamIwwo) Auinadg
PUE M3IAISAQ Y "SUOIIBPUILIWIODDI PAJBIDOSSE PUB SMIIAD. JIPNE JOJIUOW O) ABM Jayloue
S| PUE ‘S99221WWOD) AUNNJIDS PUB MIIAISAQ Y3 YSnOoJya PaJaAldp sI uonduny AUinJds ay |

$99331WwW0)) AUINJIdG pUE MIIAIBAQO

“A||BNUUB SSDUDAIIDBYD JI9Y] SSISSE P|NOYS SIIIWWOD)

9DUBUJSAOK) pUE JIpny ‘@d130eid poos Yiim aul| U] 'SUONDUN) JIPNE [BUISIXS PUE [BUISIUI PUE
Wwa1sAs JuswadeusW Sl ‘WISAS |0J3u0d [euJdiul ‘Bundodad [eduRUL ‘SIUSWSSUEIIE 9DUBUISAOS
93e.0d.J0D S |I2UNOT) SY3 MIIASJ PUE I03JUOW 33JIWIWOT) DUBUIDAOL) pUB JIpPNY Y|

*J930 dUOo Joy
AduedeA B pue suaquiaw Juspuadapul om) sey a91IwwoD) a3y  ‘ssadoud Sunuodau [edurul ay3
99S.9A0 O) PUB JUSWIUOUIAUS [0JIUOD [BUJSIUI 3Y) Jo Adenbape oy jo adueansse Juspuadapul
apiroud o3 si asodund ssoym 23e|d ul S| 99IIIWIWOT) SIUBUISAOL) PUB JIPNY SANIBYS Uy

99331WIWI0D) IIUBUIIAOD pue JIpny

“JUSWIEIS DDUBUISAOK) [BNUUY dYJ MIIADJ OS|e
Aay] -Jeak ay3 Sulnp uayersapun AIARdE a3 jo Asewwns e sapiroad 3uoday [enuuy Ji9y ]
"SISEQ [BNUUE UE UO SJOJIPNE [BUIIXD 3Y) AQ POMBIAS SJB SSUDAIIIRYD pue AdUaIdId ‘AWouodd
3uipiroud Joj syuswaBue.UE S [12UN0D) 3| "BpUSSE 9913IWIWOY) SDUBUISAOKL) PUE 11PNy

SY3 YIM 31ISGaM S |IDUn0) aYya uo paysijqnd si ueid sy "yo.ely Ul 31IIWWOT) SDUBUISAOKD)
pue 3Ipny ay3 Aq paroadde pue o3 pajuasadd s| pue sua1si3a. dsid UlYdm palaodad sysia ysiy syl
uo paseq sl Ue|d 2IPNY [BUJSIU| SJY(Q S|IPUN0D) uoAsq pue Aequo] ‘yinowd|d jo Suistadwod
JuswagdueJIe 93)31WWOD Julo| B Uspun paw.o) usaq sty (dyq) diysasulied 1pny uoAsq 3yl

~

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

31PNy [eUJ9IXT pU® [BUJIIU]

¥T07/€C0C LINFWILVLS IDNVNYUIAOD TVNNNY

S991IWWOD)
AUpNJdSG PUB MIIAIRAQ =

9amIwwoD)
9DUBUJSAOLD) PUBIIPNY Y| =

JPNY [BUJSIXT =

ueld
3PNy [euJaiu] diysaaulied

JPNY UOAS 9Y] =

A31]1qeIUNODdO. DAIIDRYD

J3AI]9p 01 31pne pue 3unJodad
‘Aouaaedsuedy ul sadnoead
poog 3unuawa|dw| — o) 9|dpuly

V101440



S5 40 | @8t

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

‘wayl
91B3131W 01 MOY PUE >SIJ [BIDUBUI B PRJ3PISUOD 3q Aew Jeyy sajdwexa Jes|d
soew siy| -adueljdwod paroidwi pue Supjew UoIsIdIP J49339q Jusawadeuew
[eldoueuly pue [euonesado 2i8a3ea3s uo adueping paroddwi apiaouad 03 ‘€707
JaquiaAoN| 87 parepdn sem A333803G qUswsseue] Aaluniaodd pue dsiy ay |

"awwel30.d MJOAA AUnNIdS Y3 40} PaJapISU0D
9Je suoIsIdap A3y || 3eY3 saJnsua siy3 ‘suejd paemuoy ay3 jo Y3ISISA0 sapnjdul
MoOU UdIym Juswadeuel AUiInadg ay) jo ajod ay3 pauaypdua.ls sey siy] $70T

Aely ul SupddW |IDUNOY) [BJAUSE) [BNUUY Y3 I8 paaJde sadueyd pue sueak
[edidiunw $7/€707 PUB £7/770T Y3 3UlINp PamaIAaL 949m sassado.d Aunnuaog

‘suolssas 3uluiesd ysnoayl saoyane uodau ayp

03 papiroud uaaq sey adueping pue 3djApe pue saje|dwa) a3esoduod ay3 uo

pajeJod.odul uaaq sey Uodas Ysid [BIDUBULY / "I9UBIIUl 3Y) Y3Noy) SIad10
10} 3|qE|IEAR DB PUB PIpUSWE U] dARY Sa1e|dWa) 9dUBUISAOS d1el0duoD)

mN_ "1321)O Sulioluol pue wes | 134oddng oneadowsq ay3 ysnoayy
Mu [1punoy 9UBISISSE JaYlJny saJinbau oym Jadiyo Aue jo 1sanbau ay3 1e pue uesk sy
beo)) 4 IN0y3NOoJY3I UNJ 03 SNUIIUOD ||IM SUOISSSS 3S3Y | “$T/90/T| 2Ie403193.1p S|dosy “Bunjew
& uniNJIdg 23 A]3u9d3J 3SOW ‘sa3eJI03D3UIP AQ U{EIISpUN USSq dARY SUOISSSS Sulule.} uoisap 3uluiaduod ‘Apusnbasqns
o 991IWwWoD pue paJedaud ussq sey sJadew UOISIDSP pue suoyine 1iodau Joj 9duepingd pue TZ0T AIN| Ul Sanuwic)
92UBUJSAOD) |  3upjeW UOISIIB(] 'S94NPad0.4d 95UBUISAOS 9OUBHUS O3 SSNURUOD |IDUNOD) dY | S5UBUISACS) pue aipny aya jo 3unssw
pue 3Ipny ) e 31 I8 SpEW 9J9M SJOIIPNE [BUISIXD
1207 7°qUISACN] Ul pasJde pue 707 412g0190) Ul 99131LUWOTY) SDUBUISAOKL) LM USHELISPUN MOIAG] 35UELLISACT
wes ] PUE 11PNy 9yl AQ PaJSpISUOD 1SJlj SEM UDIYM SUOIIDBSUE.I) DAIIBAOUUI o Eo..; mco_um_ucmEEOmo._ Jo Jaquinu v/
luswasdeuel, PuUB Mau 3UlUJ9OUOD PaNSS| SEM 9D2UBPINS |BULIO SPEW SUONEPUSWWOID. o3e[ ssoy / ‘
9jedodiod) 9y SSSJUPPE 01 | ZOT U! |12UnoD) aya AQ UK Bl S49M SuoiDdE eIpaww] | ASylIoN piAe(q SUOHEPUSLULLIO?9Y JIPRY [BUISIXT
y3nouy |
paj4odey JUSWvdjL)G ddURINSSY | JIdYO peo] 9NSS| 9dUBUISA0D

"SI PUE SJ2QWIB [1PUNOD) IPNE [BUISIXS PUB [BUISIUI WO} SUOIIBPUSWIWODA JO SISBq Y3 UO pa3a|dwod uaaq aAeY suojide Suimo||o) 3yl
$T/€T0T J© 954n0d 3Y3 3ulin dduruIaA03 pood 9|qeud 03 3de|d ul sassad0.d pue swaisAs a3eludoadde aya sey [IDUNOD) BY3 JBYI WLIJUOD UBD M |[BJIAQ

SVIUV AUIAITIA ANV IDONVNUYIAOD A

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440



G5 40 §| @8

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

Dana 211

uyee o411

‘|Ilounod aY3 Jo a3kojdwd ue se dJdom jo 3d3id Jejnonued

B Y2IM [B3p 01 A11|IqE JO 9]OJ JI9Y3 UIYAM ID1juod [enualod & 01 pes| pjnod
Yo1ym sdiysuone|a. pue s1saJaiul [BIDUBUY-UOU pue [edueUly AUe JudJdedsue.y
9ew 03 wJoy doaswiil4 BIA 3S949IU| JO SUONEBJIBII(] UWQNS SIDPYO

"da3swily Wa1sAs SUIjUO BY3 BIA 1S9U9UI JO SUOIIBIE|IIP JWIqNS
SJ921Q "Pa.43e usaq sey sJdIYQ J0oj SOUBPINS ISaJ93UT JO SUOREIEPI(

* 59384 Jo[|Ipunoy)

JNO L, JI9Y3 UO PUNO) 3q UBD YDIYM SISDJ31UI JO SUa3sI3ay J1ayl a1epdn

01 un’||Ng S JaqWawW 3yl BIA APj99M PApUIWRI 3JE SJIO||I2UNOD) PUB JADIPO
3urionuoyly aya pue 1oddng dneId0W (] WOU) 3|qE|IBA. S| SIS9IDIUI UO IDIAPY

*Jeak Jedidiunw ay3 jo 3uuuidaq ayl e Sulureal dA1933.
PUE P3323]3 USYM 3DONPUOD) JO 3pO7D) 33 Jo AdOd B DAI9I3. SJaquIBW || "ZZ0T
YaJepy | Z [1PunoD) A1) e paroddde pue pamalAad SBm IINPUO) JO Spo) Y|

‘Buureny ayy pars|dwod 99mIWWOd B3
JO sJaquiaWi || puUe 707 dunf g7 dY3 uo JaplAo.d [BUISIXD UB AQ PaJSAISP
sem ululed) paduByuS [BUONIPPE ‘Suaquiaw 01 paplAod si Sujureay [enuuy

‘(307 uondy PNy [BUIAIU| PUE [BUIDIXT) JBD A

[edidIUN ST/HT0T Y3 410} 9913WIWOT) SDUBUIDAOL) PUE JIPNY Y3 UO W)
3uipuess € sI walsAs SupjdeJl SY) JO MIIASJ PUER SJOIIPNY [BUISIU| PUB [BUIDIXT
9y} WO} SUOIIDE ‘SUOIIEPUSWIWLIODA. 104 9|d Ul MOU S| WISAS Supjde.al

"9913IWIWOY) SDUBUISAOK) PUE JIpNY S Jaquiaidag
1€ Wa1l BpuUSSe UB JO SDUBAPE Ul USXEIISpUN 3Ulaq S| JUSWISSISSY/-)[aS VY

7207 AJenuef ul [1DUn0D)
A1) Aq panroudde Apusnbasqng pue samniwwo) duBUISAOD) pUE JIpNY
AQ POMBIASI SBM 9DUSIJSY JO SWLIS| 991310 DUBUISAOD) pUe PNy 3y |

"$H|SIJ 93BUBW PUE A}IIUSP] O3 MOY UO SUOISSIS UJBS| PUB Ydun|
ay3 y3nouys sia3euBwW O3 P90 USDQ SABY SDUBPING PUB IDIAPE JSYIIN4

"S99IWWOY) AUINIDS JUBAS|DJ Y

PUE 9323]WIWOTY) 9JUBUISAOKL) pPUB JIpNy ‘Wwes ] juswagdeuel, a1edodiod) ays Aq
POMB3IASI OS|[E 3. $ySIJ JI391.IIS "PJBIDI0DS A|Yauo| a3 jo 1Jed se papnpdul
9Je pUB UOISSNISIP | [\ 40} PapPIACId e SH[SIJ [BIDUBUY PUB SY{SIY 21393801

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440



G540 9] @8ed

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

pue UonE||0d ay3 Joy sassado.ud
JB3|D) JBY) PIPUSWIWIOII YdIYM SN0}
JO B9JE UB SE £70T SOV 343 Ul pajiausp]

Danpa 219

991IWWoD) “JaUeJIUI JJEIS Y3 uo saded Juswadeuel, sy Jno y3noays payioddns si pue
9DUBUJISAOD) | 70T AJenue( ul  uJes| pue youn|, e 01 133[qns sem ssadoud mau ay | "Auenuef
puE 1Ipny ul pauawid|dwi sem dysid [euonesiueduo Joy ssad0.d Juswadeurw dsid Mau \yy | 03e[ ssoy sy
|I2UNOD) PUE 991IWWOT) SDUBUIIAOL) PUE 1PNy ‘dno.c) ysiuld pue dse|
Jaquiap ‘dnouc) SUDJJOAA SDUBUISAOL) U1 UE B PIsSNISIp dJam sadueyd)
$991IWWOT) AUINIDS PUB MIIAJDAQ ‘Q IBd o
5unos UOIINIIISUOD 3Y) JO JJded e
9913IWWO7) SPJEpUE)S o
Sawwo) (Jea4242y |12UNOD) JO I NSAU B SB) SDUBPIND) / dWAYDS UONRIID] e
9OUBUIBACD) 9dUBpIND) / SWAYDS UONNDY
_UC.N U__U_|-< OLJ_UOUO.._m __U—‘__JOU - m UL.N& [ .LNQ% _.NQ_U_C_JE MN\NNON @IU .*o
”__ dnousy SOPIlY — Y 1ed e 9s4n0d ay3 ul pado|aAap YdIym sanss| Jo
N ysiul4 pue — SUO[}23s 3UIMO||O} Y3 O) IpPBW UM sadueyD) s e se a3epdn ue Burinbal se £70¢
b sjse) Joquisyy . (SOV) UsWEIG DIUBUISAOL) [BNUUY
)] LNO% _.mn__u__.__.:.c MN\NNON 0—._..- .._.O 9SJN0OD Or_u MC_._B_U _uw_..__u_._w_u_ wan_ wr_u ul Uw_.tu:w_u_ SEM UOIINIISUOD 0£|_|
v wes ] PEBY YdIYym UoiINIISuUoD) syl uiylim suoisiaoad Sundipjuod pue aunpadoud uj
- juswadeuel | sded maiaau 03 dnoud SupJOM B Ul SIO||IDUNOD JBYIO YIIM paulol 99131wwWoD)
ajedoduod) 9DUBUISAOD) PUE 3PNy SY3 JO SI9qUISW SYIUOW SA|DM)I ISB| SY3 JIAQ o3e[ ssoy uoN3IPSUoD)

sdunnesw wea | juswadeuel 2edodioD) spuane JadiQO A10IMeIs ||V

-329(oud yoea uo Suyaliq B paAIadaJ OS[e 9333107 AUIINIDS YIMO.D)

PUE 93131LLWIOT) DUBUIDAOL) PUE JIPNY dY3 JO SI9QUIDJ. "SWIB] JB[OS MOPES||
uos[ayD pue 3pIYSA Supjueg 1e3iqeH Y3 01 UONE|S. Ul UOIIBINSUOD U

sI sIY3 Jo 3|dwexa Uy "UOISIDBP 3J4N3INJ O} UOJUIOY | JUBID) YIIM padJde pue
PIEJIUNWWOD US3q SBY SJOJIPNE [BUJISIXD UYIIM UONEINSUOD 03 Yydeoudde ay |

207 AIn[ 8utanp sa3e]dwa) 93840dI0D JUBAS|SI O) PSPPE 3q ||IM SUOIIISS
[e397 70T un[ 07 Aep Aeme a3 1e uieSe passndSIp pue PaMIIA3 3 |[IM
SJ9AMET JOJUSS O) BDUBPINK) ‘PAIUSWINIOP A|[BWIO) S| DDIAPE [39] [BUJIRIUI ||

"91e4 uons|dwod %00 |
® 9ARY Inow|d wed | pue papiaodd usaq sey adueping pue suoissas 3ululed |

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440



G540 /| @8

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNUIAOD TVNNNY

Jo wR1sAs uno uo 1oedwi ABW 1BYL UISIUOD JO SBIUER SJB 3S3Y) ‘L7/ETOT Ul PRI2NPUOD SIPNE [BUISIUI Ul 9OUBINSSY PaiwiT Jo uswadpnl & paAloda. seae
SUIMO[|O} Y] "UJISIUOD JO SBIUE AISAI[SP A3 PUB SINSSI 9DUBUISAOS SUIMO||O) SYI PIIJIIUSP! SABY SMIIADI ‘|[OM HIOM 3SIUI 1BYI PILSIIBS 3B 9M IS|IYAA

wes |
JuswWageuel,|
ajedodiod
991IWwo) X
SoUBLIBAOD ..2JUBINSSY/ D|qBUOSERY,, JO SUO S| HJOMIWEY "
[043UOD [BUJSIUL S AIIOYINY DY JO SSDUSANDDYS pue Adenbape ay3 uo uoluidg
pue3ipny S JIPNY [euUJa3u| Jo peaH ay3 aIpne sJeak snoladud pue ssau3oud ueak JuaJdund uoyde|D Jo ssauaARRYa 343 Jo uopuido pny
wUIqeD) | Y3 wouy 9dudlIadxa Uno 4 7-£707 Sulanp 91ep 01 paw.oyiad dJom uo paseg 9sInoT 3Ipny euJdalu]
Y| |00 JusWa3eUR), PUB UB|J UOIDY
wes | ajeJ10duoD) a3 ‘Opis3uo|e syjsiy A19jeS pue YijesaH A3 Jo Y3isIsA0 ureulew
oh Juswadeuel,| [lIM pue paysijqelss uaaq sey dnoud 3uluaals Sulaq|9AA PUe A19jeS ‘YIesH VY
el a1edoduo) . . .
Al paysijgnd usaq mou sey Adijod 3ulaq|oAA PUE A19JeS ‘YI|esH PasiAal JuswaAo.adwl Joj SpBW SU9M
O 99nwwod €707 SUOITEPUSWIWOD3 PUE USEBLISPUN SEM
mwv 9IUBLLISACD Jaquwiaadag ul Suldq|IOAA PU® A194BS ‘Yi|BaH JO PBSH Mau Y3 jo juswiuiodde sa.npado.d pue m”&mmuo(_n_ BUIdqIIPAA
a pUe 3PNy 33 pue malAaJ a3 Suimo||o} suode JuawdojeAap 3ulaq|oAA Pue A1ajes Jasuadg puE A34e5 “(pIEaH Jo MaINaL Y
UIqeD) ‘yyesH uo 3uyaliq e papiroad usaq aAey wea) Juswadeuel, aleloduoD) sy Aasary| fyayeg pue yjjesH
*24nny ay3 4oy pauue|d sdoysddom Jayliny Yam Ja3siSad
dsiJ D1393e43s 93 93epdn 03 ssado.4d a3 jo 1Jed se doysddom uonediIuspl
3SId B Pa312NpU0d A[JUadaJ dARY | [D |IPUnoD) ay3 Suide} sysid A3 a3
JO 3y3ISU9A0 UlBIUIBW O3 SNUIUOD (] |JD) Wes | juswageuel, aredodiod) ay|
"AeMJapun a.e $SId [9AS] 9DIAJSS 10} S|O0] JBJIWIS JO uonesijnn ajqissod
a3 3uU1UI9DUOD SUOISSNISIP pPUB s3I NsaJ pIaIA 03 3uluuidaq si ssadoud mau ay |
*ss9250.d juswadeurw sid Y3 ul Juswadesus k3578135 JUBWaSEUE)
wes | ul 9seauduj Juedyudis e 3ussaadad 01 uaas aq pnod siy) (FZ0T/Y0/FT AunuioddQ pue yjsiy ays pue
uswadeuely | -$707/10/L7) Polad syl uaAo sawn €69 saded ays 3uissadde suasn anbiun gt v_._0>>wEm.m_ JuswsSeuel mumeLotmm
ajedoduod) Aq pamalaau usaq aAey Asa saded Juswadeurw sl Yl JO Ydune| ay3 AduIS

33 ul paysi|qe3sa aJe st jo 3upiodau

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440




S Jo g| @8

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

wea |
Juswadeuel,|
9jeJ032241(
9|doay

"SyIuOW 7| SUIWod 3yl JIAO SIDUSBIDIYS J0) 9dods Jayo
[IIM Yd1ym ‘uonewoine d13oqod 4oy sjesodoud SuIMaIAI OS[e a4 Wedl Yl
pue AjJ4ejn3a. ssuew.ouad JojluoW 03 SNUNUOD WEd) JusWwadeurw 3y |

"S9DIAIDS
[e897 340ddns 01 uonewJIOjUl 3594402 BY3 pPJOd3J pPUE 123]|0d A3Y3 Sulinsud
Ul SI9D1O ISISSE O MIIAIDAO 1IBYIMOJ} B padedaud aAey sadlAlag [BST

pa2.43e Juswajdwi
01 pa1dadxy
:33e( 3984e |

uondUN4 pauleldy
PU® DSV J0 peaH

S [[PM3AI] Joy Suturend
8uipae8au o8edd)js swog e

- PayRUSP! UPNY Y|

(s4D) sad1a43g [edueUly
JUSID - ddUEINSSY pIajiwi]

Page 214

‘8uioduo si siy3 pue ‘Suiure.ay aeladoadde usaig aue yeys a3eaadjoug

ST/¥T0T SOV
ul UolIBWLIUOD

PUE JIpNY [BUJIU|
BIA 99231LUWOD)
9DUBUJISAOK) pue
31pny 03 palJodau
ssaJdoud yam
SC/¥C0C ssoJoe
SUOIIBPUSIWOD3
pa3Jgde Juawajdwi
03 pa1dadx3
:33eq ja84e |

9oualJadxy
JawoisnD)

% [e181g

‘Jopea wes |
:aJoddng ssauisng

8unJodau uondaoxa pajepdn e
‘pue
‘yeas pasuatiadxaul Aq sypPaYd
Suidoaymes jo uoisiauadng e
‘Jels mau Joj Bulured| e
‘s)payd Suidaajaaes
Suipnppui ‘adueping) e

:pauugld

Suippaquwia pue uonejuawa|dwi
y3nouys pausayaduauis aq ||IM sl
juawAeduano jo uonedni| ‘sjos3uod
[BUJ)Ul JO Dunj|Ie} SY3 O3 dNP UDAIS
SBEM 3dUBJNSSY paliwi jo uoluido uy
‘syuawAeduano 3unuaaud uj sjoaauod
99443 JO dun|ie} 9Y3 01 Snp UIAIZ

SEM 9dUBJNSSY paliwi jo uoluido uy

"3uyaieq
wed | juswasdeuel| pue sagexded aJed Joj syP3Yd uonesiioyine ululaduod Uonew.ojul Jadeuel, - PILRUSPLIIPNY 941
31840312341 SpN|2ul ||IM Juawndop 3duepIng 3y $70T |Mdy jo pus syl e adejd ul | syuswiAed 10941 widysAg Juswied aJsed
9|doay 9J9M pUE PapUSWIWODA. S paleaUd 3ulaq dJe sadnpado.d pue adueping) - 93euadjoug | [eI20S I NPY - dUBINSSY pPIAajIWIT]
ysnouay |
SunJoday JUSWISILIG SDUBINSSY / SsdJ304d | J4921O PES] By AJRAIRQ A

"pPasie. sanss| 9yl 93BUBW [|IM 9M MOY UO JUSWIIEIS SDUBINSSE UB dpisuole
pajuasaud aJe 3say] ‘G7/4TOT SSOJIOe pauueld dJe SUOIDE JaYliny PUB JBIA [BIDUBULY /€707 Y3 Ul UOIIDE U E) dARY JUSWSZeUE),| ‘[OJIUOD [BUJIUI

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWAd
VIOI440 =



S5 40 61 @8ed

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

"'92JN0S3aJ |[euonippe ‘mau
01 passed uaaq SeY S9210AUI/SIUNOIIE papuadsns uliolluow Jo ysel ay |

awn uo Aed o) |1e} A|lenuUnuUOd
OUM PpUE 1G3P JO S|9A3] Y31y YaIm sa01gap asoyl asniiolid [jim we
9y ‘[edauagd uj ‘siseq dipoluad B Uo sJUNOIDE PaSeUBW MIIASI WE] dY |

BIA 9331WWO0D
9DUBUJIDAOK) puUE
3Ipny 03 paliodau
ssau3oud yam
SC/¥ 0T ssoJoe
SUOIIEpUSWIWOD3
pasJsde Juswadwi
03 pa12adx3
:33e( j3384e |

ay3 ulyum ae(d ur and
U93q Sty 32JN0SaJ edIX]
‘SIY3 SA|OSaJ 03 uddE) 3ulRq
aJe sdo1s 3ey) paw.Joyul
U23q dARY JIpNE pue

dJeme aJe Juswagdeuew

Jojuas HT/ETOT ek
|eidueul) syl ul ussiJ sey

wea | ) 19ap Aupuns SulpueisinQ e
JDPO | S| UonISS 3y 03 SJ0Iqap
Juswadeuel, SiSUIS Wou g g 9J3U90) IDIAISS _
57240193.10] [Bul } SIGOP 98J€| JO SONSS| 9IB[BISD O SNUIIUOD |[IM JUSWISEUE., pUE SI143USg paynuap! Ipny ay|
$924N0SAY “Aa1jod |D%g] @Ya Sunepdn jo ssadoud aya ul Apuauaand sl Juswadeurly | ‘ONUSAIY JO peaH $103ga( - ddue.inssy pajyiwi
|IPUNoYD
ay3 Jo [0.43u0od 33 jo
9pISINO A|[e303 BJ' YdIYym
To) sassado.d uondajouy
nﬂ__ JO 34n0D) Y3 UILPIM sABPq o
I "SJUDLLUSSISSE [BIDUBULY
w jo uona|dwod azedidwod
o Jo ||e3s O} J3ISED 3] SpeW
"passnasIp si sased uo ssaudoud Jey) aunsus o) saAneIuasa.dal [erduBRUY
AJ9A029Yy awodu| pue [eS97] usamiaq dn 19s uaaq aAey s3udaw Jejn3day 2unoeIuod usamiaq sdeoy e
ST¢/YT0T SOV Ul ‘pa3ed0)E
"PEO[SSED JUSJIND JI9Y) SseaJdu] | UOREBWIHUOD pue 3q 01 sased diysk&indsg
01 sanndap mojje Aew JeY) SIDUBIDIYS IO P|Noys yaiym Aijeuonsuny PNy [euJaiu] Joj urewaJ sAejap
[euonippe smojje ydiym (pnojDJedser) 03) syauow Suiwod ay3 ui papeasdn BIA 99310 pue ]S4D uljuswssasse
9q 01 anp s| (4adseD)) auemiyos Juadund ay| ‘AlJolud 4o [9AS] B SAI9IAU 9OUBUIBA0D 3unieme sjelua)o.
S9SED P|O 3JNSUD O PAIMBIAII USSQ SeY XIJIew 3uldods, JuUdJJInd 3y | pue 3Ipny | Jo 30]jdeq 3y Ul dses.dul
0} payiodau UB U] pa3|nNsaJ dAeyY
"S9SBD 1G9p M3IAJ Aoyl Apusnbauy ssa.80.d yum UDIYM SINSS| 324N0SOY @
MOY UO SUOISIDAP e O3 dARY WEd) Y ‘924n0saJ uo aJnssaJd pue :
SSWN[OA O3 dNp ‘U9A3IMOY A|[ed1poliad pamalAa. dJe ‘s1gap SulpueIsINo ||y at/yCOT SSOd® . SUORNQLRNIOD US>
SUO[IBPUSWIWODAY | ‘sjuawaJinbai D4 ul yeis
ysnouay |
SunJoday JUSWISILIG SDUBINSSY / SSAJ304d | 49214 PES] By AURAIRQ A2

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440



SS J0 0T @8t

¥20T/€20T LNJFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

wes ] juswaseuel,
9)B.0123.1( 93¢8|d

‘P2J0O3S S| UOIIBIUSWNIOP YINS SJIYM BB [BJIUDD

€ 9ABY 03 JuaWaJinbau ay3 pue asay) Jo M3IASI B YIIM SUOJE DIAIS
JuswWwdJojug 3yl 03 3unejad sadnpadoud pue sapijod | jo sisAeue des,
B 9>[E3J9pUN 03 UOIIDE UB SIPN|IUI UB|d UOIDY IDIAISS JUSWSDI0T 3Y |

‘s, NDd 3Jlods punoue
9cuepingd a3 33s A|J4ed)d 03 payepdn aq 03 aJe saunpadoud SunesadQ

"$9J0U/$H00q
195p0d snolaaud JaAo suonnjos [e3Ip Jo asn ay3 Suljle|d o3 303dsau
Ul UB]d UONDY 9DIAJS JUSWSDI0JUT Yl O Pappe Udaq Skey dooqpuey

(03D) 49210 uswPdI0uT [IAID 9Yy3 93epdn O3 UCHEPUSWIWODD Y

ST/YTOT SOV
Ul UOIIBWLIJUOD

pUE JIpNY [BUJIU|
BIA 2331WWO0D
9DUBUJIDAOK) puUE
3Ipny 03 paliodau
ssaudoud yam
ST/¥T0T ssoJoe
SUOIIBPUSWIWOD3.
paa.3e jJuawa|dwi
03 pa1dadxy
:93eq 3284e |

Jadeuel, dnoun)

Ug|d UOnDY JUSWdI0UT
Supjued e si auay |

‘3uIssiw 4o pajepino
awod3q aAey sadndeud
Sunjiom pue 03 paJaype
Ajpo1a3s sAemje jou aJe Aoy
‘9oe|d u1 aJe saunpadoud
pue sa1jod Is|IYAA

- Paynuap! 31PNy 3y |

(SNDd) s@3130oN 2384ey>d Ajjeuayd
Jo suone|edue) pue sjeaddy
‘8uinss| - adueJNnssy pajiwi]

Page 216

S¢/YT0T SOV
ul UoPEWIJUOD

PUE 11PNy [BUJIU|

"Aj13094 03 Aemuspun

SI1 5JOM JBY3 POOIS.Iapun
s131 ysnofe /10T
19qo12Q 9duls pajepdn
u23q 30U sey (IND%I)
Ad1j04 3uswadeue),
1IpaJD) pue swodu| 3y |
PaM3IAS.

8ulaq jo ssadoud ay

ul aJe s1gop 3uIpueIsINoO B
pue aoe[d ui 3nd 3ulaq aJe
JO dARY s3ssad0.4d MaN|
‘Buipueisino

1g9p JO JUNOWe 3y}

UO 1J9JJ° UE dARY |[IM SIY3
Jayiaym o3 se uojuido ue
9AI3 01 A|J4ed 001 s 31 INq
weal AJ19A029Y awodu|

ysnouay |
SunJoday

JUSWISIBIS ADUBINSSY / ssuSoud

42210 peaT

By AURAIRQ A2

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440



GG 40 |7 @8

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

pJeog
JusawaAoadw)

adN3s

wea ]
Juswasdeuel,
9140120141
S9DIAIRS SURIP|IYD

wea |
juswadeuel,|
ajesoduo)

“AJ2AI[2p 03

$)[sid 340dau pJeog JuswaAoadw| 3y Yaeaudapun s uejd aY3 Jo AIaAI|Dp
Joj d|qisuodsau dnouy AusAlpg N3IS @Yl ‘pJeog ays Aq paJoliuow

aq |Im ue|d Juawaoadw) pue 433815 NIS Y JO AJIBAISP Y3 O3 sy

Pleriall[by]]
paiuiodde £jjeuaa1x3 ue Yyam pJeog mau e si paeog juswaAoadwy ay |

"A3a1e.0§ QN3IS
3y Jo AJsAl[ap ay3 Joj s|qisuodsau si paeoq Juswarocadwi QNIS YL

"paysiiqnd Ajjew.o) uaaq mou sey 970T
— €707 43938135 Sanijiqesiq pue spas Jeuoiieanpy [e12ads yinowA|d ay |

ST/PT0T SOV
ul UoIBWLIUOD

PUE JIpNYy [BUJIU|
BIA 9931LUWOD)
9DUBUJSAOK) puE
21pny 03 palodau
ssaJ3oud yam
ST/¥TOT ssoJoe
SUONBpPUSWWODA.
pasuJse Juswajdwi
01 pa3dadxg

:93eq 3a84e |
anNs3s
Jo peaH

‘pauaypduauls

Jayliny aq p|nod syuawaduedJe

pue pajeJdaul pue pappaquia 394 J0u
9Je sjuswasue.de adueuldA08 NIS

- PayUaP! 3PNy 3y |
9dUeBUJIA0DH
AN3S - @doueJanssy pajiuuif

Page 217

"SUOIE|[92U.D AU JO) SUOSEDJ S 1BIISN||I A|JBS|D |[IM BIRp
ay3 aJaym ‘saunpadoud Suneasado pue Adijod jo uonesidde 1o13s ySnouy
POAJOS3J 9q ||IM UONE|[9JUBD JO SIseq aY3 puno.e uoluido pue uondsdiay

‘siseq A|yauow & uo Jadeuel dnoucy/iadeuel,|
JUBWADIOMT BYI YIIM BIBP SIYI SSNISIP PUB MIIAD ||IM SJOSIAIRdANG

*s39>21 3j1ods Suipnjpul s,NDd punoJe ejep

Juedudis sapnpaul siy3 921A49s Suiwdoyiad ysSiy e 3ulysijqelss o3 [ednLd
SPU3.J) pPUE BIBP SNOLIBA UO s)Jodau JendaJ 33s ||IM YdIYyMm padnpo.iul
3u1aq si dJomawely Juswadeuew dduewIopad mau e ‘siyy Supuswijdwo)

‘ulure.y JaysaJyed
PUE S||DJS M3U U] Y30q ‘}JeIS Ul JUSWISIAUI PUNOJE PaJIUdd SisA[eue
Sujuieay pue s||pjs, SPIM B SIpN|dU] OS[e Ug|d UONDY JUSWdIojuT a3y |

PNy 9y3 ul payiuspl
SaNss| ay3 Jo Jaquinu
B YIM s|eap ydiym adeid ul

ysnouay |
SunJoday

JUSWISIBIS ADUBINSSY / ssuSoud

42210 peaT

By AURAIRQ A2

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440



S J0 7T @8

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

pJeog
JuawaAoadw|

adN3s

wes |
Juswasdeuel,
91eJ0323.41(
S9DIAIRS SURIP|IYD

‘8uidoa| pJodau areludoadde aunsua 01 pamalaad 3ulaq dJE SIDBIIUOD ||y

‘syuawade|d uonesnpa NIS PAUOISSILLWOD
A|leuaa1xa jo 3y3isuaA0 pue 3uiIdeIUod ‘BUIUOISSIWWOD Y3 UO IdUEpINg
PUE $955920.d US33IUM JIAISP O) pawL.Ioj uadq sey dnoug Supjdom y

‘pasepdn
pue pasued|d> 3uiaq aJe suap|oy eiided ayy ‘9de|d Supjer malaad Y3 jo lJed
se pue eyded uo pjay ajy p[Iy2 ay3 ul padoss si uonew.oul [idnd [enpiAlpuy]

"9JUBPUDIIE ‘UOIIISUBI] DIBP YSIUly PUB JJBlS quawade|d o)
UOIIE[DJ U] UOIBWIOI A3)] 9J03S ||IM 3S]| [BJ4IUDD BY | "Wed) dDHJ Y3 pue
3uluoissiwwo?) ‘9dueul{ UsamiIaq paaJde 3ulaq si sl P|ay A|jeJ3uad sauQ

ST/PT0T SOV
ul UoiIBWLIUOD

PUE 11PNy |BUJISIU|
BIA 290)IWIWOD
9DUBUJIAOK) pue
3Ipny 03 pajiodau
ssaJ3oud yam
ST/YTOT sso4oe
SUOIEPUSWIWIODA
paa.3e jJuawa|dwi
01 pa1dadx3

:33e( 3=384e |

‘paroudwil 2q pjnom sjuawadeld
[euonednpa [euJaIxa QNS

Jo 3unde.auod pue SulUOISSIWWOD Y3
Joy 3oe|d ul swaisAs pue saunpado.y

- PayIUSPI UPNY Y|

wes ]
Juswadeuel,| "Wwa1sAs Juswadeurw dsed (JNIS B 03 9|1 Suluoissiwwo?) ul pjay AN3S 3unseajuo) pue 3ujuoissilIWIoD)
010_ 9jedoduod) Apuaaund uonew.ojul Aue Jo Jdjsued syl patioddns sey Sujuoissiiwod) Jo pesH ANS3S - @2ueanssy pajiwi]
[aN |
&}
w ‘syuswAed Ajpwnun jo pajeosse ST/¥T0T SOV
ol $|SIJ Y3 2IE3NIW |[IM J§BIS 0) SUO[IBDIUNWIWIOD puUE sassadoJd jo yaunead ul uonew.Jyuod
© 3ulpnjoul sassad0.4d 3upjew-uoIsIDdp pue Wea) G7-0 Y3 JO MIlAaJ Y | PUE IIPNY [eudaiy]
BIA 99331LUIWOD)
‘safINp AJO3INIEBIS UO S| SN0} S404RJdY)
9DUBUISAOK) pue
pJeogq pue suonedijdde gy|4S Jo Sopjdeq & ul paansad aAeY sanssi AydedeD)
11pny 03 pajiodau
JuswaAoIdw|
"s9jedsawn ssaJdoud yum . d
anNas >4om juswdojaaap uo
UIYIIM paauge aJe suonisue.ay 9| 3sod aunsud o3 Supjew UoIsIdSp ST TOT SsoJde
opew s| ssaudoud aunsus o3 paJinbau
wes | Apwn pue diysiaquiaw d3elidoidde aunsus 03 pamalaad 3q [|IM N | suonepuswwodad }
g aJe sue|d uUondE JaYling "M3IIA
Juswaseuel, paa.3e jJuswa|dwi

9jeJ0312341Q
S9DIAJDS SUIP|IYD

"90uepIng paysaljod YIIM panssidd aq ||Im
$s920.d SupjeW-UOISIDAP PUB JV/|AS dYI 10} DU JO SWLISY Y3 Yiog

"dVIAS 410} 92UD.943Y JO SWID] Y3 UIYIIM SIS UONESS|(] JO dWYDS Y|

01 pa1dadxy

:33eq 3384e |

Japun sem weal §7-0 Y3 pue dN3IS
uIyaIm ssadoud Supjew-uois|dap ay |

- PayRUSP! 3PNy 3y |

wea |
Juswadeuel,| 'S1SOD PaJBIDOSSE puE sjuswade|d Jo uonesiioyine o3 pJedad Yyam AN3S Supjely uoispaqg
9jedoduod) Aaoyane Supjew-uolsidap 3yl st (VIAS) |9ued Aduady-niy 3j8uls ay | Jo peaH ANS3S - @2ueanssy pajiwi]
ysnouay |
SunJoday JUSWISILIG SDUBINSSY / SSAJ304d | 49214 PES] By AURAIRQ A2

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440




S Jo £ @8

¥20T/€20T LNJWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

pJeogq
JuswaAoIdw|

o anas

%Tm | Juswadeue),|
O 9jeJ032341Q

%u_twm suaJp|iyd

Ques | juswaSeuey,
9jesoduo)

‘padojaaap uaaq Ajpuadad sey yoiym ‘Sundodau Ajyauow pue 3ulioliuow
APj99m Jo siseq 9Y3 W0} UIdU0d 3uisned S|ooyds pue UlJp|iyDd

.8
paJaype si ssad04d malAaJ [enuue dHHJ 943 JBY3 PUB %06 JO SdUBPUSIIE
WNWIUIW € 9JNSUS 03 PUB UJP|IYd JO SUIMdIAS. pue 3uliolluow

3y Joj a|qisuodsau osje si uoisiro.d 3sijerdads Joj Jad1yo pes| ay |

‘Bunes Q31S4O poos © 31se9)
1€ sey uoisiaoad ay3 aunsua 03 syuawade|d Mau [[e Joj uadjel sI pJaesad ang

*9oe|d u1 3nd sassadoud Sulioliuow pue Sunes 431 S4O
a1enbapeul yum saspiroad wuuod o3 ade|d Supjel si JIOAA “uolsiroud
1sije1dads paurejurew-uou ul pade|d usJp|Iyd ||B 10} ABMISPUN DJB SMIIASY

‘ulpuny jJo [9A9] a3 9243k 01 Wea) Jsijerdads ay
YaMm 3upjaom Joj dqisuodsal mou s| Jad1o Juswadeld Isijeidads pes)|

‘leAocadde uoj 40312341p 921AUSS Y3 03 paniwqgns aJe dnoud
93 JO SAWODIN0 33 PUB SUOISIDDP JUSWNIOP O} PApP.J0d3J J. SJ0U
‘epuade pauue|d e s| auay] "Apjoam s1oaw dnoud Supjew-uoisidBp Y|

‘uoisiaoud 3sijedads paurejuiew uou juspuadapul ul UaJp|iyd jo Juswadeld
ay3 99.3e 03 2de|d ul Ind uaaq sey dnou Supjew-uoiSIIAP MaU

STU/YT0T SOV

Ul UONEBWLIJUOD
PUE JIpNY [BUJIU|
BIA 99131LUWOD)
9DUBUJDAOK) pUE
3pny 03 paliodau
ssau3oud yam
ST/YTOT ssoJoe
SUOIIBpUSWIWOD3
paa.de Juswajdwi
0] pa1dadxy

:33e(q 3a84e |
@INEN
Jo pesH

*-paAoudwi aq

P|nod sjuswade|d [BUONEBINPD [BUISIXD
PUE $10B.0U0D> (JNIS JO UOnEN[BAD

pue Suliojiuow ay3 Joy ade|d

Ul swa1sAs pue sassadoud ‘saunpadoud

- payiauspl lipny 3y |
uonenjeAs pue 3uli0jIUOl
AN3S - @2ueJnssy pajiwii]

‘ue|d Juswaroadwi
93'.0323UIp S43 Y3 ul pajusawndop ‘@de|d 3upjey swwea3o.ad A>uapiyns
ay3 Jo 1Jed se siy3 ssauppe 03 3uly93s aJe pue J403d3S SIYI UIYIIm ASuowl
Joj anjeA apiaoud jou op syuawade|d Auew sasjudodad Juswiedap ay |

"3I0A J3JBD) JUdJed YINOWA|J PUE S|OOYIS ‘YI[edH Ul sanea||0d YIIm
ueld diysasulaed & udisap 03 JOSIAPY JUSWS3E3U] PUB SUOIIBDIUNWWOD)
$,0Dd Y3m 3upjiom si uadeuel, 399/o.d Juswaroadw| NIS dYL ‘PLeog
JuswaAoadw] NIS Y3 AQ USISJIBAO S| Ue|d uopedunwwo) gNIS YL

ysnouay |
SunJoday

JUSWISIBIS ADUBINSSY / ssuSoud

42210 peaT

By AURAIRQ A2

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440



SS 40 T 98

¥20¢/€T0C LNIWILVLS IDONVNYIAOD TVNNNY

wes ] juswasdeuel,

"M3IAJ 9DUBUIDAOS B U{BIISPUN O SIIM3IIAI paiujodde

:33e 3384e |

aesodio)
JUSWUIDAOL) YIIM IOM ||IM [IDUNOD) Y3 §7/4T0T 4O 9s4nod ayy Suling AsywoN piaeq MBIADY DUBUIDAON)
ys3nouy |
Sunuoday JUSWIDIBIG dUBINSSY 43210 peo1 eaay Auaalpq £9)y)
"GT/PTOT Ul PISSDUPPE 2q |[IM SUOIIBIDPISUOD 9DUBUISAOS A3 SUIMO||O} B3 SUOIIBPUSWILLODS JIPNE [BUJDIUI O3 UONIPPE U]
"SJUSLISSISSE [eIdUBUL pUE sueld oddng ODS
Suimaiaaa 1uoddng ODS Jo AusAlRp 3y Joj aunpadoud pue Adjjod e STHT0Z SOV
ta9puJo 3sod 1uoddng 5§ Suissadde Joy sunpadoud pue Adljod e Ul UOIBWLILUOD
‘suelp.Jenc) |eadg PUE 3Ipny/ |BUJISIU|
o pue Ajiwey Yyiaiq ‘sueipJend [edads aAndadsoud ‘sjdoad Sunok BIA 99131WWIOD)
ﬂ PUE USJP|IYd J0} SSPIN pue s19}jes| JO 3INs © jo JudwdopAsq e 92UBUISAOK) pue
o ‘s39|yes| 9ouepIing pue saidijod ‘sadunosad ‘s|ieIsp 3Ipny 03 pajJodad SLOMBWIEY
o 15'3U0D 3uIpnjPUl ‘DISGIM DD dY3 uo paisoy a8ed Joop Juody Y e ssau3oud yam
S pJeog sso.oe [OJ3UOD [BUJSIUI DYI Ul SISSDUMBOM
Q. juswaAoudwy :ysI|qeIsa [|IM wes ] ODS 9Y3 jo JuswdojpAsp |eniul ay | ST/YT0T uedlyudis swos 01 anp paresniw
SUONEpPUSWIWODA
aNas Apuaiiyns 194 J0U dJe $H[sld PAIBIDOSSE

wea | jusawasdeue),|
9jeJ032341Q
S9DIAIDS SURIP|IYD

*9oe|d ul S| Wesl O5S PaIEdIPap & UsyMm Joy pue asdi|d3 jo uoneuswadwl

a3 8uImo||o} sass930.4d pasiAaJ JO IYSI| Ul PAIMBIASI 3] ||IM SIUBYIMO|

"S9DIAJRS [BIDURBUIY JUSID
Y3im dn ujol ay3 24nsus 03 WEed3 Y3 UIYIIM 3IS [|IM JUBISISSY ddUBUl] B

pasuJde Juswajdwi
01 pa3dadxy

:33eq 3984e |

INQ SpEW US3q 3ARY SjudWAoIdW|

-paynusp! 1Ipny ay |
dn mojjo4

wes | juswadeur) | PUe aJeD) [BIDOS S USJP|IYD UIydm wed | 3ioddng QDS PaIedIpap & 91eaud AN3S (0D9S) s49paQ diysueipaenn
ajesoduo) [IIM s1y] paaude uaaq mou sey Wea | O5S paiedIpap e Joj [esodoud y Jo peaH [e1adg - scueanssy pajiwi

‘JuswdojaAap 393Jew Sulo3uo jo 1ued se 41O SUlUOoISSIWWOoD)

AN3S Y2 AQ usSeIISpUN 3q |[IM IS)JBW [BIO] Y JO SDUE||IDAINS

S,Vd| Ul papnjoul aJe syuawadinbau Aue 3ey3 aunsus 03 pue suapiaoud

93 J0j suone1dadxa [en3de.a3uod Uo Sd3 YIM Supldom si SUjUOISSILIWOD)

ysnouay |
SunJoday JUSWISILIG SDUBINSSY / SSAJ304d | 49214 PES] By AURAIRQ A2

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440



S J0 7 @8

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

Suluied] e

s21ISGIAA Auedwor) pue AduaJedsued| e

SM3IASY pue uonew.oju] Auedwod) e

uonMNSUOY) S [I2UN0Y) Y3 PUsWE 03 syudWRIINbau Auy

2PNy [euJIU|
BIA 99231LLWOD)
92UBUJIDAOD)

pue 3pny

0} uoneaJ ul (333 UONEBIDOSSY JO
s9]PnJy ‘syioday [enuuy) syuswndop
92UBUIIA03 A33] JO DUDPIAD

apIAroad 01 9|qe DJe SBAJE SWOS IS|IYAA

I2unoY SI9214O PeaT]/soANeIUaSaIdaYy JopjoyaleyS e 0} paltodau -ping s3ppoeud poos v sauedwor
Aunnuog Aae3pudag Auedwo) e ssaJ3oud yam p
: d4d - paumQ Aldoyiny [e207 ay3 ul Ino
CESR o)) 541039341 jo 3usunuloddy e SUYTOT 39s 2ouepind Ym adueldwod paliodad
‘ SUO[JEPUAWIWIOA X
9dUBUIIAOKN) —SB NS SINSS| SPN|IU [[IM UYdIYM SINss] IV ‘seiuedwod jo Ajiwe) ay3 ulyaim
paa.3e jJuawa|dwi
puE 31PNy 9oueuJaA0S ssauppe 03 ueld uonse ue SuidojaAsp AjpuaJund si Juswadeuel o1 po150dx sajuedwod Joy Ajiqisuodsad pjoy
3 Y P A 3| fonuns 17S @y2 03 sauspuodsau swog
lea | ustia M:mZ ‘sasodund 3uidiea Joy aeaado yaym ‘sajuedwod 93eQ Jesie L
Syelodio 3AI| | Jo sisisuod (Do4) saiuedwo?) jo Ajiwe4 s [12unoD) A1) YanowAd|d wuedug zin sajuedwo) jo Ajiweq
‘uondJIp
— uonesijelided e aroidde o3 papuiw
nAN__ S| 913G JO AJBIDUDDS Y3 JBY3 3uUpeIs
@ 70T Adenuqgeg /T Uo DHNTQ Wo-y
w PaAIa3U SBM J9139| 3|dIdulid-ul, Uy
as 3121y9p uoisuad e jo 350D
ST/yT0T SOV Ul 93 9dnpad Ajpuedijiusis O3 SpeW dM
uonewJlyuod pue uonoesued] B 03 suile|aJ ‘9331wwo)
PNy [BUJIU| 9OUBU.ISAOL) pUE 31PNy 3y}
BIA 99331WIWOY) | 03 A|Jgn8aJ pajuodad uaaq sey Ydlym
92UBUIDAOD) ‘6107 4290120 Ul 3pEW UONIBSURL)
PUE 3PNy | 3Y3 JOAO SulewdJ aNss| SUIpUBISINO Uy
Puno3 031 paytodau
9913IWwoD ssaJ8oud yam ‘uondaJig
9DUBUIDAOD) Q¢/¥T0T ssodde uonesjjelided)
pue 31pny SUO[IEPUSWIWODA ® JO WO} 3Y3 ul DHMNTQ Wody
"Je3A JBPUS|ED 70T Y JO pud 3yl Aq pajuswsa|dwi | pasude Juswajdwi (S43) 340ddng [eidueul{ [BUONASIX]
WUIqED 9q 03 pa1dadxs pue padojaAsp 3ulaq si MJom jo swweddoud vy 01 pa12adx3 paisanbau sey |1DUNoD) ay |
y3nouay |
SunJaoday JUSWIAIEIG IDUBINSSY 42O peo] eauy Ausalpq A9y

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440




SS J0 97 @8t

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

wes ] juswaseuel,

"ST/PTOT Ul uoneyuswa|dwi Joj pasied saNss| Y SSAIPpPE
03 padojaAap 3ulaq AjpuaJand si uejd uonde pue ased ssauisnq y Ipne

2PNy [eUJ)U|

BIA 290)IWIWOD
9DUBUIIAOD)
puelipny

0} palJodau
ssaJ3oud yam
ST/¥TOT sso4oe
SUOIEPUSWIWIODA
paa.3e jJuawa|dwi
03 paidadxy
:23eq ja8ae |

"y30q JO IYNS3J B SE |12UN0D)
32 01 Panss| 3J9M SUOIIDE JO Jaquinu

"$T0T Yo'l Ul s93nd84d s |1DUNOD
ay3 oaul Jipne ue Aq pamo||o} ‘€70T ABIW
ur OD| @Y1 Aq panssi sem puewladad

"OD| ‘@2MYO S, J2UOISSILWOD
UONBW.IOJU| SY) O UOIIEB|[BISS pPases.dul
pue saui|peap AJo3njels 193W 01 d.n|Iey
0} P3| SeY pPUBWISP pasea.tdul JuedIuBIS

ajesoduod) 3Y3 JO SSWODINO0 ) PIMIIAI SARY WED | Juswa3eue], 1eloduod) ay| youi4 uyof UOISIAOJd SS9J2Y uoljewlojuj
|\
ﬂ "|lPUNOT) O3 PSPUSWIWIOII PUE 333IIWWOT) SIUBUISAOKL) PUE 3PNy Y3 Aq 3UvCOT SOV U
%J pa.JapIsuod aq 03 91eqap Jo s3|nJ 03 sadueyd Joull| — 33eqa JO Sd|nY :o_wwvr”_d““t_wm_ﬂ_wuuﬁ
© . BIA 93131WLWIOD)
o 9913IWWLOY) 9DUBUIDAOL) pUB PNy Y3 Aq PaJapISUOd oUBLIOAG
3q ||!M sa8ueyd Uo JUBWIZE [BUI{ "IDNPUOD) JO SPOT) Y3 03 saduryd 9
3uimo|jo4 — (edueping Suluueld ui £31qoad) 993310 Sujuue|d ouvv:Mu.u___ovn_:M
. ssau3oud yam
9913IWWOY) SDUBUIDAOL) PUB PNy Y3 Aq PaJapISUOD
9q ||Im sadueyd uo Jusw343e [euld ‘dno.JS JSP|OYD|EIS SDUBUISAOL) SUHTOT ssooe
: i ] SUOIIBPUAWIWOD3
[1PUno? SJDIPO Y3 YIIM uoneljnsuod ul padojaAsp uaaq sey Jedp \ SJ9p.Jo
g paaJde juawajdwi
samIWWoY ulpuels 35ea3u0d 03 paJinbau aue syuswpuswe suonendad pue sadnoeud 01 Do195dxX
9JUBUIDAO juswa.undoud o3 sadueyd jo Y3 U] — s4apJ O Sulpueig 3deajuod) P 3
2 : :33e( 3a84e |
puUE JIpny "M3IADI
— 3u1u1adu0Dd sJeak [edpunw usploD | /€707 Y2 wouy sadueyd Sulureway
wes L u:oEwmw_:mZ ST/YTOT 2Y3 Ul SpPBW 3q ||IM SIUSWPUSLWE UOIINIIISUOD ‘sajuedwod jo AjloH / auedug
SFelodlo Ajlwey 9yl JO MdIASJ Y3 JO 3 Nsad & se padinbau sa3ueyd Aue 03 uonippe uj zI / o3e[ ssoy uoN3SU0D
SC/¥C0T SOV Ul 3|qissadde
UOPBWIYUOD pue | A|ISBd dJe ||e 30U ‘sajuedwod [BNPIAIpUI
y3nouay |
SunJaoday JUSWIAIEIG IDUBINSSY 42O peo] eauy Ausalpq A9y

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440




G J0 /7 98k

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

2PNy [BUJ)U|
BIA 290)IWWOD
9DUBUIIAOD)
puelpny

0} palJodau
ssaJ3oud yam

ST/¥TOT ssoJoe

"92UBUIDAON)
. SUOIEPUSWIWOI3 .

puE 3PNy $91pOq 95UBUISAOS JUBAS|2J AQ UOIBISPISUOD 5 p M3IA3. 1O} palI3USP!
JPUIgeD Jay1INy 210J0q Wea | Juswadeue] a1el0diory ayy 03 parioday | PISHSE USRI n_E_ SEM Sjdomawel] A31|IqeIunoddy
Aupnuog 2q A340ys [|IM pue Aemuapun S| JJOMIWEL MaU & jo JuawdojeAs( N _uwuum_w X3 | pue sduewIopiag 3y £707 SOV 43 U

wes ] juswaseuel, ‘93e@ Josiel
a3es0duo)) "bT/ETOT Ul U EIISPUN JOU SEM HJIOM SIY3 sIule3suod Ayoeded 03 ang o8e[ ssoy MOMIWE.I4 DIUBUIONIDG
39edwi AHlunwwod
pue ‘@dusliadxe qol ‘uonusla.
swwesSo.d 3uswdoppasp 1S SE YoNns ‘swid) Jay3o ul jo ySnoys
pue Suluiesy aaisuayaadwod e Aq pazdoddns ‘sjoo3 €| S¢/YTOT SOV Ul 8uiaq Ajuisea.oul s 3O “IeAIMOH

Page 223

3uisn 03 jeis aaow 03 swwea3oud e jo JuswdojeAsp 9y e
‘sanbiuy>a) uoneneas pue suejd uonesiunwwod
‘QwwreJa3ouad 3ujuieJl ‘94n3dNJ3s ‘9IUBUISA0S Spn|dul

03 ‘awwredadoud Auinbuj sAnepauddy ue jo JuswdojpAsp ay| e

-GT/PTOT Ul uonerusws|dul
Joj 3uimo||o} Y1 paaude oym ‘wed | Juswadeue, lelodiod)
93 3& passnasIp uaaq aAeY JJO Y3 Jo AISAIIBP 3y Joj suondQ

‘wnJoy |7S ay3 ysnouays /€707 4O 9sInod
9y SSOJDE UB|d SSQUDANDRYT [euonesiuesiQ Ue jo JuswdolaAap ay3

UonEW.IUOD pue
JIpPNY [BUJIU|

BIA 99331LIWIOD
9DUBUJIDAOND)
puelipny

0] paliodau
ssau3oud yam
ST/¥TOT sso4oe
SUOIEPUSWIWODA
pasuJsde Juswadwi
01 pa1dadxy
:33eq 3a84e |

"SMIAD
1pne pue s393Je1 A1oimels Sunssw
‘9dUB|Bq [BIDUBULY JO UONIULSP B UBSW
PINOd SIY3 QUSWUISAOS [BDO] JO SW.ID)

u] "yamous o Aouapiye ‘sayoad y3noayy
31 ujuysp ueaw pjnod siy3 ‘Ajleuoniped |

"S|eo8 UMo s3I 193w
01 Ajiqe s,uonesiuedio ue se paulep
9q ued (3O) SssauaAndaYy] euonesiuedio

wes | juswadeue), SPJEMO] HUOM Ul PIAJOAUI UD3Q sty (| TS) wea ] diysaspesa Joluag ay | (d3o)
9jedodiod) aJainbg suyD | ueld ssauaAday g feuonesiuesdio
SC/¥C0T SOV Ul
UOIBW.IUOD pUE
y3nouay |
SunJaoday JUSWIAIEIG IDUBINSSY 42O peo] eauy Ausalpq A9y

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440




Page 224

SS o 8 @8

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

S¢/¥T0C SOV U
UOIBW.IUOD puE
y3nouay |
SunJaoday JUSWIAIEIG IDUBINSSY 42O peo] eauy Ausalpq A9y

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440



Page 225

SS 40 67 @8t

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

%001

0
o~
o

%001

SI3qWaW pue S13d1j0
Aq paulejuiew u3ag aAey saduapyuod ajeudoiddy

'sandalqo 21633015 24314 0 paxIom aaey SJIAGWS

'P21JN220 jou sey Juawssesey Jo Buifjng

sngg
5 J3UI0 UYdR2 P3Yd33iq J0U 3ARY SIADNY() PUR SIRGWIN

133140 J0 Aujeredwi ay3 pjaydn aAey SIAGWIN

SI3D140) 10 IDIAPE 2U} 0} PRUR]SI| ALY SIBQUIBN

Angalgo pue fijegsedw ‘Gsaucy ‘Kubajul
YIIM SIONP Jiay3 pawiopad aney sI1adu0/SIaquspy

SUCIIL}S3J JO IPISINC
S22UNOS3J |I2UNCY) P3SN JOU JARY SIADIO/SIPGUWIB

3 Aq 2pige ©} paasbe aaey pue
12NPUOY) 4O 3PCY) SI2GUUBN 3Y3 4O 2UeME 2UR SISQUWIB

eany 2113 0} ajgedddy JoN / MOUY JUCO M ONE  SSA N

—JeY3 99.43e nok o

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

AJAUNS WVIL dIHSY3AVIT HOINGS — | XIAN3ddV

V101440



Page 226

SS 0 o€ @8t

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

%001 %0 %001
Ajoreudoudde
ua9q 9AeY san|ea
ealy 2dIA3S 03 a|gedijdde Jon/MouN JUOO M ONE  SSA N s,[1PUNo) ay1 18y}
Japisuod nok oQ
%001 %0 %001

‘leipedwi S 3aRIWWOTY) DUBUIIACK pue JIpNY Y|
*$355330.1d J1}RIOOWIP PUR SPIRPUR]S S [1DUNOY)
3y uc a>uepinb ydads yym paules} e SI2QUIBY MIN

'sainonuys Bunjew uois3p jo uoiesade uc aduepinb
ajeudoidde yim papiacid uaaqg aAey SIQUISN

'30URI2421 JO SWUI)
S }1 }J23W 03 |G UIAQ SeY IIPIWWO)) [I2UN0?) Yoe3

3|qediddyy JIoN /MOUY JUOCJM ONE SA N

— 1Y) 9343e nok o

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440



Page 227

§S Jo | € 98eg ¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

26001

I']H
=
5=
=

i e st anoiseyag sieudouddey)

UNSIABLYRG J3gLUSW Ao
. £
szowo sjeudouddewr podaa oy sseooud Jeags B 51 24

Asnouss sgqnd 2y woyp spure|duics SXel ISUncy Syl

iea|z s waishs syuiejdwes 5 psunay ay)

Faned syuepdwios s [ounc T 243 553338 ued Jjand sy

BAoMIsUDT pue uado
51 SI2ML0 J0 PUE SISGLUSW USSMIST UONEIILNIILICT

(ssaded puncibyoeq 's31nuiw ‘sepuabe ‘jdwexa
Jegd syuawnaop ajepdoudde ssaaze ued dqand sy

eany a3wuzg ol 2jgeoydde jop/mouy v ONE SSA W
—JeY3 9943e nok o

%001 %0

3
=

=

Apunwiwen
3ul Ul 23uspyuos Jing sey yrecudde spsuncy By

SN

S} 0 SP32U 241 139W 0] 51335 |I3UnNc] 3yl 'SIUBLIDLLLS

Bbuimoj|o}
saubesip fibucyic @ s=ubesigm @asbesipiousaibelayiey m =SBy @ sube dbucis m o2yl ylim a2l be nok
Op 1uUslxa 1eym o]

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWAd
VIOI440 =



Page 228

S Jo 7€ @8

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

s2aepd W ue|g Anuguo ssauisng e aaey nod og

Jsazuerswinanz Bubueys oy 1depe
o3 33adas anod o UsnpEp 2yl w Ayigeey eyl s

s55230ud Buuued
ssaUISNG 343 iUl paieicdioow Juawabeuew s 5

ABa1es (elaueug LUz wnipapy [ 136png pounc)
PUE 2331025 341 ciul paieicdioow suejd 25343 a0y

JPRIEIIUNWWCS
Aues| sizbeey pue sanuoud susid 2say) auy

|ezc| 3yl Buipniow) siapioyasels A= yaim voneynsuco
ul padojpasp useaqg s1ebuel pue sanucld suegpd aney

jsannzalgo nbalens pue voisia s QuUoyine
31 uo paseq =ue 1eyl suepd aney aaies Inad s3cg

eady 33aeg o3 3jgesdde jopmouy Juc M ONE S H

:3uimojjoy
ay3 Jamsuy

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440



Page 229

GG o £¢ a8y

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

%001

pRl3AER US3g 2aEy
sprefood delew soue fauow ko) anjes ssas5e nod o

»afosd 2ue (212 uelb J3yzo Aue so Buipung JuswiwsAoD
‘B3] 'Apoq [PLISINE UB WO} PRAIZIRI 3B SIIUOLW ALY

iBuiuien juawabouew
122lcud jrwisoy anezad spaloud abeuew 10Ul s12010 00O

ealy 23u3g o) 2jgezdde Jop/mouy i @ ON B SSA W
SuIMmo||o} B Jamsuy

%001

-I Sl o peiecnis Kuou Loy siyen e onfen 1oq

(72 ‘fyenby Gunwwen jeluswuciaug)  pRunseaw
sucisDEp pue sadjod jo 1zedwl 2yl s)

jsucnesiueBlo Jepwis o ssniroyine (eac| saylo 1swebe
fenk pue s3s00 2ovuas Jnod yewyzuzg nod og

;schiyssaupied pue sacingas |2 oy paydde
1 pue paysiqnd UciIaRiSES 231A35 PUR SIUSLUSAIYDE
‘SELLCIING JNOGE WOELITIU 3ousLLcpad aly

Jslaciyo [Enplapul jo asueumopad syl Jopuow
fexipouad o1 23e)d Wi saunpaocad 3anzays iU iy

jeaue aoidas Jned jo asuewsopad a4l Joyuow
fesipouad o1 23e)d wi saunpaocad anzays iUl iy

j3joym e se fuoyine 23 o asleunopad 2yl soyuow
fesipouad o1 23e)d wi saunpaocad 3anzays iUl iy

galy 23M3c 0F 3jgesdde jop Moy Luoo @ SN E S W

3uIMO||0} 31 Jamsuy

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440



Page 230

SS 40 ¢ 98

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

%001 001

%0

Husnep soruas o sabua|jeys [EWBIKE DUE [BuISIUl
243 0o 135 AEreudordde ABageils (RiousLy 34l 5300

;saaaaigo 301Uas J300|3P OF JUSIZINS
DuR PRUMIINIIS 220035 Yl 01 2|GRIZAR SIUBUL 3] 30y

jie3)z jouuoo
pue juaweteuew 326png 104 ssRqisuodsas oy

e 243U 51 pue s136png enusszs pue [eudes
Joyuow o 3vepd wossinpasctd pue swalshs suagl sy

eauy 23ad2g o1 2pgesdde Jopmouy 1ucg @ SN W 524 H

3uIMO||0} 31 Jamsuy

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440



Page 231

§§ Jo g€ 9%eg ¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

%001

&
=]

6001

ssucnenbay |punoco
21 yum Juendwos ssn paed Buiseyaung s1'sad g

-I .n...ﬂu.mmu_ m_t__.w.m.:uLj& § m.____.m._l._ u_.__.._j L_l_ﬁ_._‘m .WU_U_D

syses Ayad joasn

2y 101 3oejd w sjojuea seudoudde atay) aue 'sad )

-I .m_u._..__l_.._. = _._.H.._u._.wa : M}.M.E “_._._Lz.__ Mu_w_._rnwm L_l_.ﬁ_._‘m WW_UD

sazepd w sianddns [eurapa yum spuswaube
[3A3] 32T PUB SIORIILOD |2 38 AIESS303U UYM

""ANBIRI 7P JBPUO O3 J32NO0 UB MOJIE 10U PINom 3BY]
wagsis 2 2 j520np Jo ucheiedss JUSDIYNs 20343 5|

"IRUL WHHLOD O PRUILLEXS “113 ‘2IUSISISONs SLIeD
[aely B2 JUSWSSINGUIIRI J0) SWIR|D PUE S3HOAUL |8 aly

" DUE 53|y 2ANEI00I4 [BiaueUld / siapan Buipueis
YW 3OUBEU0I0E U UayEYRpUn ianse Juawanzcdd s5)

isiapap Bupuels pue
SNY UNPII0UZ [BIZUELIY IO 2I2ME SI23I0 ok a1y

galy 231d3g o sjgendde o /meuy1uco M ONE 524 H

3uIMO||0} 31 Jamsuy

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440



Page 232

S J0 9¢ a8ty

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

=

=T .

HTETOT Ul (930
salpoq AJo3en3dau

‘93e403259dsul

‘199d) smalnau
[euJ423xa Juspuadapul
Aue pey noA aAeH

2001 %0 001
jsuonepuswwosas Buipueisino Aue
puawidun o1 22e|d w suepd vonoe Juawabeuew a1y
Jpsuawdwi uzag sHpnY |Bulag
3say woly Buisue suchoe Juawabeuew pasube e aney
Juwancadu 1oy seale
10 SUCTIEpUSLILICTaS AUB P3RIUSPI JIPNY [BLISIXT anBH
ealyy 22iAdag 01 2jges|dde 1op/mouy 1 U o =]
¥ =AlSS. 01 SjqRH] 1ohyy Hiueqgm NE =i E SUIMO|[O} B2 JOMSUY/
%001 %0 001

;Bupueysino suonse fuoud wnipaw pue yBiy
e weawe|duws o1 2xed wosued uonze wawsbeuew sy

JpauaLRpdiv u3ag sMaIAad
asaw woiy Buisue suooe wawabeuew paaibe e aney

JsLpuowt 71 158 Y3 ul spoday
PNy [RUlRiU) SURInsse papwr Aue paaRtal nod aney

easy 23135 01 3jgendde jop/mouy uco M ON W S

3uIMO||0} 31 Jamsuy

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440



Page 233

GG o /¢ 98

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

001 %0 o001
jPayueg SLWoDU pUE papioial
BLUIODU| J0 UCITENIZUCIS B SYEUapun somias Jnod saog
Ekf
pred Buiag opuoud uoneso) 3n23s e w 1dss awoou 5|
shauabin jo
13112 B 5B JUED/33UC SI21USED 2yl O} pied awodu 5|
JPRMIS32 S| SWICoUL 211 L3RS
1diazas pesagunu-2ud o ydizsss g e 2nss nod o
Hsigap Apuns Buipnpui)
FLIODUI 23] JSLIC JO YSED 3413030 Jun inad 520
Baly 231035 01 3jgendde Jop /MouN JUCO M ON B 534
—JeY3 9943e nok o
%001 %0 6001
fsuopepuswwioal Buipueising
uawidw o1 2oepd v suepd vonse uewabeuew a0y
;e wEdu Usag smalnal
F53u] Wwaol Buisue suonse Juswabeusw psaube e aney
galy 23A03S ol 2jgesdde Jop/mouy ucg M SN B s34 W
— 1Y) 9343e nok o

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440



Page 234

SS 30 8¢ a8k

¥20¢/€C0C INIFWILVLS FONY

NYIAOD TVANNY

%001

a0 %001

oy

JPRUCHIUOW PUB BIDI033U
aE3| Ul / Bizads [ Ma) [/ |2nULE '3 2AE3) 5]

;21ep oy dn sy wbis/suciepucial jjorfed auy

meleaysawn Suincsdde uosiad 3y seop pue Jebeuewl
JJoswaadns e fg pasuoyine siaays 2w e 2y sad g

J19ays 3wg e uo pasiom sinoy Buipiosal
jo siseqg 23 uc pied 136 sssoyio snod jo fue o

RECICEEC I
pEanDal 3Ul 01 N0 PRLUED SMI3INTI STUSSOE 30y

Jutim pandwos buuoypuow
souasge [/ ssauys 1oy 2oed ul sainpacud aul auy

i31ep o3 dn spesiesdde f5)-7-| 30y

£5])195 253yl doj2asp o1 2jgepene Sulule 5|

cunad 1o uswsasiyze poddns pue sisey neyl =13 dwos
o7 5[oc] pue 5|5 'abpamouy 341 asey siangc o

wapeiodior BURSKS pUR MaU L0 pRULoiUl sisouc daay
03 2xejd i s3UNpa3cad UCIIEHUNLALISD 3103 3y

isiEoulo
ie o1 pajeuiwassip Auenbas jje wea) s a081] 5

ispaau jeucyesivebio
pue [enplupul 323w sawwesbold uononpul of

ifaed
LSIPa[ES pue Juswjinezay 2yt yps fdwos nok og

eady 23S oF 3jgendde op/mouy iuog @ SN W 534 M

— 1Y) 9343e nok o

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440



Page 235

SS 0 6€ @8

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

26001

%0 %001

o MRies g ylesH yle 2oueldwes
aunsua o3 axe|d wi sasseocid asey 331naas anod ssog

I i

zoges Jnod 1o yoes Joy passasse AJayes pue yyeay 5|

Py 23idag ol 2jgesdde jopmouy ucg M SN B 534 M

001

8
[

1o o) sjuawannbag uoysaoid B1e yum 2xuendwoo
ainsuz o 2oed w1 sjuswebusle annaye 2asy nof og

JS2ETUIA DUE 2IEMLUCSUERS S8
YIns ‘SWLDIagAY Jo YSU 3Y] JO 2UeMmE SI3go anok ay

Heaf 1sed
213 Bunnp Ajunias || 4o Yoesug Aue uasq 233 sey

;2beyzed Buises-3 ucnIsicdg
B38(] PUE Aun3ag || 243 peis|diuos sia2ilo (e ey

I e

fAunzag 1] 5, punos 2ul yis Adsos sisoc Jnek og

By 23103S 03 jgeoidde jop/mouy Juc M ONE SSAE

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440



Page 236

SS 40 0f @8t

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

#o0L %

%0

%001

Jayendsoy pue sypb Jo 3s35E00 Jo sSuoEIR| 33D
fue jo ppadsay u uciyoe Aue aye} o3 pey nod aney

JUCHESIULIPE S5 10} pauuapl uosiad Jyoads
£ 202Uy 51 pue J33sibas Syeudsoy pue Wb e a3y 5

~fay3 1eY) 05 S152431u1 Apisine abeupw 0 SJRcIYO pue

siaquiaw oy a3epd w ssunpasoid syeudosdde sy 3y

F1INpuoT)
joapon aafopdwg ypm Adwes sizoige nak og

gAYy 23n3g o3 3jgezdde jop /Moy Tuco M oMl SEAE

%e001 0

%001

traqs1530 ysu diysizuped e 2aibe saqued
i op diysisuped Jofew mau Aue Buusius 2uoeg

j31ep op-dn pday 20 Yoy sHopsieysiBal ¥su
umo Jizul 3aey s1zaloud sofew pue sdiysisunied e og

J30AIRS
23 ojul peppequwa saunpasosd wawabeuew ys1u auy

J3Un 23103s Jnod Jof ysu ajepdn pue
sheurws Wiuapl o voneisde i ssaocad e asey nof og

Bauy 333G of jgesijdde joppmouy U M ONE S3AE

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440



Page 237

S5 40 | @8

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

%0 001
;suciienBas 3soy3 yum

Adwios ssaxyo inod aunsua 03 5532 318)dwos nod og

5| yonoe sjeudosdde 5| pue JE]S 03 PRIEIIUNWILCT
sucienbas ) uonesiDa) pRpURLIE JO MBU 30y

JE=UE 32135 N0/ Ul DRAISSO0 39 1STW 1YL
sjuawziinbas Aoyenbad pue |253| Jo auemE SI33IY0 3y

eauy 231uzg 01 2jgesdde jop/mouy lucO @ ON B SSAE

%0 %001
iA3110d Buimo|g

S[SIYA, 24t J2pun sjeazia fue paaEoal nod aney

;301
2U} 03U pRPPERGWR saunpaccld Buimo|gI sy 2y

ooy uondnuon pue Alaqug "pnely
-[UY 5[I3UNCT 241 PUBISISPUN BUE O 2UEME SIZ3IUC 3UY

paly 2313g 01 3jgendde jop/mouy 3ucd M SN 52

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440



Page 238

SS Jo Tf 98

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

]
o

-]
=

pEsioyneun suebe papienfares Apadoad 2ie syasse
[I® ¥eu3 2unsiiz of 20e(d Ul sjuawsbueie 31wy 20y

spamzinag Auenbas ssayl suy

JUDIIEIO0| 2INIS B U B[Ry UCIEWLIoU) SIS sad g

i{=|qeddde 1) spuoda
32015 pue sjasse o Aojusaul ug uieuew nod og

ealy 2313g 03 2jgesdde jop/mouy lucO M OM B SSAE

%001

0
[}
=]

Ta0L
e Buipnizul uswabeluz pue uoneynsuos aunbal
12yl 530531 2yl ssuguapl eyl Monod e asey nod o

sleanap sovuas anod
Buipuebas spieme ¢ spuswdwos Aue paaizdal nod aney

FETERTTE:
2xAdEs Inoge syuejdwod Aue paaiaasd nod aney

HUzalaR 201uss wswegosd yum jeap
o1 2oejd Wi sunpascld spuiepdwios sanIae ue 3yl 5|

galy 23S oF 3jgendde jop /Moy luco M oM B SSAE

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440



Page 239

SS 0 £f 98

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

%001

% 001

iheeudoidde paajosal Buisg 2saul 20y

HlusaEp soiues s ssuned iBaiens

23Ul Yy sanssi Aue pacuziadees aowues Jnod sey
U230 $I3P{oUSHELs |[BUSIINIIISUI ya diysucega

jo ssausAnzays 2yl pue ‘ol fQI|IgEIunose sey
“anpoadsar iyl puig op Ajuoyine fiessaosu

241 aney diysiaulied a4 Jo saaneluasaadal B og
Jeapn diysisuped sug io snyels 252 sy 5
;diyssauped

243 uIym uonmosal ndsip Jop 2oejd W josojoud y
meizueuy tadoud dey fgeuncooe teapz pue s3zaloud
el a0y 2oepd L1 s30unos Buipuny o IUSWa1BIS
sdwyssauyied ayy Bunueddns

SIE3140 |I2UNCT 104 seiqisuadsas Juswabeuew aur

sdiyssauped
3y wyum 2jou s Jauped yaes buipiebal fuejy

jJnoineyaq sieuped syl g paieisucwap
I52Y] 2B pUE [I2UNOT 34] o 5oyl Poddns JeUE sanjey,

jsanalgo pue saidiouud Jo juswisiels espD

Doy 2335 o1 3jgendde jop/mouy oo @ ON B SSA

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440



Page 240

§S 40 i 98ed ¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

001

e
)
5
o
[ ]

Jasodind J0f 1f sUiead 1
1203 05 malaal Japun wday wawsaube sapjoyzueys 2yp 5

iAanzays pabeuew pue passpisuos
‘PRuIUERT s¥sU jeucnerRdo pue Jib31ens Suy

:sbunaaw pueoq
poddns @3 23ejd ul saunpadcud jsngos any

js1s2q
1e|nf3s B UC SS3USALISMLS SU MBIASS RIECG 3141 5200

=Buierado si yeuyl suciebajep pue sassazcsd Bupiew
-uoisizap N0 Buipas ungand)s Jesjs e 243y 5|

jangzaya souswoyuad Buuopuow
1oy asejd ul siuswabuelie s any

;DRIEIILNLLLCD pue pajusLunzop Aues)s aue
sucisizap eyl Buunsuz asepd wsssooud e iyl 5|

JIUBLUSIRES USISIA SU3 LI 2U1|
ul s Auediwos 2yl Ag usyepepun Buiag ssIMIeE aay

10} J|PUOCITE! PUB 30UIPIAZ 'BUaquD Buipnpau 'ssaooud
leap e ajeijsucwap Auedwios 3yl ueg

“Jgy 31 wiewad £34 Jey3 2unsua 03 siseq Jejnbas e
uo pamaisa sanpascsd asueuRach fuedwod auy

moue Buyew ucisiap Joy YJomatuely B se pasn fayy
aue pue paaube ussg Auedwos sy Jof san|ea ey

MOU¥IUCOM ONE 53\ H

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWAd
VIOI440 =



Page 241

SS J0 Gf 98

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

001

&8
]
2
o
=]
=

==

"3y} 01 aNjeA SpPPD Ul US¥e] suoisizap ol sabuajjeyd
BAIPINISUCT YIa 'SAII31S Uojoung ALIISS 343 5|

P3SN pUE 3|qe|iear (jeidueuy 1o (283 Eauysal) aape
jeucissapoud (spueynsucd 'Ba) jpuuapE pue UL 5|

Fs3Iigsuodsas ISyl SHELISpEUR O] Si3gLUSW
1oy 2|gejieae 2xueping pue Buiuiely ayeudeadde 312yl 5|

Zsaaoo
PUE SiaquuaL u3amiaq sjosojoud 3Aiapa 3201 31y

FHUR 30135 343
uiyM pue o} Yy3og uonebajap Jo FWaYDs 183D B 3U3Y3 5

Yy pue Jasiyg Buneiadn a0 ‘33aag Jo speay =)
juawszbeuew Jouas Jo sapqisuodsal pue s3jod By Ay

gany 23A35 o 3jgedde jop/MmouN IUCcO M ON B SEAE

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

V101440



Page 242

SS J0 9% @8t

TIDNNOD ALID HLNOWA

¥207/€20T LNIFWILVLS IDNVNYIAOD TVNNNY

V101440



= OFFICIAL
Page 243

PPENDIX 2 - CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE L5 of

o=y
PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

Introduction

Each year the Council conducts a review of the effectiveness of its system of internal control and
governance arrangements to ensure compliance with its Code of Corporate Governance. This
review forms part of the assurance gathering process to produce the Annual Governance Statement
(AGS). The Code has been revised in accordance with the CIPFA/ SOLACE Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government Framework 2016.

A summary of Plymouth City Council’s local arrangements in place to comply with each of the core
principles can be found in the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) which is prepared on behalf of
the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive and submitted to the Audit and Governance
Committee for consideration and review. It is the Audit and Governance Committee’s responsibility
to monitor the performance of the Council’s governance procedures against the Code. Following
approval, the AGS is published alongside the Statement of Accounts on the Council’s website.

Code of Corporate Governance

Governance is about how the Council ensures that it is doing the right things in the right way, for the
right people, in a timely, inclusive, open, honest and accountable manner.

It comprises the systems, processes, cultures and values by which the Council is directed and
controlled and through which it accounts to, engages with, and leads its communities.

The diagram below illustrates how the various principles for good governance in the public sector
relate to each other. The seven core principles each contain a set of supporting principles, which in
turn have a range of specific requirements that apply across the Council’s business and these are
described in detail on the following pages.

A, Behaving with
integrity. demanstratng
strong commitment 1o althical
values, and respecting
the rule of law

F. Managing risks D, Detarmnieg ihe
and pedarmance through interventions necessary
robus] bnternal contol 1 to optimize the
;a.n:t_strung public stakehok g achiavemant of the
finencial managemeant . ’ Intended oulcomias

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2023/2024 Page 47 of 55



OFFICIAL

Page 244 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Core principle A - Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical
values, and respecting the rule of law

Description: Local government organisations are accountable not only for how much they spend,
but also how they use the resources under their stewardship. This includes accountability for outputs,
both positive and negative, and for the outcomes they have achieved. In addition, they have an
overarching responsibility to serve the public interest in adhering to the requirements of legislation
and government policies. It is essential that, as a whole, they can demonstrate the appropriateness of
all their actions and have mechanisms in place to encourage and enforce adherence to ethical values
to respect the rule of law.

Sub-principles:
Behaving with integrity

= Ensuring members and officers behave with integrity and lead a culture where acting in the
public interest is visibly and consistently demonstrated thereby protecting the reputation of
the organisation.

= Ensuring members take the lead in establishing specific standard operating principles or values
for the organisation and its staff and that they are communicated and understood. These
should build on the Seven Principles of Public Life (the Nolan Principles).

* Leading by example and using these standard operating principles or values as a framework for
decision making and other actions.

= Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the standard operating principles or values
through appropriate policies and processes which are reviewed on a regular basis to ensure
that they are operating effectively.

Demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values

= Seeking to establish, monitor and maintain the organisation’s ethical standards and performance.

= Underpinning personal behaviours with ethical values and ensuring they permeate all aspects
of the organisation’s culture and operation.

= Developing and maintaining robust policies and procedures which place emphasis on agreed ethical
values.

= Ensuring that external providers of services on behalf of the organisation are required to act
with integrity and in compliance with high ethical standards expected by the organisation.

Respecting the rule of law

® Ensuring members and staff demonstrate a strong commitment to the rule of the law as well as
adhering to relevant laws and regulations.

= Creating the conditions to ensure that the statutory officers, other key post holders and
members are able to fulfil their responsibilities in accordance with legislative and regulatory
requirements.

= Striving to optimise the use of the full powers available for the benefit of citizens,
communities and other stakeholders.

= Dealing with breaches of legal and regulatory provisions effectively.

= Ensuring corruption and misuse of power are dealt with effectively.




= OFFICIAL
Page 245 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Core principle B — Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

Description: Local government is run for the public good; organisations therefore should ensure
openness in their activities. Clear, trusted channels of communication and consultation should be
used to engage effectively with all groups of stakeholders, such as individual citizens and service
users, as well as institutional stakeholders.

Sub-principles:
Openness

» Ensuring an open culture through demonstrating, documenting and communicating the
organisation’s commitment to openness.
Making decisions that are open about actions, plans, resource use, forecasts, outputs and
outcomes. The presumption is for openness. If that is not the case, a justification for the
reasoning for keeping a decision confidential should be provided.

= Providing clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in both public records and explanations
to stakeholders and being explicit about the criteria, rationale and considerations used. In
due course, ensuring that the impact and consequences of those decisions are clear.

= Using formal and informal consultation and engagement to determine the most
appropriate and effective interventions/courses of action.

u

Engaging comprehensively with institutional stakeholders

= Effectively engaging with institutional stakeholders to ensure that the purpose, objectives and
intended outcomes for each stakeholder relationship are clear so that outcomes are achieved
successfully and sustainably.

= Developing formal and informal partnerships to allow for resources to be used more
efficiently and outcomes achieved more effectively.

= Ensuring that partnerships are based on:
*  Trust,
+ ashared commitment to change,
+ aculture that promotes and accepts challenge among partners and that the added value of

partnership working is explicit.

Engaging stakeholders effectively, including individual citizens and service users

= Establishing a clear policy on the type of issues that the organisation will meaningfully consult
with or involve individual citizens, service users and other stakeholders to ensure that service
(or other) provision is contributing towards the achievement of intended outcomes.

=  Ensuring that communication methods are effective and members and officers are clear about
their roles with regard to community engagement.

® Encouraging, collecting and evaluating the views and experiences of communities, citizens,
service users and organisations of different backgrounds including reference to future
needs.

®  |mplementing effective feedback mechanisms in order to demonstrate how their views have been
taken into account.

= Balancing feedback from more stakeholder groups with other stakeholder groups to ensure
inclusivity.

= Taking account of the interests of future generations of tax payers and service users.




OFFICIAL

Page 246 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Core principle C — Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and
environmental benefits

Description: The long-term nature and impact of many of local government’s responsibilities
mean that it should define and plan outcomes and that these should be sustainable. Decisions
should further the authority’s purpose, contribute to intended benefits and outcomes, and remain
within the limits of authority and resources. Input from all groups of stakeholders, including citizens,
service users, and institutional stakeholders, is vital to the success of this process and in balancing
competing demands when determining priorities for the finite resources available.

Sub-principles:
Defining outcomes

» Having a clear vision which is an agreed formal statement of the organisation’s purpose and
intended outcomes containing appropriate performance indicators, which provides the basis
for the organisation’s overall strategy, planning and other decisions.

» Specifying the intended impact on, or changes for, stakeholders including citizens and service
users. It could be immediately or over the course of a year or longer.

* Delivering defined outcomes on a sustainable basis within the resources that will be available.

* |dentifying and managing risks to the achievement of outcomes.

» Managing service user’s expectations effectively with regard to determining priorities and making
the best use of the resources available.

Sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits

= Considering and balancing the combined economic, social and environmental impact of policies,
plans and decisions when taking decisions about service provision.

= Taking a longer-term view with regard to decision making, taking account of risk and acting
transparently where there are potential conflicts between the organisation’s intended
outcomes and short-term factors such as the political cycle or financial constraints.

= Determining the wider public interest associated with balancing conflicting interests between
achieving the various economic, social and environmental benefits, through consultation where
possible, in order to ensure appropriate trade-offs.

= Ensuring fair access to services.

Core principle D = Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement
of the intended outcomes

Description: Local government achieves its intended outcomes by providing a mixture of legal,
regulatory, and practical interventions. Determining the right mix of these courses of action is a
critically important strategic choice that local government has to make to ensure intended
outcomes are achieved. They need robust decision-making mechanisms to ensure that their defined
outcomes can be achieved in a way that provides the best trade-off between various types of
resource inputs while still enabling effective and efficient operations. Decisions made need to be
reviewed continually to ensure that achievement of outcomes is optimised.




OFFICIAL

Page 247 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Sub-principles:
Determining interventions

* Ensuring decision makers receive objective and rigorous analysis of a variety of options
indicating how intended outcomes would be achieved and including the risks associated with
those options. Therefore ensuring best value is achieved however services are provided.

= Consider feedback from citizens and service users when making decisions about service
improvements or where services are no longer required in order to prioritise competing
demands within limited resources available including people, skills and assets and bearing in mind
future impacts.

Planning interventions

» Establishing and implementing robust planning and control cycles that cover strategic and
operational plans, priorities and targets.

» Engaging with internal and external stakeholders in determining how services and other courses
of action should be planned and delivered.

» Considering and monitoring risks facing each partner when working collaboratively including
shared risks.

» Ensuring arrangements are flexible and agile so that the mechanisms for delivering outputs can be
adapted to changing circumstances.

= Establishing appropriate key performance indicators (KPIs) as part of the planning process in
order to identify how the performance of services and projects is to be measured.

* Ensuring capacity exists to generate the information required to review service quality regularly.

* Preparing budgets in accordance with organisational objectives, strategies and the medium term
financial plan.

* Informing medium and long term resource planning by drawing up realistic estimates of
revenues and capital expenditure aimed at developing a sustainable funding strategy.

Optimising achievement of intended outcomes

»  Ensuring the medium term financial strategy integrates and balances service priorities,
affordability and other resource constraints.

» Ensuring the budgeting process is all-inclusive, taking into account the full cost of operations
over the medium and longer term.
Ensuring the medium term financial strategy sets the context for ongoing decisions on significant
delivery issues of responses to changes in the external environment that may arise during the
budgetary period in order for outcomes to be achieved while optimising resource usage.

» Ensuring the achievement of ‘social value’ through service planning and commissioning.

Core principle E = Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its
leadership and the individuals within it

Description: Local government needs appropriate structures and leadership, as well as people with
the right skills, appropriate qualifications and mind set, to operate efficiently and effectively and
achieve their intended outcomes within the specified periods. A local government organisation must
ensure that it has both the capacity to fulfil its own mandate and to make certain that there are
policies in place to guarantee that its management has the operational capacity for the organisation as
a whole. Because both individuals and the environment in which an authority operates will change
over time, there will be a continuous need to develop its capacity as well as the skills and experience
of the leadership of individual staff members. Leadership in local government entities is strengthened




= OFFICIAL
Page 248 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

by the participation of people with many different types of backgrounds, reflecting the structure and
diversity of communities.

Sub-principles:
Developing the entity’s capacity

= Reviewing operations, performance use of assets on a regular basis to ensure their continuing
effectiveness.

® |mproving resource use through appropriate application of techniques such as benchmarking
and other options in order to determine how the authority’s resources are allocated so that
outcomes are achieved effectively and efficiently.

= Recognising the benefits of partnerships and collaborative working where added value can be
achieved.

= Developing and maintaining an effective workforce plan to enhance the strategic allocation of
resources.

Developing the capability of the entity’s leadership and other individuals

= Developing protocols to ensure that elected and appointed leaders negotiate with each other
regarding their respective roles early on in the relationship and that a shared understanding of
roles and objectives is maintained.

= Publishing a statement that specifies the type of decisions that are delegated and those
reserved for the collective decision making of the governing body.

= Ensuring the leader and the chief executive have clearly defined and distinctive leadership roles
within a structure whereby the chief executive leads the authority in implementing strategy and
managing the delivery of services and other outputs set by members and each provides a check
and a balance for each other’s authority.

= Developing the capabilities of members and senior management to achieve effective shared
leadership and to enable the organisation to respond successfully to changing legal and policy
demands as well as economic, political and environmental changes and risks by;

«  Ensuring members and staff have access to appropriate skills, knowledge, resources and
support to fulfil their roles and responsibilities and ensuring that they are able to update
their knowledge on a continuing basis.

«  Ensuring members and officers have the appropriate skills, knowledge, resources and support
to fulfil their roles and responsibilities and ensuring that they are able to update their
knowledge on a continuing basis.

«  Ensuring personal, organisational and system wide development through shared
learning, including lessons learned from governance weaknesses both internal and
external.

= Ensuring that there are structures in place to encourage public participation.

= Taking steps to consider the leadership’s own effectiveness and ensuring leaders are open to
constructive feedback from peer review and inspections.

®  Holding staff to account through regular performance reviews which take account of training or
development needs.

= Ensuring arrangements are in place to maintain the health and wellbeing of the workforce and
support individuals in maintaining their own physical and mental wellbeing.




OFFICIAL

Page 249 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Core principle F — Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and
strong public financial management

Description: Local government needs to ensure that the organisation and governance structures
that it oversees have implemented, and can sustain, an effective performance management system that
facilitates effective and efficient delivery of planned services. Risk management and internal control
are important and integral parts of a performance management system and crucial to the achievement
of outcomes. Risk should be considered and addressed as part of all decision making activities. A
strong system of financial management is essential for the implementation of policies and the
achievement of intended outcomes, as it will enforce financial discipline, strategic allocation of
resources, efficient service delivery, and accountability. It is also essential that a culture and structure
for scrutiny is in place as a key part of accountable decision making, policy making and review. A
positive working culture that accepts, promotes and encourages constructive challenge is critical to
successful scrutiny and successful delivery. Importantly, this culture does not happen automatically, it
requires repeated public commitment from those in authority.

Sub-principles:
Managing risk

» Recognising that risk management is an integral part of all activities and must be considered in all
aspects of decision making.

* Implementing robust and integrated risk management arrangements and ensuring that they are
working effectively.

» Ensuring that responsibilities for managing individual risks are clearly allocated.
Managing performance

» Monitoring service delivery effectively including planning, specification, execution and independent
post implementation review.

» Making decisions based on relevant, clear objective analysis and advice pointing out the
implications and risks inherent in the organisation’s financial, social and environmental position and
outlook.

» Ensuring an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in place which encourages constructive
challenge and debate on policies and objectives before, during and after decisions are made
thereby enhancing the organisation’s performance and that of any organisation for which it is
responsible. Encouraging effective and constructive challenge and debate on policies and objectives
to support balance and effective decision making.

*  Providing members and senior management with regular reports on service delivery plans and on
progress towards outcome achievement.

» Ensuring there is consistency between specification stages (such as budgets) and post
implementation reporting (e.g. financial statements).

Robust internal control

= Aligning the risk management strategy and policies on internal control with achieving the
objectives.

» Evaluating and monitoring the authority’s risk management and internal control on a regular basis.
* Ensuring effective counter fraud and anti-corruption arrangements are in place.

» Ensuring additional assurance on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the framework of
governance, risk management and control is provided by the internal auditor.

»  Ensuring an Audit and Governance Committee or equivalent group or functions which is
independent of the executive and accountable to the governing body;




OFFICIAL

Page 250 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

* Provides a further source of effective assurance regarding arrangements for managing risk and
maintaining an effective control environment.

» That its recommendations are listened to and acted upon.

Managing data

* Ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the safe collection, storage, and use and
sharing of data, including processes to safeguard personal data.

= Ensuring effective arrangements are in place and operating effectively when sharing data with
other bodies.

= Reviewing and auditing regularly the quality and accuracy of data used in decision making and
performance monitoring.

= Strong public financial management

* Ensuring financial management supports both long term achievement of outcomes and short-
term financial and operational performance.

=  Ensuring well-developed financial management is integrated at all levels of planning and control,
including management of financial risks and controls.

Core principle G — Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to
deliver effective accountability

Description: Accountability is about ensuring that those making decisions and delivering services are
answerable for them. Effective accountability is concerned not only with reporting on actions
completed, but also ensuring that stakeholders are able to understand and respond as the
organisation plans and carries out its activities in a transparent manner. Both external and internal
audit contribute to effective accountability.

Sub-principles:

Implementing good practice in transparency

*  Writing and communicating reports for the public and other stakeholders in an understandable
style appropriate to the intended audience and ensuring that they are easy to access and
interrogate.

» Striking a balance between providing the right amount of information to satisfy transparency
demands and enhance public scrutiny while not being too onerous to provide and for users to
understand.

Implementing good practices in reporting

» Reporting at least annually on performance, value for money and the stewardship of its
resources in a timely and understandable way.

* Ensuring members and senior management own the results reported.

» Ensuring robust arrangements for assessing the extent to which the principles contained in the
Framework have been applied and publishing the results on this assessment including an evidence
to demonstrate good governance (annual governance statement).

* Ensuring that the framework is applied to jointly managed or shared service organisations as
appropriate.

» Ensuring the performance information that accompanies the financial statements is prepared
on a consistent and timely basis and the statements allow for comparison with other similar
organisations.

Assurance and effective accountability

* Ensuring that recommendations for corrective action made by external audit are acted upon.

» Ensuring an effective internal audit service with direct access to members is in place, providing
assurance with regard to governance arrangements and that recommendations are acted upon.

*  Welcoming peer challenge, reviews and inspections from regulatory bodies and implementing




= OFFICIAL
Page 251 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

recommendations.

» Gaining assurance on risks associated with delivering services through third parties and that this
is evidenced in the annual governance statement.

»  Ensuring that when working in partnership, arrangements for accountability are clear and the need
for wider public accountability has been recognised and met.




This page is intentionally left blank



OFFICIAL

Page 253

DRAFT Independent auditor's report to the members of Plymouth City
Council

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Disclaimer of opinion

We were engaged to audit the financial statements of Plymouth City Council (the ‘Authority’) for the year
ended 31 March 2024, which comprise the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the
Movement in Reserves Statement, the Balance Sheet and the Cash Flow Statement, the Collection
Fund and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24.

We do not express an opinion on the accompanying financial statements of the Authority. Because of
the significance of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion section of our report, we
have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion
on these financial statements.

Basis for disclaimer of opinion

The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2024 (‘the Regulations’) require the Authority to
publish audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 by 28 February 2025 (‘the
backstop date’). The backstop date has been put in law with the purpose of clearing the backlog of
historical financial statements.

On 12 December 2024 we issued a disclaimer of opinion on the Authority’s financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2023, as we had not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence by
13 December 2024, the previous backstop date, that the financial statements were free from material
misstatement. We were therefore unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence over the
corresponding figures or whether there was any consequential effect on the Authority Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement for the year ended 31 March 2024 for the same reason.

As a result of the limitations imposed by the backstop date, we have been unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence over the Authority’s opening balances reported in the financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2024. Consequently, we have been unable to satisfy ourselves over the in-
year movements in the net pension liability and property, plant and equipment. This has also resulted in
uncertainty over the closing balance of property, plant and equipment of £1,072,298,000 as at 31 March
2024. Similarly, we have not been able to obtain assurance over the Authority’s closing reserves
balance of £475,870,000 as at 31 March 2024, also due to the uncertainty over their opening amount.
We have concluded that the possible effects of these matters on the financial statements could be both
material and pervasive. We have therefore issued a disclaimer of opinion on the financial statements.
This enables the Authority to comply with the requirement of the Regulations to publish the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 by the backstop date.

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit Practice

Because of the significance of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion section of our
report, we have been unable to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement does not comply
with the requirements of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2023/24, or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware
from our audit. We are not required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses
all risks and controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal controls.

Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice

The Service Director for Finance is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts, other than the Authority’s financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Because of the significance of the matters described in the
basis for disclaimer of opinion section of our report, we have been unable to form an opinion, whether
based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and our knowledge
of the Authority gained through our work in relation to the Authority’s arrangements for securing

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 1



OFFICIAL

Page 254

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, whether the other information published
together with the financial statements in the Statement of Accounts for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:

e Wwe issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

e we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

e we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under
Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the
audit; or;

e Wwe issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the
course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

e we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

Responsibilities of the Authority and the Service Director for Finance

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the Authority is required to make
arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers
has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this authority, that officer is the Service
Director for Finance. The Service Director for Finance is responsible for the preparation of the
Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as
set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2023/24, for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
Service Director for Finance determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Service Director for Finance is responsible for assessing the
Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they have been informed by the
relevant national body of the intention to dissolve the Authority without the transfer of its services to
another public sector entity.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Authority’s financial statements in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK) and to issue an auditor’s report. However, because of the
matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion section of our report, we were not able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on those financial
statements.

We are independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect
of irregularities, including fraud. Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk
that material misstatements in the financial statements may not be detected, even though the audit is
properly planned and performed in accordance with the ISAs (UK).

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 2



OFFICIAL

Page 255

The audit was defective in its ability to detect irregularities, including fraud, on the basis that we were
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence due to the matters described in the basis for
disclaimer of opinion section of our report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements — the Authority’s
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources

Matter on which we are required to report by exception — the Authority’s arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we have not been
able to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2024.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matter except in November 2024 we identified:

Significant weaknesses in relation to the Authority’s arrangements for financial sustainability:

e Signs of financial stress were identified as a threat to the Authority’s financial sustainability in
the Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS). We recommended in 2022/23 that the Authority
undertake a detailed revision of the MTFS to address how it mitigates the risks against the
financial stress indicators and this recommendation remained open in 2023/24.

e Given the importance of transformation in supporting the Authority’s financial sustainability, we
recommended that the Authority should implement its plans for its council wide transformation
programme at sufficient scale and pace to demonstrate that it is able to address the significant
structural budget deficit.

A significant weakness in the Authority’s arrangements for improving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness.

¢ In May 2023, the Department for Education issued the Council with a statutory Improvement
Notice requiring all areas of improvement in Children’s Services to be addressed by the
Authority and its partners. Whilst the Authority can evidence improvement in services during
2023/24, with arrangements put in place promptly to address issues raised in the Improvement
Notice, we recommended that appropriate arrangements are in place with partners to address
actions raised in a subsequent joint area SEND inspection and that improvements identified
through the Authority’s ‘Achieving Excellence’ strategy are fully costed and incorporated into
the Authority’s financial plans.

The above matters highlight pervasive financial sustainability and improving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness weaknesses at the Authority to allow the Authority to maintain and deliver statutory
functions.

Responsibilities of the Authority

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied
that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of
the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
are operating effectively.

We undertake our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance
issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2024. This guidance sets out the
arrangements that fall within the scope of ‘proper arrangements’. When reporting on these
arrangements, the Code of Audit Practice requires auditors to structure their commentary on
arrangements under three specified reporting criteria:

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 3



OFFICIAL

Page 256

e Financial sustainability: how the Authority plans and manages its resources to ensure it can
continue to deliver its services;

e Governance: how the Authority ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly
manages its risks; and

e Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Authority uses information about its
costs and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.

We document our understanding of the arrangements the Authority has in place for each of these three
specified reporting criteria, gathering sufficient evidence to support our risk assessment and
commentary in our Auditor’'s Annual Report. In undertaking our work, we consider whether there is
evidence to suggest that there are significant weaknesses in arrangements.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements — Delay in
certification of completion of the audit

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate for Plymouth City Council for the
year ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice until we have completed the work necessary in relation to
consolidation returns, including Whole of Government Accounts (WGA), and the National Audit Office
has concluded their work in respect WGA for the year ended 31 March 2024. We are satisfied that this
work does not have a material effect on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 85 of the Statement of
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Authority’s members those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the
Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Signature:
Name: Jackson Murray, Key Audit Partner

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor

Bristol

Date: xx February 2025

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 4



OFFICIAL Page 257 Agenda Item 9

Audit and Governance Committee

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

Date of meeting: I8 February 2025

Title of Report: Updated Treasury Management Strategy 2025/26

Lead Member: Councillor Mark Lowry (Cabinet Member for Finance)

Lead Strategic Director: David Northey (Interim Service Director for Finance)

Author: Wendy Eldridge, Lead Accountancy Manager Capital and Treasury
Management

Contact Email: Wendy.eldridge@plymouth.gov.uk

Your Reference: Finance/WE/TMS Final 2025-26

Key Decision: No

Confidentiality: Part | - Official

Purpose of Report

This report includes an updated Treasury Management Strategy report for 2025/26 to the one
presented to the Audit & Governance Committee on 12 November 2024. It incorporated latest
treasury management strategy information published in January 2025 by Arlingclose, the Councils
Treasury Management advisors.

These reports are required by The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)
Code of Practice for Treasury Management in Public Services.

Recommendations and Reasons
I. The Audit and Governance Committee notes the updated Treasury Management Strategy, that
will be considered at City Council on 24 February 2025 as part of the Annual Revenue and
Capital Budget report.

This is to comply with the CIPFA Code of Practice and discharge our statutory requirement.

Alternative options considered and rejected
I. Itis a statutory requirement under the Local Government Act 2003 and supporting regulations
to set an annual treasury strategy for borrowing and prepare an annual investment strategy.
The Council has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management.

Relevance to the Corporate Plan and/or the Plymouth Plan

Effective financial management is fundamental to the delivery of corporate improvement priorities.
Treasury Management activity has a significant impact on the Council’s activity both in revenue budget
terms and capital investment and is a key factor in facilitating the delivery against a number of
corporate priorities.


mailto:Wendy.eldridge@plymouth.gov.uk

OFFICIAL
Page 258 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Implications for the Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:

Treasury Management affects the Council’s budget in terms of borrowing costs and investment returns.
The Treasury Management Strategy sets the authorised limits and operational boundaries within which
investment and borrowing decisions are taken and risks managed. Effective treasury management will
provide support towards the achievement of its business and service objectives. It is therefore
committed to the principles of achieving value for money in treasury management, and to employing
suitable performance measurement techniques, within the context of effective risk management.

Financial Risks

There is an inherent risk to any Treasury Management activity. The Council continues to manage this
risk by ensuring all investments are undertaken in accordance with the approved investment strategy,
and keeping the counterparty list under constant review.

Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications:
No direct implications

Other Implications: e.g. Health and Safety, Risk Management, Child Poverty:

* When considering these proposals members have a responsibility to ensure they give due regard to the Council’s duty to promote
equality of opportunity, eliminate unlawful discrimination and promote good relations between people who share protected
characteristics under the Equalities Act and those who do not.

A robust Treasury Management Strategy is key to ensuring a successful delivery of our Medium-Term
Financial Strategy and ensuring the Council can achieve its objectives to be a Pioneering, Growing

Caring and Confident City.

Appendices

*Add rows as required to box below

Ref. Title of Appendix Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)
If somel/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate
why it is not for publication by virtue of Part |of Schedule |2A
of the Local Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.

| 2 3 4 5 6 7

A Treasury Management Strategy 2025/26

Background papers:

*Add rows as required to box below

Please list all unpublished, background papers relevant to the decision in the table below. Background papers are unpublished works,
relied on to a material extent in preparing the report, which disclose facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the
work is based.

Title of any background paper(s) Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)

If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate why it
is not for publication by virtue of Part |of Schedule |2A of the Local
Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.

I 2 3 4 5 6 7



OFFICIAL
Page 259 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Treasury Management Strategy 2025/26
presented to Audit & Governance Committee
on |2 November 2024

https://democracy.plymouth.gsov.uk/documents
[s149776/A%20G%20Committee%20Report%
20TMS%202025-26.pdf

Sign off:
Ei OoWw. . . . .
in Leg M| Click | HR Click | Asset | Click | Strat | Click here
24.25. LS/00001 o | here here |s here | Proc | to enter
038 075/ n | to to to text.
L/AC/ O | enter enter enter
71212025 ff | text. text. text.

Originating Senior Leadership Team member: David Northey

Please confirm the Strategic Director(s) has agreed the report? Yes
Date agreed: 31/01/2025

Cabinet Member approval: approved by email

Date approved:



https://democracy.plymouth.gov.uk/documents/s149776/A%20G%20Committee%20Report%20TMS%202025-26.pdf
https://democracy.plymouth.gov.uk/documents/s149776/A%20G%20Committee%20Report%20TMS%202025-26.pdf
https://democracy.plymouth.gov.uk/documents/s149776/A%20G%20Committee%20Report%20TMS%202025-26.pdf

OFFICIAL
Page 260 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

CONTENTS -

Section I: Introduction, overview and context 4
I. Introduction 4
2. Overview: Investments and Borrowing - facts at a glance 4
3. Economic context — economic outlook and interest rate forecast 6
4. Local context - Plymouth City Council’s capital financing requirements 6
Section 2: Treasury Management Strategy — Borrowing & Investments 10
5. Borrowing Strategy and borrowing limits 10
6. Investment Strategy and associated policies 13
7. Treasury Management Performance Indicators (including Prudential Indicators) 18
8. Alternative approaches considered 20
9. Other Treasury Management considerations 21
Section 3: Non-Treasury Investments & MRP Statement 23
10. Non-Treasury Investment Strategy 23
I 1. Minimum Revenue Provision Statement 29
Appendix A - Economic and Interest Rate Forecast 31
Appendix B - Existing Investment and Debt Portfolio Position 33

Appendix C - Provisional 2025/26 Treasury Management budget 34



OFFICIAL
Page 261 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

SECTION |: INTRODUCTION, OVERVIEW & CONTEXT

. Introduction

Treasury management is the management of the Council’s cash flows, borrowing and investments, and
the associated risks. The City Council has borrowed and invested substantial sums of money and is
therefore exposed to financial risks including the loss of invested funds and the revenue effect of changing
interest rates. The successful identification, monitoring and control of financial risk are therefore central
to the Council’s prudent financial management. Treasury risk management at Plymouth City Council is
conducted within the framework of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury
Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice (the CIPFA Code) which requires the City Council
to approve a treasury management strategy before the start of each financial year. This Appendix fulfils
the Council’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act 2003 to have regard to the CIPFA Code.

The document also sets out Plymouth City Council’s Non-Treasury Investment Strategy, a requirement
of statutory guidance on Local Government Investments. Finally, the document sets out Plymouth City
Council’s statement of policy on the Minimum Revenue Provision for approval by the City Council,

fulfilling the Council’s legal obligation under statutory guidance issued under the Local Government Act
2003.

2. Overview - Investment & Borrowing strategies at a glance

INVESTMENTS - KEY FACTS AT A GLANCE

Principles and Objectives of the Treasury Management Strategy
* To achieve the best secure investment returns (a target rate of 5% has been set for 2025/26)

* To achieve a balanced spread of maturities and commitments
* To achieve the right mix of borrowing vehicles
* To balance risk against return

Sources of Market Intelligence & Advice
e Bank of England reports.
e Market advice, credit ratings and other information from the Council’s advisers Arlingclose.

Investment policy

e Sterling only

e Can use UK Government, Local Authority or a body of ‘high credit quality’
(defined as organisations and securities having a credit rating of [A-] or higher

Statutory and domiciled in UK)

Performance Investment and Counterparty Limits

Framework ¢ Unlimited UK Government & Money Market Funds

e £25m any single local authority, government entity or secured investment.
Rules that guide us e £10m per Bank (unsecured)

e £20m unrated corporates

e £60m Strategic Pooled Funds

e £10m Real estate investment

Further information on counterparties is set out in section 6.4 below.

Approach Hierarchy of objectives — Security first, then Liquidity and then Yield.
Risk Assessment and credit ratings - We monitor credit ratings daily so any
OIS TR URIIES new investments will be made using the latest credit information. Market intelligence

framework




OFFICIAL
Page 262 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

from our advisors may give warnings before credit warning changes e.g., credit default
swaps information.
BORROWING - KEY FACTS AT A GLANCE

Principles and Objectives of the Treasury Management Strategy

* To minimise the cost of borrowing (a target rate of 4.5% has been set for 2025/26)
* To achieve a balanced spread of maturities and commitments
¢ To achieve the right mix of borrowing vehicles

Sources of Market Intelligence & Advice
e Bank of England reports
e Market outlook, debt restructuring advice and technical support from the Council’s advisers Arlingclose.

Borrowing requirements - key assumptions and limits for 2025/26
e £162m assumed Capital Expenditure in 2025/26

e £1051m total Capital Finance Requirement (underlying need to borrow)
e £788m assumed total debt (financing) required in 2025/26

£1005m the Operational Boundary (practical ceiling set on borrowing)
e £1055m the Authorised Limit (absolute maximum debt approved)

Key Prudential & Treasury Management Indicators
e 19.87% Ratio of finance costs to net revenue stream (borrowing costs as a
proportion of net revenue budget)

e 90% Limit on Fixed Interest Rate exposure

e 30% Limit on Variable Interest Rate exposure

e Upper and Lower limits are set for different durations to provide a framework
for the Council’s maturity structure of borrowing, to mitigate the risk of over-
exposure to refinancing risks — see page 20 for further details.

Statutory
and
Performance
Framework

Rules that guide us

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy

e Annuity Method used — see page 29 for further details.

e PFl/Leases can be charged on an annuity method over the life of the asset.
e Option for capital receipts to be used towards repaying debt.

Balanced objectives - The Council’s chief objective when borrowing money is
to strike an appropriately low risk balance between securing low interest costs
and achieving certainty of those costs over the period for which funds are
required. In addition, the Council seeks to ensure a minimum level of short-term
borrowing is held to maximise the benefit from a hedging arrangement.
Strategy - the Authority’s borrowing strategy continues to address the key issue
of affordability without compromising the longer-term stability of the debt
portfolio. With short-term interest rates anticipated to be lower than long-term
rates for much of 2025/26, it is likely to be more cost effective in the short-term
to either use internal resources, or to borrow short-term loans instead.
LOBOs - with interest rates having risen recently, there is now a reasonable
chance that lenders will exercise their options. If they do, the Authority will take
the option to repay LOBO loans to reduce refinancing risk in later years.

Debt Restructuring - the council will reschedule or restructure debt if it
reduces cost or risk, in consultation with our appointed advisors Arlingclose. The
council uses a present value calculation (based on current rates) to assess value
of debt restructuring options that could result in a discount or premium being
receivable / payable.

Approach

Choices made within the
framework




OFFICIAL
Page 263 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

3. Context — economic background and interest rate outlook

Specialist advisers Arlingclose support the Council with borrowing and investment advice. This section
summarises Arlingclose’s assessment of the economy and interest outlook in the coming months and
years. Further detail is set out in Appendix A.

Economic background as at January 2025:

The impact on the UK from the government’s Autumn Budget, slower interest rate cuts, modestly weaker
economic growth over the medium term, together with the impact from President-elect Trump’s second
term in office and uncertainties around US domestic and foreign policy, will be major influences on the
Authority’s treasury management strategy for 2025/26.

The Bank of England’s (BoE) Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) held Bank Rate at 4.75% at its December
2024 meeting, having reduced it to that level in November and following a previous 25bp cut from the 5.25%
peak at the August MPC meeting. At the December meeting, six Committee members voted to maintain

Bank Rate at 4.75% while three members preferred to reduce it to 4.50%.

Interest Rate Forecast

The Authority’s treasury management adviser Arlingclose forecasts that The Bank of England’s Monetary
Policy Committee will continue reducing rates through 2025, taking Bank Rate to around 3.75% by the end
of the 2025/26 financial year. The effect from the Autumn Budget on economic growth and inflation has
reduced previous expectations in terms of the pace of rate cuts as well as pushing up the rate at the end of
the loosening cycle.

Arlingclose expects long-term gilt yields to remain broadly at current levels on average (amid continued
volatility), but to end the forecast period modestly lower compared to now. Yields will continue remain
relatively higher than in the past, due to quantitative tightening and significant bond supply. As ever, there
will be short-term volatility due to economic and (geo)political uncertainty and events.

A more detailed economic and interest rate forecast provided by Arlingclose is in Appendix A. For the
purpose of setting the budget, it has been assumed that new treasury investments will be made at an average

rate/yield of 5%, and that new long-term loans will be borrowed at an average rate of 4.5%.

4. Context — the Council’s Capital Financing Requirements

On 3Ist December 2024, Plymouth City Council held £664.5m of borrowing and £77.6m of treasury
investments (this is set out in further detail at Appendix B). Forecast changes in these sums will be driven
by changes to the Council’s total capital financing requirement, driven in turn by the Council’s capital
programme. In line with the Plymouth Plan — a long-term strategy for the City, the Council has a large
programme of investment to support economic growth and health and wellbeing in Plymouth. The
financial impact of this investment programme is analysed in the tables below.



OFFICIAL

Page 264

4.1. Estimates of Capital Expenditure

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

The Council’s planned capital expenditure and financing forecast as at December 2024 is summarised in
the table below. The forecast incorporates reprofiling assumptions for current and future years based
on a trend analysis using actual information from previous years.

This is how we will fund the investment needed to deliver the Plymouth Plan in
each year of the MTFP period

Capital Expenditure and

Financing

2024/25
Forecast
£Em

2025/26
Forecast
£m

2026/27
Forecast
£Em

2027/28
Forecast
Em

Ei;ii%ﬁi;g‘?g:ﬁ;gﬁ‘;ﬁ only) 120.007 162.315 74.988 25.540
Total Expenditure 120.007 162.315 74.988 25.540
Capital Receipts 2.002 3.048 9.379 0.180
Grants and Contributions 72.182 74.523 1.756 3.351
Revenue 1.598 1.683 0.000 0.263
Borrowing 44.225 83.061 63.853 21.746
Leasing and PFI 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.00
Total Financing 120.007 162.315 74.988 25.540‘

4.2. Estimates of Capital Financing Requirement

The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) measures the Council’s underlying need to borrow for a capital
purpose. The underlying need to borrow considers the borrowing required to finance historic capital
investment as well as new borrowing required to finance forecast investment over the MTFP period. It
also includes financing attributable to PFl & finance leases, including assumed additional financing resulting
from accounting changes required under the introduction of IFRS16.

This is the total past and planned capital expenditure we need to finance.

31 Mar 24 31 Mar 25 31 Mar 26 31 Mar 27
Capital Financing Requirement Actual Forecast For'ecast Forecast

Forecast CFR (General Fund only) 866.405 986.460 1051.845 1192.790

Total CFR 866.405 986. 460‘ 1051.845 1192.790

The Council has an increasing CFR, which is forecast to rise by £326.385 over the next three years
because of capital programme investment and changes to the accounting treatment required under
IFRS16, offset by minimum repayment provision for debt incorporated with medium term financial
planning. Work is ongoing to assess the impact of this accounting change and the figures in the table
above are an estimate only.

4.3. Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement



OFFICIAL
Page 265 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

In order to ensure that over the medium-term debt will only be for a capital purpose, the Council should
ensure that debt does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of capital financing requirement in
the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional capital financing requirement for the current and
next

two financial years. This is a key indicator of prudence.

This is how much we expect to borrow over the next three years

31 Mar 24 31 Mar 25 31 Mar 26 31 Mar 27

Actual Forecast Forecast Forecast

Em Em Em Em

Borrowing 655.532 700.225 788.286 957.139
PFI liabilities & Finance Leases* 118.500 219.000 217.000 215.000

Total Debt

* A provision has been made for changes to accounting requirements arising from the introduction of the new
accounting standard IFRS |6, which requires operating leases to be brought onto the balance sheet as a debt
liability with effect from | April 2024. Work is ongoing to assess the impact of this accounting change on reported
CFR and MRP policy and the figures in the table above are an estimate at this stage.

CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities recommends that the Authority’s total
debt should be lower than its highest forecast CFR over the next three years. Table | shows that the
Authority expects to comply with this recommendation during the period 2025 to 2027.

4.4. Liability benchmark

The liability benchmark is an important tool to help establish whether the Council is likely to be a long-
term borrower or long-term investor in the future, and so shape its strategic focus and decision making.
The liability benchmark itself represents an estimate of the cumulative amount of external borrowing the
Council must hold to fund its current capital and revenue plans while keeping treasury investments at
the minimum level required to manage day-to-day cash flow.

Following on from the medium-term forecasts in the tables above, the long-term liability benchmark
assumes capital expenditure funded by borrowing across 5-year capital programme of £323.597m,
minimum revenue provision on new capital expenditure based on a 20 or 25 year asset life (as
appropriate) and income, expenditure and reserves all increasing by inflation of 2.5% a year. This is shown
in the chart below together with the maturity profile of the Authority’s existing borrowing. The liability
benchmark calculations used in the chart below exclude financing relating to IFRS16 lease arrangements,
which are assumed be financed from the revenue account. As the full implications from changes arising
through the introduction of IFRS 16 become clearer, the liability benchmark position set out here will
be reviewed.

The liability benchmark chart demonstrates that the Council is likely to be a long-term borrower. On a
current forecast of investment needs, the maturity structure of existing debt remains below the
cumulative amount of external borrowing forecast for a long-term period, which will require the council
to borrow more funds to meet its borrowing needs over an estimated 20 year period.



OFFICIAL
Page 266 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Liability Benchmark - Plymouth City arling _TC*_ .
£m ( oS

1,000

900

800

700

600

500

400

300

200

100

0
2024 2026 2028 2030 2032 2034 2036 2038 2040 2042 2044 2046 2048 2050 2052 2054 2056 2058 2060 2062 2064 2066 2068 2070 2072 2074

B Fixed rate loans [ LOBO loans = Loans CFR

Liability benchmark == =Net loans requirement




OFFICIAL
Page 267 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

SECTION 2: TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

5. Borrowing Strategy & Borrowing Limits

As at 31st December 2024, Plymouth City Council held £664.5m of loans, an increase of £9m from
March 31st 2024, as part of its strategy for funding previous years’ capital programmes. Table 4.3 above
show that the Council expects to borrow up to £788m by the end of the 2025/26 financial year. The
Council may also borrow additional sums to pre-fund future years’ requirements, providing this does not
exceed authorised limits agreed by the City Council, as set out in this report.

5.1.Borrowing strategy

The Council’s primary objective when borrowing money is to strike an appropriately low risk balance
between securing low interest and fixing borrowing to obtain certainty of costs. The flexibility to
renegotiate loans or to reschedule debt should the Council’s long-term plans change is a secondary
objective.

Given the context of increasing demand for statutory services and a challenging outlook for public
finances and local government funding, Plymouth City Council’s borrowing strategy continues to address
the key issue of affordability without compromising the longer-term stability of the debt portfolio. Short-
term interest rates are currently higher than in the recent past, but are expected to fall in the coming
year and it is therefore likely to be more cost effective over the medium-term to either use internal
resources, or to borrow short-term loans instead. The risks of this approach will be managed by keeping
the Council’s interest rate exposure within the limit set in the treasury management prudential indicators
(set out in section 7 below).

By doing so, the City Council is able to reduce net borrowing costs (despite foregone investment income)
and reduce overall treasury risk. The Council has taken the opportunity to refinance some of its short-
term borrowing with long term fixed rate borrowing from PWLB. This has reduced the Council’s short-
term borrowing and therefore reduced the interest rate risk (risk of interest rates rising).

The Council will continue to review its portfolio of borrowing and may refinance its debt dependant on
the market conditions. The benefits of short-term borrowing will continue to be monitored regularly
against the potential for incurring additional costs by deferring borrowing into future years when long-
term borrowing rates are forecast to rise modestly. Short term borrowing may be a cheaper option,
but it could leave the Council exposed to refinancing risk, a combination of interest rate risk (the risk
that rates will rise) and availability risk (the risk that no-one will lend to the Council). Arlingclose will
assist the Council with this ‘cost of carry’ and breakeven analysis. Its output may determine whether the
Council borrows additional sums at long-term fixed rates in 2025/26 with a view to keeping future
interest costs low, even if this causes additional cost in the short-term.

The Council will reschedule or repay loans where this is expected to lead to an overall cost saving or a
reduction in risk to reduce the overall long-term costs of the loan portfolio. The Council will only borrow
from approved sources (set out in section 5.3 below). In its budget assumptions for 2025/26, the Council
has assumed that new long-term loans will cost an average rate of 4.5%.

5.2. Borrowing Limits: Maximum Total Debt

We are required to set borrowing limits by law. Limits are set at
affordable levels, with sufficient scope to fund our forecast capital programme.

The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by the Capital Financing Requirement
(CFR). Usable reserves and working capital are the underlying resources available for investment, or to
finance internal borrowing. The current strategy is not to borrow to the full underlying CFR, and to use
working capital and reserves to offset an element of borrowing need.



OFFICIAL
Page 268 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities sets a maximum for total debt. This is the
maximum the CFR is expected to reach at any time during the next three years.

The Council expects to hold borrowing up to £788m in 2025/26. The total borrowing must not exceed
an authorised limit set by the Council of £1055m, which includes estimated long-term liabilities of
£217m, plus an allowance for short term cashflow borrowing requirements. This authorised limit is
subject to review once the full impact of IFRS16 is known; although IFRS16 will be fully implemented for
the Statement of Accounts for 2024/25, further work is required to understand the full implications of
this new accounting standard for borrowing limits in 2025/26. Further detail on the authorised limit and
other Prudential Indicators are set out in section 6 below.

In addition to the IFRS review, the Council will also review the appropriateness and affordability of its
capital programme and associated financing requirements and borrowing limits if there is a significant
change in the balance of costs and income forecast in the Council’s rolling Medium-Term Financial Plan.
This Treasury Management Strategy has been developed in conjunction with a Medium-Term Financial
Plan for the period 2025-28. There is a high degree of confidence that assumptions on costs and income
made for the first year of this period are robust; as such the Council can be confident that the revenue
consequences of borrowing limits set out in this document for 2025/26 are affordable. However, looking
forward to 2026/27 there are significant uncertainties over the level of demand for statutory services
(and associated cost pressures), as well as levels of income in what will be the first year following a
significant review of local government funding.

5.3.Sources of borrowing

The approved sources of long-term and short-term borrowing are set out in the table below.

These are the lenders we are able to use.

Sources of Borrowing

e HM Treasury’s PWLB lending facility (formerly the Public Works Loan Board)

» National Wealth Fund Ltd (formerly UK Infrastructure Bank Ltd)

* Any institution approved for investments (see below)

* Any other bank or building society authorised to operate in the UK

» Any other UK public sector body

» UK public and private sector pension funds (except Devon Local Government Pension Fund)

o Capital market bond investors

» UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc and other special purpose companies created to enable local
authority bond issues and short term borrowing

e Any other counterparty that is recommended by the Council’s TM advisors

» Capital Grant funders offering loans (eg SALIX)

e A Plymouth City Council bond or similar local financial instruments.

In addition, capital finance may be raised by the following methods that are not borrowing, but may be
classed as other debt liabilities:

» Leasing

Hire purchase

Private Finance Initiative

Sale and leaseback

The Council continues to investigate other sources of finance, such as local authority loans and bank
loans that may be available at more favourable rates.




OFFICIAL
Page 269 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

The Council has specific strategic issues to consider for some forms of borrowing, and our strategy for
a selection of certain financing options is set out here.

5.3.1. Lender’s Option Borrower’s Option loans (LOBOs)

The Council holds LOBO agreements, which were entered into under different
market conditions. Where appropriate we will replace them with lower cost

The Council holds £54m of LOBO (Lender’s Option Borrower’s Option) loans where the lender has
the option to propose an increase in the interest rate at set dates, following which the Council has the
option to either accept the new rate or to repay the loan at no additional cost. Lender’s Options to the
value of £10m were called during 2024/25, and the Council took the option to repay these loans. Future
opportunities to repay any LOBO obligations will be considered on a case-by-case basis, and the Council
will take the option to repay LOBO loans when it can be demonstrated to be cost effective.

5.3.2. Municipal Bond Agency loans

The Municipal Bonds Agency may offer an alternative for short term borrowing

The UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc was established in 2014 by the Local Government Association as
an alternative to the PWLB. It issues bonds on the capital markets and lends the proceeds to local
authorities. This is a more complicated source of finance than the PWLB for two reasons: borrowing
authorities will be required to provide bond investors with a guarantee to refund their investment in the
event that the agency is unable to for any reason; and there will be a lead time of several months between
committing to borrow and knowing the interest rate payable. Any proposal for Plymouth City Council
to borrow from the Municipal Bond Agency will be the subject of a separate report to full Council, and
would require the agreement of the City Council.

5.3.3. Short-term and Variable Rate loans

These loans leave the Council exposed to the risk of short-term interest rate rises and are therefore
subject to the interest rate exposure limits in the treasury management indicators below. To address
some of the interest rate risk the Council has entered into a rate swap arrangement with Santander PLC
which covers the risk on any differential between the Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA) and a
set interest rate. The twenty-year arrangement was entered into on | April 2020 and since July 2022 this
has generated a financial benefit to the Council.

Other financial instruments may be used to manage interest rate or other risks in line with the Council’s
policy on the use of Financial Derivatives (see section 9.1 below).

5.4. Debt Rescheduling

The PWLB allows authorities to repay loans before maturity and either pay a premium or receive a
discount according to a set formula based on current interest rates. Other lenders may also be prepared
to negotiate premature redemption terms. The Authority may take advantage of this and replace some
loans with new loans, or repay loans without replacement, where this is expected to lead to an overall
cost saving or a reduction in risk. The recent rise in interest rates means that more favourable debt
rescheduling opportunities should arise than in previous years.



OFFICIAL Page 270
6. Investment strategy and associated policies

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

6.1. Treasury Management Investment Strategy and Objectives

This section sets out how we invest any surplus funds for cash management, and
to manage short term interest rate risks

The Council invests its money for three broad purposes:

e because it has surplus cash from its day-to-day activities, for example when income is received in
advance of expenditure, or to mitigate medium term interest rate risks (known as treasury
management investments),

e to support local public services by lending to or buying shares in other organisations (service
investments), and

e to regenerate areas within the City of Plymouth or immediate surrounding economic area to
encourage private investment and to create or retain local jobs (known in Plymouth City Council
as ‘Property Regeneration Fund’ investments).

This section focusses on the first category. Section |10 below focuses on the second and third of these
categories and meets the requirements of statutory guidance issued in January 2018.

The Council typically receives its income in cash (e.g. from taxes and grants) before it pays for its
expenditure in cash (e.g. through payroll and invoices). It also holds grants received in advance of future
expenditure, and levels of reserves in order to manage risk. These activities, plus the timing of borrowing
decisions, lead to a cash surplus which will be invested in accordance with the strategy and policies set
out in this document. The balance of treasury investments is expected to fluctuate between £20m and
£60m during the financial year 2025/26.

The CIPFA Code requires Plymouth City Council to invest its treasury funds prudently, and to have
regard to the security and liquidity of its investments before seeking the highest rate of return, or yield.
The Council’s objective when investing money is to strike an appropriate balance between risk and
return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults and the risk of receiving unsuitably low
investment income. Where balances are expected to be invested for more than one year, the City
Council will aim to achieve a total return that is equal or higher than the prevailing rate of inflation, in
order to maintain the spending power of the sum invested. Plymouth City Council aims to be a
responsible investor and will consider environmental, social and governance (ESG) issues when investing,
as set out in paragraph 6.2 below.

As demonstrated by the liability benchmark (see section 4.4 above), the Council expects to be a long-
term borrower and new treasury investments will therefore be made primarily to manage day-to-day
cash flows using short-term low risk instruments. The majority of the cash held by the council for
working capital purposes is currently invested in short-term money market funds which offer lower rates
but allow for immediate withdrawal.

The Council holds investments in diversified managed funds (defined as ‘strategic pooled funds’ in table
6.2 below) which offer a higher yielding alternative to short-term money market funds. The CIPFA Code
no longer permits local authorities to both borrow and invest long-term for cash flow management,
however, decisions to invest in these funds were taken some time ago under a different policy framework.
The CIPFA Code does permit long-term investments to be held for treasury risk management purposes,
including to manage interest rate risk by investing sums borrowed in advance for the capital programme



OFFICIAL
Page 271 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

for up to three years; to manage inflation risk by investing usable reserves in instruments whose value
rises with inflation; and to manage price risk by adding diversification to a strategic pooled fund portfolio.
Accordingly, the Council’s historic portfolio of strategic pooled funds will be retained to diversify risk
into different sectors and to manage medium term interest rate risk. The Council currently holds £55m
across a number of such funds (CCLA Property Fund, CCLA Better World Cautious Fund, Schroder’s
Income Maximiser and Fidelity Enhanced Income Fund); these funds have no defined maturity date, but
can be either withdrawn after a notice period or sold on an exchange. Their performance and continued
suitability in meeting the Council’s investment objectives will be monitored regularly.

In its budget assumptions for 2025/26, the Council has assumed that investments will return at an average
rate of 5.0%.

6.2. Environmental, social and governance investment policy

Environmental, social and governance (ESG) considerations are increasingly a factor in global investors’
decision making, but the framework for evaluating investment opportunities is still developing and
therefore the Authority’s ESG policy does not currently include ESG scoring or other real-time ESG
criteria at an individual investment level. When investing in banks and funds, the Authority will prioritise
banks that are signatories to the UN Principles for Responsible Banking and funds operated by managers
that are signatories to the UN Principles for Responsible Investment, the Net Zero Asset Managers
Alliance and/or the UK Stewardship Code.

6.3. Treasury Management Investment business models and strategic pooled funds

Under the new IFRS 9 accounting standard, the accounting for certain investments depends on the
Council’s “business model” for managing them. The Council aims to achieve value from its internally
managed treasury investments by a business model of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore,
where other criteria are also met, these investments will continue to be accounted for at amortised cost.
The Government have recently consulted on potential changes to guidance on the accounting treatment
for certain strategic pooled fund investments and the outcome of this process may affect the council’s
general fund. The position will be reviewed as and when any changes to guidance are announced and
the council’s approach to pooled investments may change as a result.

6.4. Security Risk and Counter Party policies

6.4.1. Sector guidance, approved counterparties and investment limits

These are the limits we use for making individual investments.
They are based on advice from Arlingclose.

The Council may invest its surplus funds with any of the counterparty types in table 6.2 below, subject
to the limits shown.



OFFICIAL
Page 272 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Table 6.2: Investment limits Couritrer:'zarty Sector limit

The UK Government 3 years Unlimited

Local authorities & other government entities 3 years £25m Unlimited
Secured investments * 3 years £25m Unlimited
Banks (unsecured) * I3 months £10m Unlimited
Building Societies (unsecured) * I3 months £5m £10m
Registered providers (unsecured) * 3 years £5m £10m
Money Market Funds * n/a £12m Unlimited
Strategic pooled funds n/a £25m £60m
Real estate investments trusts n/a £5m £10m
Loans and investments to unrated corporates n/a £5m £20m

Other investments, unrated investments in equity,

quasi-equity, debt or otherwise L £5m 2t

* See paragraph 6.2.4.1 below for specific credit risk management procedures applying to these sectors.

When considering investment limits in the table above, the Council’s treasury management team will
also refer to the credit ratings of the individual organisations to make the final assessment, in consultation
with the Council’s professional advisors where appropriate. Limits will also be placed on fund managers,
investments in brokers’ nominee accounts and industry sectors as set out in the further guidance below.
The Council does not invest in non-Sterling currencies, though may make sterling investments in banks
domiciled outside the UK. The Council’s treasury management team will also refer to the detailed sector
guidance set out below for specific sectors.

UK Government:

These are sterling-denominated investments with or explicitly guaranteed by the UK Government,
including the Debt Management Account Deposit Facility, treasury bills and gilts. These are deemed to
be zero credit risk due to the government’s ability to create additional currency and therefore may be
made in unlimited amounts for up to 50 years.

Local authorities and other government entities:

These are loans to, and bonds and bills issued or guaranteed by, other national governments, regional
and local authorities and multilateral development banks. These investments are not subject to bail-in,
and there is generally a lower risk of insolvency, although they are not zero risk.

Secured investments:

These are investments secured on the borrower’s assets, which limits the potential losses in the event
of insolvency. The amount and quality of the security will be a key factor in the investment decision.
Covered bonds and reverse repurchase agreements with banks and building societies are exempt from
bail-in. Where there is no investment specific credit rating, but the collateral upon which the investment
is secured has a credit rating, the higher of the collateral credit rating and the counterparty credit rating
will be used. The combined secured and unsecured investments with any one counterparty will not
exceed the cash limit for secured investments.

Investments in banks and building societies (unsecured), including operational bank accounts:



OFFICIAL
Page 273 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

These are investments in accounts, deposits, certificates of deposit and senior unsecured bonds with
banks and building societies, other than multilateral development banks. These investments are subject
to the risk of credit loss via a bail-in should the regulator determine that the bank is failing or likely to
fail. The Council may incur operational exposures, for example though current accounts, collection
accounts and merchant acquiring services, to any UK bank with credit ratings no lower than AAA- and
with assets greater than £25 billion. These are not classed as investments, but are still subject to the risk
of a bank bail-in, and balances should be kept below £10m per bank. The Bank of England has stated that
in the event of failure, banks with assets greater than £25 billion are more likely to be bailed-in than
made insolvent, increasing the chance of the Council maintaining operational continuity.

Investments in registered providers (unsecured):

These are loans to, and bonds issued or guaranteed by, registered providers of social housing or
registered social landlords, formerly known as housing associations. These bodies are regulated by the
Regulator of Social Housing (in England). As providers of public services, they retain the likelihood of
receiving government support if needed.

Money market funds:

These are pooled funds that offer same-day or short notice liquidity and very low or no price volatility
by investing in short-term money markets. They have the advantage over bank accounts of providing
wide diversification of investment risks, coupled with the services of a professional fund manager in
return for a small fee. Although no sector limit applies to money market funds, the Council will take care
to diversify its liquid investments over a variety of providers to ensure access to cash at all times.

Strategic pooled funds:

These are bond, equity and property funds, including exchange traded funds, that offer enhanced returns
over the longer term but are more volatile in the short term. Strategic pooled funds allow the Council
to diversify into asset classes other than cash without the need to own and manage the underlying
investments. Because these funds have no defined maturity date, but can be either withdrawn after a
notice period or sold on an exchange, their performance and continued suitability in meeting the
Council’s investment objectives will be monitored regularly. As noted in section 6.1 above, the Council
currently holds £55m across a number of such funds.

Real estate investment trusts:

Shares in companies that invest mainly in real estate and pay the majority of their rental income to
investors in a similar manner to pooled property funds. As with property funds, REITs offer enhanced
returns over the longer term, but are more volatile especially as the share price reflects changing demand
for the shares as well as changes in the value of the underlying properties. Investments in REIT shares
cannot be withdrawn but can be sold on the stock market to another investor.

Other investments:

This category covers treasury investments not listed above, for example unsecured corporate bonds and
unsecured loans to companies and universities. Non-bank companies cannot be bailed-in but can become
insolvent placing the Council’s investment at risk.

6.4.2. Risk assessment and credit ratings

Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by the Council’s treasury advisers, who will notify changes in
ratings as they occur. Where an entity has its credit rating downgraded so that it fails to meet the
approved investment criteria then:
e No new investments will be made
e Any existing investments that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be, and
e Full consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all other existing investments with the
affected counterparty



OFFICIAL
Page 274 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Where a credit rating agency announces that a credit rating is on review for possible downgrade (also
known as “rating watch negative” or “credit watch negative”) so that it may fall below the approved
rating criteria, then only investments that can be withdrawn on the next working day will be made with
that organisation until the outcome of the review is announced. This policy will not apply to negative
outlooks, which indicate a long-term direction of travel rather than an imminent change of rating

6.4.2.1.  Sector-specific credit rating policies

Treasury investments in the sectors marked with an asterisk in table 6.2 above will only be made with
entities whose lowest published long-term credit rating is no lower than A-. Where available, the credit
rating relevant to the specific investment or class of investment is used, otherwise the counterparty
credit rating is used. However, investment decisions are never made solely based on credit ratings, and
all other relevant factors including external advice will be taken into account.

6.4.2.2.  Other considerations on the security of investments

When assessing the security risk of investments, the Council’s treasury management team will also
consider the following factors:

e For entities without published credit ratings, investments may be made either (a) where external
advice indicates the entity to be of similar credit quality; or (b) to a maximum of £10m per
counterparty as part of a diversified pool e.g. via a peer-to-peer platform.

e The Council defines “high credit quality” organisations and securities as those having a credit
rating of [A-] or higher that are domiciled in the UK or a foreign country with a sovereign rating
of [AA+] or higher. For money market funds and other pooled funds “high credit quality” is
defined as those having a credit rating of [A-] or higher or if unrated an assessment will be made
from the financial information available.

e The Council understands that credit ratings are good, but not perfect, predictors of investment
default. Full regard will therefore be given to other available information on the credit quality of
the organisations in which it invests, including credit default swap prices, financial statements,
information on potential government support and reports in the quality financial press and analysis
and advice from the Council’s treasury management adviser. No investments will be made with
an organisation if there are substantive doubts about its credit quality, even though it may
otherwise meet the above criteria.

e When deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness of all organisations,
as happened in 2008, 2020 and 2022, this is not generally reflected in credit ratings, but can be
seen in other market measures. In these circumstances, the Council will restrict its investments
to those organisations of higher credit quality and reduce the maximum duration of its
investments to maintain the required level of security.

The extent of these restrictions will be in line with prevailing financial market conditions. If these
restrictions mean that insufficient commercial organisations of high credit quality are available to
invest the Council’s cash balances, then the surplus will be deposited with the UK Government,
via the Debt Management Office or invested in government treasury bills for example, or with
other local authorities. This will cause investment returns to fall but will protect the principal sum
invested.

6.4.3. Reputational considerations

The Council is aware that investment with certain counterparties, while considered secure from a purely
financial perspective, may leave it open to criticism, valid or otherwise, that may affect its public
reputation. This reputational risk will be taken into account when making investment decisions.



OFFICIAL
Page 275 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL
6.5.Liquidity Management

Plymouth City Council uses a purpose-built excel cash flow forecasting tool to determine the maximum
periods for which funds may prudently be committed. The forecast is compiled on a prudent basis
highlighting when borrowing needs to be secured to minimise the risk of the Council being forced into
unplanned borrowing under unfavourable terms to meets its financial commitments. Limits on longer
term investments are set with reference to the Council’s medium-term financial plan and cashflow
forecast.

The City Council will spread its liquid cash over at least three providers (e.g. bank accounts and money
market funds), of which at least two will be UK domiciled, to ensure that access to cash is maintained in
the event of operational difficulties at any one provider.

1. Treasury Management and Prudential Indicators

7.1.2025/26 Prudential Indicators

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to have regard to the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential
Code) when determining how much money it can afford to borrow. The objectives of the Prudential
Code are to ensure, within a clear framework, that the capital investment plans of local authorities are
affordable, prudent and sustainable, and that treasury management decisions are taken in accordance
with good professional practice. To demonstrate that the Council has fulfilled these objectives, the
Prudential Code sets out the following indicators that must be set and monitored each year.

7.1.1. Operational Boundary for External Debt

This indicator provides some flexibility to allow borrowing for day-to-day
cashflow reauirements

The operational boundary is based on the Council’s estimate of most likely, (i.e. prudent, but not worst
case) scenario for external debt.

Operational Boundary ‘ 2024/25 £m  2025/26 £m  2026/27 £m  2027/28 £m
Borrowing 700.225 788.286 957.139 983.886
Other long-term liabilities 219.000 217.000 215.000 213.000
Total Debt ‘

7.1.2. Authorised Limit for External Debt

This is the absolute maximum of debt approved by the City Council
The Authorised Limit is the affordable borrowing limit determined in compliance with the Local
Government Act 2003 and represents the maximum amount of debt that the Council can legally owe.
The Authorised Limit provides headroom over and above the operational boundary for more unusual
cash movements.

Authorised Limit 2024/25 Em  2025/26 Lm‘ 2026/27 £m  2027/28 £m
Borrowing 750.225 838.286 1007.139 1033.886
Other long-term liabilities 219.000 217.000 215.000 213.000

Total Debt 969.225 1055.286 1222.139 1246.886




OFFICIAL
Page 276 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL
7.1.3. Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream

This measure demonstrates that our proposed borrowing is affordable.
This is an indicator of affordability and highlights the revenue implications of existing and proposed capital
expenditure by identifying the proportion of the revenue budget required to meet financing costs, net of
investment income.

Ratio of Financing Costs to Net 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28

Revenue Stream Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

General Fund 17.18% 19.87% 21.09% 22.33%

7.1.4. Adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code

The Council adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management
in the Public Services: Code of Practice in April 2002. It fully complies with the Code’s recommendations.

71.2. Other Treasury Management Indicators

In addition to the statutory Prudential Code indicators set out in section 7.1 above, the Council measures
and manages its exposures to treasury management risks using the following non-statutory indicators.

7.2.1. Security

The Council has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to credit risk by monitoring the value-
weighted average credit rating of its investment portfolio. This is calculated by applying a score to each
investment (AAA=I, AA+=2, etc.) and taking the arithmetic average, weighted by the size of each
investment. Unrated investments are assigned a score based on their perceived risk.

I

Portfolio average credit rating A

7.2.2. Liquidity

The Council does not keep large amounts of cash in call accounts so that it reduces the cost of carrying
excess cash. To mitigate the liquidity risk of not having cash available to meet unexpected payments the
Council has access to borrow additional, same day, cash from other local authorities.

7.2.3. Interest Rate Exposures

This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to interest rate risk. The upper limits on fixed
and variable rate interest rate exposures, expressed as the proportion of net principal borrowed will be:

I = s e

Upper limit on fixed interest rate exposure 90% 80% 90% 90%
Upper limit on variable interest rate 20% 30% 359 30%
exposure

Fixed rate investments and borrowings are those where the rate of interest is fixed for more than 12
months, measured from the start of the financial year or the transaction date if later. All other
instruments are classed as variable rate.



OFFICIAL
Page 277 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

7.2.4. Maturity Structure of Borrowing

This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to refinancing risk. The upper and lower limits on
the maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing for different time periods will be:

e N N

Under 12 months 50% 35%
|2 months and within 24 months 25% 0%
24 months and within 5 years 25% 0%
5 years and within 10 years 25% 0%
|0 years and above 50% 45%

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of borrowing is the earliest
date on which the lender can demand repayment.

71.2.5. Principal Sums Invested for Periods Longer than 365 days

The purpose of this indicator is to control the Council’s exposure to the risk of incurring losses by
seeking early repayment of its investments. The limits on the long-term principal sum invested to final
maturities beyond the period end will be:

Limit on principal invested beyond one year £10m £10m £10m

8. Alternative approaches considered

Government guidance and the CIPFA Code do not prescribe any particular treasury management
strategy for local authorities to adopt. The Section 151 Officer, having consulted the Cabinet Member
for Finance, believes that the above strategy represents an appropriate balance between risk management
and cost effectiveness. Some alternative strategies, with their financial and risk management implications,
are listed below.

Alternative Impact on income and Impact on risk management
expenditure
Invest in a narrower Interest income will be Lower chance of losses from credit related
range of counterparties | lower defaults, but any such losses may be greater
and/or for shorter times
Invest in a wider range of | Interest income will be Increased risk of losses from credit related
counterparties and/or for | higher defaults, but any such losses may be smaller
longer times
Borrow additional sums | Debt interest costs will rise; | Higher investment balance leading to a higher
at long-term fixed this is unlikely to be offset impact in the event of a default; however long-
interest rates by higher investment term interest costs may be more certain
income
Borrow short-term or Debt interest costs will Increases in debt interest costs will be broadly
variable loans instead of | initially be lower offset by rising investment income in the medium
long-term fixed rates term, but long-term costs may be less certain




OFFICIAL
Page 278 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

9. Other Treasury Management policies and considerations

There are a number of additional items that the Council is obliged by CIPFA and government guidance
to include in its Treasury Management Strategy; these and other matters considered appropriate are set
out in this section.

9.1. Policy on the use of Financial Derivatives

Local authorities have previously made use of financial derivatives embedded into loans and investments
both to reduce interest rate risk (e.g. interest rate collars and forward deals) and to reduce costs or
increase income at the expense of greater risk (e.g. LOBO loans and callable deposits). The general
power of competence in Section | of the Localism Act 201 | removes much of the uncertainty over local
authorities’ use of standalone financial derivatives (i.e. those that are not embedded into a loan or
investment). Other than the interest rate swap arrangement detailed in section 5.3.3 above, the Council
has no further plans to make use of derivative instruments at the present time.

However, the Council does not discount the possible use of these in the future dependent on the
existence of appropriate operating conditions, the acquisition and analysis of specialist advice and
consultation with appropriate stakeholders. The Authority will only use standalone financial derivatives
(such as swaps, forwards, futures and options) where they can be clearly demonstrated to reduce the
overall level of the financial risks that the Authority is exposed to. Additional risks presented, such as
credit exposure to derivative counterparties, will be taken into account when determining the overall
level of risk. Embedded derivatives, including those present in pooled funds and forward starting
transactions, will not be subject to this policy, although the risks they present will be managed in line
with the overall treasury risk management strategy.

Financial derivative transactions may be arranged with any organisation that meets the approved
investment criteria, assessed using the appropriate credit rating for derivative exposures. An allowance
for credit risk calculated using the methodology in the Treasury Management Practices document will
count against the counterparty credit limit.

This approach is in line with the CIPFA Code, which encourages the Council to seek external advice and
to consider such advice before entering into financial derivatives to ensure that it fully understands the
implications.

9.2. Markets in Financial Instruments Directive

The Council has opted up to professional client status with its providers of financial services, including
advisers, banks, brokers and fund managers, allowing it access to a greater range of services but without
the greater regulatory protections afforded to individuals and small companies. Given the size and range
of the Council’s treasury management activities, the Section 151 Officer believes this to be the most
appropriate status.

9.3. Policy on Investment of Money Borrowed in Advance of Need

The Council may, from time to time, borrow in advance of need, where this is expected to provide the
best long-term value for money for the Council’s Treasury Management activities within the year. Since
amounts borrowed will be invested until spent, the Council is aware that it will be exposed to the risk
of loss of the borrowed sums, and the risk that investment and borrowing interest rates may change in
the intervening period. These risks will be managed as part of the Council’s overall management of its
treasury risks.

The total amount borrowed will not exceed the authorised borrowing limit. The maximum period
between borrowing and expenditure is expected to be less than one year, although the Council is not
required to link particular loans with particular items of expenditure.



OFFICIAL
Page 279 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL
9.4. Skills, staff development and professional advice

The Council employs professionally qualified and experienced staff in senior positions with responsibility
for making capital expenditure, borrowing and investment decisions. For example, the Service Director
of Finance is a qualified accountant with over 25 years’ experience. Within the accountancy and treasury
management function, the Council employs staff with professional finance qualifications and supports
junior staff to study towards relevant qualifications.

The training and development needs of the Council’s treasury management staff are assessed every
twelve months as part of the staff appraisal process, and additionally when the responsibilities of individual
members of staff change. Staff regularly attend training courses, seminars and conferences provided by
Arlingclose and CIPFA.

Where Council staff do not have the knowledge and skills required, use is made of external advisers and
consultants that are specialists in their field. The Council currently employs Arlingclose Limited as
treasury management advisers. This approach is more cost effective than employing such staff directly,
and ensures that the Council has access to knowledge and skills commensurate with its risk appetite.

9.5. Treasury Management Practices, Principles and Schedules guidance

A Treasury Management Practices, Principles and Schedules document is reviewed and revised annually,
and forms the operational guidance for the Council’s Treasury Management function. It is subservient
to this Treasury Management Strategy and sets out the responsibilities and duties of members and
officers, allowing a framework for reporting and decision making on all aspects of treasury management.
The Audit Committee is required to approve the Treasury Management Practices, Principles and
Schedules document each year under authority delegated by the City Council.



OFFICIAL Page 280 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL
SECTION 3: NON-TREASURY INVESTMENTS &

MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION STATEMENT

10. Non-Treasury Management Investment Strategy

10.1. Introduction and scope
Local Authorities invest money for three broad purposes:

e because it has surplus cash as a result of its day-to-day activities, for example when income is
received in advance of expenditure (known as treasury management investments).
e to support local public services by lending to or buying shares in other organisations (service
investments), and
e to earn investment income (known as commercial investments where this is the main
purpose).
This investment strategy meets the requirements of statutory guidance issued by the government in
January 2018 and focuses on the second and third of these categories.

The statutory guidance defines investments as “all of the financial assets of a local authority as well as
other non-financial assets that the organisation holds primarily or partially to generate a profit; for
example, investment property portfolios.” The Authority interprets this to exclude (a) trade receivables
which meet the accounting definition of financial assets but are not investments in the everyday sense of
the word and (b) property held partially to generate a profit but primarily for the provision of local public
services. This aligns the Authority’s definition of an investment with that in the 2021 edition of the CIPFA
Prudential Code, a more recent piece of statutory guidance.

10.1.1. Treasury Management Investments

The Authority typically receives its income in cash (e.g. from taxes and grants) before it pays for its
expenditure in cash (e.g. through payroll and invoices). It also holds reserves for future expenditure and
collects local taxes on behalf of other local authorities and central government. These activities, plus the
timing of borrowing decisions, lead to a cash surplus which is largely used to offset the need to borrow
for capital investment, or invested to support treasury management activities. The balance of treasury
management investments is expected to fluctuate between £40m and £60m during the 2025/26 financial
year.

Contribution: The contribution that these investments make to the objectives of the Authority is to
support effective treasury management activities.

Full details of the Council’s policies and its plan for 2025/26 for treasury management investments are
covered in Sections | and 2 above.

10.1.2. Service Investments

Plymouth City Council supports local public services and economic growth through making loan
investments. Further details on these Non-Treasury Management investments are set out in section
10.2 below. The Council does not expect to make any new investments in shares for the purpose of
supporting local public services or promoting local economic growth during 2025/26, however section
10.3 below sets out some considerations as a guide for potential shareholder investments that the
Council may wish to consider to further its organisational public service objectives.



OFFICIAL
Page 281 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

The Council has interests in a number of companies established as wholly-owned or joint venture
vehicles for the delivery of various activities that support Plymouth City Council’s objectives; from time
to time the Council may establish new Companies or Joint Venture structures for particular purposes.
Whilst loans or financial investments in these companies would be considered to fall within the scope of
this strategy, non-financial interests (e.g. control exercised through service contracts or board positions,
contributions of leasehold or freehold property interests, licences or rights to use assets, or other
contributions in kind) are not considered to be Non-Treasury Investments and therefore fall outside of
the scope of this document. The Council discloses its interests in companies through its group accounts
in accordance with sector accounting guidance; company interests are governed through the specific
contractual terms applicable to each individual arrangement and through a wider ‘family of companies’
governance structure within the Council.

10.1.3. The Property and Regeneration Fund

At Plymouth City Council, no new investments are entered into for the sole purpose of earning
investment income — where the Council has surplus funds over and above working capital needs, these
are used to offset debt financing requirements through ‘internal’ borrowing. However, property
investments are made to regenerate areas within the City or immediate economic area to encourage
private investment and to create or retain jobs — a portfolio of property known at the City Council as
the Property and Regeneration Fund (PRF). These investments generate a yield and (for affordability
purposes and to manage financial risks), PRF investments are appraised on a commercial basis as well as
for regeneration, economic development and place-shaping value. As such, the Property and
Regeneration Fund is considered to fall within the scope of this Non-Treasury Investment Strategy, even
though the primary purpose of the portfolio is not to earn investment income. Further detail on the
Property and Regeneration Fund is set out in section 10.4 below.

10.2. Service Investments - Loans

The Council may lend money to its subsidiaries, its suppliers, local businesses, local charities, registered
social housing providers or other organisations to support local public services and / or public service
objectives. For example, the Council has given a loan to Plymouth Community Energy to support the
construction of the solar energy farm at Ernesettle, which in turn supports the Council’s Climate
Emergency Strategy objectives.

The vast majority of such loan investments are low value; however, taking a proportionate approach
commensurate with the value of any loan the Council will ensure that an appropriate due diligence
exercise is undertaken and adequate security is in place. All loans are agreed by the Section 151 Officer
and will be subject to close, regular monitoring. Long-term loans are treated as capital expenditure for
accounting purposes, where the applicable criteria are met.

The main risk when making service loans is that the borrower will be unable to repay the principal lent
and/or the interest due. Where appropriate and proportionate, the Council will take security against
assets to mitigate the risk of default.

Accounting standards require the Council to set aside loss allowance for loans, reflecting the likelihood
of non-payment. The figures for loans in the Council’s statement of accounts will be shown net of this
loss allowance. However, the Council makes every reasonable effort to collect the full sum lent and has
appropriate credit control arrangements in place to recover overdue repayments.



OFFICIAL
Page 282 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

The Council assesses and mitigates the risk of loss before entering into and whilst holding service loans
by:
I. reviewing the financial statements of the organisation and reviewing the organisation’s business
plans and future projections and future cash flows;
2. assessing what security is available to secure the loan and if necessary carry out a professional
valuation of any property;
3. using external advisors to provide professional information such as due diligence requirements;
4. the loan agreements are reviewed by our legal team to ensure that they are legally compliant and
includes any safeguards for the Council;
5. if an organisation has a credit rating we will carry out a credit check to assess risk;
6. taking a proportionate approach, the rate of interest charged on any loan will reflect the risk of
the project and potential for default;
7. subsidy control rules are taken into account before a loan can be considered.

10.2.1. Loan Commitments and Financial Guarantees

Although not strictly counted as investments, since no money has exchanged hands yet, loan
commitments and financial guarantees carry similar risks to the Council and are appraised and risk-
assessed through a similar process to service loans.

10.3. Service Investment - shares

The Council may make financial investments through the purchase of shares of its subsidiaries, its
suppliers, and local businesses to support local public services and stimulate local economic growth. The
Council does not currently hold any material shareholding investments, but should an opportunity arise
to support Plymouth City Council’s objectives through an investment in shareholdings the guidance in
this paragraph will apply.

Security: One of the risks of investing in shares is that they fall in value meaning that the initial outlay
may not be recovered. The individual and absolute level of financial investment made in shareholdings
should be considered with regard to this security risk, with limits set with reference to the Council’s
level of available general reserves. All financial shareholding investments should be agreed by the Section
I51 Officer and should be subject to close, regular monitoring.

Risk assessment: The Council would assess the risk of loss before entering into and whilst holding
shares by reviewing the history of the organisation; its financial statements and its share values. The
Council will also look at business plans, future cash flows and any other market information that may
affect the organisation.

Liquidity: The Council covers its liquidity for working capital and cash flow by holding cash in its Money
Market Fund and being able to borrow short term loans from other local authorities. Shares of this type
should not be considered to be a suitable investment for managing liquidity risk and should be appraised
accordingly, with regard to the Council’s liquid Treasury Management investments and cashflow forecast.



OFFICIAL
Page 283 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL
10.4. Property and Regeneration Fund

From | April 2021 the Council ceased to invest in commercial property where the investment decision
was based on a primary objective of generating income. Since this date, the Council has only invested in
property where the main purposes of such investment are to regenerate areas of the City, encourage
private investment and / or to create or retain local jobs. Some legacy commercial property assets have
been retained within a broader portfolio where these assets were purchased prior to April 2021, and
where best value would not have been obtained by a disposal of the asset in the period following April
2021. These legacy commercial property assets are kept under review as a potential source of capital
financing.

Over time, a portfolio of property investments has developed, known within the City Council as the
Property and Regeneration Fund. This portfolio provides a modest return to the council which can help
to support local public services. However, the primary objective of the portfolio is to support place-
shaping and economic development objectives. The table below sets out the net yield achieved in the
last full financial year, and forecast for 2025/26. The Council uses an internal mechanism (known
internally as ‘Service Borrowing’) to recover repayment and financing costs (including a provision for
MRP) from the gross income; provision is also made for contributions to reserves held to mitigate the
risk of voids and to provide a fund for capital investment. In this way, Property and Regeneration Fund
assets are funded by rental income - borrowing is not directly taken out against each property but is
managed through our Treasury Management function. The net income set out in the table below is the
sum after these deductions.

Property and Regeneration Fund Actual Estimate Forecast
2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
Total net income £3.258m £3.283m £3.382m
10.4.1. Security

In accordance with government guidance, the Council considers a property investment to be secure if
its accounting valuation is at or higher than its development / acquisition cost including taxes and
transaction costs. A fair value assessment of the Council’s Property and Regeneration property portfolio
is undertaken regularly. Adverse market conditions have impacted on the valuation of non-residential
property, with a downturn in the market driven by higher interest rates, post-COVID social trends and
broader economic circumstances. The Council’s Property and Regeneration portfolio is held to provide
long-term financial and non-financial benefits for the City Council and the wider community and as such,
the Council anticipates that it will continue to hold assets where fair value has reduced below
development / acquisition costs until market conditions recover and valuations improve. The Council
mitigates against longer term impairments to this portfolio by setting aside funds for future capital

investment, and regular reviews of lease agreements.

The Council assesses the risk of loss before entering into and whilst holding property investments by
carrying out the evaluation process described in paragraph 10.4.4 below.

10.4.2. Liquidity

Compared with other investment types, property is relatively difficult to sell and convert to cash at short
notice, and can take a considerable period to sell in certain market conditions. As noted above, national



OFFICIAL
Page 284 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

market factors for the commercial property sector may mean that the Council would not recover its
investment value of property investment is sold during a downturn period. Accordingly, the council
considers the Property Regeneration Fund to be a long-term investment and makes alternative
arrangements to cover its short and medium-term cash requirements. Because borrowing for Property
and Regeneration Fund assets is financed through the income generated by the asset (through the
council’s internal Service Borrowing mechanism), the first call on any proceeds of sale would be to repay
any outstanding service borrowing due, rather than to provide working capital.

10.4.3. Proportionality — reliance on net revenue

The Council uses the surplus generated by Property Regeneration Fund to provide services for the city
and to achieve a balanced revenue budget. The table below shows the extent to which the Council’s
revenue budget is dependent on achieving the expected net profit from investments over 2025/26
financial year. It shows that the Council is not over-reliant on this income stream in the context of its
overall resources.

2025/26 Forecast

Net total revenue resources (estimate) £253.008m
Net Investment income £3.382m
Proportion 1.34%

10.4.4. Investment Evaluation Process for the Property and Regeneration Fund

Prior to any acquisition or development of a Property and Regeneration fund asset, the Council conducts
a due diligence and appraisal evaluation processes, following the steps set out below:

|. Proposed development opportunities are reviewed by the Council’s Land and Property team (in
consultation with officers from the Economic Development team) in areas of the City which
require redevelopment or regeneration of brown and green field sites or areas where the Council
want to stimulate inward private investment and to create or retain local jobs. A report on
development opportunities is prepared by suitably qualified and experienced in-house MRICS
(Member of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors) professionals.

2. Prospective developments are evaluated against a set of key criteria. An assessment is produced,
highlighting matters such as tenant covenant strength, lease length and location, and economic
development value in a transparent and consistent format, to support clear scrutiny and decisions.

3. The assessment provides a basis for scoring and weighting risk and benefits, to support the
analysis of potential development / acquisition and qualify overall suitability for inclusion in the
portfolio. The score is not an absolute threshold but helps to guide decisions.

4. To ensure arms-length objectivity, external agents provide professional market analysis, data and
advice to support the evaluation and internal reporting process.

5. Since tenant default is a significant threat to the performance of the property investment financial
checks are made on any proposed tenants. This is augmented by additional internal assessment
of tenants’ covenant and likely future performance.

6. With all the additional information a detailed model is produced. The model is tailored for each
prospective development, by including items such as future demand, yield, cash flows; rental
movement, optimal holding periods for the property and data to support the regeneration and
job creation to cover the cost modelling. Provision is made within financial modelling for capital
investment and an allowance for voids.



OFFICIAL
Page 285 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

7. If a decision is made to proceed, in-house surveyors lead negotiations, via the introducing/retained
external agents, who are professional property firms. At this stage, two key activities are
commissioned

J A valuation, in accordance with the RICS Red Book, Professional Valuation Standards, is
produced to inform potential acquisition cost. This valuation is used as a baseline for fair
value assessments.

J A Building Survey report is produced, as part of the proposed development, including
preparation of a Site Environmental Assessment and preparation of a Reinstatement Cost
Assessment for insurance purposes.

8. The above is reviewed by the Asset Portfolio Manager as an experienced in-house MRICS
(Member of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors) professional, with support from the
internal multi-disciplinary property teams, for final decision by the Head of Land and Property on
whether to proceed. Acquisitions are subject to the governance process set out in section 10.4.5
below as well as the Council’s standard internal control framework.

9. The Head of Land and Property Projects receives regular updates on market activity, trends,
forecasts and occupier activity from RICS firms and in-house surveyors to support the decision
process.

10.4.5. Property and Regeneration Fund Governance

Clear, robust and transparent governance is critical to making sound decisions (with an appropriate level
of due diligence and scrutiny) and meeting statutory guidance. It is also important to ensure any decision
process retains fluidity, so officers are empowered to respond promptly to changes in the market. For
example, if there is a commercial company failure in the city the Council would need to be able to
respond quickly to help retain local jobs and look for alternative purchasers.

The Council’s power to acquire or dispose of land is vested, under delegation, in the Head of Land and
Property and where the land is purchased through the Property and Regeneration Fund a proposal is
presented to the Officers and Members with a recommended for authorisation by the relevant Leader,
Legal and the Section 151 Officer. The Property and Regeneration Fund is governed by an internal joint
officer and member board, which regularly reviews the performance of the portfolio.

10.4.6. Skills, staff development and professional advice

The Council employs professionally qualified and experienced staff in senior positions with responsibility
for valuations, acquisitions and disposals and investment appraisals relating to the Property Regeneration
Fund. Within the council’s land and property function, the Council employs staff with professional
surveying qualifications; the Head of Land and Property is a RICS chartered surveyor. The development
needs of staff in the Land and Property function are assessed every twelve months as part of the staff
appraisal process, and additionally when the responsibilities of individual members of staff change. Staff
regularly attend training courses and other professional development opportunities.

Where Council staff do not have the knowledge and skills required, use is made of external advisers and
consultants that are specialists in their field. The Head of Land and Property and the land and property
team receive regular updates on market activity, trends, forecasts and occupier activity from RICS firms,
as well as knowledge from in-house surveyors, all of which is used to support decisions relating to the
portfolio.



OFFICIAL
Page 286 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL
1. Annual Minimum Revenue Provision Statement 2025/26

Where the Authority finances capital expenditure by debt, it must put aside resources to repay that debt
in later years. The amount charged to the revenue budget for the repayment of debt is known as
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), although there has been no statutory minimum since 2008. The
Local Government Act 2003 requires the Authority to have regard to Ministry of Housing, Communities
and Local Government’s Guidance on Minimum Revenue Provision (the MHCLG Guidance) most
recently issued in April 2024.

The broad aim of the MHCLG Guidance is to ensure that capital expenditure is financed over a period
that is aligned with that over which the capital expenditure provides benefits. The MHCLG Guidance
requires the Authority to approve an Annual MRP Statement each year and provides a number of options
for calculating a prudent amount of MRP, but does not preclude the use of other appropriate methods.
Plymouth City Council’s Minimum Revenue Position statement is set out in this section, and complies
with the most recent (April 2024) guidance.

11.1. Minimum Revenue Position Policy

MRP is calculated by reference to the capital financing requirement (CFR) which is the total amount of
past capital expenditure that has yet to be permanently financed, noting that debt must be repaid and
therefore can only be a temporary form of funding. The CFR is calculated from the Authority’s balance
sheet in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Prudential Code for
Capital Expenditure in Local Authorities, 2021 edition. Plymouth City Council adopts the following approach
in calculating MRP:

e The MRP payment is funded from revenue with an option that part or all of the payment could
be funded from capital receipts to repay debt. MRP will commence in the financial year following
the asset coming into use or after purchase.

e For capital expenditure incurred before Ist April 2008, and for supported capital expenditure
incurred on or before that date, MRP will be charged on an annuity basis over 50 years,
incorporating an “Adjustment A” calculated in accordance with the guidance.

e For capital expenditure incurred after 3 1st March 2008, MRP will be determined by charging the
expenditure over the expected useful life of the relevant asset as the principal repayment on an
annuity with an annual interest rate equal to the average relevant PWLB rate for the year of
expenditure, starting in the year after the asset becomes operational. MRP on purchases of
freehold land will be charged over 50 years. MRP on expenditure not related to fixed assets but
which has been capitalised by regulation (including the council’s Capitalisation Direction) or
direction will be charged over 20 years.

e For capital expenditure on loans to third parties which were made primarily for financial return
rather than direct service purposes, MRP will be charged in accordance with the policy for the
assets funded by the loan, including where appropriate, delaying MRP until the year after the
assets become operational. This MRP charge will be reduced by the value any repayments of loan
principal received during in the year, with the capital receipts so arising applied to finance the
expenditure instead.

e For capital expenditure on loans to third parties which were made primarily for service purposes,
the Authority will make nil MRP except as detailed below for expected credit losses. Instead, the
Authority will apply the capital receipts arising from the repayments of the loan principal to
finance the expenditure in the year they are received.



OFFICIAL
Page 287 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

e For capital loans made on or after 7th May 2024 where an expected credit loss is recognised
during the year, the MRP charge in respect of the loan will be no lower than the loss recognised.
Where expected credit losses are reversed, for example on the eventual repayment of the loan,
this will be treated as an overpayment.

e For capital loans made before 7" May 2024 and for loans where expected credit losses are not
applicable, where a shortfall in capital receipts is anticipated, MRP will be charged to cover that
shortfall over the remaining life of the assets funded by the loan.

11.2. Overpayments

In earlier years, the Authority has made voluntary overpayments of MRP that are available to reduce the
revenue charges in later years. It is planned to draw down £0.634m of this in 2025/26.

MRP Overpayments £m
Actual balance 31.03.2024 1.034
Approved drawdown 2024/25 (0.400)
Expected balance 31.03.2025 0.634
Planned drawdown 2025/26 (0.634)
Forecast balance 31.03.2026 0.000

A reconciliation of prior year MRP provisions has identified an overpayment in 2017/18 for £0.654m
which has been included in table above (this was omitted from the equivalent table set out in the MRP
statement for 2024/25).

11.3. Capital receipts

Proceeds from the sale of capital assets are classed as capital receipts, and are typically used to finance
new capital expenditure. Where the Authority decides instead to use capital receipts to repay debt and
hence reduce the CFR, the calculation of MRP will be adjusted as follows:

e Capital receipts arising on the repayment of principal on capital loans to third parties will be used
to lower the MRP charge in respect of the same loans in the year of receipt, if any.

e Capital receipts arising on the repayment of principal on finance lease receivables will be used to
lower the MRP charge in respect of the acquisition of the asset subject to the lease in the year of
receipt, if any.

e Capital receipts arising from other assets which form an identified part of the Authority’s MRP
calculations will be used to reduce the MRP charge in respect of the same assets over their
remaining useful lives, starting in the year after the receipt is applied.

e Any other capital receipts applied to repay debt will be used to reduce MRP in 10 equal
instalments starting in the year after receipt is applied.

The capital receipt proceeds of sale from legacy investment properties, assets held within the Property
and Regeneration Fund, and other applicable assets will be used to repay the outstanding Service
Borrowing finance for that property before any balance of capital receipts is available for repay debt or
to finance other capital projects.



OFFICIAL
Page 288 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Appendix A - Arlingclose Economic and Interest Rate Forecast December
2024

Underlying assumptions:

* As expected, the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) held Bank Rate at 4.75% in December,
although, with a 6-3 voting split and obvious concerns about economic growth, presented a much
more dovish stance than had been expected given recent inflationary data.

¢ The Budget measures remain a concern for policymakers, for both growth and inflation.
Additional government spending will boost demand in a constrained supply environment, while
pushing up direct costs for employers. The short to medium-term inflationary effects will
promote caution amongst policymakers.

* UK GDP recovered well in HI 2024 from technical recession, but underlying growth has petered
out as the year has progressed. While government spending should boost GDP growth in 2025,
private sector activity appears to be waning, partly due to Budget measures.

* Private sector wage growth and services inflation remain elevated; wage growth picked up sharply
in October. The increase in employers’ NICs, minimum and public sector wage levels could have
wide ranging impacts on private sector employment demand and costs, but the near-term impact
will likely be inflationary as these additional costs get passed to consumers.

* CPl inflation rates have risen due to higher energy prices and less favourable base effects. The
current CPI rate of 2.6% could rise further in Q| 2025. The Bank of England (BoE) estimates the
CPI rate at 2.7% by year end 2025 and to remain over target in 2026.

* The MPC re-emphasised that monetary policy will be eased gradually. Despite recent inflation-
related data moving upwards or surprising to the upside, the minutes suggested a significant
minority of policymakers are at least as worried about the flatlining UK economy.

US government bond yields have risen following strong US data and uncertainty about the effects of
Donald Trump’s policies on the US economy, particularly in terms of inflation and monetary policy. The
Federal Reserve pared back its expectations for rate cuts in light of these issues. Higher US yields are
also pushing up UK gilt yields, a relationship that will be maintained unless monetary policy in the UK
and US diverges.

Forecast:

¢ In line with our forecast, Bank Rate was held at 4.75% in December.

e The MPC will reduce Bank Rate in a gradual manner. We see a rate cut in February 2025, followed
by a cut alongside every Monetary Policy Report publication, to a low of 3.75%.

e Long-term gilt yields have risen to reflect both UK and US economic, monetary and fiscal policy
expectations, and increases in bond supply. Volatility will remain elevated as the market digests
incoming data for clues around the impact of policy changes.

e This uncertainty may also necessitate more frequent changes to our forecast than has been the
case recently.

e The risks around the forecasts lie to the upside over the next |2 months but are broadly balanced
in the medium term.



OFFICIAL

Page 289 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Current  Mar-25 Jun-25  Sep-25 Dec-25 Mar-26 Jun-26 Sep-26 Dec?6 Mar-27 Jun-27 Sep-27 Dec-27
Offidial Bank Rate
Upside risk 0.00 0.25 0.50 0.50 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75
Central Case 4.75 4.50 4.25 4.00 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75
Downside risk 0.00f -0.25 -0.25 -0.50 -0.50 -0.75( -0.75) -0.75 -0.75( -0.75) -0.75( -0.75] -0.75
3-month money market rate
Upside risk 0.00 0.25 0.50 0.50 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75
Central Case 4.90 4.60 4.35 4.10 3.90 3.85 3.85 3.85 3.85 3.85 3.85 3.85 3.85
Downside risk 0.00f -0.25 -0.25 -0.50 -0.50 -0.75) -0.75) -0.75 -0.75( -0.75) -0.75( -0.75] -0.75
Byt gilt vield
Upside risk 0.00 0.70 0.80 0.%0 0.%0 0.%0 0.50 0.%0 0.s0 0.90 0.%0 0.90 0.%0
Central Case 4.34| 4.30 4.20 4.10 4,00 3.90 3.90 3.95 4.00 4.05 4.05 4.05 4.05
Downside risk 0.00] -0.50 -0.60 -0.65 -0.65 -0.70{ -0.70) -0.75 -0.75( -0.80) -0.80] -0.80] -0.80
10y gilt vield
Upside risk 0.00 0.70 0.80 0.90 0.%0 0.%0 0.90 0.90 0.50 0.90 0.%0 0.50 0.%0
Central Case 4.56 4.55 4.45 4.30 4.20 4.20 4.30 4.20 4.25 4.35 4.25 4.25 4.25
Downside risk 0.00] -0.50 -0.60 -0.65 -0.65 -0.70] -0.70] -0.75 -0.75] -0.80] -0.80{ -0.80] -0.8B0
20y gilt vield
Upside risk 0.00 0.70 0.80 0.%0 0.%0 0.90 0.0 0.%0 0.90 0.%0 0.%0 0.90 0.90
Central Case 5.05 5.00 4.90 4.80 4.70 4.65 4.65 4.65 4.65 4.65 4.65 4.60 4.65
Downside risk 0.00] -0.50 -0.60 -0.65 -0.65 -0.70] -0.70] -0.75 -0.75] -0.80] -0.80{ -0.80] -0.BO
S0y gilt vield
Upside risk 0.00 0.70 0.80 0.%0 0.%0 0.90 0.0 0.%0 0.90 0.%0 0.%0 0.90 0.90
Central Case 4.52 4.70 4.60 4.50 4,40 4.35 4.35 4,35 4.35 4,35 4.35 4.35 4.35
Downside risk 0.00] -0.50 -0.60 -0.65 -0.65 -0.70f -0.70) -0.75 -0.75) -0.80) -0.80{ -0.80] -0.80

PWLB Standard Rate = Gilt yield + 1.00%
PWLB Certainty Rate = Gilt yield + 0.80%

PWLB HRA Rate = Gilt yield + 0.40%

National Wealth Fund (NWF) Rate = Gilt yield + 0.40%




OFFICIAL Page 200

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Appendix B - Existing Investment and Debt Portfolio Position

31 Dec 2024 31 Dec 2024
Actual Portfolio Average Rate
£m %
PWLB - Fixed Rate 507.5 3.41
Short-term borrowing 85.0 1.18
LOBO Loans 54.0 4.40
Long Term Borrowing 18.0 4.37
Total borrowing 664.5 3.23
Short-term Money Market funds 23.3 481
Other Pooled Funds 53.9 5.76
Cash and cash equivalents 0.4 1.76
Total investments 77.6 5.49
Net borrowing 586.9




OFFICIAL
Page 291 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL
Appendix C - Provisional Treasury Management Budget 2025/26

2024/25 2025/26
Position at 31 December 2024 AL Latest For.e cast Provisional
Budget variance

Forecast Budget

Interest Payable 24331

LOBO and other long term loans 3.461 2919
PWLB (Public Works Loan Board) 16.006 19.886
Temporary loans 1.607 0.923
Other Interest and charges [.735 2.136

Recharge to Departments for
Unsupported Borrowing

Total Interest Payable m 4.726 (0.955) 6.184

(18.650) (18.083) (19.680)

Interest Receivable (4.354)

Pool Funds (3.190) (2.611)
Money Market Fund (1.968) (1.500)
Other Interest (0.320) (0.431)
Other Payments 0.564 0.840 0.552
Debt Management 0.160 0.160 0.160
Amortised Premiums 0.544 0.544 0.544

Minimum Revenue Provision 19.850 16.275 (3.574) 20.713

The budget assumes that the council will achieve savings of c.£0.300m through debt restructuring during
the course of the year. Based on a prudent forecast (calculated with reference to average profiles from
previous years) that delays in capital programme delivery timescales will reduce Treasury Management
borrowing costs and the Minimum Revenue Provision charge by c.£0.500m. A previous Minimum
Revenue Provision overpayment is being released in 2025/26 for £0.634m (point |1.2).

Treasury Management Strategy 2025-26

Published by:

Plymouth City Council
Ballard House

West Hoe Road
Plymouth PLI 3BJ



This page is intentionally left blank



OFFICIAL Page 293 Agenda Item 10

Audit and Governance Committee

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

Date of meeting: I8 February 2025

Title of Report: Updated Capital Financing Strategy 2025/26

Lead Member: Councillor Mark Lowry (Cabinet Member for Finance)

Lead Strategic Director: David Northey (Interim Service Director for Finance)

Author: Wendy Eldridge, Lead Accountancy Manager for Capital and Treasury
Management

Contact Email: Wendy.eldridge@plymouth.gov.uk

Your Reference: Finance/WE/CFS Final 25-26

Key Decision: No

Confidentiality: Part | - Official

Purpose of Report

This report includes updated financial projections to the Capital Financing Strategy report for 2025/26
that was presented to the Audit & Governance Committee on |2 November 2024. It incorporates
latest capital strategy information published in January 2025 by Arlingclose, the Councils Treasury
Management advisors.

Recommendations and Reasons
I. The Audit and Governance Committee notes the updated Capital Financing Strategy, that will
go to City Council on 24 February 2025 as part of the Annual Revenue and Capital budget
setting report.

This is to comply with the CIPFA Code of Practice and discharge our statutory requirement.

Alternative options considered and rejected
I. Itis a statutory requirement under the Local Government Act 2003 and supporting regulations
to set an annual capital financing strategy. The Council has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice
for Treasury Management.

Relevance to the Corporate Plan and/or the Plymouth Plan

Effective financial management is fundamental to the delivery of corporate improvement priorities.
Capital financing activity has a significant impact on the Council’s activity both in revenue budget terms
and capital investment and is a key factor in facilitating the delivery against a number of corporate
priorities


mailto:Wendy.eldridge@plymouth.gov.uk

OFFICIAL
Page 294 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Implications for the Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:

The cost of capital affects the Treasury Management Strategy and the Council’s budget in terms of
borrowing costs and investment returns. The Capital Strategy provides an overarching policy
framework for the Council’s capital programme and planning, and will form part of a suite strategies
which provide a holistic view of the Councils financial planning framework. With this in mind this
document should be considered in conjunction with the Medium-Term Financial Strategy, Treasury
Management Strategy and Investment Strategy.

Financial Risks

There is an inherent risk to any capital financing activity. The Council continues to manage this risk by
ensuring all investments are undertaken in accordance with the approved strategy, and keeping the
capital programme under constant review.

Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications:
No direct implications

Other Implications: e.g. Health and Safety, Risk Management, Child Poverty:

* When considering these proposals members have a responsibility to ensure they give due regard to the Council’s duty to promote
equality of opportunity, eliminate unlawful discrimination and promote good relations between people who share protected
characteristics under the Equalities Act and those who do not.

A robust capital programme is key to ensuring a successful delivery of our Medium Term Financial
Strategy and ensuring the Council can achieve its objectives to be a Pioneering, Growing Caring and

Confident City.

Appendices

*Add rows as required to box below

Ref. Title of Appendix Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)
If somel/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate
why it is not for publication by virtue of Part |of Schedule |2A
of the Local Government Act | 972 by ticking the relevant box.

| 2 3 4 5 6 7

A Capital Financing Strategy 2025/26

Background papers:

*Add rows as required to box below

Please list all unpublished, background papers relevant to the decision in the table below. Background papers are unpublished works,
relied on to a material extent in preparing the report, which disclose facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the
work is based.

Title of any background paper(s) Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)

If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate why it
is not for publication by virtue of Part |of Schedule | 2A of the Local
Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.

I 2 3 4 5 6 7

Capital Financing Strategy 2025/26 presented
to Audit & Governance Committee on |2
November 2024



OFFICIAL
Page 295 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

https://democracy.plymouth.gov.uk/documents
[s149756/A%20G%20Capital%20Stratesy%20R
eport%202025-26.pdf

Sign off:
Fin | OW: |Leg |LS/000 | M | Click |HR | Click |Asset | Click |Strat | Click here
24.25. 01075/ on | here here |s here | Proc | to enter
039 2IAC/ Of | to to to text.
712125 f enter enter enter
text. text. text.

Originating Senior Leadership Team member: David Northey

Please confirm the Strategic Director(s) has agreed the report? Yes

Date agreed:

Cabinet Member approval: Approved by email

Date approved:



https://democracy.plymouth.gov.uk/documents/s149756/A%20G%20Capital%20Strategy%20Report%202025-26.pdf
https://democracy.plymouth.gov.uk/documents/s149756/A%20G%20Capital%20Strategy%20Report%202025-26.pdf
https://democracy.plymouth.gov.uk/documents/s149756/A%20G%20Capital%20Strategy%20Report%202025-26.pdf

OFFICIAL
Page 296 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

APPENDIX A - CAPITAL FINANCING STRATEGY 2025/26
I. INTRODUCTION AND CONTEXT

This capital strategy report gives a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and
treasury management activity contribute to the provision of local public services along with an overview
of how associated risk is managed and the implications for future financial sustainability. It has been
written in an accessible style to enhance members’ understanding of these sometimes-technical areas.

Decisions made this year on capital and treasury management will have financial consequences for
Plymouth City Council for many years into the future. They are therefore subject to both a national
regulatory framework and to local policy framework, summarised in this report.

The strategy will provide an overarching policy framework for the Council’s capital programme and
planning and will form part of a suite of strategies which provide a holistic view of the Council’s financial
planning framework. This document should be considered in conjunction with the Medium-Term
Financial Strategy and Treasury Management Strategy.

2. GOVERNANCE OF THE COUNCIL’S CAPITAL PROGRAMME

Plymouth City Council have developed a set of procedures and operational guidance (the Capital
Handbook) to strengthen capital governance. The Capital Handbook details how capital projects are
approved and added into the capital programme.

All proposed capital projects are considered by a senior officer group (the Capital Programme Officer
Group) before being considered by the Capital Programme Board, a senior Member and Officer group
including the Chief Executive, the Section 151 Officer, the Leader of the Council and the Cabinet Member
for Finance.

Capital projects with a value of up to £0.200m are approved under delegation by the Section 151 Officer;
projects with a value above £0.200m must be endorsed by the Capital Programme Board prior to a
decision approved in accordance with the Council’s constitutional executive decision-making process.

Each proposed new capital project will need to demonstrate how it meets the objectives of the City
Council, through a business case presented for approval explaining the outcomes achieved by the project
and how the scheme will address Corporate Plan priorities. The business case will also set out:

A project description and option analysis

Project risks, outcomes and benefits

Public consultation proposals (where applicable) and feedback

Legal and procurement implications

Equalities Impact Assessment and Climate Impact Assessment

Financial implications for Capital including funding and spend profile

VAT and Revenue implications including further costs if relating to a corporate property.

Due diligence is carried out on all new proposals to determine whether the scheme is deemed suitable
and affordable. If accepted and supported, all new projects with a value over £0.200 are published as an
Executive Decision.

The Capital Financing Strategy is agreed annually alongside the Capital Programme as part of the annual
budget setting process. Variations to the Capital Programme or in-year additions (subject to delegation),
will be agreed by Cabinet through the quarterly Capital Programme monitoring process.

3. CAPITAL PLAN

The Capital Plan is the collective term which includes two key elements - the Capital Programme as
approved by the Leader or SI51 Officer, and the Capital Pipeline which refers to possible future funding
that may be available for future projects yet to be approved.



OFFICIAL

Page 297 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL
The Capital Programme is the list of schemes which have a confirmed funding source and have been
approved for capital investment following consideration of a robust, evidence-based business case.

The Capital Pipeline includes projects where funding has not been secured and / or where a business
case has not been developed. The affordability of the council’s potential Capital Pipeline is kept under
review by the Council’s Capital Programme Officer Group, with reference to the limits set through the
Council’s Treasury Management Strategy and capital financing budget estimates.

4. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND FINANCING

Capital expenditure is where the Authority spends money on assets, such as property or vehicles, that
will be used for more than one year. In local government this includes spending on assets owned by
other bodies, and loans and grants to other bodies enabling them to buy assets. All capital expenditure
must be financed, either from external sources (e.g. government grants and other contributions), the
Council’s own resources (revenue funding, reserves and capital receipts) or debt (borrowing or leasing).

In 2025/26, the Authority is planning capital expenditure of £162.315m (as summarised in Table | below)
which also includes full five year programme broken down by Directorate and financing source. Table |
sets out the Capital Programme (agreed as at 3| December 2024) which forms part of the 2025/26
budget setting report which will be considered by the City Council on 24th February 2025. The table
also sets out the planned financing of the expenditure.

Table |. Five Year Capital Programme by Directorate

Directorate 2425 M025/26 02627 02728 2028729 Total
tm tm tm tm tm tm
Children’s Services 1716 1.991 - LT07
Adules, Health and Communities | 6,809 20935 3617 0l64 41.525
Growth - Economic Development 30810 48482 42181 16575 12427 150.475
Growth - Strategic Planning & Infrastructury 40263 65.375 28,000 8280 0275 142.983
Growth - Street Services 18673 20359 0372 0241 0212 39.857
Customer & Corporate Services 4548 4203 0728 0280 0.100 10.559
Office for Director of Public Health 6488 0270 - 6.758
Total 120,007 162.315 74.988 25.540 13.014| 395.864
Finance by: 3435 1035/26 06T 027318 H038/39 Total
£m fm £m fm £m fm
Capital Receipts 2002 3.048 2379 0180 2008 16.617
Grant Funding 70477 63.094 0741 3269 0.193 137.774
Corporate Funded borrowing 23.108 39638 27.198 3666 0378 93.988
Service dept supported borrowing 21117 43423 36.655 18.080 10.334 12%.609
Developer contributions |.705 11430 1.015 0.082 0.101 14.333
Other Centributions 1.598 682 0263 1.543
Total 120,007 162.315 74.988 25.540 13.014| 395.864

Note that the table does not reflect the full implications of adopting recent changes to accounting standard
IFRS16 which changes the accounting treatment of leases. These changes will not have implications for the
affordability of the Council’s Capital Programme.

Capital expenditure is financed by a range of sources which may either be ringfenced for a particular
purpose or un-ringfenced (available for general use). The source of financing is always identified and
approved at the point of approving a capital project. The Capital Programme is currently financed by:

e Capital Receipts.



OFFICIAL
Page 298 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Grants and contributions.

S106 and Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).

Revenue Contribution to Capital Outlay (RCCO).

Borrowing — both borrowing funded corporately, or (where schemes deliver a saving or a new
income stream for the Council) borrowing that is offset against the project and repaid by the
appropriate service (known at Plymouth City Council as ‘Service Borrowing). Service Borrowing
requires the continued delivery of efficiency savings and / or income as a result of capital
investment, and (as shown in the chart below) forms a significant proportion of the capital
programme funding across the next 5 years.

A further analysis of the financing of the Council’s 5 year capital programme is presented below.

Financing 2024 -2029 (m)

Capital Receipts,

Developer
contributions,

£14.333,3% Other Contributions
, £3.543,1%

£16.617 ,4%

Capital Receipts
Service dept.

supported borrowing Grant Funding,,
, £129.609 , 33% £137.774 ,35%

Grant Funding

Corporate Funded borrowing
Service dept. supported borrowing
Developer contributions

Other Contributions

Corporate Funded
borrowing , £93.988
,24%

Debt is only a temporary source of finance, since loans and leases must be repaid, and this is therefore
replaced over time by other financing, usually from revenue which is known as minimum revenue
provision (MRP) / loans fund repayments. Alternatively, proceeds from selling capital assets (known as
capital receipts) may be used to replace debt finance. MRP, loans fund repayments and the use of capital
receipts planned by the council are set out in Table 2 below:



OFFICIAL
Page 299 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL
Table 2: Replacement of prior years’ debt finance
2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28
actual forecast forecast forecast forecast
Em £m Em £Em Em

Minimum revenue 22.676 23.350 24.600 25.850 27.100
provision (MRP)
Loans fund 0.451 0.489 0.501 0512 0.516
repayments
Capital receipts 0.305 1.500 0.500 0.500 0.500
TOTAL 23.432 25.339 25.601 26.862 28.116

The Council’s full minimum revenue provision statement is included as part of the Treasury Management
Strategy which forms Appendix |12 of this budget setting report.

The Authority’s cumulative outstanding amount of debt finance is measured by the capital financing
requirement (CFR). The CFR increases with new debt-financed capital expenditure and reduces with
MRP, loans fund repayments and capital receipts used to replace debt. The CFR is expected to increase
by £65.385m during 2025/26. Further details on the Capital Financing Requirement and associated
Treasury Management Policies and procedures are set out in the Council’s Treasury Management
Strategy in Appendix 2.

The Council will review its capital programme and associated financing requirements and borrowing
limits if there is a significant change in the balance of costs and income forecast in the Council’s rolling
Medium-Term Financial Plan. This Capital Strategy has been developed in conjunction with a Medium-
Term Financial Plan for the period 2025-28. There is a high degree of confidence that assumptions on
costs and income made for the first year of this period are robust; as such the Council can be confident
that the revenue consequences of the Capital Programme set out in this document for 2025/26 are
affordable. However, looking forward to 2026/27 there are significant uncertainties over the level of
demand for statutory services (and associated cost pressures), as well as levels of income in what will be
the first year following a significant review of local government funding.

5. ASSET MANAGEMENT

To ensure that capital assets continue to be of long-term use, the Council maintains asset management
strategies and policies for different categories of asset. The Highways Asset Management Strategy and
Property Asset Management Strategy are published documents. The Property Asset Management
Strategy will be reviewed during 2025/26, and any implications for the council’s Capital Strategy and
Capital Programme will be fed into the 2026/27 budget setting process.

6. ASSET DISPOSALS

When a capital asset is no longer needed, it may be sold so that the proceeds (known as capital receipts),
can be spent on new assets or to repay debt. The Council is currently also permitted to spend capital
receipts “flexibly” on service transformation projects up until and including 2029/30. Repayments of
capital grants, loans and investments also generate capital receipts. The Authority plans to receive
£8.788m of capital receipts in the coming financial year as set out in Table 3 below:



OFFICIAL Page 300 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL
Table 3: Capital receipts receivable
2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28
actual forecast | forecast | forecast | forecast
£m £m £m £m £m
Asset sales 0.147 2.408 6.555 8.716 0.000
Loans etc repaid 4.080 2.402 2.233 1.990 1.973
TOTAL 4.267 4.810 8.788 10.706 1.973

7. TREASURY MANAGEMENT

Treasury management is concerned with keeping sufficient but not excessive cash available to meet the
Council’s spending needs, while managing the risks involved. Surplus cash is invested until required, while
a shortage of cash will be met by borrowing, to avoid excessive credit balances or overdrafts in the bank
current account. Plymouth City Council typically holds excess cash in the short-term as revenue income
is received before it is spent, but is required to borrow in the long-term as capital expenditure is incurred
before being financed. The revenue cash surpluses are offset against capital cash shortfalls to reduce
overall borrowing.

As at 31 December 202 Authority currently has £665m borrowing at an average interest rate of 3.23%
and £77.6m treasury investments at an average rate of 5.49%. The Treasury Management Strategy
document (included as Appendix |2 of the Council’s 2025/26 budget report) sets out a range of
contextual information, projected levels of borrowing, and a framework of limits and indicators which
will govern the Council’s borrowing and Treasury Management activities during the 2025/26 financial
year. The key, statutory Prudential Indicators are set out in Table 4 below for ease of reference, further
information and detail is found in the Treasury Management Strategy.

Table 4: Prudential Indicators: Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary for debt

2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28
£m £m £m £m

Authorised limit — borrowing 750.225 838.286 1,007.139 | 1.033.886
Authorised limit — PFl and leases 219.000 217.000 215.000 213.000
Authorised limit — total external debt | 969.225 1,055.286 | 1,222.139 | 1,246.886
Operational boundary — borrowing 700.225 788.286 957.139 986.886
Operational boundary — PFl and leases | 219.000 217.000 215.000 213.000
Operational boundary — total debt 919.225 1,005.286 | 1,172.139 | 1,196.886

8. NON-TREASURY INVESTMENT: THE PROPERTY AND REGENERATION FUND

Plymouth City Council manages a portfolio of assets known as the Property and Regeneration Fund
(PRF). The strategic objectives of the PRF portfolio are to deliver regeneration, economic and
employment growth with associated income benefits in the Plymouth functional economic area. The
Council has invested in direct developments and forward funding opportunities to promote regeneration,



OFFICIAL

Page 301 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL
safeguarding and create new jobs as well as encouraging economic growth. The Property and
Regeneration Fund helps deliver the Council’s ‘Plymouth Plan’ and assists in the redevelopment of brown
field sites in the Plymouth area where it can be difficult to attract external investment. Any regenerated
areas encourage other private companies to invest in the locality as well as attracting external investment
from inward investment by companies moving into the area.

The Property and Regeneration Fund (previously known as the Asset Investment Fund) has approved
investment of over £250 million in commercial property. The principle objective of this investment is to
drive economic growth and regeneration, however there are associated long-term income generation
benefits (via rental revenues) which support the wider financial position of the Council.

The PRF portfolio forms the Council’s principle “Non-Treasury” investment, and the detailed strategy,
governance and risk management framework for the portfolio is set out in the Council’s Non-Treasury
Investment Strategy, along with further information on investment appraisal procedures, key financial
indicators, and the capability and skills of staff and professional advisors involved in managing the assets.
The Non-Treasury Investment Strategy is included as part of Appendix 12 in the 2025/26 budget report.

The Property and Regeneration Fund portfolio, alongside historic (‘legacy’) commercial property
investments, form an important part of the Council’s overall Capital Strategy. Currently the approach is
to continue to operate these assets and develop the portfolio for the economic benefit of Plymouth and
the surrounding area, and to generate income which repays associated capital investment and provides
a return over and above financing costs. However, this position will be kept under review as part of the
Council’s evolving Medium Term Financial Strategy and Capital Strategy as the portfolio also provides a
potential source of capital receipts, which could be used to repay borrowing and / or finance investment.

9. REVENUE BUDGET IMPLICATIONS, AFFORDABILITY AND RISK

Although capital expenditure is not charged directly to the revenue budget, interest payable on loans and
MRP / loans fund repayments are charged to revenue. The net annual charge is known as financing costs;
this is compared to the net revenue stream i.e. the amount funded from Council Tax, business rates and
general government grants. Table 5 below sets out the forecast financing costs for the current and next
two financial years, together with the percentage of forecast revenue resources represented by these
forecast financing costs in each financial year. This is a key indicator of affordability for the Council’s
capital expenditure plans.

Table 5: Prudential Indicator: Proportion of financing costs to net revenue stream

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
actual (£m) | forecast* (£m) | budget (£m) budget (£m)
Financing costs 34.820 41.519% 50.262 53.887
Proportion of net revenue stream 16.01% 17.18% 19.87% 21.09%

* The increase in financing costs in 2025/26 is subject to outcome of capitalisation direction and currently excludes
the impact from a change in the accounting for leases that does not represent additional cost to the authority

The Council considers all financial decisions from a prudent perspective; this includes the assessment of
the affordability of all capital investments. At the point of approval of a scheme, both the funding
implications and any ongoing revenue implications are evaluated to enable informed decisions to be made.
As much of the capital programme is funded by borrowing, assumptions and decisions on the cost and
affordability of the Council’s borrowing are linked to the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) interest
rates, prudential indicators and the approved borrowing strategy as set out in the Treasury Management
Strategy 2025/26.

Risks are assessed continually from both an operational and financial perspective. In carrying out due
diligence, potential project risks are identified, and relevant mitigation measures documented prior to



OFFICIAL
Page 302 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

approval. All risks are then managed in line with the Council’s risk management policy which includes
documenting risks on a risk register, assigning owners, and the regular review of risks. Subject to careful
consideration, the Council may consider investing in a higher risk initiative should there be a significant
direct gain to the Council’s resources or enable more effective delivery of its statutory duties.

Due to the very long-term nature of capital expenditure and financing, the revenue budget implications
of expenditure incurred in the next few years will extend for up to 50 years into the future. The Service
Director of Finance is satisfied that the proposed capital programme is prudent, affordable and sustainable
based on a clear five-year capital programme. However, as noted above the affordability of capital
financing will be reviewed as the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plans evolve; in addition, budget
assumptions around interest rates have risk which will be reviewed regularly and may lead to a wider
review of the capital programme to ensure it remains affordable.



OFFICIAL Page 303 Agenda Item 11

Audit and Governance Committee

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

Date of meeting: I8 February 2025

Title of Report: ASC Debt Management 2024/25 - Update January 2025
Lead Member: Councillor Mark Lowry (Cabinet Member for Finance)

Lead Strategic Director: David Northey (Service Director for Finance)

Author: Louise Clapton, Audit Manager

Contact Email: Louise.clapton@plymouth.gov.uk

Your Reference: AUD/LC

Key Decision: No

Confidentiality: Part | - Official

Purpose of Report

To provide Audit and Governance Committee with an update on the implementation of management
action agreed to address observations made in the ASC Debt Management report, issued with a
Limited Assurance opinion in November 2024.

Progress has been made in addressing the observations made in our original audit with six of the eleven
management actions having been fully implemented and five partially implemented. Whilst the overall
level of assurance has improved it remains Limited, however it is anticipated that high priority actions
will be completed by 30/04/2025 which once implemented will increase the overall opinion to
Reasonable.

Recommendations and Reasons
The Audit and Governance Committee are asked to note the progress to implement of agreed
management actions.

Reason: To update members on progress to implement agreed management actions.

Alternative options considered and rejected
None as the Committee agreed to receive an update of all audit recommendations.

Relevance to the Corporate Plan and/or the Plymouth Plan

The implementation of all agreed audit recommendations are fundamentally linked to delivering the
priorities within the Council’s Corporate Plan and assists with ensuring limited resources are allocated
to priorities which will maximise the benefits to the residents of Plymouth.

Implications for the Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:

Delivery of the audit plan assists the council in the provision of quality public services which also
demonstrate value for money. It has also helped ensure an effective control environment is maintained
in these financially challenging times.

Financial Risks
Failure to deliver the audit recommendations may have financial consequences.


mailto:Louise.clapton@plymouth.gov.uk

OFFICIAL
Page 304 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications:
No impacts directly arising from this report.

Other Implications: e.g. Health and Safety, Risk Management, Child Poverty:

* When considering these proposals members have a responsibility to ensure they give due regard to the Council’s duty to promote
equality of opportunity, eliminate unlawful discrimination and promote good relations between people who share protected
characteristics under the Equalities Act and those who do not.

No impacts directly arising from this report. The work of the internal audit service is an intrinsic
element of the Council’s overall corporate governance, risk management and internal control

framework.

Appendices

*Add rows as required to box below

Ref. Title of Appendix Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicab
If somel/all of the information is confidential, you must indicat
why it is not for publication by virtue of Part |of Schedule |2
of the Local Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant bo.

| 2 3 4 5 6 7

A ASC Debt Management 2024/25 - Update January
2025

Background papers:

*Add rows as required to box below

Please list all unpublished, background papers relevant to the decision in the table below. Background papers are unpublished works,
relied on to a material extent in preparing the report, which disclose facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the
work is based.

Title of any background paper(s) Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)

If somelall of the information is confidential, you must indicate why it
is not for publication by virtue of Part | of Schedule |2A of the Local
Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.

| 2 3 4 5 6 7

Sign off:
Fin DJN. | Leg LS/00 | Mon | N/A | HR N/A | Asset | N/A | Strat | N/A
24.25. 0010 | Off s Proc
162 75/1/
AC/6/
2/25

Orriginating Senior Leadership Team member: David Northey, Service Director for Finance

Please confirm the Strategic Director(s) has agreed the report? Yes

Date agreed:

Cabinet Member approval: CllIr Laing, via email

Date approved:




OFFICIAL
Page 305 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL



This page is intentionally left blank



OFFICIAL

Official
ASC Debt Management Update 2024/25 128 N
assuraﬁ:::e

Original Audit Report Issued November 2024 — Update Report January 2025

Audit Opinion Corporate Objective

Support, Assurance and Innovation

Limited Assurance - Significant gaps, weaknesses or non- Spending Money Wisely and Providing Quality Public Services. Adult Social Care
compliance were identified. Improvement is required to the Debt Recovery ensures money owed to the Council is effectively and promptly
system of governance, risk management and control to recovered and that service users are appropriately and accurately charged the

effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the amounts they are assessed to pay for the services they receive.

area audited. Risks or Areas Covered Level of Assurance
- Limited Reasonable - - Original Key Findings (November 2024)

Assurance Assurance 1. Accumulating ASC debt potentially leading to

budget deficits may affect the ability to
—:> Assurance improved, but remains Limited. provide essential services; meet other
financial obligations and damage the local

Management Partially authority’s reputation and trust among
Actions Agreed Implemented residents and stakeholders. Limited Assurance

/0€ abed

e |neffective ASC debt management decision making
Medium 5 - 2 3 e Lack of robust write off procedures
Low 1 - - 1 e Lack of up-to-date debt management policies
Opportunity 0 . . ¢ Ineffective monitoring of suspended invoices
Total 1 0 5 6 e Ineffective monitoring of individual ASC debt cases

Executive Summary

In November 2024 a Limited Assurance audit opinion was provided in respect of ASC Debt Management. It was recognised that recovery of ASC debt from
client contributions can be complex and time consuming, which may require input from other departments and external agencies, often who are experiencing
their own resource difficulties. Debt is often unsecured and further complicated if the service user is suspected or known not to have mental capacity to make
financial decisions and once a service user passes away recovery becomes more challenging and there is a higher risk of it becoming irrecoverable. Resource
capacity within the Income Recovery Team and Legal Team was impacting the Councils ability to effectively manage debt recovery cases.

Progress has been made in addressing the observations made in our original audit with six of the eleven management actions having been fully implemented
and five partially implemented. Whilst the overall level of assurance has improved it remains Limited, however it is anticipated that high priority actions will be
complete by 30/04/2025 which once implemented will increase the overall opinion to Reasonable, this does not include the longer term action of developing
capacity through an Invest to save Business Case for Deputyship.

Details of the latest management update is included in Appendix A and the original scope and objectives of this audit at Appendix C.



Appendix A
OFFICIAL

Ineffective ASC Debt Management
Decision Making

Effective communication and
collaboration between stakeholders is
crucial in understanding and
preventing debt accumulation.

In order to maximise the full potential
of the reinstated Debt Meetings it is
important that members recognise the
significance of the meetings and their
strategic importance for ASC finance.
A Terms of Reference should be
drawn up and distributed to all
attendees to include:

e the key objectives of the
meetings;

¢ frequency of meetings;

e a set agenda with regular
items plus any additional
points for discussion;

¢ responsibility for co-ordinating
meetings, agenda items, action
points;

¢ identify the expected regular
attendees/representatives (e.g.
Legal, Finance, LWSW,
Income Recovery,
Deputyship);

e expectations of members
based on the principles of a
RACI matrix (i.e.. who needs to
attend every meeting, who
should be informed of
decisions, responsibility for
actions etc);

¢ identify specialised area
representatives who may be
required for specific
meetings/agenda items (e.g.

ASC Debt meetings have been
reinstated and the agenda
includes objectives and
frequency of meetings. This
will be formalised into a Terms
of Reference incorporating the
areas to include as per
recommendation.

ToR to outline the governance
of ASC Debt Meetings and how
identified risks are escalated.

Responsible Officer: Head of
ASC and Retained Functions
Target Date: 31/12/2024

ToR has been drawn up and
agreed at ASC Debt Meeting.

PR,

devonassurancepartnership



Appendix A
OFFICIAL ;;slillj@

devonassurancepartnership

Operations Development /
Counter Fraud).

1.2 | Lack of robust write off procedures An additional step to be built Process agreed and is in place.
Bad Debt Procedures should be into the write off process to Write Off Procedures have been
updated to ensure that an additional ensure that instruction for write | updated to reflect process and
approval step is put in place to ensure off only comes from ASC has been approved by Service
all write off requests are formally management. Process to be Director for Finance.
approved by the budget holder, prior reiterated to all, including
to being submitted to Income LWSW, at ASC Debt meeting.

Recovery and authorisation by the
Service Director for Finance. All Requests for write off to be
approvals for write offs should be agreed at ASC Debt Meetings.
retained on file for future reference.
Income Recovery Team will
Review processes for the pursuit of ensure approval from ASC
debt from Executors and ensure all is budget holder is in place prior to
being done to maximise the chances submitting to Service Director
of recovery i.e.. for Finance for write off
e Ensuring an up to date next of kin approval. LWSW does not have
on record; delegated authority to approve
o Establishing the Executor early on write offs.
and, if not being dealt with by a
solicitor, ensure contact details are Income Recovery Team Leader
up to date; to review processes for pursuit
 Regular review and contact with of debt from Executors and
Executor to ensure position of explore ways of maximising
estate is understood to ensure engagement and debt recovery
follow up is timely but not intrusive; from Executors.
e Ensure Executors are clear on what . .
information the Council requires as Responsible Officer: Head of
evidence and try to obtain this at ASC and Retained Function
e Consideration as to whether
enough documentation has been Income Recovery Team Leader
obtained to base a decision and to Target Date: 31/1/2025

fully document rationale.

1.3 | Lack of up to date debt Income and Credit Management | Review of the Income and Partially Implemented
management policies Policy to be reviewed to include | Credit Management Policy is




Appendix A
OFFICIAL

D

partnership

assuranc

(5]

The Income and Credit Management
Policy (2017) should be reviewed and
if necessary, brought up to date. The
same applies to the Charging Policy
(2019) which should include

amendments made to bring in line with

current practices for Direct Payments.

1.4

Ineffective monitoring of
suspended invoices

The suspended cases report should
be reviewed to ensure all suspended
invoices/accounts are still appropriate.
Regular monitoring of the report and
following up on outstanding
information or co-operation from

review of ASC debt recovery
and potential use of
enforcement agencies.
Awaiting trial of this approach in
another Local Authority.

Charging Policy to be reviewed
by Head of ASC and Retained
Function with Income
Recovery/Client Financial
Services Team Leader and
Operations Development
Manager to ensure policy is up
to date and to review local
decisions to ensure income is
maximised.

The reviewed Charging Policy
to include the new online
financial self-assessment
system (Better Care Finance).
The aim is to have a draft by
January 2025 and publish a
final version in April 2025.

Responsible Officer: Head of
Revenues, Benefits and Service
Centre and

Head of ASC and Retained
Function,

Target Date: 30/4/2025

awaiting response from
Cornwall Enforcement Agency
the results of which it is hoped
will provide leverage in the
policy. Needs to be discussed
with the head of ASC and
Retained Functions to explore
using as an option.

The S151 Officer will call a
review meeting in February to
resolve all outstanding issues,
with a completion date of 31
March 2025.

Charging Policy is currently
being reviewed by the
operations Development
Manager. Better Care Finance
is still progressing on track to
implement the policy by target
date of April 2025.

NnTCo AAD 1
Ulc vvtd

One team member has been
assigned to the suspended
invoices report, however, there
is insufficient resources to
check and chase debt as
regularly as would like.

Started working on prioritising
debts, looking at high debt
cases and prioritising,
identifying bad debt provision,
prioritising executors. One
member of team concentrating
on ASC debt one day per week
and income recovery has

Partially Implemented




Appendix A 9
OFFICIAL ul

assuranceparinership

families/financial representatives
should be carried out and the
suspended status removed as soon as
possible.

Each account should be considered
independently but when a high value
balance is deemed unlikely to be
recovered by Legal Services and has
been referred to Counter Fraud (which
is likely to take a considerable time to
investigate) it may be worth
considering write off from the accounts
so it does not over inflate recoverable

council debt. If the debt or partial debt teams, departments hinder debt | to Save. ]
is recovered by Counter Fraud it can recovery this will be highlighted é
always be written back on into the at the ASC Debt Management q
accounts. meetings for monitoring or (4

action as necessary. II:

When it is suspected that a family or
financial representative is being
evasive or deliberately stalling or
avoiding contact, a risk-based
approach should be applied with more
focus and concentrated chasing on
high value or increasing balances with
the highest risks of money or assets
disappearing. Where application for
LPA or Deputyship is claimed, in high
risk cases evidence should be sought
at the earliest point to ensure claims
are accurate.

When recovery action cannot be taken
due to work being undertaken in other
areas e.g. Complaints Team, LWSW,
Legal or Counter Fraud, they should
be aware that the debt cannot be
pursued until their role is completed
and until that time debts will continue

In cases where Legal Services
recommend that a debt is
irrecoverable, these cases will
be taken to the ASC Debt
meetings for discussion and
possible write off.

As per 1.2 above, processes to
be reviewed and a more risk
based approach to high
value/high risk cases to be
taken.

Where “bottlenecks” in other

Responsible Officer: Income
Recovery Team Leader (CC)

Target Date: 31/1/2025

improved during November.
Recovery Team to identify cases
where stalling for time may be
an issue, LPA applied for some
time ago, executors or cases
where progress does not seem
to being made to prioritise.
Identify high risk cases to bring
back to ASC Debt Meetings for
discussion.

Working on the waiting list for
Deputyship. Business Case for
Deputyship drawn up as Invest

LLc YVEA




Appendix A
OFFICIAL

D

partnership

assuranc

(5]

to be shown as income and if
irrecoverable will falsely inflate the
financial statement and impact the
ASC budget.

1.5

Ineffective monitoring of individual
ASC debt cases

Capacity within teams involved in the
recovery of debt should be under
constant review. Recovery of debt in
complex areas such as ASC is
resource heavy, PCC Senior
Management should consider whether
the benefits of investing in sufficient
capacity across Income Recovery,
Deputyship and Legal Services to
enable an effective and efficient
means to recover debt outweighs the
costs this will incur. The risks of not
doing so is that debt recovery may
become more challenging if the public
believes debts will not be vigorously
pursued.

Income Recovery should consider if
more can be done when family
members agree to apply for LPA or
deputyship and whether evidence
should be requested and followed up
on. Finding a way to identify high risk
cases and focus more attention on
them may send out a message that
cases are monitored closely and act
as a deterrent.

As per 1.4 above, Income
Recovery to review processes
and consider using a risk based
approach to high risk/high value
cases, particularly where an
“‘unwillingness” to pay is
suspected rather than an
‘unable” to pay. Explore
whether more can be done to
obtain evidence in the early
stages of applications for LPAs
to ensure this is not used as a
stalling tactic from financial
representatives.

Responsible Officer: Income
Recovery Team Leader
Target Date : 31/1/2025

Ensure that bottlenecks and
resource issues, which prevent
and hinder debt recovery, are
discussed at ASC Debt
Meetings to understand the
reasons and risks. Where
appropriate resource issues that
delay debt recovery to be
escalated to DMT.

Responsible Officer: Head of
ASC and Retained Function
Target Date: 31/1/2025

Prioritising debts as above.
Communicated to Income
Recovery Team to identify cases
where stalling for time may be
an issue, LPA applied for some
time ago, executors or cases
where progress does not seem
to being made to prioritise.
Identify high risk cases to bring
back to ASC Debt Meetings for
discussion.

Further Legal Comment to
clarify that Resources are
stretched across all
departments which impact on
each other, not just in Legal or
Income Recovery. Legal's
resources to be discussed with
Strategic Director for Adults,
Health and Communities as
potential for Invest to save.

Partially Implemented

2T ARV 1
clc oveqg




Appendix A
OFFICIAL

DD@

devonassurancepartnership

1.6

Unpaid Devon Integrated Care
Board (ICB) Invoices

Residential Care which is fully or
partially funded by Devon ICB is paid
by the Council in the first instance and
recharged to the Devon ICB on
invoice.

There are sometimes delays in the
payment of these invoices which
negatively impacts collection rate
figures for the Income Recovery

Medium

Legal Services Comment:

At present the Legal Team
would not have capacity to
manage all of the ASC debt.
However, the work of Legal
services is impacted by
delays within the debt
recovery team where the
processing of recovery action
is not undertaken quickly
enough, so by the time
matters get to legal the debts
are much larger and more
difficult to recover. The
whole process needs an
overhaul and investment to
make it more efficient and to
provide capacity for recovery
of all outstanding debts,
starting with the way the
finance team manage
recovery to the legal team
taking on an extra lawyer
with a specialism in ASC
debt recovery.

ocTe AR
clLc oOvtq

This is not expected to be an
ongoing issue, however,
learning from last year’s dispute
will be applied going forward. As
soon as it is known that an
invoice is being disputed
Finance will contact the income
recovery team to hold invoices
being chased.

Implemented at final report
stage. No further issues
identified.




Appendix A
OFFICIAL ;,;sDD@

devonassurancepartnership

Team. During the latter part of Responsible Officer: Lead
2023/24 Devon ICB withheld payment Accountancy Manager
for a number of invoices due to a

separate dispute. Payment was Target Date: Implemented

eventually made in March 2024 of
£18m covering a number of invoices.
In this case, there was a lack of
effective communication between
decision makers, Income Recovery
and Finance which resulted in:
e Officers chasing debt which
had been agreed to be put on
a temporary hold;
¢ Finance being unaware
payments had not been made;
e Income Recovery not being
aware when payment was
finally made.

The withholding of such a large
amount negatively affected Income
Collection performance rates, placed
additional unnecessary work
pressures on the Income Recovery
Team and ASC Finance and could
potentially have affected the Council's
cashflow position.

Recommendation:

Communication should be improved
between decision makers, ASC
Finance and Income Recovery to
ensure that time is not wasted in
chasing debts which have been
temporarily placed on hold whilst a
dispute or other arrangement is
concluded.




Appendix A
OFFICIAL

1.7

Understated Bad Debt Provision
The ASC bad debt provision should
reflect the calculated risk in order for
the service area to accurately and
completely report their financial
position. (Link to 1.9 below)

Medium

The Finance team will carry out
a full review of the methodology
of calculating the ASC Bad Debt
Provision, to ensure that
recommendations in 1.7 and 1.9
are considered, and that the
provision going forward shows a
more accurate view of debt risk
and that any financial impact as
a result is factored into the
revenue monitoring position.

Responsible Officer: Lead
Accountancy Manager

Target Date: 31/1/2025

Linking to the high risk case
reviews would best inform the
provision calculations so | think
to allow that, and to get the best
outcome for the BDP review, the
deadline will need to move
slightly to the end of Feb; this
would still allow us sufficient
time to have a good
overview/working papers in time
for year end.

This review is now part of a
wider piece of work being
undertaken across finance to
review all bad debt provisioning.
It should be noted the 2025/26
Proposed Budget included a
£0.5m uplift to the ASC Bad
Debt provision

Responsible Officer: Lead
Accountancy Manager

Revised Target Date:
28/02/2025

1.8

Closed investigation leaving

irrecoverable debt showing as

recoverable on Debtors system

If advised by Legal Services that a
debt is likely to be irrecoverable, it
should be referred to the appropriate
manager to make a decision on

Medium

Standard procedure would be
that a report would be provided
whenever a case is closed
down, | can’t confirm whether
reports went out on the cases
that were mentioned, as they
would have been attached onto

Implemented at Final Report.

Further agreed that if Income
Recovery come across cases
which were referred to Counter
Fraud a long time ago and
nothing has happened Internal

N

assurance

Partially Implemented

oTe ARy
IL¢c vvEd




Appendix A
OFFICIAL

whether the debt should be written off,
ensuring that income is not
overstated, or at least a provision is
made in the bad debt reserve. A debt
can be written back on if it is
recovered once an investigation is
complete. (Recommendation covered
in 1.4 above)

Regular updates should be provided
to the relevant departments who have
requested Counter Fraud's services
on each case they are working with.
When a case is closed to Counter
Fraud this should be communicated
back to the relevant department
manager and evidenced so that action
can be taken to write off debt or close
the case down within the originating
department as appropriate.

An exercise should be undertaken to
identify any cases that were referred
to Counter Fraud and subsequently
closed to ensure the originating
department have been informed of the
closure.

our old fraud system. We have
standard report formats now,
which must be completed by an
investigator when submitting a
case for closure, whether it is
being recommended that action
is taken or just closed down as
no further action, and these
should be provided to the
department that refers the fraud
to us.

The cases that were previously
investigated were stopped
multiple years ago, | can’t say
for certain, but | believe in 2022.
From my recollection, | met with
the previous Legal Assistant
before they left, and we
discussed how none of the
cases could be progressed for
the reasons | mentioned, and |
believe after he left, someone
else e-mailed to ask about them
and they were advised that they
had already been stopped from
our end. If legal were not
successfully notified of the
outcome of the cases, that
would have been an error on my
part, as standard procedure
would be to send a closure
report (or at least an e-mail).

From our current position, we
have no current live cases
related to Adult Social Care
debt. But any future cases that
may be referred to us, will

z%EDD@

devonassurancepartnership

Audit will be advised and will
take this up with Counter Fraud.
Any cases discovered in this
way that have been closed by
Counter Fraud will be discussed
at ASC Debt Meeting in relation
to potential write off.




Appendix A
OFFICIAL

always have a closure report
sent over.

The Fraud Team are happy to
assist in an exercise to look at
cases that have been referred
to the Counter Fraud team, to
make sure that they can all be
successfully updated by legal,
should it be required.

Responsible Officer: Senior
Counter Fraud Officer
Target Date: Implemented

1.9

Insufficient bad debt provision,
calculations do not adequately
reflect risk of recovery.

The bad debt provision calculator
should be sense checked to ensure
the factors are appropriate. In
addition to the calculator, a risk-based
approach to the individual debts
should be included and a RAG rating
allocated based on a predetermined
criteria such as:

¢ mental capacity;

e previous payment history/client
debt issues/previous debt
written off;

e size of debt (based on client
not invoice);

e if estate is being managed by a
solicitor;

o whether there is a property
involved,;

¢ financial representative, family,
safeguarding concerns;

e co-operation of client/financial
representative (including

Medium

The Finance team will carry out
a full review of the methodology
of calculating the ASC Bad Debt
Provision, to ensure that
recommendations in 1.7 and 1.9
are considered, and that the
provision going forward shows a
more accurate view of debt risk
and that any financial impact as
a result is factored into the
revenue monitoring position

Responsible Officer: Lead
Accountancy Manager

Target Date: 31/1/2025

Linking to the high risk case
reviews would best inform the
provision calculations so | think
to allow that, and to get the best
outcome for the BDP review, the
deadline will need to move
slightly to the end of Feb; this
would still allow us sufficient
time to have a good
overview/working papers in time
for year end.

This review is now part of a
wider piece of work being
undertaken across finance to
review all bad debt provisioning.
It should be noted the 2025/26
Proposed Budget included a
£0.5m uplift to the ASC Bad
Debt provision

Responsible Officer: Lead
Accountancy Manager
Revised Target Date:
28/02/2025

ug @

assuranceparinership

Partially Implemented

LT ARDY
/. Lc 90t




Appendix A
OFFICIAL

where full charge is applied
due to non-disclosure during
financial assessment);

e suspected fraud;

e awaiting input from other
service areas/agencies (eg.
Deputyship, Court of
Protection, Legal Services,
Counter Fraud etc).

An additional tab could be added to
the bad debt spreadsheet to
incorporate the above and feed into
the overall bad debt provision. The
bad debt provision calculator and risk
approach tool should be agreed by
managers and form part of the Bad
Debt Policy for ASC.

Link to 1.7 above.

1.10

"Free Text" Exception Report
identifies cases where
correspondence may not be sent
due to incorrect input

As raised in previous audit reports a
"free-text financial representative”
remains in 17 cases as shown in the
Dashboard exception report. This is a
field which should not be completed
and may prevent the issue of
correspondence and/or invoices.

It is understood that the Eclipse
upgrade has removed the issue with
the "Free Text" box for new cases,
however, 17 pre-migration cases
currently remain with this error
notification.

Medium

Cases continue to be worked
through and removed.
Currently down to 15 pre-
migration cases.

The Operation Development
Team will close down the
remaining 15 Free Text Fin
Reps and where possible
convert them into CareFirst
records.

Responsible Officer: Operations
Development Manager

Target Date: 31/12/2024

Free Text box on CareFirst has
been cleared and is being
regularly checked.

DD@

devonassurancepartnership

E yallaY 2t oM ]
[ ot




Appendix A
OFFICIAL

Recommendation:

An exercise should be undertaken to
clear up the final 17 "free text
representatives"” cases.

ASC Debt summary is not regularly
produced and reported to senior
managers

ASC debt can be monitored and is
reported in various ways (ledger, ASC
dashboard, debtors system) and is
included in the Council's financial
statements.

ASC Deferred Debt is also reported in
the financial statement and in the ASC
Dashboard. However, there appeared
to be a lack of clarity and
understanding amongst finance staff
in relation to Deferred Debt and how
this is monitored and reported and
how this information is displayed in the
ASC Dashboard.

According to the ASC dashboard (as
of September 2024) there was £8.9m
outstanding ASC debt spanning a
number of years. 53% of the debt was
from 2023/24 and 2024/25 (to date).
The remaining 47% spanned between
2006/07 to 2022/23. It was noted that
some service users debt had been
accrued over a number of years.
Recommendation:

Managers could benefit from a
periodic ASC debt report which
summarises key risk areas as not
everyone has access to all debt
management reports and systems.
This could pull together specific

Low

Operations Development
Manager to add a debt section
to the weekly income report
which is sent to managers.

Email alerts are already sent to
Management Team when debt
levels peak.

Management reporting to be
discussed at ASC Debt Meeting
and reports tweaked as
necessary to provide good
quality management
information.

Responsible Officer: Operations
Development Manager.

Target Date: 31/12/2024

Debt summary has been added
to Income summary for
circulation to Managers.

z%EDD@

devonassurancepartnership




Appendix A
OFFICIAL ;;EDD@

devonassurancepartnership

information held in the dashboard and
debtors system regarding aged debt
and service user categories (e.g.
mental capacity, financial
representative etc) and information
from the bad debt provision report in
relation to service users who have the
highest debt. Findings from the debt
management meetings in relation to
trends and work undertaken to reduce
the debt could also be included.

Deferred debt should also be regularly
monitored by Finance and ASC
monitoring reports should include
Deferred Payments for visibility and to
enable trends to be identified and
monitored.

0ce



Appendix B q
OFFICIAL

assurance

Scope and Objectives

The scope and objectives of this audit was to provide the Council with an opinion on the processes in place to pursue debts within Adult Social Care (ASC) to
maximise income for the Council whilst supporting vulnerable service users who struggle to pay and addressing those who "won't pay".

The audit included those direct payment recipients who receive their direct payment gross of the assessed client contribution and who are invoiced in the same
way as those in receipt of commissioned services. Direct Payments which are paid "net" of the assessed client contribution were not be included in this audit.
The management and oversight of client contributions for Direct Payments that are paid "net" of the contribution are included in the Direct Payments audit.

Overall Risk:
¢ Accumulating ASC debt may lead to budget deficits, affecting the ability to provide essential services and meet other financial obligations.

Risk Effect:

¢ Non-compliance with legal and regulatory requirements can result in penalties, fines or legal action against the Local Authority;

¢ Insufficient funds which may impact the quality and availability of services provided by the local authority. This can result in reduced access to essential
care services for vulnerable adults, affecting their well-being and potentially leading to safeguarding issues;

¢ Negative publicity regarding financial mismanagement or inadequate support for vulnerable adults can damage the authority's reputation and trust
among residents and stakeholders;

¢ Increased administrative burdens and operational costs, including resources needed for debt collection, legal proceedings and managing disputes;

e ASC debt can have broader economic implications for the local community ie. affecting the council's ability to maintain services;

e Lack of adequate social care services due to financial constraints can exacerbate social inequalities and contribute to social isolation among vulnerable
adults.

o
jabl
Q
D
w
N
|

The following areas and mitigating controls were reviewed during the audit:
Financial Management Policies and compliance with Regulations;
Debt Management Procedures;

Documentation and record keeping;

Risk assessment and management;

Stakeholder Communication;

Performance Measurement and Reporting

Acknowledgements

We thank those who provided support and assistance during this audit.

Cathy Curnow Nicola Pearce Helen Slater Chris Blackham  Deneice Braddon Gareth Sampson
Team Leader, Finance Legal Assistant Lead Accountancy Livewell SW Technical Expert Operations
Manager Development

Manager



Appendix B q
OFFICIAL

assurance

Audit Team
Marie Whittam Louise Clapton Tony Rose
Delivery Lead Manager Head of Partnership

Inherent Limitations

The opinions and observations contained within this report are based on our examination of restricted samples of transactions / records and our discussions
with officers responsible for the processes reviewed.

Devon Assurance Partnership

Devon Assurance Partnership has been formed under a joint committee arrangement, details of our partners can be found on our website. We aim to be
recognised as a high-quality assurance service provider. We collaborate with our Partners by providing a professional service that will assist them in meeting
their challenges, managing their risks and achieving their goals.

In conducting our work, we are required to comply with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards along with other best practice and professional standards.
The Partnership is committed to providing high quality, professional customer services to all; if you have any comments or suggestions on our service,
processes or standards, the Head of Partnership would be pleased to receive them at tony.d.rose@devon.gov.uk.

2cs abed


https://www.devonaudit.gov.uk/why-choose-dap/customers-and-partners/
mailto:tony.d.rose@devon.gov.uk

Appendix C
OFFICIAL

Confidentiality under the National Protective Marking Scheme

assurancepartnership

This report is protectively marked in accordance with the National Protective Marking Scheme. It is accepted that issues raised may well need to be discussed with other
officers within the organisation, the report itself should only be copied/circulated/disclosed to anyone outside of the organisation in line with the organisation’s disclosure
policies. This report is prepared for the organisation’s use. We can take no responsibility to any third party for any reliance they might place upon it.

Marketing
Official

Official: Sensitive

Definitions

The maijority of information that is created or processed by the public sector. This includes routine business operations and services, some of which
could have damaging consequences if lost, stolen or published in the media, but are not subject to a heightened threat profile.

A limited subset of OFFICIAL information could have more damaging consequences if it were lost, stolen or published in the media. This subset of
information should still be managed within the ‘OFFICIAL’ classification tier but may attract additional measures to reinforce the ‘need to know’. In
such cases where there is a clear and justifiable requirement to reinforce the ‘need to know’, assets should be conspicuously marked: ‘OFFICIAL-
SENSITIVE’. All documents marked OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE must be handled appropriately and with extra care, to ensure the information is not

accessed by unauthorised people.

Definitions of Audit Assurance Opinion Levels Definition of Observation Priority 2
Assurance Definition )
A sound system of governance, risk management and control A significant finding. A key control is absent or is being KJO

exists, with internal controls operating effectively and being compromised; if not acted upon this could result in high w

Reasonable
Assurance

Limited
Assurance

No Assurance

consistently applied to support the achievement of objectives in the
area audited.

There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management
and control in place. Some issues, non-compliance or scope for
improvement were identified which may put at risk the achievement
of objectives in the area audited.

Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified.
Improvement is required to the system of governance, risk
management and control to effectively manage risks to the
achievement of objectives in the area audited.

Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps,
weaknesses or non-compliance identified. The system of
governance, risk management and control is inadequate to
effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the
area audited.

Medium

Low

exposure to risk. Failure to address could result in internal
or external responsibilities and obligations not being met.
Control arrangements not operating as required resulting in
a moderate exposure to risk. This could result in minor
disruption of service, undetected errors or inefficiencies in
service provision. Important observations made to improve
internal control arrangements and manage identified risks.
Low risk issues, minor system compliance concerns or
process inefficiencies where benefit would be gained from
improving arrangements. Management should review,
make changes if considered necessary or formally agree to
accept the risks. These issues may be dealt with outside of
the formal report during the course of the audit.

An observation to drive operational improvement which
may enable efficiency savings to be realised, capacity to be
created, support opportunity for commercialisation / income
generation or improve customer experience. These
observations do not feed into the assurance control
environment.



This page is intentionally left blank



OFFICIAL

Audit and Governance Committee — Tracking Decisions 2024/25

Minute No.

Resolution

Date Due & Progress

Minute 42

Risk Management
Monitoring Report
November 2023

28 November 2023

A SharePoint page would be created for members of the Committee, to
see risk management information in near real time.

Date Due: January 2024
Officer Responsible: Ross Jago
Progress: Request formally made |

December 2023. Chased 26 March 2024, 23
April 2024, 12 July 2024.

Minute 59
External Audit -
Audit Findings
Report 2020/21

12 March 2024

There would be an independent review into the pension transaction from
October 2019 and as soon as there was information on when the review
was to take place, and what its scope would be, David Northey (Service
Director for Finance) would let members of the Committee know, as well
as any other relevant Councillors.

Date Due: Ongoing.
Officer Responsible: David Northey

Progress: Formal request sent |13 March
2024. Update provided to the Committee at
the 23 July 2024 and 10 September 2024
meetings. Further updates to be provided
when possible.

Minute 60

Whistleblowing
Policy

12 March 2024

Ross Jago (Head of Governance, Performance and Risk) agreed to provide
members with an explanation as to why Councillors, agency workers and
contractors were exempt from the Whistleblowing Policy.

Date Due: 27 March 2024
Officer Responsible: Ross Jago

Progress: Formal request sent |3 March
2024. Chased 26 March 2024, 23 April 2024,
12 July 2024, 4 December 2024, 3 January
2025.

Tracking Decisions 2024/25

OFFICIAL

Geg abed

€T wa)| epuaby



OFFICIAL

Audit and Governance Committee — Tracking Decisions 2024/25

Minute 60

Whistleblowing
Policy

12 March 2024

It was suggested that Section 3.4 be considered for re-wording, as it put
too much pressure on people to put their name to a whistleblowing
report.

Date Due: 27 March 2024
Officer Responsible: Ross Jago

Progress: Formal request sent |3 March
2024. Chased 26 March 2024, 23 April 2024,
12 July 2024, 12 August 2024, 4 December
2024, 3 January 2025.

Minute 60

Whistleblowing
Policy

12 March 2024

Section 2.2 did not include inappropriate behaviour, so Ross Jago (Head of
Governance, Performance and Risk) agreed to provide information to
members on how this would be dealt with through existing HR policies,
or if it needed to be included in the Whistleblowing Policy.

Date Due: 27 March 2024
Officer Responsible: Ross Jago

Progress: Formal request sent |3 March
2024. Chased 26 March 2024, 23 April 2024,
12 July 2024, 12 August 2024, 4 December
2024, 3 January 2025.

Minute 60

Whistleblowing
Policy

12 March 2024

It was suggested that Section 6.1 a should be changed to ‘any Councillor’.

Date Due: 27 March 2024
Officer Responsible: Ross Jago

Progress: Formal request sent |3 March
2024. Chased 26 March 2024, 23 April 2024,
[2 July 2024, 12 August 2024, 4 December
2024, 3 January 2025.

Minute 60

Whistleblowing
Policy

12 March 2024

It was suggested that ‘MP’s’ be included in Section 6.1.

Date Due: 27 March 2024
Officer Responsible: Ross Jago

Progress: Formal request sent |3 March
2024. Chased 26 March 2024, 23 April 2024,
12 July 2024, 12 August 2024, 4 December
2024, 3 January 2025.

Tracking Decisions 2024/25

OFFICIAL

9zg abed



OFFICIAL

Audit and Governance Committee — Tracking Decisions 2024/25

Minute 60

Whistleblowing
Policy

12 March 2024

Ross Jago (Head of Governance, Performance and Risk) agreed to provide
information to the Committee on process if the Service Director was the
subject of a Whistleblowing issue.

Date Due: 27 March 2024
Officer Responsible: Ross Jago

Progress: Formal request sent |3 March
2024. Chased 26 March 2024, 23 April 2024,
12 July 2024, 12 August 2024, 4 December
2024, 3 January 2025.

Minute 19
Recommendation 2

Constitutional
Update

23 July 2024

Review the efficiency and effectiveness of these changes at an Audit and
Governance Committee meeting in March 2025.

Date Due: | | March 2025
Officer Responsible: Ross Jago

Progress: Added to the work programme 24
July 2024 for the || March 2024 meeting.

Minute 23a & 23|

The Annual Information Governance Statement report was to be split
into Part | and Part Ill. Furthermore, it would include benchmarking

Date Due: July 2025

12 November 2024

Annual figures, if obtained, on numbers of requests. Officer Responsible: John Finch
Information
Governance Progress: Requested for the July 2025
Statement meeting.
23 July 2024
Minute 46 The Committee agreed to recommend the Treasury Management Date Due: March 2025

Strategy 2025/26 to City Council for approval.
Treasury Officer Responsible: Wendy Eldridge/Ross
Management Jago
Strategy 2025/26

Progress: Due on agenda for March 2025.

Minute 47

The Committee agreed to recommend the Capital Financing Strategy to
City Council for approval.

Date Due: March 2025

Tracking Decisions 2024/25

OFFICIAL

/¢€ abed



OFFICIAL

Audit and Governance Committee — Tracking Decisions 2024/25

Capital Financing
Strategy 2025/26

12 November 2024

Officer Responsible: Wendy Eldridge/Ross
Jago

Progress: Due on agenda for March 2025.

Minute 56

Auditors Annual
Report

The Committee agreed to recommend the Chair of the Audit and
Governance Committee should meet with Council officers and Grant
Thornton auditors on a regular basis to ensure documents were not
brought before Committee late again.

Date Due: 10 February 2025

Officer Responsible: Oliver
Woodhams/Carolyn Haynes

External Auditor -
Audit Progress
Report and Sector
Updates

14 January 2025

Committee Members on how assets that might have had a low value when
new but were, at present time, valuable, would be dealt with;

I'l December 2024 Progress: Update will be available from 8/9
January 2025.

Minute 62 Minutes for the 12 November 2024 and | | December 2024 meetings to Date Due: 31 January 2025

be updated and brought to the February 2025 meeting of the Committee

Minutes Officer Responsible: Hannah Chandler-
Whiting

14 January 2025
Progress: Edited minutes circulated to
Committee members and republished online
as draft on 14 January 2025.

Minute 65 Grant Thornton would provide a response outside of the meeting to Date Due: 29 January 2025

Officer Responsible: David Johnson (Grant
Thornton)

Progress: Response shared with Committee
members via email on 03 February 2025.

Minute 70

Committee Self-
Assessment

The link to the self-assessment would be reshared with Committee
members and substitutes along with the terms of reference for the
Committee.

Date Due: 20 January 2025

Officer Responsible: Hannah Chandler-
Whiting

Tracking Decisions 2024/25

OFFICIAL

gzg abed



OFFICIAL

Audit and Governance Committee — Tracking Decisions 2024/25

[4 January 2025

Progress: Complete. Sent via email on 14
January 2025.

Tracking Decisions 2024/25

OFFICIAL

6¢¢ abed



This page is intentionally left blank



OFFICIAL

Page 331

Agenda Item 14

Audit and Governance Committee
Work Programme 2024/25

%

=

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

Please note that the work programme is a ‘live’ document and subject to change at short
notice. The information in this work programme is intended to be of strategic relevance.

For general enquiries relating to the Council’s Committees, including this Committee’s
work programme, please contact Hannah Chandler-Whiting (Democratic Advisor) on

01752 305155.
Date of Agenda Item Reason for Lead Officer
Meeting Consideration
Role of an Audit Member SNl Paul Dossett
(Verbal Report)
External Audit Report — Progress Paul Dossett
Report/Plan 2023/24
External Audit Report —2020/21 p
o (oo aul Dossett
Audit findings report
Management Response to GT 2024
Actions including a revised
Management Review and Action David Northey
Plan addressing the CIPFA Financial
Management Code
Update on Capitalisation (Verbal Report) David Northey
Statement of Accounts 2019/20 Carelin Heyee
Accounts and 2020/21 Accounts
Draft Statement of Accounts Eorely HEnes
2023/24
23 July 2024 Holly Golden/Liz

Contract Standing Orders

Bryant/Alison Critchfield

Procurement Strategy

Holly Golden

Treasury Management Outturn
Report 2023/24

Wendy Eldridge

Internal Audit Actions Review

Louise Clapton

Internal Audit End of Year Report

Annual Report

Louise Clapton

Internal Audit Strategy and Charter

Annual Report

Louise Clapton

2024/25
Annual Information Governance Aol e el i
Statement
Counter Fraud Annual Report Annual Report Ken Johnson
Annual Governance Statement Ross Jago
Constitutional Update Ross Jago
Risk Management Monitoring Rossljago
Report
Council Motion
Electoral Cycle Consultation on Notice from Elinor Firth

24/06/24

Update on External Audit
Recommendations

Standing Item
(Verbal Update)

David Northey




OFFICIAL

Page 332

10 Capitalisation Direction Update David Northey
September Internal Audit Progress Report Louise Clapton
2024 Committee Self-Assessment David Northey/Ross Jago
Health, Safety and Wellbeing oo
Annual Report 2023/24 Annual Report Kirstie Spencer
Family of Companies Liz Bryant
Plymouth Cltzyo(zi;téllul Audit Plan Tl oy,
Interim Auditor’s Annual Report Jackson Murray
Counter Fraud Half Year Report Half Year Report Ken Johnson
Internal Audit Actions report Louise Clapton
Internal Half Year Report Half Year Report Louise Clapton
Capital Finance Strategy Annual Report Wendy Eldridge
Treasury Management Strategy Annual Report Wendy Eldridge
12 Treasury Management Mid-Year .
November Y Re%iew Annual Report Wendy Eldridge
2024 Risk Management Monitoring
Ross Jago
Report
Moved from
Performance and Accountability September to Ross Jago
Framework November on 28 S
Aug 2024.
. Added by officers .
Committee Self-Assessment 30 August 2024, David Northey/Ross Jago
Liz Bryant/Caroline
Electoral Cycle Consultation Marr/Andrew Binding/Ellie
Firth
I
De;t;rzr:‘ber Approval of Statement of Accounts Carolyn Haynes/Paul
(Additional 2021/22 and 2022/23 Dossett
Meeting)
External Auditor Update Jackson Murray
Capitalisation Direction Update Verbal Update David Northey
Update on EXtem?I Audit Standing Item David Northey
Recommendations
Treasury Management Board .
Update Verbal Update Wendy Eldridge
. Requested at the
14 January AR I DEE November 2024 Devon Audit Partnership
Management 2024/25 :
2025 meeting
Procurement Readiness Action Holly Golden
Plan
Added during 10
Committee Self-Assessment September 2024 Ross Jago

meeting




OFFICIAL

Page 333

Update on External Audit
Recommendations

Standing ltem

David Northey

Capitalisation Direction Update

Verbal Update

David Northey

Treasury Management Strategy

Wendy Eldridge

Capital Management Strategy

Wendy Eldridge

External Audit — Audit Findings

18 February Report 2023/24 Jackson Murray
2025 Approval of Statement of Accounts
(Additional 2023/24 Carolyn Haynes
Meeting) Identified for
Adult Social Care Debt further Devon ,AUd't .
Management consideration at Partnership/David
3 the January 2025 | Northey/Gary Walbridge
meeting
o Glenda Favor-
Civic Protocol Ankersen/Maddie Halifax
External Audit Progress Report Jackson Murray
Upd;:(e:oomnrﬁz;c]e;;rl?(lj:;udlt Standing Item David Northey
Capitalisation Direction Update David Northey
Internal Audit Strategy and Charter A IR .
2025/26 nnual Report Louise Clapton
Internal Audit Plan 2024/25 Louise Clapton
Treasury Management Practices .
Principles and Schedules 2025/26 Annual ftem Wendy Eldridge
Quarterly Prudential Indicators Quarterly Report Wendy Eldridge
11 March Audit and Governance Annual
2025 Report (to include Committee Self- Annual Report Ross Jago
Assessment)
Review of efficiency and ccl(:liir:jtéfliit(:ji;irat
effectiveness of Constitutional Ross Jago
Updates the July 2024
P meeting.
Risk Managﬁr::::tMomtormg Ross Jago
Review ldentified
Data to Intelligence Strate for consideration Ross Ja,
° & & at the November 0ss Jago
2024 meeting
Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy Ken Johnson
Whistleblowing Policy Annual Review TBC
0l Procurement Strategy Updisniﬁir)’ 6 Holly Golden
April 2025 Identified for
Pre-Election Period Guidance consideration at Liz Bryant

the July 2024
meeting.




OFFICIAL

Page 334

Items to be scheduled for 2024/25

2024/25

Items to be scheduled for 2025/26

2025/26

Regulatory Regimes

Identified for
consideration at
the March 2024

meeting.

Ross Jago

2025/26
(After June
2025)

IFRS16 — Low Value Leases

Identified for
consideration at
the January 2025

meeting.

Carolyn Haynes




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 11/12/2024 Audit and Governance Committee
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 14/01/2025 Audit and Governance Committee
	Minutes


	6 External Audit - Audit Findings Report 2023/24
	Slide 1: The Audit Findings (ISA260) Report for Plymouth City Council  
	Slide 2: Dear Chair of Audit and Governance Committee
	Slide 3: Section   Page Headlines 4 Financial statements 7 Value for money arrangements 28 Independence and ethics 30 Appendices Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance 34 Action plan – Audit of Financial Statements 35 Audit Adjust
	Slide 4: 1. Headlines
	Slide 5: 1. Headlines
	Slide 6: 1. Headlines
	Slide 7: 2. Financial Statements 
	Slide 8: 2. Financial Statements
	Slide 9: 2. Financial Statements: Significant risks
	Slide 10: 2. Financial Statements:  Significant risks
	Slide 11: 2. Financial Statements:  Significant risks
	Slide 12: 2. Financial Statements:  Significant risks
	Slide 13: 2. Financial Statements:  Significant risks
	Slide 14: 2. Financial Statements: Significant risks
	Slide 15: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 16: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 17: 2. Financial Statements: new issues and risks
	Slide 18: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 19: 2. Financial Statements: key judgements and estimates
	Slide 20: 2. Financial Statements: Information Technology
	Slide 21: 2. Financial Statements - Internal Control
	Slide 22: 2. Financial Statements - Internal Control  Controls for which assurance could not be provided  Our IT audit has identified the following issue as part of their review. We do not require management response and have reported this to bring it to 
	Slide 23: 2. Financial Statements:  other communication requirements
	Slide 24: 2. Financial Statements: other communication requirements
	Slide 25: 2. Financial Statements: other communication requirements
	Slide 26: 2. Financial Statements: other responsibilities under the Code
	Slide 27: 3. Value for Money arrangements (VFM) 
	Slide 28: 3. VFM: our procedures and conclusions
	Slide 29: 4. Independence considerations
	Slide 30: 4. Independence considerations
	Slide 31: 4. Independence considerations
	Slide 32: Appendices
	Slide 33: A. Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance
	Slide 34: B. Action Plan – Audit of Financial Statements
	Slide 35: B. Action Plan – Audit of Financial Statements
	Slide 36: B. Action Plan – Audit of Financial Statements
	Slide 37: B. Action Plan – Audit of Financial Statements
	Slide 38: C. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 39: C. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 40: C. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 41: C. Audit Adjustments (continued)
	Slide 42: D. Fees and non-audit services
	Slide 43: D. Fees and non-audit services
	Slide 44: Final (back) page

	7 Approval of Statement of Accounts 2023/24
	Appendix A - 2023_24 Statement of Accounts FINAL
	Contents
	Narrative Report from the Service Director for Finance and Section 151 Officer
	Introduction
	Welcome to the Narrative Statement for the Statement of Accounts for Plymouth City Council 2023/24.
	Revenue Outturn
	Capital Expenditure
	Capitalisation Direction
	And finally…

	Aims, Objectives and Achievements
	Plymouth City Council Democracy and Governance
	Plymouth – Britain’s Ocean City
	Regional Influence
	Future Vision
	National Marine Park (NMP)
	Plymouth and South Devon Freeport
	Devon Business Rates Pool
	The Council’s Approach to Climate Change
	The Way We Work
	The Council’s Performance

	Financial Performance
	Strategy and Resource Allocation – The Council’s Budget and Medium-Term Financial Plan 2023/24 to 2027/28
	2023/24 Revenue Outturn
	The People Directorate
	Working Balance
	Other Financial Performance
	Capital
	Capital Funding 2023-28
	Capital Financing 2023/24
	Cash Flow Management
	Balance Sheet Position

	Financial Management and Identifying Risks
	Risk Management

	Looking Forward
	Statement of Accounts 2023/24
	Annual Governance Statement
	Conclusion

	This sets out the respective responsibilities of the Council and the Chief Finance Officer (Service Director for Finance).
	Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts
	This gives the auditor’s opinion of the financial statements and of the Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources.
	Auditor’s Report
	Core Financial Statements:
	This shows the net cost of providing services for the year, including that for Plymouth’s maintained schools. The top half of the statement provides an analysis by service area, on the same basis that these services are managed by the Council. The bottom half of the statement deals with in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. The Expenditure Funding Analysis (note 7) compares the CIES with levels of income and expenditure which are taken into account when setting the annual budget and council tax since certain amounts are disregarded by statute. 
	Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES)
	The Balance Sheet shows a ‘snapshot’ of the Council’s financial position at year end. The top half of the Balance Sheet sets out the Council’s assets and liabilities, including provision for known liabilities from past events that can be reliably estimated. The lower half of the Balance Sheet shows the Council’s reserves. Usable reserves reflect actual cash amounts and unusable reserves result from accounting adjustments required by statute or accounting standards and cannot be spent.
	Balance Sheet
	This shows the movements in reserves during the year, analysed into the different funds held by the Council and classified as either ‘usable’ reserves which can be used to fund future expenditure or ‘unusable’ reserves which are maintained to meet specific statutory responsibilities and adjustments (e.g. valuation reserves showing the change in book value of assets and liabilities).
	Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS)
	This financial statement shows how changes in balance sheet accounts and income affect cash and cash equivalents. It breaks the analysis down to operating activities, investing activities (including capital spend and disposals) and financing activities (such as repayment of borrowing and other long-term activities).
	Cash Flow Statement
	Supplementary Statements and Notes:
	This account demonstrates how income raised from local taxpayers has been redistributed to the Council and other precepting authorities for the provision of services.
	Collection Fund
	Sets out the accounting policies that have been followed in preparing the accounts and how the Code requirements have been met in practice.
	Statement of Accounting Policies
	These provide more detail about individual transactions and balances.
	Disclosure Notes
	Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts
	The Council is required to:
	The Service Director for Finance (Section 151 Officer) Responsibilities

	Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the Year Ended 31 March 2024
	Movement in Reserves Statement for the Year Ended 31 March 2024
	Balance Sheet
	Cash Flow Statement
	Notes to the Financial Statements
	1 Accounting Policies
	1.1 General Principles
	1.2 Accruals of Income and Expenditure
	1.3 Cash and Cash Equivalents
	1.4 Exceptional Items
	1.5 Benefit Payments
	1.6 Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies, Estimates and Errors
	1.7 Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets
	1.8 Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates
	Accounting for Council Tax and NDR

	1.9 Employee Benefits
	Benefits Payable during Employment
	Termination Benefits
	Post-Employment Benefits (Pensions)
	Teachers’ Pension Scheme
	The Local Government Pension Scheme
	Discretionary Benefits

	1.10 Events After the Balance Sheet Date
	1.11 Financial Instruments
	Financial Liabilities
	Financial Assets
	Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost
	Expected Credit Loss Model
	Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss
	Fair Value Measurement of Financial Assets
	Financial Derivatives

	1.12 Revenue Recognition
	1.13 Government Grants and Contributions
	1.14 Joint Operations
	1.15 Interests in Companies and Other Entities
	1.16 Investment Properties
	1.17 Heritage Assets
	1.18 Assets Held for Sale
	1.19 Leases
	The Council as the Lessee (Leased in Assets)
	Finance Leases
	Operating Leases
	The Council as the Lessor (Assets Leased Out)
	Operating Leases
	IFRS 16 Leases
	Recognition Exemptions

	1.20 Property, Plant and Equipment
	Recognition
	Measurement
	Impairment
	Depreciation
	Componentisation
	Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale
	Highways Infrastructure Assets

	1.21 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and Similar Contracts
	Schools PFI Credits
	South West Devon Energy from Waste (EfW) PFI

	1.22 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
	Provisions
	Contingent Liabilities
	Contingent Assets

	1.23 Reserves
	1.24 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS)
	1.25 Accounting for Schools
	1.26 Value Added Tax
	1.27 Fair Value Measurement of Non-Financial Assets
	Level 1 – Quoted Prices (Unadjusted)
	Level 2 – Significant Observable Inputs
	Level 3 – Significant Unobservable Inputs
	Highest and Best Use
	Valuation Techniques

	2 Material Items of Income and Expenditure
	3 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies
	Tamar Bridge Valuation – Departure from the Code of Practice
	Pension Asset Ceiling

	4 Accounting Standards that have been Issued but Not Yet Adopted
	5 Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
	6 Events After the Balance Sheet Reporting Period
	7 Expenditure and Funding Analysis
	8 Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis
	Adjustment for Capital Purposes
	Net Charge for the Pension Adjustments
	Other Differences

	9 Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature
	10 Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis Under Regulations
	General Fund Balances
	Capital Receipts Reserve
	Capital Grants Unapplied

	11 Other Operating Expenditure
	12 Movement in Earmarked Reserves
	Education/Schools Reserves

	13 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
	14 Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure
	15 Property, Plant and Equipment
	15.1 Movement in Year
	15.2 Commitments Under Capital Contracts
	15.3 Revaluations
	15.4 Gain/Loss on Disposal of Non-Current Assets
	15.5 Fair Value Hierarchy for Surplus Assets
	16 Heritage Assets
	Historic Buildings and Monuments
	Gold, Silver, Jewellery, Fine Art and World Cultures, Decorative Art and Other Miscellany

	17 Investment Properties
	17.1 Income, Expenditure and Changes in Fair Value of Investment Properties
	17.2 Fair Value Hierarchy for Investment Properties
	17.3 Reconciliation of Fair Value Measurements (Using Significant Unobservable Inputs) Categorised within Level 3 of the Fair Funding Hierarchy
	Valuation Process for Investment Properties

	18 Financial Instruments
	18.1 Financial Instruments - Classifications
	Financial Assets
	Financial Liabilities
	Financial Liabilities Comparison to Fair Values

	18.2 Equity Instruments Designated to Fair Value through Profit or Loss
	18.3 Gains and Losses on Financial Instruments
	18.4 Financial Instruments – Fair Value
	The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received when selling an asset, or the price that would be paid when transferring a liability, to another market participant in an arms’ length transaction. Where liabilities are held...
	18.5 Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments
	Credit Risk
	Liquidity Risk
	Market Risk: Interest Rate Risk
	Market Risk: Price Risk

	19 Debtors
	19.1 Short-Term Debtors
	19.2 Long-Term Debtors
	19.3 Bad Debt Provision
	20 Creditors
	20.1 Short-Term Creditors
	20.2 Long-Term Creditors
	20.3 Other Long-Term Liabilities
	21 Provisions
	Insurance Provisions
	Landfill Site Provision

	22 Unusable Reserves
	22.1 Revaluation Reserve
	22.2 Capital Adjustment Account
	22.3 Financial Instruments Adjustment Account
	22.4 Pension Reserve
	22.5 Collection Fund Adjustment Account
	23 Notes to Cash Flow
	23.1 Cash Flow Statement – Operating Activities
	23.2 Cash Flow Statement – Investing Activities
	23.3 Cash Flow Statement – Financing Activities
	23.4 Cash Flow Statement – Cash and Cash Equivalents
	24 Pooled Budgets – Integrated Fund
	25 Members’ Allowances
	26 Officers’ Remuneration
	26.1 Senior Employees
	Election Fees

	26.2 Remuneration Above £50,000
	26.3 Employee Exit Packages
	27 External Audit Costs
	28 Dedicated Schools Grant
	29 Grant Income
	29.1 Current Liabilities
	29.2 Long-Term Liabilities
	30 Related Parties
	Central Government
	Members
	Senior Officers
	Other Public Bodies
	Other Interests in Companies
	Joint Committees

	31 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing
	32 Leases
	33 Private Finance Initiatives (PFI) and Similar Contracts
	33.1 Schools PFI
	33.2 South West Devon (SWD) Energy from Waste (EfW) Partnership
	34 Pensions
	34.1 Pension Scheme Accounted for as Defined Contribution Schemes
	Teachers’ Pension Scheme

	34.2 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes
	Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)
	PENSION INFORMATION FOR THE PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL (PCC) SCHEME
	Transactions Relating to Post-Employment Benefits

	34.3 Assets and Liabilities in Relation to Post-Employment Benefits (PCC)
	34.4 Scheme History (PCC)
	34.5 Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities (PCC)
	34.6 Total Assets (PCC)
	34.7 Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet
	PENSION INFORMATION FOR TAMAR BRIDGE AND TORPOINT FERRY JOINT COMMITTEE (TBTF)

	34.8 Transactions in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and Movement in Reserves Statement (TBTF)
	34.9 Assets and Liabilities in Relation to Post-Employment Benefits (TBTF)
	34.10 Scheme History (TBTF)
	34.11 Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities (TBTF)
	35 Contingent Assets and Liabilities
	35.1 Contingent Assets
	Plymouth Airport

	35.2 Contingent Liabilities

	Collection Fund for the Year Ended 31 March 2024
	Notes to the Collection Fund
	1 Council Tax Income
	2 Income from Business Ratepayers
	3 Precepts and Demands
	3.1 Council Tax
	3.2 Non-Domestic Rates


	Appendix B - Local government letter of representation - 2023-24 - Plymouth CC
	Appendix C - Annual Governance Statement 2023-24
	Appendic D Plymouth City Council - disclaimer of opinion - 2023-24 DRAFT

	9 Updated Treasury Management Strategy 2025/26
	10 Updated Capital Financing Strategy 2025/26
	11 Adult Social Care Debt Management
	001a ASC Debt Management 202425 Update January 2025

	13 Tracking Decisions
	14 Work Programme

